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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Pollert called hearing to order on HB 1025. Clerk took role and quorum
declared. Jeanne Prom, executive director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention and
Control Policy, presented testimony as attachment ONE in support of HB 1025. Questions
asked by committee members throughout testified and questions and answers included as
follows.

Vice Chairman Bellew: Measure three requires a portion of the money that ND receives
from the Master Settlement Agreement (attachment ONE, first paragraph). Can you define
what a portion means?

Jeanne Prom: It is illustrated in the law. A portion means that it's actually 9 0f 10 of
payments that state receives between 2008 and 2017. They're called strategic contribution
fund payments.

Chairman Pollert: Office of Management and Budget or Legislative Council, can you get
us this schedule? | think there are two payments; one is main one and other is strategic
one, which just kicked in the last year or two, right?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, actually there was a Schedule prepared for the interim bugect section.

Representative Nelson: sales tax data can be measured in different areas. Do you plan to
collect data or have data that measures how many people go on reservations to purchase
tobacco because of lower tax rate and then take it off the reservation?

Jeanne Prom we don't have data on that, however anecdotal information from multiple
sources states that the price of tobacco is not that much less on than off the reservations.
In fact the prices off the reservation are the same as on the Standing Rock reservation.
Based on information from New York (NY), individuals do go to the reservations to
purchase tobacco if live within 30 miles if reservation. In ND there has been minimal effect
on where you buy your tobacco and we are hearing that it's not really making any impact
Representative Nelson: | have viewed this in my area, so that's why | was wondering
about data.
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Representative Kreidt: on the budget part, there are enhancements (46,614); is that
interest or what is an enhancement?

Jeanne Prom The enhancements are the compensation package for the employees; the
increase in health insurance, increase in salary and benefits. | will go over that briefly in our
budget request.

Legislative Council: to get the information sooner, you can go to the trust section (J23) in
the green books to see a schedule of the tobacco prevention and control trust fund. It
shows the breakdown of the payments, a question that came up earlier. It shows the
subsection two payment which is that extra bump and the years they will be getting that
and it shows the subsection one payment and the way that’s split the three different ways.
Chairman Pollert: in the second column, that's the total payment; the third column would
be the payment that goes to the tobacco advisory committee and then the four, five, six is
settlement A divided 45, 45, 10 in the last three columns.

Legislative Council that's correct. The extra bump is what's in the third column and the
second column with numbers. You can see that payment ends in 17.

Chairman Pollert: do you have any programs on the reservations? Have you tried to do
that?

Jeanne Prom: We have funding that is granted to us to be used in the counties for
programs thus this includes reservations; therefore on reservations we do have programs.

Representative Nelson: doesn’t the CDC have three separate levels on their funding,
high, medium, lower level and we are in the medium?

Jeanne Prom: The latest CDC best practices recommendation gives one recommendation
per state, one level.

Representative Nelson: Was there more than one CDC level?

Jeanne Prom: there was a CDC best practice recommendation from 1999 that had given
ranges, and of course you can still be within the range of the level given by CDC. But their
recommendation is the one number.

Representative Nelson: Does Alaska fund their CDC program at the same level as ND?
Jeanne Prom: Each state's number is specific to that state, so Alaska funds what the state
of Alaska is suppose to fund. | am not familiar with the other states.

Vice Chairman Bellew: could you get us the report what the United States of America
Center for Disease Control and Prevention recommends regarding funding level? Because
you said that your budget and the two that are you in health dept meet that requirement.
Jeanne Prom: That's correct. That's 9.3 million dollars per year, so 18.6 million a
biennium. With this appropriation of 12.8 million plus the community health trust fund, 80%
of that goes to tobacco prevention and control, and the Dept of Health has a CDC grant.
Those three funding streams together equal the CDC level.

Vice Chairman Bellew: Is that a floating number (8.3 a year) or a stable number?

Jeanne Prom: It is a stable number, It's adjusted for inflation based on the consumer price
index.

Chairman Pollert. out of the 24.5 million dollars that you'll receive in the 09-11 biennium,
you're going to be putting roughly 11 million dollars in a reserve account somewhere.
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Jeanne Prom: Yes, what isn’t spent is in reserve.

Chairman Pollert: Where is that reserve at right now?

Jeanne Prom: It's in the tobacco and control trust fund which is in the State Bank of ND. it
comes through the state treasurer’s office for deposit.

Representative Nelson: are you aware of how that trust fund is growing? Do you know
what the interest rate is? In this committee, we were surprised by the relatively stagnate
growth. Are you satisfied with how that money is being treated?

Jeanne Prom: We get interest reported to us every month. The rate is based on average
daily balance and it is very low, but it's what the state gets on all its funds.

Representative Nelson: we are going to look into that closer, right?

Chairman Pollert: we will have the Legislative Council get what the rate of return is for
your account. We want to see if there is a pattern. This is no reflection on you guys as we
figure out what the return is on all the trust funds is in our section.

Jeanne Prom | remember it being under 1%.

Representative Kreidt: The four FTEs, does that include you? Is it three and you?

Jeanne Prom: The four includes me, the executive director.

Representative Kreidt: the enhancement amount is that based on the three on three that
we're talking about for state employees or what type of increase is your salary
percentagewise comes out to?

Jeanne Prom: That number was provided to us by Office of Management and Budget
based on the Governors’ recommendation.

Representative Kreidt. do you rent office space here in Bismarck?

Jeanne Prom: Yes

Representative Kreidt. Could you get us square footage of that office and how much you
pay per month?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, i can get you that information.

Chairman Pollert: we ask these types of questions of the budgets.
Representative Kaldor: yes, we did this in the Govt Ops division as well.

Chairman Pollert: In the fiscal year 2010, you said 1.8 million fewer packs sold? As you
can't tell how much comes across MN state border lines, it's still 1.8 million fewer packs
sold?

Jeanne Prom Yes. | did ask the tax dept who provided this information if they would have
information on the county level (was interested about Cass County), but it is not available.

Representative Nelson: what is the current cigarette tax in MN and what are they talking
about going to?

Jeanne Prom: | believe it's about $1.57 per pack and | don’t know of a plan to raise it, but
they do have budget issues we do not have.

Chairman Poliert: ND has a 44 cent per pack tax?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, since 1993 and it's one of the lowest in the nation.

Chairman Pollert: How about South Dakota (SD) and Montana (MT)?

Jeanne Prom: MT's is about $1.72 and $1.50 for SD. We would feel that as far as cross
border sales, it would be the MN sales that would affect us.
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Chairman Pollert. Do you keep track of SD and MN as far as if their tobacco rates have
dropped since we're on the CDC plan? Do you see a correlation with other states as
compared to ND at 44 or because we have the program in place, you can't make a
correlation? If you raise the price of a pack of cigarettes then less people will smoke. Is that
true of SD, MT and MN as compared to ND?

Jeanne Prom: | don't have the exact numbers of those states. There has been a reduction
in smoking every time the price of cigarettes increases however there are no exact figures
on those states. It is part of the law to get an independent, comprehensive evaluation of the
program to get at just what you brought up, so we will have this evaluation done. Referring
to chart in attachment ONE, the most significant decline was in this past year.

Chairman Pollert: | would like to see a study done {not funded by the state) that examines
whether there's a correlation between SD, for instance, and the decline in pack purchases
at a $1.50 increase, and ND with a much cheaper tax but taking into account the tax spent
per capita on the CDC programs. So, we could see if there would be better success in just
raising the tax versus putting money forward for CDC and consequently better usage of this
money somewhere else.

Jeanne Prom: it would be interesting to see that. On pg two (attachment ONE), according
to CDC, as states spend more on programs which are also educational programs to
prevent tobacco use and create a tobacco free social norm, larger declines in smoking
rates occur even when they controlled for other factors including tobacco prices.

Chairman Pollert. I'm just wondering if there’s a difference without the other states, SD
and MT, doing anything; simply raising the tax, not the other programs. There's probably
not that data.

Jeanne Prom: The data shows that the comprehensive approach works.

Representative Kaldor: the local heaith units actually sought out people, asking them if
they wanted to quit. How many called the quit line without having been contact? In other
words, voluntary?

Jeanne Prom: the quit line asked how people heard about the quit line and that’s broken
out more generally like health care professional, nurse and we don’t if that came from
private entities or local public health. However our local public health units are very aware
of what’s happening in their own building and they know that they're certainly referring like
they never have before.

Chairman Pollert: | believe the tobacco quit line has a little over a million dollars coming
out of the health dept or out of the community health trust fund. Do you have any money
going to quit line as well or it is all done though the Dept of Health?

Jeanne Prom: It all comes out the Dept of Health; we promote people referring to that.

Representative Wieland: Percent doesn't mean anything unless we know numbers; what
they started with and what they ended up with. For instance, in Washington (WA) we know
smoking rates decreased for 50% of the youth, but we need to know what they started with
in terms of total population of the state. Regarding the study in WA, what is the criterion for
saying that 13,000 premature deaths and 36,000 hospitalizations were prevented after a
decade of the comprehensive program being implemented?

Jeanne Prom: First of all, Percentages can be cross applied despite the specific
population, thus it's a consistent measure. As far as your other question, | have the WA
study and they used a very completed economic model that goes beyond my
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understanding and it was done by experts in the field, with a similar study done in California
(CA). | can share copies of that with you.

Representative Wieland: | understand the percentages being cross applied (regardless),
except that how does that compare to ND though? What | really want to know is how many
actual smokers we have in the state of ND because we talk about 20% but then there kids
one to ten that are included in that population we have and | don’t think they’re smoking
before age ten. | would really like some numbers to utilize so we can watch the progress in
terms of numbers. And, that study from WA wouldn’t do me any good because if you can't
understand it, I'm not going to be able to understand it. | would really like to know what kind
of assumptions people make when they make those kinds of reports. Another question, if it
is true that the federal government does not subsidize tobacco anymore, when did they
stop subsidizing and was it a 100% subsidy?

Jeanne Prom: | would have to get you the subsidy information. in regards to your question,
I do know there are about 90,000 adult smokers in our state, but I'm not sure the number of
youth.

Vice Chairman Bellew: what is considered an adult?
Jeanne Prom: an adult is 18 and older.

Vice Chairman Bellew: there are 90,000 adult smokers in ND, so 1% of 90,000 is what?
Jeanne Prom: 1% of the 20% that are smokers, so when we drop by 1% to 18.6% to
17.6%, it's not 1% of the 90,000.

Chairman Pollert: in referencing pg 11 of testimony, can you expand on the meaning of
44.6 million?
Jeanne Prom: That's a long term number that results from a 1% decline, so it's stemmed
off of the 1%

Chairman Pollert. In MA, when they reduced their funding in 2003, did they increase a
pack of cigarettes at that time or did they leave unchanged? Normally if you reduce
funding, you raise a tax somewhere.

Jeanne Prom: They cut the program funding because they thought they needed the
money for other purposes.

Chairman Pollert. if government cuts funding because they don't have the money or they
want it to go somewhere else, they usually raise the tax somewhere to also help
compensate for the cost. That would be my guess.

Jeanne Prom: | do not know.

Chairman Pollert. | have a mental problem with all of this. My dad smoked and he died
early; | know that. | have a difficult time understanding why people just can't quit. |
remember my father packing every morning and it's just something | just never did.

Jeanne Prom: Last month, there was a new surgeon generals’ report on second hand
smoke about how it causes change to the body and part of that report said, that as they
look into how tobacco industries manufactures the cigarettes, they have been making the
cigarettes more addictive. It is a highly addictive product, so that's why it's hard to quit.
Representative Nelson: explain the strategy you use to provide outreach to counties and
cities? Do you contact every city? How do you determine what specific cities have a need
for this.
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Jeanne Prom: we fund every local health unit where they go out to their community
members and provide education. They go through community based coalitions to enact
change on a macro level regarding policies.

Representative Kreidt: going back to your two dollar tobacco tax, what would you do with
those funds?

Jeanne Prom: That's a legislative action. It's always a good thing to look at taking tobacco
tax revenues and using them for health related problems.

Representative Kreidt: how did you arrive at the two dollar figure; why not five dollars?
Maybe then everyone would quit smoking.

Jeanne Prom: the advisory committee felt that this was a doable level. It was above where
the national average was at and we want our goals to be high. We looked at where other
states were and thought about what the health benefits were that we wanted to reap from
that.

Chairman Pollert: are you aware of any legislation coming forward this session regarding
workplace smoking?

Jeanne Prom: there's a bill that bans smoking in restaurant/bar combination entities when
children are present. Another piece of legislation is banning smoking in cars with children
under age 13.

Vice Chairman Bellew: on pg 14, the total budget request is 12992... while on appendix E
of the testimony, it states the total 12922...7
Jeanne Prom: That is a mistake. The correct request is 12922.

Chairman Pollert: Do you have three and half temporary positions right now? Are the staff
for these hired? When do you want to bring them on full time?

Jeanne Prom: there are actually four positions, one’s a half time position, and | will be
explaining those. They are not hired at this point. The base budget has them as temp
employees and the optional budget request would have them as permanent. | do want to
point out that our committee has no one time spending requests. Referenced attachment
ONE and explained the positions and correlating benefits and salaries.

Chairman Pollert: the four permanent and temporary are not state employees?

Jeanne Prom: They are state employees.

Representative Wieland: they do fail in the category as FTEs? The initiated measure, did
that mention specifically number of employees?

Jeanne Prom: They do fall under FTEs. The initiated measure did not mention number of
employees.

Chairman Pollert. since they're state employees, the pension and insurance benefits is
paid out of this fund? If those funds don't happen, then do the employees just disappear?
They're currently funded through not a general fund.

Jeanne Prom: Yes, that's correct.

Chairman Pollert: All the contributions, those are paid by whatever we call that fund?
Jeanne Prom: Yes. Every dollar we spend is from that trust fund.

Chairman Pollert. At some point, down the road the ways, there will be a decision by the
state because the strategic payments are going to vanish, right?

Jeanne Prom: Yes. The last payment the state will receive will be in 2017.
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Chairman Pollert: You are building reserves to continue on the committee, right?
Jeanne Prom: Yes

Representative Nelson: they are to manage the grants that are currently managed by the
Dept of Health. We are going to detail the heaith budget prior to Jeanne coming back,
correct.

Chairman Pollert: They're going to have to be in correlation. They will have to be here at
the same time as dept of health. The Dept of Health won't be until the week of January 31.
Representative Nelson: The question needs to be raised, with the Dept of Health, if those
positions are granted to the committee, is there is any offset at the Dept of Health. They're
might be some overlap there.

Chairman Pollert: you are trying to move all of that over to the tobacco advisory
committee. So if that's the case, then there should be a drop in FTEs with the Dept of
Heaith.

Representative Nelson: are there problems with the Dept of Health handling the grant
requests now? Is it going to be more efficient if it's in your office? Or are they saying it's too
much for them.

Jeanne Prom: That transferred occurred in July 2009 and we have been managing those
grants. Adequate staffing is a critical issue. Grants were transferred to us from the Dept of
Health at the beginning of the biennium. Originally the Dept had agreed to managed those
grants with existing Dept staff and that's why we requested 4.0 FTE last biennium and not
another amount of FTE. Major changes in a brand new program aren’t uncommon so in
exchange for taking those grants, the Dept of health has provided us on a contractual basis
accounting and human resources services. That arrangement has been very helpful to us,
but that arrangement wasn't meant to be perpetual. We still do need more staff because we
are managing more grants that anticipated.

Chairman Pollert: is there a staffing requirement in connection with grant money? How
many FTEs are needed for 10 or 20 grants? That is information we will have to look into.
Jeanne Prom continued to explain the different positions requested using attachment
ONE.

Chairman Pollert: You're doing 51 now, but you will be doing 75
Jeanne Prom: Yes. That number is fluid.

Chairman Pollert. Jeanne, we will do detailing at a later day; most likely the week of
January 31. This will be done the same week as the Dept of Health.

Chairman Pollert: of the 12.8 million we did last biennium, are you going to spend all of
that?

Jeanne Prom: We are about 40% spent. We started from nothing. That reflects we were a
start up and our 40% spent is about a quarter behind. | do expect some will go unspent.
Chairman Pollert: Will the money that's unspent, go into their reserve fund.

Office of Management and Budget: there's just one fund so the balance of that fund
remains there.

Chairman Pollert: of the 24 million that will be coming in, that money stays in a checking
account. If we are going to collect this much, shouldn’t there be a reserve fund, instead?
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Office of Management and Budget: these funds are identifiers for these pots of money.
The money is put into CDs, with interest being allocated, so the money continues to grow.
It's all at the Bank of ND.

Chairman Pollert; in the counting in how much they haven't spent and what's going to
carry over past the payments in 2017 and then your dept will live off of that fund?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, whatever the balance is of those funds.

Representative Nelson: did you go through the cost of your OARs? What's the total cost
of permanent versus temporary positions?

Jeanne Prom: The cost remains the same, although the benefits of temporary are a little
less.

Representative Nelson: and what is that number?

Jeanne Prom: it's not on the attachment.

Chairman Pollert: we'll get that at a later date.

Chairman Pollert: we’ll want to know what you won't be spending in the 09 biennium, so if
you can bring that back when we do the detailing.

Chairman Pollert: during the testimony last session, | believe there was some material out
there that talked about the CDC practices at a lower, middle and high point, because I've
had that discussion with other legislators, asking how the 12.8 came up and was there
discussion on the low point. Because of our discussion on a low point, | believe there are
materials out there on the different levels. When we get to the detail, there will be more
discussion there.

Representative Nelson: in the attachment of the detail, it would be broken out in addition
to the fringe package. The net would be the 401 minus the 25.

Representative Kaldor: Office of Management and Budget, was there some rationale for
making them temporary rather than permanent?
Office of Management and Budget: we've been trying to hold FTE levels down.

Megan Smith Houn, Executive Director of Tobacco Free North Dakota, testified verbally in
support of HB 1025. The mission of my organization is to protect the health of all north
Dakotans impacted by tobacco use and keep tobacco use minimal. It is the number one
cause of preventable death in our death. Megan Smith Houn provided a personal
anecdote about losing her father to tobacco use.

Chairman Pollert stated public input regarding the Health Department budget will be taken
Wednesday February 2, from 8:30 am to 10:30 am.

Chairman Pollert reviewed the schedule for next week to include the bills (1044 and 1152)
being heard on Wednesday (January 19) morning. Chairman Pollert stated “we’re here on
an informational basis only” and “I' want us to be asking questions.” Chairman Pollert
closed the hearing on HB 1025.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Pollert called committee back to order and opened hearing on HB 1025.
Chairman Pollert started hearing with public testimony on HB 1025, prior to the budget
detailing.

Theresa Will, CCHD, ND lobbyist EC, provided written testimony (labeled as attachment
ONE) in support of HB 1025 (evidence base for comprehensive state tobacco control
programs written by Dr. Terry Pechancek). Letter provided to committee, written by
Theresa Will, on February 7, to address concerns from committee that came up during
budget detailing. Letter is included with attachment ONE.

Karen Macdonald, ND Nurses Associations, provided written testimony (labeled as
attachment TWQ) in support of HB 1025.

Representative Nelson: what did you do to help the 3 cities that passed the smoke free
legislation this past year?

Karen Macdonald: That would be better addressed by that group. | am more cognizant of
the work we did in Bismarck. | do know it's a lot of legwork, work within the community, and
is misunderstood by bar owners, restaurant owners.

Chairman Pollert: In referring your testimony, am | correct in saying that tobacco use is
one of the contributors to heart disease? Is there funding going to the heart disease groups
from the tobacco groups?

840

Karen Macdonald: | can only tell you what we did in our practice in MedCenter One. Every
time someone with a heart problem who has had bypass surgery, lights up a cigarettes an
immediate physiological response with the blood cells ensues and places them at risk. It
decreases the amount of oxygen that goes to tissue and impedes healing; in fact many
surgeons won't even do surgery on someone who smokes as it leads to disastrous results
if they continue to smoke. The effort has to be that | could encourage people to quit
smoking, but | needed to give them some very concrete steps about what you can do.



RE RS

House Appropriations Human Resources:Division
HB 1025

February 3, 2011

Page 2

Using the quit line was number one. Talking to ex-smokers about what other avenues to
cease smoking is another means.

Representative Kaldor: Yesterday we had on testimony from Go Red. Sometimes it
seems like we have silos of cause i.e. one for tobacco prevention and control, another for
diabetes, another for heart disease. Could you explain the value of prevention that, that has
on the cardiology effort? Have you seen concrete results in your own practice?

Karen Macdonald: | can only give you anecdotal notes. Based on assessments I've done,
it is extremely rare to see a person with heart disease who doesn’t have a history of
tobacco use.

Representative Metcalf: the cancer in most cases (anecdotal) started in another portion of
the body and it works its way up into the lungs. It seems like individuals die from lung
cancer/lung disease versus the actual cancer that person started with. Am | wrong with this
information?

Karen Macdonald: You are dealing with two different things. Primary lung cancer is
predominantly caused by exposure to the tars in nicotine. Thus primary lung cancer is rare
in those who haven’t smoked or been exposed to second hand smoke or third hand smoke
(those exposed by an individual who smokes outside but brings particles on body, clothes,
hair inside). Metastatic lung cancer (cancer that was present in another part of the body)
typically comes from bone, prostate, and that is where it will metastasize or spread.
Representative Metcalf: when | ask what these individuals died from, the answer is lung
cancer. | don't know which level of lung cancer it was. If they died from metastatic fung
cancer, why isn’t the cancer named after the organ it started in.

Karen Macdonald: From a laymen'’s perspective, breathing is very important and you
might have prostate cancer, which is not going to kill you, but if you have something that
moves to your breathing apparatus, that is going to be very harmful. | think the statistics
that you can read (| can provide these), we are talking about primary lung cancer. When
you talk about silos, | don't see, in the nursing profession, that we are building silos. What
we are trying to do is position affect on lifestyle and it doesn’'t make any difference what the
area is. What we want is for our citizens to live longer by making lifestyle changes, like
quitting smoking, watching your weight, getting exercise; nursing works in all those areas.

Chairman Pollert: | see silos being built in the appropriations process between groups in
the legislature, not between individuals that we have coming up and testifying

Representative Kreidt: in regards to heart disease, isn't there a heredity factor involved in
that?

Karen Macdonald: That is part of our assessment. For instance, women who present with
heart disease have much higher changes of death as they are not as in touch with their
symptoms, genetic history, etc. However there is not a single cause. If we wipe out tobacco
smoking, we will still have heart disease, however the deaths related to it, won't be as
tragic as it wasn't self imposed.

Beth Hughes, ND Society for Respiratory Care, presented written testimony in support of
HB 1025 and is labeled as attachment THREE.
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Kimberlee Schneider, Manager of Advocacy and Tobacco Control with the American Lung
Association in ND, provided testimony, labeled as attachment FOUR.

Pat McGeary, ND Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee, provided
testimony, labeled as attachment FIVE.

Representative Nelson: what strategies did you incorporate in the 3 cities that enacted
smoke free legislation?

Pat McGeary: The resources that we spend are on promoting documentation, bringing
forth documents, organizing people, building our coalitions, developing our tobacco policy
with our decision makers, organizing fact sheets, building our capacity, and doing broad
public education in our whole community. We had many individuals come to us requesting
help in getting clean air where they work such as employees at bars, artists, musicians, etc.
Representative Nelson: it was a combined effort of people on the committee, but the
volunteer effort was the major impetus for on the ground work?

Pat McGeary: Correct

Representative Nelson: | always thought that one of the goals that was considered early
and was one of the most effective policies, was a higher cigarette tax, especially for
younger people, to make it unaffordable. Yet, the committee didn't choose to go forward
with a tax increase. Why?

Pat McGeary: We have a lot of ground work on education to do on cigarette tax. As you
can see from the summary of the things we have accomplished, we are in the early stages
of doing some public education on the cigarette tax and the great benefits from it.
Representative Nelson: who wasn't ready? You raise the taxes on cigarette packs, the
number of smokers go down. Isn't it that black and white?

Pat McGeary: Yes, that’s right.

Representative Nelson: from a strategy regarding the tobacco use in bars, why wasn't
there an effort of a statewide ban? Wasn’t that another goal?

Pat McGeary: We received from the direction from the legislators to work city by city and
come back to the session to ask for a smoking ban.

Kayla Meter, Health Pros (Peers Reaching Out) at the University of Mary, provided
testimony, labeled as attachment SIX.

Chairman Pollert: Do you have other groups at other universities?
Kayla Meyer: | am not sure.

Representative Kaldor: what do you see happening on the campus at U of Mary? Was
there a change that took place as a resuit of this? Were there a lot of students smoking
before that are now quitting?

Kayla Meyer: A couple of weeks ago, we did pass a tobacco free policy campus wide
which will be implemented in the fall 2011.

Representative Neison: the expansion to smoke free on the campus, how will you phase
that in?

Kayla Meyer: starting in fali 2011, for the first six months we are going to start with
education and we will serve warnings (no fines) and after these six months, we are going to
have a process of the policy getting phased in.
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Representative Nelson: is this somewhat self policed? For instance, if you see another
student smoking, you turn that person in?

Kayla Meyer: The Deans are going to be in charge of the faculty members and then
students to students.

Representative Kreidt: Before you got into this, did you a survey on campus of how many
students are smoking? Are you going to do follow up?

Kayla Meyer: In the spring of 2010, the exercise science program did a poll, resulting in
data showing 13% of students and facuity use tobacco products on campus. We will
resurvey again and haven’t come to a date on that yet.

Due to there being no further testimony, Jeanne Prom, executive director of the Center for
Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, provided and went through information, labeled as
attachment SEVEN.

Vice Chairman Bellew: can you give me an explanation for temporary salaries?

Jeanne Prom: Reflects the addition of 3.5 FTE (1 for grants management, 1 for community
intervention coordinator {outreach), 1 for evaluation coordinator, .5 for accountant)

Vice Chairman Bellew: if these are FTEs, how come they are temps?

Jeanne Prom: We requested permanent, but in the governor's budget they are temp

Vice Chairman Bellew: what type of benefits do they have?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, last session, the legislature allowed for health insurance for temp
employees.

Representative Nelson: Are there retirement benefits for these employees?
Jeanne Prom: there are no retirement benefits for temp

Representative Wieland: you are paying $40,000 a biennium to DOH for accounting
services? '

Jeanne Prom:; That is correct.

Representative Wieland: when you move it to your dept, how much will that be?
Jeanne Prom: $84, 848 for the biennium, including the benefits

Representative Kaldor: in the recommended budget, is the .5 accountant considered in
the salaries line item? Or in contracts?

Jeanne Prom: Both, we have a transition period where there will be a few thousand dollars
needed. Our board members are considered in that line item as well.

Representative Nelson: on the grants manager, are you contracting that with DOH?
Jeanne Prom: We want to expand the number of grants as we build our capacity so we
need another person .

Representative Nelson: in any of these three positions, are you contracting these services
with DOH?

Jeanne Prom: The only area was the half time accountant with DOH

Vice Chairman Bellew: the board members are paid per diem?
Jeanne Prom: $135 per meeting, plus travel.
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Representative Kaldor: you've issued 51 grants and | anticipate you issuing more. How

are you monitoring those grants right now?

Jeanne Prom: We are spreading that around. As we move beyond this point, we need to
do more training and technical assistance and the time is now to start that. Current grants
and several more as well as issue service the procurement officer, proposal, award bids,

Chairman Pollert: your current FTE load, you are managing 51 grants for how much
money? Grants of $4.8M?

Jeanne Prom: There are details of the grants in the attachment SEVEN. There are 51
grants and there are two major types of grants that go to our local public health units and
those total $5.9M. Those are the grants that we assumed from the DOH. In addition, there
are a few extra pages of other grants that we initiated and those are the grants that we see
are expanding with additional grantees and also moving into the evaluation piece of our
program. There are seven in addition to the 51.

Chairman Pollert; did you say you were going to be going up to 75-767

Jeanne Prom: yes, in the documents, that is anticipated for next biennium.

Chairman Pollert: currently, you are doing 51 and you're estimating to go to 75 or 76.
Jeanne Prom: yes, it's around that number,

Chairman Pollert: are you attempting to get grants from other locations?

Jeanne Prom: we have the authority (by law, not spending authority) to do that if we want.
We only have spending authority to spend this amount which we already have. We are not
pursing any other funding source at this time.

Representative Kaldor: the grant line item; | can’t find the $5.9M you are talking about.
Jeanne Prom: what you have before you is a request by the legislative council to report
where all of our grants go (attachments NINE and TWELVE).

Vice Chairman Bellew: you have $8.8M for grants for this biennium. Do you have a
breakout of where you anticipate that grant money going?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, you have that on the last page of attachment SEVEN.

Vice Chairman Bellew: | am referring to next biennium. They will be proposed grants, but
you had to have a way to come up with that figure.

Jeanne Prom: that is one of the inclusions in our budget request

Chairman Pollert confirmed that Office of Management and Budget can provide this

Representative Kreidt: | had asked for information on your buildings you are leasing.
Jeanne Prom: We have documents with that information.

Representative Kreidt: you have nine members on the advisory committee. Did we get a
list of the committee members?

Jeanne Prom: | can provide that

Chairman Pollert: you have a substantial increase in rental lease so could you tell me
where you are at right now. Do you have to lease more parts of the building? | am trying to
see where the $27,000 comes from.
Jeanne Prom: this information is included on the last page of attachment EIGHT. It's
$26,000 this biennium and that's for 4.0 staff people. We do have a small conference room
as well. | figured we would need more space in the current building.



House Appropriations Human Resources 'Division
HB 1025

February 3, 2011

Page 6

Chairman Pollert: it would be in the current building so everything would be in one central
location. You are looking for more appropriation for more space.

Jeanne Prom: There currently is space available in our building so we could hopefully
expand where we are.

Chairman Pollert: On the grants line item, you've got $94,000. Is that money to local public
health units?

Jeanne Prom: that is correct

Chairman Pollert: the next page would be grants going to all local public health units?
Jeanne Prom: yes, two different kinds of grants but for the most part, just about the same.
The first $940,000 goes to every single health unit, all 28, and the second list goes directly
or indirectly to all 28 local public health units (both non-competitively). The first smaller
amount of $1M is to incorporate the AAR and the second group of grants ($6M) is for the
full program.

Chairman Pollert: are you giving any grants to the American Heart Association or
anywhere else or is all your money being funneled through the local public health units?
Jeanne Prom: It is also available for other agencies that share our mission. We are in
process of offering grants again and certainly organizations like the Heart Association
would be eligible to apply. We have offered grants two times in the past and it was opened
to anyone who would want to apply.

Chairman Pollert: so have any grants been given to other entities that aren’t tobacco
related but tobacco could be in cardiovascular. Have you done any grants to them or have
the grants been turned down that have been applied for?

Jeanne Prom: There have been applications that haven't been awarded funding because
they weren't specific to our particular call for proposals. It doesn't make the agency
ineligible, just the particular proposal.

Chairman Pollert: could a person apply for a grant and be given money for that, as long as
it's related to tobacco?

Jeanne Prom: As long as it fits into our mission and we are required to do CDC best
practices. That can encompass a lot. We want more and more agencies to be interested in
our funding and partner with us.

Chairman Pollert: in looking at attachment SEVEN, you are giving $25,000 to the
American Nonsmokers' Rights Foundation in Berkley, California. Can you explain this?
Jeanne Prom: That is correct. They serve as a fiscal agent to help our communities with
education on smoke free.

Chairman Pollert: there is nobody in ND to do that?

Jeanne Prom: They are an expert in the nation on that topic area. They are providing great
technical assistance to our communities and certainly go beyond the expertise that we
have in our state currently.

Representative Nelson: how much of the IT is increased equipment and service because
of the additional people and how much of it is increased charges for existing service?
Jeanne Prom: It's both and the fees from IT did increase so they were figured at the
increased level and at 8 people.

Representative Nelson: they changed their methods of assessing state agencies and it's
by the number of hook ups.

Jeanne Prom: There are two lines: data processing and telecommunications. It reflects an
increase in fee schedule from IT and doubling the number of people
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Representative Nelson: in those three items, the IT data processing, IT
telecommunications, and IT contractual services, all of that isn't through ITD? Are there
contractual services you have outside of that?

Jeanne Prom: ITD includes IT data processing and IT communications and the IT
contractual is an anticipated large contract with a company that we are currently working
with and the health dept has also been in a contractual relationship for several years. They
actually were working together on a project to upgrade and improve the electronic reporting
of expenditure reports and all grants and we are in partnership with DOH on that .because
we serve the same kind of grantees and that is the $200,000 in contractual services.

Chairman Pollert: that has nothing to do with the ITD?
Jeanne Prom: The ITD had to bless any kind of contract like this, so they are involved, but
this is not contracting with ITD.

Representative Nelson: the DOH has that particular service and you are duplicating that
in your office?

Jeanne Prom: We are sharing. DOH allowed us to be part of that system because we
have the same contractees.

Representative Wieland: you are expected to pay whatever sum of money (it looks
substantial) for a non new program, mostly software and you have the same agency.
Jeanne Prom: We, as the DOH, have some of the same organizations that we contract
with; for example, local public health units. This is not for an individual client kind of tracking
system. This is highly technical work to create a new system that can do so much more. 1t
works well for simple requests for reimbursement, but we want to expand that so everything
is online.

Representative Kaldor: is this something that is expected to occur or is this a ramping up
cost that will normalize or level out at a lower level?
Jeanne Prom: This is a ramping up and this will serve us well for years after we upgrade.

Chairman Pollert: personal fees and services, why the $2M reduction?

Jeanne Prom: We budgeted for more in personal fees and services that really should have
been in grants and this reflects that we are going to be spending the same amount of
money but in the more appropriate line item.

Vice Chairman Bellew: could we get a list of employees like we do in the other areas,
Office of Management and Budget?
Office of Management and Budget: yes (attachment ELEVEN).

Chairman Pollert: how much money are you thinking you are going to have spent of that
budget? you aren't going to spend all the $12.8M? How much money will be put into the
trust fund? How much will be the difference be with 09-11 and now?

Jeanne Prom: | have copies of that (attachment TEN - tobacco prevention and control
trust fund status statement)
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Chairman Pollert: at the end of 09 you had a balance in the trust fund of $14.1M. If you
would have spent the whoie $12.8M, it would have been $29M and the revised forecast is
$25M.

Jeanne Prom: The deposits haven't been as great as forecasted.

Chairman Pollert: | thought the fund would grow if you weren't spending all the money?
Office of Management and Budget: we have not received the same deposits from the
tobacco companies that were projected at the beginning of the time of the lawsuit.
Chairman Pollert: the difference between the $26M, revised in 11 and the $12.9M gets to
$37M. When measure 3 was passed, do you think the voters were voting to have a trust
fund set up for after the year 20177

Jeanne Prom: Yes, | believe the information shared with them was this amount of money
is time limited, but it will provided enough money for a 20 year program that will significantly
reduce tobacco use in our state. It wasn't called a legacy fund, but it operates as such.

Vice Chairman Bellew: what are special initiative grants?

Jeanne Prom: these allow either places that already have a contract with us or those that
don’t, an opportunity to apply for competitive funding for special projects that are outlined.
The policy is to support a best practice which is smoke free policy or another kind of policy,
the education of the public on that, but as it was discussed before, those are private/public
partnerships and this is the public side of it. The special initiative grant for statewide
organizing is to take those organizations that have an interest in tobacco use prevention
and provide specific education for their members on tobacco use prevention. The other is
going to allow for opportunities to take advantage of those as they arise.

Representative Nelson: your total budget is only increasing $40,000; most of which will be
salaries. Aiso, you speak of your grants going from 51 to 76. The non competitive grants
(the $940,000 that you're granting this biennium) are that going to stay the same to the
public health units in the next biennium?

Jeanne Prom: Yes, that's going to stay the same.

Representative Nelson: when we get into the competitive grants, they'll be at a lesser
dollar figure? How do you plan on administering more grants with limited increase in
funding?

Jeanne Prom: We may have more, but they'd be smaller.

Chairman Pollert: in looking at the list of state aid or grants, should | be seeing the
American Heart Association, Women’s Way, etc? Wouldn't that be part of CDC or tobacco
related?

Jeanne Prom: Some of it is there like the AAR that is implemented at the local public
health unit level in all their client based programs which includes the programs you
mentioned. We would love to have partnership with some of the other chronic disease
areas so we could work on common goals.

Chairman Pollert: we are being asked to increase Heart and Stroke for instance, but
couldn’t they get funding through your organization?

Jeanne Prom: if it meets CDC best practices.

Chairman Pollert: you should be funding something to Women’'s Way or Breast Cancer or
Stroke and Heart (if it's tobacco related), but we really don’t know that

Jeanne Prom: we are funding that right now through the AAR program

Chairman Pollert: how many dollars worth is that?
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Jeanne Prom: The first grant is $840,000.

Chairman Pollert: couid that be going for other things on a local basis?

Jeanne Prom: The $940,000 in tobacco settlement state aide is to support the connecting
of people who use tobacco if they are in a client based program at the local public health
unit (i.e. Woman’s Way) to connect them with the cessation services that are available,
usually the quit line. That's integrated throughout the local public heaith unit programs
whether they are focused on cancer or heart disease or childhood immunizations.
Chairman Pollert: if you are giving grant dollars to the local public health units, should we
be funding them FTEs or would they have FTEs paid from your grants?

Jeanne Prom: with this funding, 11 employees have been added on to the local public
health units, in addition to those that may have been there before.

Representative Nelson: can you provide the committee with CDC best practices cheat
sheet so we can be cognizant of what qualifies for CDC?
Jeanne Prom: this information has been provided (labeled as attachment EIGHT).

Chairman Pollert informed Jeanne Prom that clerk would notify her when amendments
will be discussed on HB 1025 and adjourned hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Pollert called committee back to order and opened hearing on HB 1025.Jeanne
Prom, Executive Director of ND Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory/Executive
Committee, provided document for committee’s information, labeled as attachment ONE
which described the organization’s work related to the 2011-2013 budget request as
outiined in HB 1025. Tobacco Free ND also provided a document, labeled as attachment
TWO, for the committee’s information outlining facts and statistics to support measure 3.
Chairman Pollert reported that he would be referring to the ND Tobacco Prevention and
Control Advisory/Executive Committee as the tobacco group for simplicity. Proposed
amendments were distributed by committee members for discussion.

Vice Chairman Bellew: | am proposing amendment .01003 (attachment THREE).
Currently their budget is a one line budget and | changed that so they have to show that
there is salary line item, operating expense line item, and a grants line item which is just
like what other agencies do. In the temporary salary line item, | removed $518,000 (temp
salaries with benefits) because | believe we should give this money out for grants. Four
employees are enough to manage the grants. Also, they had a $200,000 contract with
Nexius innovations to sign for next biennium. | don't see a need in it as they got by without
it this biennium. I'd like to see that money go to grants. The more grants, the better it is for
the smoking cessation program.

Chairman Pollert; you are basically doing the same things as all the other agency budgets
and my amendment does the same thing.

Vice Chairman Bellew: that's correct.

Chairman Pollert: Legislative Council, when you drafted this, you went off of the
information that was provided to you from the tobacco group’s information on salaries,
grants, etc.?

Legislative Council: that’s correct. | used their detailed testimony.

Vice Chairman Bellew: | move to adopt amendment .01003

Representative Kreidt: second
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Representative Kaldor: these FTEs are temporary because that's what has been
required.

Vice Chairman Bellew: these were just the temporary salaries being requested in the
upcoming budget

Chairman Pollert; you're removing the 3.5 FTEs requested and the $200,000 for the temp
salaries.

Vice Chairman Bellew: that's correct. They asked for 3 FTEs in their budget presentation
which was all put into temp salaries and there wasn’t an FTE included in their budget.
Chairman Pollert confirmed that for the dollar amount, Vice Chairman Bellew flipped that
right back into grants that they can expend out

Representative Kaldor: the reason for the request is that they're grants are growing and
that will continue to grow. | want them to have control and be able to monitor those grants
and in testimony, they communicated they need these people. We need people to make
sure we are issuing the right grants to the right people and if this doesn't occur, that would
be failure to provide an oversight.

Representative Nelson: they were sharing some of that program with DOH and it was for
reporting purposes and we require some of these reports and the uses of the grant money
and that is what this was intended to do.

Chairman Pollert: the $200,000 for the computer system is what you mean.
Representative Nelson: yes, sorry.

Vice Chairman Bellew: the purpose is to put more money in the grants line item because
that's where the effectiveness is for increased smoking cessation.

Due to no further discussion, roll call vote taken on amendment .01003 resulting in 2 yes, 5
no, and 0 absent thus motion failed.

Chairman Pollert went over amendment .01002 (attachment FOUR) and moved to adopt
amendment .01002.
Representative Nelson: second -

Representative Kaldor: laying it out like this will be more amenable to the legislature. My
concern is about those 2.5 FTEs. Half of that FTE is for that accountant position?
Chairman Pollert. what they want to do they can do as it is a dollar amount. If they
decided they want to do two part time positions, we would be authorizing that. Is that
correct, Legislative Council?

Legislative Council: the position you gave them was $151,824 and that’s in the temporary
line, so it's however they want to use that.

Representative Kaldor: this is a better move and | appreciate it. I'm still going to resist the
amendment but | don't necessarily disagree with the accountant position being retained in
DOH based on earlier testimony. As | see this, we would be constraining their abilities.
Those two are important positions. If part of that reduction had gone into operating, we
could have given them more flexibility. I'll resist the amendment, with some reservations.
Representative Nelson: the total employee package for smoking prevention and cessation
programs between the NDDOH and the tobacco group has grown one FTE with the
changes we've made. It's a strong message. | agree with the changes as far as reporting to
the budget section, however | thought the overview and the detailing of this budget was the
most understandable budget of any I've heard the first half of the session.
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Due to no further discussion, roll call vote taken on amendment .01002 resulting in 6 yes, 1
no, and 0 absent thus motion carried.

Chairman Pollert went over amendment .01004 (attachment FIVE) and moved for
committee to adopt amendment.
Representative Wieland: second

Due to no further discussion, roll call vote taken on amendment .01004 resulting in yes, 5
no, and 0 absent thus motion failed.

Representative Kreidt: moved do pass as amended for HB 1025
Representative Nelson: second

Due to no further discussion, roll call vote taken on HB 1025 for do pass as amended
resulting in 7 yes, 0 no, 0 absent thus motion carried.
Chairman Pollert assigned self to be carrier of the bill.

Chairman Pollert adjourned hearing on HB 1025.
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Expilanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the
comprehensive tobacco control advisory committee; and to provide for reports

Minutes:

Chairman Delzer. Called the committee to order. Roll was called and a gquorum was
declared. Opened hearing on HB 1025. Information provided by Tobacco Free ND for
committee’s information, labeled as attachment TWO.

Representative Pollert: Introduced HB 1025 and explained amendment .01005 (see
attachment ONE). | move to adopt amendment .01005.

Vice Chairman Bellew: second

Chairman Delzer. On the operating expenses of almost $3 million, does that include direct
advertising?

Representative Pollert: A lot of their items will be professional services, as well as grants.
Chairman Delzer: Questions by the committee?

Representative Kaldor: On the capital asset line item, could you clarify? I'm assuming
that is where the computer system was originally funded.

Sheila Sandness, Legislative Council: the $200,000 is actually in contractual services in
the operating line. '

Representative Kaldor: In capital assets then, what were those dollars intended to be
used for? Is that for expenditures over $50007?

Sandness: They would have used that for equipment over $5000. | do not have a
breakdown with me.

Amendment .01005 carries by voice vote
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Representative Bellew: | move for a verbal amendment to remove money from temporary
FTE line and move to grants line ($151,824) and remove authority for the one FTE. The
grants go from 39 to 56; however they have four FTE which is more than sufficient thus |
propose to remove the temporary FTE. ‘

Representative Dosch: Second

Representative Kaldor: | oppose this, and this similar amendment was defeated in
section and | would hope that the full committee would do the same. | would oppose
removing any of the authority for the FTE because of the increased grants and increased
requirements for oversight of the grants that have already been extended. The money
needs to be ensured that it is being used for the purposes intended. This is what | would
describe as due diligence. We've removed that flexibility from their budget completely with
the amendments that were just adopted and this would create one more problem for them.

Roll call vote for adoption of voice amendment resulted in 8 yes, 12 no, and 1 absent, thus
motion failed.

Representative Pollert: | move a Do Pass as Amended for HB 1025

Representative Wieland: Second

Chairman Delzer: Discussion?

Representative Glassheim: does this eliminate the initiated measure?

Chairman Delzer: Not in this bill.

Representative Kaldor: It does not. This is the funding level bill. The constraint we've put
?unmtj?:; is we've defined how they can utilize their resources, but we’ve not reduced their

Chairman Delzer: it is the mid level CDC recommendation?

Representative Kaldor: that all depends on what happens with HB 1004 and HB 1353.
We've got two other bills that interact with this that have a relationship to the CDC level.

Representative Pollert: HB 1025 is reducing the governor's recommended of the 3.5
FTEs and the temporary salary line down 2.5 and keeping 1 in there. The dollars that were
called back were put in the grants line item so total dollars stayed the same

Chairman Delzer: It also splits it into the line item
Roll call \)ote taken, resulting in 14 yes, 6 no and 0 absent, thus motion passed for a Do

Pass as Amended on HB 1025. Representative Pollert was assigned as the carrier to the
floor. Hearing was closed on HB 1025.



Al

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Representative Bellew
February 16, 2011

11.8120.01003

Title.

Fiscal No. 3
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NG. 1025

Page 1, replace line 11 with:

“"Salaries and wages $517,456 $96,699 $614,155
Operating expenses 4,696,815 (1,929,206) 2,767,609
Capital assets 13,764 (13,764) 0
Grants 7,653,965 1,886,885 9,540,850

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action

Executive House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $614,155 $614,155
Operating expenses 2,767,609 2,767,609
Grants 8,540,850 8,540,850
Tobacco Prevention and Control 12922614 {12,922,614)
Exec Comm
Total all funds $12,922,644 30 $12822614
Less esfimated income 12,922,614 0 12,922,614
Genera! fund 50 30 $0
FTE 4.00 0.00 4.00

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of House Changes

Removes IT
Provides Removes 3.5 Contract
Multiple Line Temporary Ingreases Grant Services Total House
Appropriation’ FTEs? Funding® Funding* Changes
Salaries and wages $1,132.494 {$518,339) $614,155
Cperating expenses 2,967 608 {200,000) 2,767 609
Grants 8,822,511 718,239 9,540,850
Tobacco Prevention and Control — (12,922,614) (12,922,614)
£xec Comm
Total all funds $0 {$518,339) $718,339 ($200,000) $0
Less estimated income 0 {518,339} 718,339 (200,000) 0
General fund $0 30 30 30 30
FTE . 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

! This amendment removes the comprehensive tobacco control line item and provides funding by object
code line items.

2 This amendment removes the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the following temporary FTE
positions:
« .50 accountant - $86,787.

Page No. 1 11.8120.01003



«  1.00 community intervention coordinator - $127 904,
+  1.00 evaluation coordinator - $151,824.

0 +  1.00 grants manager - $151,824.

* Funding for grants is increased.

* This amendment removes funding for information technoiogy contract services.

Page No. 2 11.8120.01003
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Roll Call Vote # __ |

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. 1025

House Appropriations Human Resources Division Committee

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number  »0 |00 3

Action Taken: [ ] Do Pass [_| Do NotPass [ ] Amended E(Adopt Amendment

[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ 1 Reconsider

Motion Made By Ke"p . B@UQQ Seconded By & R EIQE d t

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Chet Pollert v | Rep. Lee Kaldor v
Vice Chairman Larry Bellew v~ Rep. Ralph Metcalf —
Rep. Gary Kreidt v
“ Rep. Jon Nelson v
Rep. Alon Wiedland 4

Total (Yes) .;A No 5

Absent O

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

see. oAt chumed THEC S
| |

Mo to & Fcu[&d
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11.8120.01002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for

Title. Representative Pollert

Fiscal No. 2 February 16, 2011
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1025

Page 1, replace line 11 with:

"Salaries and wages $517.456 $248 524 $765,280

Operating expenses 4,696,815 (1,729,206) 2,967,609
Capital assets 13,764 (13,764) 0
Grants 7.653,965 1,535,060 9,189,025

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action

Executive House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $765,980 §765,980
Operating expenses 2,967,609 2,967,609
Grants 9,189,025 9,189,025
Tobacco Prevention and Conrol 12922614 {12,522,614)
Exec Comm
Total all funds $12.922,614 $0 $12,922614
Less estimated income 12,822,614 0 12,622,614
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 4,00 0.00 4,00

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of House Changes

Provides Removes 2.5
Multiple Line Temporary Increases Grant Total House
Appropriation’ FTEs’ Funding’® Changes
Salaries and wages $1,132,494 ($366,514) $765,980
Operating expenses 2,967,609 2,967,608
Grants 8,822,511 366,514 9,189,025
Tobacco Prevention and Coniro! (12,922,614) (12,922,614}
Exec Comm
Total alt funds $0 {$366,514) $386,514 50
{ess estimated income 0 (366,514) 365,514 0
General furd $0 30 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 .00 0.00 0.00

' This amendment removes the comprehensive tobacco control line item and provides funding by object
code line items.

2 This amendment removes the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the foliowing temporary FTE
positions:
+ .50 accountant - $86,786.

Page No. 1 11.8120.01002



« 100 community intervention coordinator - $127,904.
« 100 evaluation coordinator - $151,824.

” * Fundingfor grants is increased.

Page No. 2 11.8120.01002
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Roli Call Vote # 2

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE RQLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

House Appropriations Human Resources Division Committee

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number .0l00?™

Action Taken: [ | Do Pass ] Do Not Pass [ ] Amended )Z(Adopt Amendment

[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By Chalrpa ) PMSeconded By WWJ"U
” T

~
s
n

Representatives No Representatives Yes | No

Chairman Chet Pollert Rep. Lee Kaldor |

Vice Chairman Larry Bellew Rep. Ralph Metcalf v

Rep. Gary Kreidt

Rep. Jon Nelson

i‘i\k

Rep. Alon Wiedland

Total  (Yes) G No 1

Absent O

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

See GJ#QLL{M F(Jbue-
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11.8120.01004 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Representative Pollert
February 17, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1025

Page 1, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 2. REPORTS TO THE BUDGET SECTION. The tobacco prevention
and control executive committee shall provide written reports to the budget section
quarterly during the 2011-12 interim. The reports must include detailed information on
expenditures for contract services, professional fees and services, and grants.”

Renumber accordingly.

Page No. 1 11.8120.01004
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Roll Calf Vote # _2

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

House Appropriations Human Resources Division Committee

[] Check here for Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number . O{O O q'

Action Taken: [] Do Pass [ | Do Not Pass [ ] Amended /k(Adopt Amendment

1 Rerefer to Appropriations [ | Reconsider

Motion Made By C/\«M\f‘w) P"'’U'J@{a(f:,;l;dc.=>d By r(',(,r . w )w? O\Ud

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Chet Pollert v Rep. Lee Kaldor e
Vice Chairman Larry Bellew v~ Rep. Ralph Metcalf e
Rep. Gary Kreidt v
“ Rep. Jon Nelson v
Rep. Alon Wiedland v

Total (Yes) /-] No O
Absent m

pom—

Floor Assignment

if the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

See_ attachmndt F1VS



2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

e 2117/ 01

Roil Call Vote #

House Appropriations Human Resources Division

[ ] Check here for Conference Committee

Legisiative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken: MDO Pass [ ] Do Not Pass%mended [J Adopt Amendment
[T Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

4

Committee

Motion Made By RCP KY‘Q ) d"!‘ Seconded By E ? P N?/{fdu

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Chet Pollert v Rep. Lee Kaldor -
Vice Chairman Larry Bellew vV, Rep. Ralph Metcalf v
Rep. Gary Kreidt Vv,
Rep. Jon Nelson Vv ,
Rep. Alon Wiediand v

Total {Yes) ’7

no _ (O

Absent O

Floor Assignment \’1 ailrym a M PM ’ Q@f-f-

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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11.8120.01005 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for [9\ \\\
Title.02000 House Appropriations - Human Resources 2
Fiscal No. 4 February 18, 2011 Yl

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1025
Page 1, line 2, after "committee" insert "; and to provide for reports”

Page 1, replace line 11 with:

"Salaries and wages $517,456 $248,524 $765,980

Operating expenses 4,696,815 (1,729,206) 2,967,609
Capital assets 13,764 (13,764) 0
Grants " 7,653,965 1,535,060 9,189,025"

Page 1, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 2. REPORTS TO THE BUDGET SECTION. The tobacco prevention
and control executive committee shall provide written reports to the budget section
quarterly during the 2011-12 interim. The reports must include detailed information on
expenditures for contract services, professional fees and services, and grants.”

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action

Executive House House
Budget Changes Version
Salaries and wages $765,980 $755,980
Operating expenses 2,967,609 2,967,609
Grants 9,189,025 9,189,025
Tobacco Prevention and Control 12922614 (12.922,614)
Exec Comm
Total all funds $12922814 $0 $12,922,614
Less estimated income 12,922,614 0 12922614
General fund 30 $0 $0
FTE 4.00 0.00 400

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of House Changes

Provides Removes 2.5
Multiple Line Temporary FTE  Increases Grant Total House
Appropriation’ Positions’ Funding® Changes
Salaries and wages $1,132,494 ($366,514) $765,980
Qperating expenses 2,967,609 2967609
Grants 8,822,511 366,514 9,189,025
Tobacco Prevention and Control (12,922.614) {12,922,614)
Exec Comm
Total ail funds $0 ($366,514) $366,514 $0
Less estimated income 0 (366,514) 366,514 0
General fund $0 $0 50 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page No. 1

11.8120.01005



* This amendment removes the comprehensive tobacco control line item and provides funding by object
code line items.

2 This amendment removes the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the following temporary FTE
positions:

* .50 accountant - $86,786.
+  1.00 community intervention coordinator - $127,904.
* 1.00 evaluation coordinator - $151,824.

* Funding for grants is increased.

A section is added to provide for quarterly written reports to the Budget Section during the 2011-12
interim.

Page No. 2 11.8120.01005

D0f 2



g,

Date: 7,/ U
Roll Call Vote # |

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. Jol8

House Appropriations : Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number Oloas

Action Taken:  [] Do Pass [] Do NotPass [ ] Amended [X] Adopt Amendment

[[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By Qq'y f()\lw(' Seconded By K‘c]/ K@“.@W

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer Representative Nelson
Vice Chairman Kempenich Representative Wieland

Representative Poliert

Representative Skarpho!

Representative Thoreson Representative Glassheim
Representative Bellew Representative Kaldor
Representative Brandenburg Representative Krogher
Representative Dahl Representative Metcalf
Representative Dosch ) Representative Williams

Representative Hawken

Representative Klein

Representative Kreidt

Representative Martinson

Representative Monson

Total (Yes) No
Absent
Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:

i Wi e



Date: ZJ U
Roll Call Vote # T

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

House Appropriations

/0TS

Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken: [ ] Do Pass [ ] Do NotPass [ ] Amended

[] Rerefer to Appropriations

rq Adopt Amendment

[ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By KO}]. EAMW

seconded By _ s Dosihn
7

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer )( Representative Nelson X
Vice Chairman Kempenich ' Representative Wieland X
Representative Pollert X
Representative Skarphol X
Representative Thoreson X Representative Glassheim X
Representative Bellew X Representative Kaldor X
Representative Brandenburg X Representative Kroeber X
Representative Dahl X | Representative Metcalf X
Representative Dosch A Representative Williams X
Representative Hawken Y
Representative Klein v )

Representative Kreidt N

Representative Martinson ' X

Representative Monson X
Total  (Yes) 8 No N
Absent

Floor Assignment

i the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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Date: 2,) 2
Roll Call Vote # 3 '

2011 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. O 25

House Appropriations Committee

Legisiative Council Amendment Number 0 l 00S

Action Taken:  [X Do Pass [ ] Do NotPass [¥] Amended [] Adopt Amendment

[] Rerefer to Appropriations [ ] Reconsider

Motion Made By .Qq_ﬁﬂ ((\\Lg,/{ Seconded By ﬁgo. kg{gjamd

Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Delzer X Representative Nelson X
Vice Chairman Kempenich ) Representative Wieland X
Representative Polilert X
Representative Skarphol X
Representative Thoreson Y Representative Glassheim X
Representative Bellew ) X | Representative Kaldor X
Representative Brandenburg Y’ Representative Kroeber X
Representative Dahl X Representative Metcalf X
Representative Dosch X Representative Williams X
Representative Hawken e
Representative Klein X
Representative Kreidt Y
Representative Martinson %
Representative Monson Y

Total (Yes) ] L1 No ( ~P

Absent l

Floor Assignment Iﬁ‘-ﬁ;ﬂ (f\lb/ﬁ/t

o

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep=35_013
February 22, 2011 12:01pm ‘ Carrier: Pollert
insert LC: 11.8120.01005 Title: 02000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
HB 1025: Appropriations Committee (Rep. Delzer, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(14 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1025 was placed on the
Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 2, after "committee" insert ", and to provide for reports”
Page 1, replace line 11 with:

"Salaries and wages $517,456 $248,524
$765,980

Operating expenses 4,696,815 (1,729,206} 2,967 609

Capital assets 13,764 (13,764) 0
Grants 7.653,965 1,635,060 9,189.025"

Page 1, after line 13, insert:

"SECTION 2. REPORTS TO THE BUDGET SECTION. The tobacco prevention
and control executive committee shall provide written reports to the budget section
quarterly during the 2011-12 interim. The reports must include detailed information on
expenditures for contract services, professional fees and services, and grants.”

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action

Executive House House
Budget Changes Vearsion
Salaries and wages $765,980 $765,980
Operating expenses 2,967,600 2,967,608
Grants 9,189,025 9,189,025
Tobacco Prevention 12,922 614 {12,922,614)
and Control Exec
Comm
$12,922 614 %0 $12,922,614
Total all funds
Less estimated 12,922,614 1] 12,922,614
income
$0 $0 %0
General fund
4.00 0.00 4.00

FTE

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of House
Changes

Provides Removes 2.5 Increases Total House
Multiple Line Temporary FTE Grant Funding® Changes
Appropriation’ Positions?
Salaries and $1,132,454 ($366,514) $765,980
wages
Operating 2 967,600 2,967 609
expenses
Grants 8,822,511 366,514 9,189,025
Tobacco (12,922,614) (12,922,614)
Prevention
and Control
Exec Comm
$0 ($366,514} $366,514 $0
Total all funds
Less estimated o (366,514) 366,514 o]
income
50 . $0 50 $0

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_35_013



Com Standing Committee Report

Module ID: h_stcomrep-35_013

February 22, 2011 12:01pm Carrier: Pollert
Insert LC: 11.8120.01005 Title: 02000

General fund
0.00 0.00 0.00
FTE

' This amendment removes the comprehensive tobacco control line item and provides
funding by object code line items.

2 This amendment removes the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the following
temporary FTE positions:

. .50 accountant - $86,786.
. 1.00 community intervention coordinator - $127,904.
. 1.00 evaluation cocrdinator - $151,824,

3 Funding for grants is increased.

A section is added to provide for quarterly written reports to the Budget Section during the

2011-12 interim.

(1) DESK (3} COMMITTEE Page 2 h_stcomrep_35_013
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2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

HB 1025
03-07-2011
Job # 15045

[ ] Conference Committee

\

Committee Clerk Signature /)7 ﬂ/{i y ﬁ/ /gf//()

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive
tobacco control advisory committee; and to provide for reports.

Minutes: See Attached Testimony”

Chairman Holmberg called the committee back to order on Monday, March 7, 2011 at 2:00
pm in reference to HB 1025. All committee members were present. Becky J. Keller,
Legislative Council and Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB were also present.

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control
Policy. Testified in favor of HB 1025 and provided Testimony attached # 1. The Center is the
office created with funding from the NDTPCEC (North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Controt
Executive Committee.) The agency is responsible for the comprehensive tobacco control
program in ND. Her testimony gives extensive information regarding the following: new
agency's mission; tobacco use problems in ND; agency’s accomplishments in its first 20
months of existence. Only proven-effective interventions were funded. Quitline use is up.
Cigarette sales are down. Adult smoking has dropped in counties where data is available.
Healthcare cost savings we will realize as we continue to reduce tobacco use in the 2011-2013
budget requests.

Chairman Holmberg asks to go back to the chart on page 6 and put together on page 7. We
had a substantial increase in federal cigarette tax in 2009 and how much of that can you
quantify in the reduction of cigarettes sold is your credit, or is it because the federal
government increased the tax? What is your impact on the rise of the federal tax on
cigarettes?

Jeanne Prom asks committee to look on top of page 7, there was the federal tax increase,
compare those bars to fiscal year 2010, they are much higher. At beginning of 2010, no local
public health unit had access to Quitiine, before and after, that is what the actual table is on the
next page. Yes, we can attribute some of the increase use to the Quitline from the tax
tncrease, but for right now, as a response, ask your local public health unit how many people
they referred to the Quitline in fiscal year-2009, compared to fiscal year 2010, and see it go to
a 100% increase.



Senate Appropriations Committee i
HB 1025
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Page 2

Chairman Holmberg states that the Quitline is funded by an appropriation through the health
department and the Quitline is separate from the tobacco control group.

Jeanne Prom states that Chairman Hoimberg's statement is correct. It is paid for by the
community health trust fund. Jeanne continues on page 8 of her testimony. The good news
being, we can actually have health care costs savings.  Also, we can have an impact on
Medicare costs which are tax funded. Two smoking related health issues, such as heart attack
and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, and we know what Medicare pays out to treat
these. The medium Medicare payment made to Altru, Med Center One and Trinity, range from
$5300 to almost $12,000 per person for a heart attack. That is tax payer funded. We know
when we make places, smoke free, heart attacks are reduced. Exposure to second hand
smoke can cause an immediate heart attack with some people. To treat COPD disease, that
can range from $4000 to $8000 per person, to treat those patients in our state.

Senator Fischer asks when you refer to the $247 million in health care costs, related to
smoking or are you relating to COPD and lung diseases such as emphysema? When you are
looking at any hospital in the state, you are talking about heart attacks or other diseases, are
you are counting every one as tobacco related? How do you get that information?

Jeanne Prom states the $247 million is smoking related healthcare costs.
Senator Fischer asks if this figure is related to tobacco?

Jeanne Prom states that is correct. That information is available through various sources the
health department has and health insurance and we know what our smoking rates are.

Also, your next questions, deals with what | shared with you were the costs for COPD or a
heart attack, whether they are caused by smoking or not. Another Medicaid expense, tax
payer funded, is births, and we know that pregnant women, who smoke, are exposed to other
smoke, can have complications that can average $1100-$1300 per birth and can be prevented.
On Pages 9 and 10, is a fact sheet on what | just said. On the top of page 10, the chart
indicates the savings, the first year from preventing a smoking affected birth. We do know
what works, to bring our tobacco use rates down and to bring related health care costs down.
We need to have adequately funded programs and they work. Our programs need to be
insulated by the inevitable attempts, by the tobacco industry, to reduce program funding and
otherwise interfere with the success of the program. This program needs o be sustained over
time, to not only to protect the initial accomplishments, but also to achieve those further cuts,
when we see the exponential increase to our health care savings.

In reference to our budget, page 13, the bottom line of our budget, increased from this
biennium, by $40,614 which is the compensation package to cover the increases in salary,
benefits, health insurance, retirement and employee assistance program. All of our funds are
special funds from the Strategic Contribution Fund payments from the tobacco settlement. The
vast majority of our funds are grants. In fact, together grants plus the portion of operating that
goes into contracts for professional fees and services is almost 90% of our whole budget. So
there is not much in operating costs and salaries after that. The executive committee requests
4 FTE's and also 3.5 temporary positions, with an optional request of having those positions be
permanent. Please refer to attachments C, D and E, and they would provide you with our
budget information. Adequate staffing is our critical issue. The Executive Committee supports



Senate Appropriations Committee
HB 1025

03-07-11

Page 3

the governor's executive budget for the 2011-2013 biennium with special consideration for our
optional request. The House amendments removed the line item budget and instead funded 4
object codes salaries operating capital assets and grants. They denied salaries and raises
and fringe for 2.5 temporary positions that were requested. They transferred the amount, that
would have funded those temp positions, to grants, and required, as we have done this past
interim, the committee to report to the budget section. The impact of those amendments is
that we maintain an unresolved critical issue in our agency. Which is the staffing to manage
an additional 51 grants transferred from the Dept. of Health in 2009. Without the transfer of
any FTE’s, we have had to realign staff assignments and reprioritize our other programs, which
we are required by law to do. We still have the issue of staffing and in addition to that the
House opted to place staffing funds into the grants line item with the expectation that we
actually award more grants. It is hard to award the grants we have with staff we had and now
we are expected to do more of that. A new critical issue is staffing to manage those additional
grants. We can manage additional grants in a few different ways. We had started with temp
salaries, being one of those ways but we could also increase our operating budget, to allow for
contracting for the management of those additional grants. Now that we are object code
budgeting instead of line item budget, we are basically committed to those levels in the
operating. Right now, in our operating line, 10% is dated operations and 90% is already
committed to contracts and professional services. The House did increase our grants line item
but not our operations line item. That puts us in a difficult position, if we have to contract for
this work. We would need to secure emergency commission approval to increase any of those
line items, like operating, and | am advised that not everyone thinks of those issues, as true
emergencies, all the time.

V. Chair Bowman asks, “When you are talking about grants, is someone applying for grants
and you have to administrate that?

Jeanne Prom states some are noncompetitive, some are competitive, A lot of what we do is
the paperwork to get the grants out the door. On the back end a lot of technical assistance,
day to day, to make sure that the grants are delivering.

V. Chair Grindberg asks, “Do you have any additional information on the organization and the
bylaws or mission. | have a very simple question. Where do you fit in the state organizational
chart?

Jeanne Prom states we are under Boards and Commissions. This is directly under the
governor.

Senator Christmann asks about the 28 local public health units, are those people under the
grants line item?

Jeanne Prom states “yes” they are part of the grants. They are employees of the local health
unit, not of our organization.

Question is asked, “Are they county employees?”

Jeanne Prom states she is not sure if all of them are county or some may be considered city.
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There are different organizational structures for public health units. They are not state
employees.

Statement made that the 4 FTE’s are state employees.

Sherry Adams, Executive Officer for the Southwestern District Health Unit testified in
favor of HB 1025 and provided written Testimony attached # 2. | hope you will restore the
original Measure 3 language that was amended out in HB 1004.

Chairman Holmberg asks Lori if she could you tell us how the tobacco control group fits into
the state structure?

Lori Laschkewitsch states that they started out as an executive committee but they are a
regular state agency under the Health and Human Services agencies. They have a budget
like other state agencies.

V. Chair Grindberg asks if they would come under state agencies and they wouldn't have
their own box, they would be under Health and Human Services?

Lori Laschkewitsch states yes, they would be under the Health and Human Services box,
which would be all the 300 numbered agencies.

Dawn Aberle, speaking on her own behalf, Respiratory Therapist, who is a certified
tobacco treatment specialist, testified in favor of HB 1025 and provided written Testimony
attached # 3.

Senator Kilzer asked, “When you became certified, what was your course of study, did you
pass an exam?”

Dawn Aberle states she did pass an exam, took classes and was completed by passing an
exam.

Teresa Knox read highlights from Jane Croeker, UND Health and Wellness Promotion
Specialist. Testimony attached # 4 in support of HB 1025.

Karen Macdonald, represents the ND Nurses Association, testified in favor of HB 1025 and
ask that you restore the 80% requirement on the Community Health Trust Fund and provided
written Testimony attached # 5.

Ellen Bjelland, representing the 14 organizations that make up the Barnes County
ACHIEVE Partnership testified in favor of HB 1025 and provided written Testimony attached #
6.

Kayla Meier, Health Pro (Peers Reaching Out) from the University of Mary testified in favor
of HB 1025 and provided written Testimony attached # 7.
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Beth Hughes, represents ND Society for Respiratory Care, Respiratory Therapist and
Educator in the state for 30 years. | am here to provide testimony and support of HB 1025 and
fully funded with restoration of the 80% community health trust fund.

Respiratory Therapy practioners across the state have been enabled to help more patients quit
their addiction to tobacco use through the use of ASK, ADVISE AND REFER system. We have
been able to learn how to provide better education to communities, about the dangers of
secondhand smoke and we have been helped to understand, how to use language that
encouraged youth never to start. Evidenced based medicine is experts look at which
practices, known as the best practices, provide the best quality, in the most cost effective
manner and provide that information, as healthcare practioners, to the broader healthcare
community for implementation. Through the efforts of the Center for Tobacco Prevention and
Control Policy Center and the implementation of the CDC best practices, Respiratory
Therapists across the state, for the first time, have had the opportunity to do well at what we
have worked at for so very long. That is saving lives and as a bonus, saving the state of ND
money at the same time.

Brenda Warren, Vice President of legislation for Tobacco Free ND, testified in favor of HB
1025 and provided written Testimony attached # 8. This is a statewide coalition of voluntary
individuals, organizations and agencies working to promote a healthy society that chooses not
use tobacco; and a state free from death, disease, disability and excess taxes caused by
tobacco use. | speak from my heart. | am the lone supporter of a smoking ban. | had to battle
the mayor, even a petition attempt to recall me. | stood firm because | knew | was standing
firm for my constituents.

Holly Ebel, for herself, testified in favor of HB 1025 and provided written Testimony attached
# 09,

Lyle Best, Physician from Rolette, ND testified in favor of HB 1025 and provided written
Testimony attached # 1f and to restore the 80% requirement from Community Health Trust
Fund.

Chairman Holmberg cioses the hearing on HB 1025.

Additional Testimony Attached that was not heard by committee on HB 1025.

*Evidence Based for Comprehensive State Tobacco Control Programs
Terry Pechacek, PhD.

*Health Educator at NDSU
Stacey Holm

*ND Farmers Union

*Curbing smoking means changing norms
Grand Forks Herald/Tu-Uyen Tran

*American Lung Association
Kimberlee Schneider, Program Manager
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*Essentia Health
Cheri Thomson, Tobacco Treatment Specialist

*Sharon Laxdahl, RN, Walsh County Tobacco Prevention Coordinator
*James B. Burh, MD, Family Medicine, Valley City.
*Anne Ottney, Pharmacist and Tobacco Treatment Specialist @ Healthcare Center/Fargo

*Nancy Thoen, Director of Tobacco Prevention and Control @Central Valley District,
Jamestown.

*Karla Smith, ND Society for Respiratory Care



2011 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

HB 1025 subcommittee
March 21, 2011
Job # 15719

[ ] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk Signature / %
) SL e

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A subcommittee hearing on defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco control
advisory committee

Minutes: See attached testimony # A - C

Subcommittee Chairman Kilzer called the subcommittee meeting on HB 1025 to order.
Subcommittee members Senator Fischer and Senator Robinson.
Sara Chamberlin - Legislative Council, Lori Laschkewitsch - OMB.

Senator Kilzer said that usually they work with budget bills. But this bill is a different situation
with a committee instead of an agency. Some of the committee work is action and some is
work. What I'd like to do is get more information, so I'm asking for a couple things:

1) Exact copy of text of measure #3. (House has taken some actions that don't fit with
measure #3.)

2) The total budget of the organization is quite detailed. | iooked at the executive budget
and what | want is not there. | want the FTEs , their qualifications, their salaries, the
contracts on the grants that are going out. | would also like information on the amount
of money that's gone into the Community Health Trust Fund and what the amount of
money is from the new agreement and what is anticipated.

Other member, are there other things you would want?

Senator Fischer: On this spread sheet there are totals and the second page has totals for
salaries. Are you looking for more details?

Senator Kiizer: | would like to know what the qualifications of the FTE's are. Are they high
school graduates? Are they people who have their masters in Psychology? Have they taken an
additional fellowship of a year or two associated with this topic?

Senator Fischer: Can you find out- In the Health Dept budget is where it shows , when they
move money around they used community health care money for something else. If we're
going to take it back to where it belongs, could you find out what that money was used for?
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Lori Laschkewitsch They actually didn't remove anything. All they did was added $1.6M more
of additional program funding out of the Community Trust Fund which actually puts it in the
whole $1.5 M. As it stands, the money that comes from the tobacco settlerment — there still
remains the 80%- more if you count other programs.

Senator Fischer: Asked about the FTEs because of uniqueness of the tobacco cessation
committee.

Lori Laschkewitsch — Their name is ND Tobacco Prevention and Control. They are a state
agency. They have a nine person committee appointed by the governor. The set up is same
thing. They supply a budget. The FTEs (4 currently) and their optional requests was for 3.5
additional FTEs. That would be 7.5 for their agency.

Senator Kilzer: The three on executive committee are 3 of the 9 person committee. And the
FTEs are chosen by that 3 person executive committee? Or are you chosen as the director
and then you choose the other 37

Jeanne — The executive committee has the statutory authority to hire or to designate that | do
the hiring of others.

Senator Fischer: but we need to authorize those FTEs.

Lori Laschkewitsch — That is correct. Just as other agencies have to have them legislatively
authorized.

Senator Robinson: at some point it would be nice for you to walk thru 1025.

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director, Center for Tobacco Prevention and Controi added
additional testimony — see attached # A. Referring to page 13 of Testimony 1 — The governor's
Executive Budget was $12,922 614 and the House it left as it was. A significant portion goes to
contracts or grants. Not much is for day to day expenses or for salaries or wages.

Senator Robinson: Those grants are across the state?

Jeanne — correct. All 53 counties are served.

Senator Robinson: Do you have grants other than the 28 public health units?

Jeanne — We do. The House requested a list of all the grants.(Handed out Tobacco Grants to

Local Public Health Units — see attached # B; and the FTE list — see attached # C) The listis
there of all the grant programs and their amounts.

They discussed various grants.

Senator Kiizer: You make grants to local health units and they in turn make grants to the
schools? '
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Jeanne — Sometimes they have a subcontract with the school coordinator that does some
work and sometimes they don’t. Whatever works out for them best locally. But they are all
required at their local public health unit to engage all of their schools in tobacco free campus
policy efforts.

Senator Fischer: Could you explain about that Berkeley, CA and what they do for you?

Jeanne- American Nonsmokers’ Rights Foundation is the only organization of its kind in the
nation. They provide technical assistance and training for states and communities especially
that are working on smoke free environmental policy change. We have contracted with them to
provide technical assistance and training to us in North Dakota. They did come to North
Dakota to do the training for all our local public health units. They are available to anyone —
any community working on smoke free policy.

Senator Fischer. Do you have materials to provide or do your grantees have materials to
supply to schools?

Jeanne -- Our main emphasis at schools is promoting tobacco free campuses. In the past the
community health grant was invested in school curricula, but we found that it didn't make a
difference in the rate of smoking. They want an environment that agrees with what they are
learning in health classes and other classes. That is why we are going not into curricula but
into school policy. We do have a model policy.

Senator Fischer: Of sons and nephew, 1 out of 6 smoke and they got me to quit.

Jeanne: We are not discouraging the curriculum. We just invested a lot in it and it is well
established but it does need to be supported by the policy too.

Senator Kilzer — These grants are for the present biennium. Did you anticipate more or larger
grants for the upcoming biennium?

Jeanne — We expect more and want to increase the amounts.
Senator Kilzer: Where is the greatest amount of smoking?

Jeanne — Everywhere. Yet we find that Cass and Burleigh County, the smoking rates are
going down in those two counties.

Senator Kilzer. Reservations have high smoking rate, but too early with data to tell.

Jeanne — Smoking rates is higher in areas with lower socio-economic status or in this case the
Native American population tends to have higher rates of smoking. Jeanne highlighted their
issues. They thought they would manage 24 grants, but ended up with 51 grants to all of
public health units. They got an additional 51 grants to manage. They need additional salary
to hire more staff. (Last two paragraphs on page 13 of Testimony 1) This grant would provide
the grantees the training they need to implement the programs. We are a grant making agency
which means we are not the end user of those moneys, but we want to make sure the moneys
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are effective. If grantees are not helped with the implementation process, they may not be
successful. We need additional oversight on that.

Senator Kilzer: In the health dept, how many people were involved with these 51 grants?

Jeanne- Our initial arrangement with them was that they would have their tobacco control staff
which includes about 7.45 FTEs to assist with managing this. This would have been primarily
part of the time of 2 of their outreach coordinators.

They discussed the staffing for managing the grants.

Senator Robinson: You have one community intervention coordinator, and you are asking for
another one. Would the responsibilities be divided geographically? How do you cover the
state?

Jeanne- we can do geographically or sometimes we group counties that are alike in some
ways. Some health units are multi-county and some are single-county. It is possible that one of
these coordinators would be placed in the field. There was a delay in the grant processing
because they had to shift their duties when they received those other 51 grants. The House
amended to allow 1 temp but they denied the 2.5 temporary positions. They transferred the
amount of money in salaries to grants and they expresses that they would like to see us
actually give out more grants. I'm not sure we have made any headway in resolving the critical
staffing issue that we have. (Listed on page 15 of original testimony #1) Also referred to the
bottom of page 16.

Senator Kilzer — At the top of page 16 of original testimony #1, the last bullet point under the
heading 2011-2013 House Amendments says “requiring the executive committee to report to
the interim budget section”... That is vague. What are they supposed to report on?

Jeanne - Yes, they did spell that out in their amendments. They want to know the status of
your grants. It is similar to what we were required to report quarterly during the 09-11 interim.
The critical issue remains staffing. Another amendment the House made was to adjust our
budget from a line item budget to a object code budget. With a small agency of $13 M and a
new agency with 20 months of budget history and with an object code in operation that is
dedicated, about 90% of that object code is professional services and fee, for example a
contract we will let with a vendor for statewide evaluation piece. That creates another critical
issue for us because it really restricts something that we don’t always have a lot of controt over
and that is if a certain amount of money that we want to award in a contract, if procurement
thinks that a contract for professional services, that's an operating expense not a grant so it
would come out of the operations object code and not the grant object code. That is why it is
preferable to have the one line item budget because it does allow us with a small agency with
not a lot of wiggle room in any of those object codes and also not a lot of budget history to be
able to work within the procurement rules in the interim without going to the emergency
commission to request that we have more money in operation. That is the second critical issue
created by the House amendment. She went over attachment A and asked to restore the
Governor's Executive Budget.
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Senator Kilzer: Why is an Emergency Commission action needed to adjust the amounts in the
object codes?

Jeanne — explained how money is budgeted and moved to different object codes.

Senator Kilzer: does your revenue come in different then other agencies. | think the master
settlement agreement money is usually paid out in April.

Jeanne- Yes, it is paid out about April 15 of every year. It is an electronic transaction and it all
comes in in one or two transactions. It's all lumped together.

Senator Kilzer: Does that present much of a problem?
Jeanne — It was designed to be a trust fund and we were not supposed to spend to it all right
away. We were going to spend a portion of it. It doesn’t present a problem that we would be in

a dire cash flow situation.

Senator Kilzer: Closed the hearing on HB 1025.
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A subcommittee hearing on defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco control advisc
committee

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Minutes: See attached testimony - #D - M.

Subcommittee Chairman Senator Kilzer called the committee hearing to order on HB 1025.
Subcommitiee members Senators Fischer and Robinson were present.

Sheila M. Sandness — Legislative Council; Lbri Laschkewitsch — OMB.
Senator Kilzer: Were you able to get a copy of Measure 37

Jeanne Prom, Exec. Director, Center for Tobacco Prevention and Controi: | have the
Attachment #E is the actual statute. Attachment #F explains it. Additional details requested ¢
Attachments # G - #M.

Handed out: Memo to Chairman Kilzer and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee - #D
Measure #3 (effective December 4, 2008) — attached # E

Measure 3 fact page — attached # F

NDCC 54-27-25 - attached # G

Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund — Projected Revenues - attached # H

Analysis of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund — attached # !

Tobacco Prevention Control Committee — Total FTE — attached # J

Recommendation Detail by Program (12-22-10) — attached # K

Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy Executive Director — attached # L

Breathe ND — attached # M

Senator Kilzer. Your revenues are from the two tobacco funds. Are they the master settleme
agreement and that other agreement that was much later?

Jeanne — On Attachment #H, page 2 this was created for the budget section by the legislative council
October. It shows from 2008 to 2025 all of the settlement money coming into the state and how it
divided up. The first column is all the money from all the sources. The second column is what the cen
received or is expected to receive. The last three columns are Common Schools Trust Fund deposi
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the deposits into the Water Development Trust Fund and into the Community Health Trust Fund. T
Community Health Trust Fund goes to the Health Department.

Senator Kilzer: | am still not clear. Is this just master settlement agreements from December of 19¢
from that agreement or does this include the more recent agreement that was signed about 3 or 4 ye:
ago?

Sheila M. Sandness: The actual original agreement included a bump payment to parties in the fi
lawsuit. That bump payment is what is in that second column. They are all pursuant to the sar
agreement. However there were two sections to that agreement. The section two payments didn’t st
until 2009.

Senator Kilzer: The first master settlement agreement in 1998 there were just four ... that had to pay
about 42 states. The first agreement was just for states including Minnesota but not North Dakota. It «
include that there would be a later updating for new tobacco companies which came in 3 or 4 years a
or so. That is included in the strategic bump there?

Sheila M. Sandness - | don’t know about additional companies being added later.

Lori Laschkewitsch — | don't know details of the companies and when and why.

Sheila M. Sandness: If you lock at the Community HealthTrust Fund — the column way to the rigt
that is the account that the 80% of the money is what is set up to go to tobacco prevention based on t
initiated measure as well. That is to continue into perpetuity.

Senator Kilzer: So out of the very last bottom line $45.1 M, 80% of that goes to the....?

Sheila M. Sandness: It goes to the Health Department for tobacco prevention and control — that is t
column that the 80% pertains to.

Senator Kilzer: The perpetuity — Does the master settlement agreement that was originated in 1998
into perpetuity?

Sheila M. Sandness: | believe so. | can't speak to that. Go to Attachment #H. On page 1, line 6
paragraph 3 it mentions that Subsection 1 goes into perpetuity while Subsection 2 goes through 2017.

Senator Kilzer. Do we have a sheet that shows the anticipated revenue for each one of those at le:
through 20177

Sheila M. Sandness: That is on page two of Attachment #H. The 2" column shows when the paymet
begin. And you can see where it says N/A that the payments stop in 2017. In the last three columi
those are payments under subsection one and they continue on.

Senator Kilzer: So this bump was only for 5 years?
Jeanne — 10 years actually and the first payment actually was not deposited in the Tobacco Preventi

and Control Trust Fund. There wasn't such a thing at that time. So 9 out of 10 of those payments will
deposited in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund.
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Senator Kilzer: | see, each one of these is a biennium rather than an annual.

Sheila M. Sandness: If you look at April of 2008 which is the very first payment on your schedule
says not applicable under column two. That is because it was prior to the initiated measure bei
passed. So that payment actually got split and put into those other three trust funds.

Senator Kilzer: I'd like to see one more column to right — the anticipated income derived from both
these funds.

Senator Kilzer: I'd like to see two more columns that show the 80% and the last one would be to
revenue of tobacco.

Sheila M. Sandness: The 80% goes to the Health Dept, it doesn't go to Tobacco. The Health Dept h
to use it for tobacco prevention. You're looking for the total of the two. Would you also like to see t
federal dollars? :

Senator Kilzer: I'd be interested in that in HB 1004, but not here.
Sheila M. Sandness: It's in the Health Dept. - Yes.

Jeanne — Analysis of tobacco control trust fund (Attachment #H, page 2) in the 1% column, we wo
spend the entire amount deposited. So the 80% from CHTF is actually expended, the trust is deposit
but not expended.

Senator Kilzer: One of the things with appropriations committees is that we are 1) not to commit fufu
legislatures to funding things. We are obligated to stay away from doing things that obligate fut
legislatures.

2) carryover or excess money — most budgets — if there is carryover. If it's a building not completed ir
years, we allow carryover. If it's a regular ongoing budget and there is excess money, we ask that it
turned back. If we look at your budget for the present biennium and the next biennium, if there
excess money, we look that it's money spent prudently. We have to answer to taxpayers. We ¢
expected to prudently manage money. If there is excess money, there are ways of handling it. | do
know the feeling of your people; it looks like you've been prudent.

Senator Fischer: One thing we're starting to do this session because there was some gquestion on tt
by the public is that, for example the Dept of Human Services had $8.3M left over. They left it a
wanted to build on it. Historically they would be allowed to do that. One thing proposed is to turn it ba
it's a paper exchange, and they would start their budget from zero.

Lori Laschkewitsch — It is important to distinguish the difference — The money the Dept of Hum
Services had is general fund money. Since it's money from stimulus funding and can't go to rainy d
fund, we have put a statute in their bills to allow them to use that for their budget for other general fu
expenses then we didn't need to add additional $12.8 M into the budget. The difference with t
Tobacco Prevention is that this is a special fund, it is not general fund. Special funds don’t ever ¢
turned back to the general fund. They just remain in that special fund and their appropriation is limited
whatever balance or less than what they have in that special fund. In the case of the Tobac
Prevention and Control they would never turn back any revenue.
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Senator Kilzer: Is that in code? Or in Measure 3 someplace?

Lori Laschkewitsch: It's in Measure 3. Unless there is specific language, special funds stay in spec
funds.

Senator Kilzer: Aren’'t we as legislators supposed to be legislating? Wouldn’t that be a conflict if 1
don’t have the choice?

Lori Laschkewitsch: You are doing the appropriating. They can't spend until you appropriate. Y
have the option of appropriating more or less if you choose.

Senator Kilzer: What happens if it doesn't get appropriated?
Lori Laschkewitsch It would just remain in the trust fund and continue to grow.
Senator Fischer; What about other agencies that are special funded?

Lori Laschkewitsch: Both federal and special funds remain in their funds. If all that money is
appropriated, it remains for future use.

Senator Robinson: Workforce Safety’s fund grows and collects interest, but they can't spend it unles:
is appropriated.

Senator Kilzer. Bank of ND, State Mill & Elevator? What about the State Game and Fish Dept? £
these shielded from doing it? They are building up quite a lot of money.

Lori Laschkewitsch: They too cannot spend that money unless you appropriate it. Maybe Insuran
Tax Distribution Fund — that money reverts back. But for most instances like the ones you listed th
can only spend what you appropriate.

Senator Fischer - The general funds in any agencies get turned back, right?

Lori Laschkewitsch: That is correct — there is a statute that does allow capital and IT projects to go
the carryover committee and ask for that money to be carried over one biennium.

Sheila M. Sandness: Or sometimes you can put a section in the appropriation bill that allows them
carry it over.

Senator Fischer: The other piece is weilet them use money without that language in there.

Senator Fischer — We have some dllemmas before us from the House. As far as this bill, what can
do to abide by Measure 37

Sheila M. Sandness: There were no changes to measure 3 with this bill.

Senator Fischer: So everything in this bill remains the same?
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Lori Laschkewitsch: The House made changes, but not to Measure 3. There was a Health Dept |
that made changes to Measure 3. The House did change the operating structure of this budget from o
single special line to traditional salaries operating and grants which the agency was requesting to .
back to Governor's Executive Budget.

Senator Kilzer: Could someone explain what the House did — something about code.

Jeanne - The House changed our budget from a line item budget to operating codes and capital ass¢
and grants. Monday walked thru — if we'd have large amount of money — with operating codes whe
we don't have a lot of room. It doesn’t work well with grants and contracts.

Senator Kilzer: | had a question related to your grants. | went thru the list of public health units that y
gave grants. The grants have the same amount of money for the next biennium. When you pass ¢
grants, do you consider increased costs for their employees — for example to allow for a 3% raise
other increases in employee benefits? From their point of view, how do they anticipate those increas
when they are given the same amount as the previous biennium?

Jeanne- They apply for the money, and if they need more money, they add more to salaries line. V
will be reviewing the formulas for the next biennium. If they need adjustments, we can make them. V
just issued our next round of grants and we did allow for any local public health unit to tell us if th
needed more money than what we were going to provide them, especially those areas like salaries.
oil counties, they had to raise their salaries to match the market. If there are any local public health un
impacted by an increase in population an increase in salaries if they have to keep up they can apply"
more money.

Senator Kilzer: They can apply for more than one grant if they have an increase.

Jeanne - We have special initiative grants that are available throughout the year.

Senator Kilzer — I'm hopeful to conclude with the next meeting.

Senator Robinson: There are so many issues. It may be helpful for Legislative Council to break
down on a page or two. With 1004 there are a number of issues. | don't want to forget anything; it's jt
a thought. I've got a lot of notes. If we could capture the Governor's Executive Budget, the Hou
changes, and the requests for changes and additions — then we could move our notes to the side a
focus on the issues before us. '

Sheila M. Sandness: You are not looking for dollar amounts — you're looking for .....

Senator Robinson:; The concerns or issues

Sheila M. Sandness: By section?

_ Senator Robinson: That would be helpful. There is always another issue coming to the table.

Senator Kilzer — Do you want to include the 80% that the House took out in 1004 on this bill? Why dic
appear in 1004 and not on this bill?
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Sheila M. Sandness: The Community Health Trust Fund funding actually goes to the Health Dept. |
appropriated for tobacco prevention and control.

Senator Kilzer: | think that is probably the biggest issue of all — Even though it's in 1004, it's not
1025. Thank you for getting that stuff to us. Does anyone want any amendments drawn up?

Senator Fischer: Arvy put one together. There is nothing here. There are other things in 1004 that ¢
affected if we change that.

Senator Kilzer: 3.5 FTEs for your grants. Is that in this one?

Jeanne: The 3.5 FTEs is in the Governor's Executive Budget on an optional request and the Hou
amended the governor's budget so they gave us one temporary EFT and they denied 2.5. We wol
love to see 1025 amended back to our optional request which would be 3.5 permanent FTEs.

Senator Kilzer: | think it would be good if we drafted that amendment and in the next meeting | will ha
questions about the 51 grants and how many FTEs are in the Health Dept. that are currently worki
with that grant. Would you need more or less than what the Health Dept has now? Are you going
administer the grants in a different way? How did you come up with the number 3.5? | know you have
certain number for your 24 grants. You have 4 FTEs now and you want 3.5 more to take care of the
additional 51 grants.

Jeanne - Initially, we had anticipated we would manage 24 grants basically our special initiative grat
and the local grants would be administered by the Health Dept. They'd have two outreach coordinatc
that would provide the technical assistance. They were already providing technical assistance to th
own grantees. In June of 2009 the Health Dept. decided they didn't want to administer our funded grat
program. We would administer those. We had felt all along that it takes two outreach coordinators
provide day to day technical assistance for the 51 grantees. We do have one community interventi
coordinator providing that technical assistance already. We have that person on staff so we needed
additional community intervention coordinator with the additional grants. Also as part of the inil
staffing pattern we had thought we would have a full time accountant that would also serve us in ott
capacities. But when the Dept of Health decided they didn't want to administer the center funded grai
program there was negotiation and we have a contract with the Dept of Health to serve as our fis
agent. They provide accounting services, payroll and procurement. So that has been a very go
arrangement but it wasn't meant to be permanent. Our half position would be a half time accountant. v
will also have an addition because they are tripling the amount of grants we are managing. A full tir
grants manager will do a lot of the procurement and the business end of things. 75 grants when »
were managing 24 grants with 4 staff people. Then we have added a full time evaluation coordinat
We are the lead agency and by Measure 3 law every biennium we have to report to the State Hea
Officer and the governor the impact the program is having so we need to have an independe
statewide evaluation done of the impact of our program. That is the third fuli time position. So we ¢
adding a community intervention coordinator to provide day to day technical assistance to 51 additior
grants in addition to the 24 we had anticipated. We are adding a half time accountant to take the pla
of the contract we have right now with the Dept of Health. And because we are tripling the amount
grants we are adding a grants manager to do that procurement which is being done by the Dept
Health now as well as the business management of triple the number of grants. Because we ¢
required by law to do that evaluation we added an evaluation coordinator full time.
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Senator Kilzer: Does the evaluation coordinator make sure the work was done and look at the results
Jeanne - Yes. Ultimately the coordinator says you did ali this work, what difference did it make.
Senator Kilzer: Do you anticipate renewing all of the grants?

Jeanne: Yes, we hope that these are ongoing programs.

Senator Kilzer: The present biennium will have to be evaluated?

Jeanne: Yes.

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on HB 1025 and will meet again next week.

Sheila M. Sandness: This is what the House did - they renewed the temporary funding for those 2
You just wanted to know that and then they bumped up the grants number.
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A subcommittee hearing on defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco control
advisory committee

Minutes: See attached testimony # N.

Senator Kilzer called the committee hearing to order on HB 1025 .
Subcommittee members Senators Fischer and Robinson were present.

Sheila M. Sandness — Legislative Council; Sheila Peterson — OMB.

Senator Kilzer: | would like to go thru 5 bills rather quickly 1025, 1152, 1266, 1041 and then
we will start to talk about 1044. Are there any requests from committee members before we
go through them?

Senator Kilzer: | have asked Jeanne for a complete request for any grants or consultations
that we don’t have record of, particularly the money amounts. | also requested from Jeanne
the salary payments to the 9 member advisory board members, the executive committee (the
3 members) and anybody else.

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director, Center for Tobacco Prevention handed out the budget
request information from the ND Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee — see
attachment # N. She pointed out the expenses to date for 2011. (See attachment #N, page 4.)
The salaries of the committee members ($41,554) include the stipend of $135/official meeting
and some expenses. This shows when they met in 2009. The next pages show a calendar
year of meetings for 2010 & 2011, but amounts are biennial amounts. The staff met weekly
but they hope to meet bi-weekly. The advisory committee meets every other month. They
meet during May and during legislative session.  The last page is contracts for professional
services as well as IT.

Senator Kilzer: Do these go back to the beginning or is this just the current biennium?

Jeanne Prom — Just this biennium - Things weren’t processed until June after you left.
There were no expenditures to report.
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Senator Fischer: On top of last page — ND Dept of Health is no longer going to be your fiscal
agent?

Jeanne Prom - We've requested a half time accountant that would take the place of that fiscal
agent.

Senator Kilzer: There were no other large items during June of 2009?

Jeanne Prom — The expenses incurred prior to this fiscal year were for board members and
their stipends and expenses and fees that required rental of room equipment.

Senator Kilzer: When you say board stipends you just mean money for the meetings?
Jeanne: Yes.

Senator Robinson: | think we have everything we need on this bill. This information today
helps and we can decide where we want to go.

Senator Fischer: | think we need the amendments to put 1025 back.
Senator Kilzer: There was a request for 3.5 and 0.5 financial person.
Senator Robinson: There was that line item issue.

There was discussion about the line item budgets and whether it afforded the agency as much
flexibility in their budgeting and expenditures. Multiple line item budgets are hard to deal with
when an agency has a short history.

Sheila M. Sandness — The House is the one that broke out the salaries. We would need an
amendment to put it back into one line.

Senator Kilzer: That is what | am suggesting, one line for the 2011 2013 biennium but after
that it wouid be like a veteran organization. | am not comfortable with adding 3.5 FTEs — do
one or two and take it from there. | understand there are additional duties. With 51 additional
grants, 1 or two additional people shouid be able to handle them. 3.5 is a little broad.

Senator Robinson: Going to one would shortchange the agency. There is a significant
amount of work in the grant application process. We have that info. I'd hope we would not go
down to one.

Senator Kilzer: | would be willing to compromise, these people haven't been thru grant
process. The first time around is challenging; the second time around - it's pretty much the
same. So we would put that at 2 and | wouldn't mind putting them as permanent so they
would get benefits, that this the distinction, right?

Jeanne Prom: You can offer some benefits to temps but not the complete benefit package.
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Senator Robinson: That is a good point about the benefit package. That positions the agency
to attract the right kind of employees.

Senator Kilzer: | would like to see the half time financial person put in there also.
Senator Fischer: | will just draft the amendments.
There was discussion about exactly what should be in the amendments.

Senator Kilzer closed the hearing on HB 1025.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A ROLL CALL VOTE ON THE COMPREHENSIVE TOBACCO CONTROL ADVISORY
COMMITTEE

Minutes: You may make reference to “attached testimony.”

Chairman Holmberg opened the hearing on HB 1025. Lori Laschkewitsch, OMB and Becky
J. Keller, Legislative Council were also present.

Senator Kilzer explained amendment #11.810.02002. Our amendments were first of all
relating to the number of FTE’s. They have 4 FTE's right now, and they wanted to add 3 %
more for their grants review and evaluation and we cut that back to 2, the House had removed
them all and so we allowed 2 of the 3 %2 that they requested. Another one is the half-time
finance officer that they wanted and we kept that in. That's the main things about we made
changes in the bill. He added out the amendments to the committee.

Senator Robinson: | was on the committee and we had a series of meetings and Senator
Kilzer describes it right. There's one other issue they requested and OMB is supportive.
They're a relatively new agency and the way their budget is presented they ask for some
flexibility in the budget presentation. We approved that for one more biennium. The need is
there when they appropriate dollars back for grants to local health units across the state. | am
supportive of the amendments. The additional FTE's were needed 50 some grants that the
Health Department had been administering. The administration of those grants have all been
transferred to this tobacco committee and there in is the reason for the additional FTE , the
additional work load. It's important, all of us want transparency and accountability to stay on
top of that many grants, we're talking a lot of money here, they needed the additional FTE’s
that Senator Kilzer spoke to.

Senator Kilzer: That's right. Presently they are administering 24 grants and they are going to
be taking on an additional 51 grants. And | asked the Health Department how many people
will you be able to cut when you are not doing these anymore and it was a little over one, that's
why we ended up with the two and we also recommended that they be permanent rather than
temporary employees on the two additional grant reviewers and letters.
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Senator Kilzer moved the Amendment 11.8120.02002. Seconded by Senator Robinson.
Chairman Holmberg: This will go to conference committee you can rest assured.

Senator Christmann: | am just wondering the general thought from the tobacco control
people. s this something they are pleased with or are we rotten for not doing nearly enough?
What is their response to this?

Senator Kilzer: The number one thing about the control committee, and that's what they go
by, is that the House took away the 80% out of the Community Heaith Care Trust Fund and
that's in the Health Department bill, but that's their number one issue. This would be
secondary to that. Of course, they wanted the 3 %2 additional FTE's but they'll live with it. As it
came to us they were getting 0 additional ones. They wanted 3 ¥ and we gave them two.

Senator Robinson: | spoke to Jeanne Prom yesterday after our subcommittee and they were
very pleased. | for one felt, they did a very good job presenting their case, whether you agree
with the tobacco settlement or not, we are into it. | think they are doing everything possible to
be transparent, to be accountable. | felt she was on top of her game. She knew what she was
talking about and when we requested information it was there right now. | think they are
pleased.

Senator Fischer: | agree with Senator Robinson and Senator Kilzer as far as the tobacco
committee and | believe this Executive Director will make some differences that we haven't
seen before where we've had some issues of accountability and communication.

Chairman Holmberg: It was an interesting subcommittee that we had because of a number
of the subcommittee members have been skeptical of how they've been running their show
and it's nice to hear that you're getting that sense that maybe it's moving in the right direction.
Whould you call the roli on the amendments #02002 onHB 1025.

A roll call vote was taken on amendment # .02002. Yea: 12; Nay: 0; Absent: 1. Motion
carried.

Chairman Holmberg: Could we have a motion on the bill as amended.

Senator Robinson Moved a Do Pass as Amended. Seconded by Senator Fischer.

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAST TAKEN ON A DO PASS AS AMENDED ON HB 1025. YEA:
12; NAY: 0; ABSENT: 1. MOTION CARRIED. Senator Robinson will carry the bill on the

floor.

The hearing was closed HB 1025.
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PﬁOPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1025

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 14 with:
$12.882.000

"Comprehensive tobacco control

Page 1, replace line 16 with:

"Full-time equivalent positions

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action

4.00

$40.614 $12.922 614"
2.50 6.50"

Exncutive House Senate Senate
Budget Version Changes Version
Salaries and wages $765,980 {§765,980)
Operating expenses 2,967 609 {2,967 60%)
Grants 9,189,025 {9,189,025)
Tobacco Pravention and Control 12,922,614 12,922,614 12,922,614
Exec Comm
Total all funds $12,922,614 $12,922614 $0 $12,922 614
Less estimated income 12,922,614 12,922,614 0 12,822,614
General fund $0 30 $0
FTE 4.00 4.00 2.50 8.50

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Senate Changes

Adds 2.5 Restores Single
Pemanent Line Total Sengte
FTE Posiions’ ~ Appropriation? Changes
Salaries and wages $366,514 {$1,132.454) {$765,980)
Operating expenses (2,967,609) (2,967,609)
Grants (366,514) (8,822,511} {9,189,025)
Tobacco Pravention and Control 12,922,614 12,922,614
Exec Comm
Total all funds $0 $0
Less estimated income 0 0
General fund $0 $0
FTE 250 0.00 250

! This amendment adds the following permanent fuil-time equivalent positions that were included as

temporary positions in the executive recommendation:
» 5 FTE accountant - $86,788.

* 1 FTE community intervention coordinator - $127,904.
» 1 FTE grants manager - $151,824.

The House removed the .5 FTE accountant and the 1 FTE community intervention coordinator and
transferred the funding to the grants line item, but maintained the 1 FTE grants manager as a temporary

position.

Page No. 1

11.8120.02002



In addition, the House removed funding for the temporary evaluation coordinator position ($151,824) and
transferred the funding to the grants line item. This amendment restores the temporary evaluation

coordinator position and reduces funding for grants by the same amount.

2 This amendment restores the comprehensive tobacco control line item provided in the executive
recommendation and removes the funding.by object code line items provided by the House.

Page No. 2 11.8120.02002
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

HB 1025, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1025
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 14 with:

"Comprehensive tobacco control  $12,882,000 $40.614 $12.922.614"

Page 1, replace line 16 with:

"Full-time equivalent positions 4.00 250 6.50"

Renumber accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Senate Action

Exacutive House Senate Senate
Budget Verslon Changes Version
Salaries and wages $765,980 ($765,980)
Operating expanses 2,967,609 (2,967,609)
Grants 5,189,025 {9,189,025)
Tobacco Preventon and Controé 12,922,614 12,922,614 12,922 614
Exec Comm
Total all funds $12,922.614 $12,922 614 80 $12,922,614
Less estimated income 12,922,614 12,922,614 0 12,922 614
General fund 1 30 $0 $0
FTE 4,00 4.00 2.50 6.50

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Contrel Exec Comm - Detail of Senate
Changes

Adds 2.5 Restores Single
Permanent Line Total Senate
FTE Positions'  Appropriation? Changes
Salaries and wages $366,514 {$1,132,404) ($765,980)
Cperating expenses (2,967.609) [2,967,609)
Grants {366,514) (8,822,511} 19,185,025)
Tobacco Prevention and Control 12,522,614 12,922,614
Exec Comm
Total all funds $0 $0 $
Less estimated income 0 0 0
General fund $0 $0 $0
FTE 250 0.00 2.50

* This amendment adds the following permanent full-time equivaient positions that were
included as temporary positions in the executive recommendation:

*+ 5FTE accountant - $86,786.

* 1 FTE community intervention coordinator - $127,904.

* 1 FTE grants manager - $151,824.

The House removed the .5 FTE accountant and the 1 FTE community intervention
coordinator and transferred the funding to the grants line item, but maintained the 1 FTE
grants manager as a temporary position.

In addition, the House removed funding for the temporary evaluation coordinator position

(1) DESK (3} COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_60_002
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($151,824) and transferred the funding to the grants line item. This amendment restores the
tempaorary evaluation coordinator position and reduces funding for grants by the same
amount.

2 This amendment restores the comprehensive tobacco control line item provided in the
executive recommendation and removes the funding by object code line items provided by
the House.

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_60_002
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Bellew opened conference committee meeting. Clerk took role and guorum
declared. Chairman Bellew instructed the Senate to explain the amendment that they
proposed.

Chairman Kilzer: we put back some FTE positions. As you know, they were having an
additional 51 grants to give out. As | recall, we added 2 people in the grant division
(community intervention coordinator and a grants manager). In addition the 51 new grants,
they had given out 24 previously. We also gave them the .5 accountant as they do a lot of
contract work and have a $12M budget. There was going back to the one line versus the
more detailed object code in their accounting code; we granted them the one line.

Chairman Bellew: why did you decide on that?
Chairman Kilzer: It's easier for book keeping doing it this way.

Chairman Bellew: any comments? We are in disagreement with the FTEs and the line
item.

Chairman Kilzer: why do you feel that adding 51 grants and all the work that goes with that
would not require additional FTEs?

Chairman Bellew: it's my perception that 51 grants in 2 years are not that much. They
have 4 FTEs and they should be able to handle it within their allotment of FTEs and stiil
have time left over. It's not that complicated: As far as the budget line item, we separated
that so we know exactly how much is going to salaries, operating expenses, and grants.
We feel it is better accounting this way. They were getting their accounting work done
through the Dept of Health, thus the accountant wouldn’t be needed.

Representative Kreidt: when this came about after the initiated measure, we had a lot of
discussion. They want to become a separate govt entity, so | feel in order to do that, they
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need to follow the same budget coding system as every other dept, thus we would be able
to track and follow it a lot easier. At this point, | feel that those 4 FTEs are adequate to do
the work and | stand firm on that.

Representative Kaldor: I'm one of those that dissented from the changes made in the
House. My understanding is that you did have input from Office of Management and
Budget about that regarding a new agency like this and until they get more history, this is a
better way for them to operate or function. Also, we could possibly request reports, as we
already are, that at that point in time, that could be included in the report as to how they
allocate their resources. | hope that's something that we can consider as we talk this
through. 51 grants are more than doubling what they are working on and most of these
grants are small grants. They are overseeing a lot of different entities and how they expend
the funds that are granted to them. | want to make sure that those grants are overseen and
expended judiciously rather than just pushing money out the door.

Chairman Kilzer: This is dealing with more than $12M in a biennium and | think 4 full time
employees is not very many when you are thinking about the wise use and the appropriate
accounting in the moral sense of the funds because we should have lots of questions about
the details of how those $12M are used. Also, they have $27M of revenues coming in so
they are stockpiling more than half of what they bring in. There is accountability of
management of money. | am not suggesting that FTEs are responsible for the overall
managing of the money. That comes to the executive committee of those 3 people that are
doing that. | would hope that the office manager (full time), the executive director, the
finance officer, the people that are dealing with the grants; all of these people have a check
and balance system with each other. As their duties increase, we should probably allow the
FTEs that they feel they want and we feel that they need. We have to keep the budget in a
prospective and growing manner. This is an unusual situation as our hands are tied from
the initiated measure, as we are limited in how we appropriated, but we still have to have a
proper way of getting at the information and if we keep our numbers too low as far as the
employees are concerned, then it's not going to work very well.

Representative Kaldor: section 2 of the bill provides for the reports to the budget section
and detailed information on contract services for professional fees services and grants so
you have addressed that issue.

Chairman Bellew closed hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of biMesolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Bellew opened conference committee meeting. Let the record show that ali the
conferees are here. Chairman Bellew opened the hearing on HB 1025. Any opening
comments?

Senator Fischer: We intend to stay where we are at.

Chairman Kilzer: the material that we received from ND Tobacco Prevention and Control
Executive Committee is convincing (attachment ONE). Are you denying it?

Chairman Bellew: No. For 51 grants, | can’t justify another 2.5 FTEs. If's an expansion that
| don't think is necessary.

Senator Robinson: Our concern was accountability and transparency and that is where
the agency was coming from as well. We can't have it both ways.

Chairman Bellew: if they are assuming that much responsibility from the Health Dept,
perhaps we should take 2.5 FTEs from the Health Dept.

Senator Robinson: We can visit about that when we discuss 1004. 51 grants is a
considerable responsible. We're talking millions of dollars on the table and it's granted to
agencies across the state of ND. The case is solid, in my opinion.

Representative Kaldor: We are quibbling over dollars, but rather over the way those
dollars are managed. The evidence that was brought forth to our committee early on and is
being shown here today is that if we want that money managed in the very best way, we
need the oversight. We basically have 2 differences. It seems to me that we are quibbling
over something that doesn’t make sense or square with our chamber’s wishes that
agencies do proper oversight over grants. It seems ironic that we would oppose putting
people in the position so that we can ensure that everything that is done according to these
grants is done correctly.
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Chairman Bellew: If we were to grant the 2.5 FTEs, which would mean a $3.6M reduction
in grants. The grants are the most important thing.

Senator Fischer: In both chambers, accountability has been most important. Now we have
an opportunity with a director that | really believe (given the proper tools) will satisfy the
legislature in these squabbles over the measure 3 or the tobacco fund.

Senator Robinson: We did receive testimony from the Health Dept. that the FTEs that we
put into this bill were justified. The work is there. This is not low key. We've been all about
transparency and accountability and there have been all kinds of questions about where
the money is going and what's happening to it and are we reducing and having an impact
on smoking cessation. That's why these positions are important so that we have
assurance, transparency and accountability.

Chairman Bellew: Due to no more discussion, we will adjourn and reschedule.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Bellew called conference committee to order noting that all the conferees are
present. He opened the hearing on HB 1025. The primary aspect that we are in
disagreement on is with the 2.5 FTEs.

Representative Kaldor: one could argue that is there is a need, they could probably
contract for some of the services that are provided by the FTES, but the cost of doing
contracting for that is actually greater than the cost of the FTEs. | don’t know if we have
considered that or if the discussion was held in the Senate. | think it ought to be something
to consider at least.

Senator Fischer: we discussed yesterday that the Health Dept will no longer be doing their
accounting, so .5 FTE is to do the accounting for themselves. The other two positions
(community intervention coordinator and grants manager) are more outreach than sitting in
an office managing grants and that was the reason that we felt that the 2.5 were
appropriate. We had a discussion yesterday about doubling the grants and how many
people it should take, so what | am saying is for information purposes in response to the
discussion yesterday.

Chairman Bellew: any other discussion? Any proposals?
Committee was silent

Chairman Bellew: Okay, due to no further discussion nor proposals, we will adjourn and
re-schedule.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the
comprehensive tobacco control advisory committee; and to provide for reports

Minutes:

Chairman Bellew: Senators; it is still our position that the 2%2 FTEs are not needed. Do
you have anything to add at this time?

Senator Kilzer: As you know the committee did ask for three or four FTEs to take care of
their additional load and they listed the duties. The latest document that | have shows that
with the 2 FTEs and the Y2 time accountant, those 2% FTEs will cost about $360,000
dollars over the biennium for those people to be on board and to do their work. If we don't
authorize it, the executive committee will be hiring the same duties out on contract and it
will cost a little over a million dollars. | guess you can make the choice; add the FTEs and
let them do their work for $360,000 or if we don’t authorize them, it will be contracted out for
a little over a million dollars. That's where we stand.

Senator Robinson: That’s why the package should come over from the Senate as what it
is. We thought this was a good investment of dollars and it made a lot of sense and it had
strong support on the Senate side.

Chairman Bellew: Any further comments? We are adjourned.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of billfresolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee

Minutes:

Chairman Bellew: Called the committee to order and noted that all members were
present. Jeanne Prom, executive director of tobacco control advisory committee, provided
information on estimated salaries fringe for 2011-13 (attachment ONE). !t is still the House
position that they don't need the 2.5 FTEs.

Senator Robinson: | would just state that contracting would be much more expensive. |
would reiterate that we want this agency and we can argue tobacco cessation until the
cows come home. All of us not only want it to get off to a good start, but continue to have
full accountability and transparency and that's why we funded it at the level we did.

Senator Kilzer: | move we accept the 2.5 FTEs with an appropriation of $360,000

Senator Fischer. Second

Senator Kilzer: We don't want the legislature to be spending unnecessary money.
$360,000 in the motion is comparable to a little short of $1M when you compare apples to
apples. But when they contract it out, they will put it out for over $1M. Each one of the items
in the contracting form costs twice as much. In our motion, we have cut back one of the
FTEs that they wanted. If we don’t pass this motion, we, as a legislature if we adopt the
House's position, will be costing them more money than is necessary.

Chairman Bellew: Further discussion on the motion?

Representative Kreidt: You're reducing 1 FTE?

Senator Kilzer: As you can see, the evaluation coordinator is not highlighted in the FTES,
and it is highlighted in the contracting.’

Roll call vote taken on motion to go to 2.5 FTEs with an appropriation of $360,000,
resulting in 4 yes, 2 no, 0 absent (2 no on House of Representatives), thus motion fails.
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Chairman Bellew adjourned hearing.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the
comprehensive tobacco control advisory committee; and to provide for reports

Minutes:

Chairman Bellew called conference committee to order, noting that all conferees were
present. He opened hearing on HB 1025.

Representative Kreidt: | would move to add 1 additional FTE to the tobacco control
advisory committee which would bring it up to 5 FTE. | would leave it up to the tobacco
control advisory committee to select the 1 FTE that would be most beneficial to have on
board. ‘

Chairman Bellew: the motion dies for a lack for a second.

Senator Kilzer: one way or another, they will get their 7.5 FTEs. They presently have 4
and whatever is not granted by this committee and by the legislature, will be contracted out
for the additional 3.5 FTE workings. That is the way it stands. If we don't give them a
finance officer, etc., they will have to contract it out.

Chairman Bellew: We understand that. Due no further discussion, we will adjourn and
meet again.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

To provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the comprehensive tobacco
control advisory committee o

Minutes:

Chairman Pollert called conference committee to order. Clerk took role and quorum
declared. He opened hearing on HB 1025, asking committee members to share information
that conference committee has been discussing as he is the new member to the
committee. Chairman Bellew was replaced with Chairman Pollert on the conference
committee.

Representative Kaldor: we have been discussing the difference between the 2.5 FTEs
and contracting for the same services. We've been brought materials that indicate that
contracting is possible, but is regarded as more expensive than doing the FTEs.

Representative Kreidt: At the last meeting, | had proposed to allow for 1 more FTE (1.5
FTE reduction net), allowing the tobacco group to decide wherever they needed to use that
individual. | made the motion for this proposal, however there was not a second to that
motion.

Chairman Pollert. The Senate amendments were to have 2.5 FTEs on a permanent basis
in additional to the 4 already in place?

Senator Kilzer: They have 4 permanent on staff right now.

Chairman Pollert: (distributed amendment .02003). The House had changed the tobacco
group budget from a one line item to break out. This amendment takes it back to the one
line item and increases the budget by 1 permanent FTE. Because we go back to the
original one line item (as in the governor's budget), they have the option of hiring additional
part time FTEs if they think they need them. It moves further than the governor's budget
because it authorizes 1 permanent ETE.

Senator Robinson: This sounds like Representative Kreidt's motion that did not get a
second. On the Senate side, we had significant discussion about this and whether you like
the tobacco initiative or not, it's the law. There is an administer in place that is doing a great
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job. It was our feeling that we want the program to be successful, transparent and fully
accountable. To manage the additional grants coming forward this time around, to work
across the state, 1 FTE sells it short. You suggest they go out and hire people. The
problem is when you hire part time people, for the most part; you get a part time effort. |
think it's important we have people in here that are skilled, are on top of these grants and
the work they do in all 53 counties and have continuity so we can build a solid program. |
would encourage us to hang tough and do this thing right. | think the case was made on the
Senate side that there's certainly a need for more than the 1 FTE.

Representative Kaldor: | don't believe the term part time is what you intended. In the
department before, these are full time temporaries. In other words, they don't have the
enhancements that another full time employee would have. It's a little bit different than what
Representative Kreidt offered the other day.

Senator Kilzer: Ok, éo you meant temporary full time.
Chairman Pollert: Yes

Representative Kreidt: From our discussion, we do realize that contracting would be a
greater expense. Thus, | would move amendment .02003.

Senator Kilzer: Second

Representative Kaldor: | believe they need the full time FTEs and agree with Senator
Robinson on that. | think it would be better for the committee that those positions were fill
with full time employees who were under the temporary position category. One of our
circumstances is that we don’'t want to add FTEs anywhere and as a consequence we use
a lot of what are full time temporary positions. It's not necessarily a favorable situation in
any agency to do that, but sometimes it's necessary. | appreciate the move in a favorable
direction, but 1 will not be supporting the amendment.

Senator Fischer: Office of Management and Budget, if they hire full time temporaries, can
they add benefits to that?

Office of Management and Budget: 2 biennia ago, the legislature passed the ability for
agencies to be able to pay the benefits on temporary salaries if they choose.

Senator Robinson: | would prefer that if we are going to have some movement, we look at
a minimum of 2 FTEs. The Senate has been at 2.5 FTEs. There was a move on the part of
the House to consider reducing that by 1 FTE. If we had 2 FTEs with the flexibility, | would
prefer that versus this approach.

Chairman Pollert: Legislative Council, is everything correct by what | have said?

Legislative Council: That is correct. They would have the flexibility to hire temporary full
time positions with the one line item budget.
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Chairman Pollert: We give flexibility to multiple other agencies as well to hire extra
temporary FTEs if needed. If the agency proves that they need the FTEs, they can come
back in the next biennium and hire them on as permanent FTEs. We agree to have the 1
FTE. We are saying that by going to one line item, that gives them the authority to go to
temporary full time help and don't have to contract.

Representative Kaldor: We may want to discuss the actual positions. In the Senate’s
provisions, the 2.5 FTEs were identified as the grants manager, the community intervention
coordinator, and the half time accountant. The one that remains and would then be a
contract position would be the evaluation coordinator (if that's the way they decide to do
this). I'm assuming they could do it anyway they wanted to. Under almost any
circumstance, the cost to grants will be equivalent to the cost it would be to hire or employ
a full time temporary. Is there any consideration to restore the temporary positions (3.5
FTEs)? They will be allowed to contract for 1 of those 3 positions and all of those under
contract are almost double what they are as a position. In other words, you would add
$151,824 to that $366,514 and decrease the grants funding by an equivalent amount, thus
they would not have to contract for that evaluation coordinator. Legislative Council, does
this make sense?

l.egislative Council: The amendment restores those positions that were removed by the
House. The House did not remove that other position so it is technically still there. This
reverses what the House did and adds the FTE. With the one line item budget, they have
that flexibility in the temporary positions.

Roll call vote taken on adopting amendment .02003, resulting in 4 yes, 2 no, 0 absent,
thus motion carries.

Representative Kreidt: | move that the Senate recede from Senate amendments and
further amend HB 1025.

Senator Kilzer; Second

Roll call vote taken on the motion for the Senate to recede from Senate amendments
and amend as follows, resulting in 6 yes, 0 no, 0 absent, thus motion carries

Chairman Pollert closed hearing.
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[] Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a
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11.8120.02003 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title.04000 Conference Committee
Fiscal No. 1 April 20, 2011

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1025

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1368 and 1369 of the House
Journal and pages 1125 and 1126 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill
No. 1025 be amended as follows:

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 14 with:
"Comprehensive tobacco control $12,882,000 $40.614 $12.922 614"

Page 1, replace ling 16 with: .
“Full-time equivalent positions 4.00 1.00 5.00"
Renumber accordingly »

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Conference Committee Action

Conference Conference
Executive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate

Salaries and wages $765,980 {$765,980)

Operating expenses 2,967,609 (2,967,609}

Grants 9,189,025 (9,189,025)

Tobacco Prevention and Control 12922614 12,922,614 12,922,614 12,022,614

Exec Comm

Total all funds $12,922.614 §12922.814 30 $12,922614 $12,922,614 $0
Less estimaled income 12922614 12922614 i) 12922614 12922614

General fund 30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
FTE 4,00 400 100 5.00 6.50 {1.50)

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of Conference
Committee Changes

Total
Restores Restores Single Conference
Temporary Decreases Line Adds FTE Committee
Positions’ Grant Funding”  Appropriation® Position* Changes
Salaries and wages $366,514 ($1,132,494) ($765,980)
Operating expenses {2,967 ,609) (2,967,609)
Grants (368,514) (8,822,511) {9,189,025)
Tobaceo Prevention and Contral 12922614 12,922,614
Exec Comm
Total alt funds $366,514 ($366,514) 30 30 30
Less estimated income 366,514 (366,514) 0 0 0
General fund 30 50 $0 $0 $0

FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00

' This amendment restores the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the following temporary
positions removed by the House:

Page No. 1 11.8120.02003



+  Half-time accountant - $86,786.
+  Community intervention coordinatar - $127,904.
= Evaluation coordinator - $151,824.

The Senate added 2.5 permanent FTE positions--a .5 FTE accountant, 1 FTE community intervention
coordinator, and 1 FTE grants manager. The House had provided funding for a temporary grants
manager. The 1 FTE evaluation coordinator position removed by the House was restored as a temporary
position by the Senate.

? Funding for grants is decreased, the same as the Senate version.

* This amendment restores the comprehensive tobacco control line item provided in the executive
recommendation and removes the funding by object code line items provided by the House, the same as
the Senate version.

4 This amendment adds 1 FTE position, 1.5 FTE positions less than the Senate. The Tobacco Prevention

and Control Executive Committee may determine the position to be filled. The House did not add any
FTE positions.

Page No. 2 11.8120.02003
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2011 HOUSE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES

Committee: House Appropriations Human Resources
Division
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Roll Call Vote #: £

Action Taken [_] HOUSE accede to Senate amendments
- [_] HOUSE accede to Senate amendments and further amend
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Com Conference Committee Report . Module ID: h_cfcomrep=73 007
April 21, 2011 2:50pm N
Insert LC: 11.8120.02003

HB 1025, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Kilzer, Fischer, Robinson and
Reps. Pollert, Kreidt, Kaldor) recommends that the SENATE RECEDE from the
Senate amendments, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1025 on the
Seventh order:

0 REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1368 and 1369 of the
House Journal and pages 1125 and 1126 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House
Bill No. 1025 be amended as follows:

Page 1, replace lines 11 through 14 with:
"Comprehensive tobacco control  $12,882.000 $40.614 $12,922 614"

Page 1, replace line 16 with:
"Full-time equivalent positions 4.00 1.00 5.00"
Renumber accordingly -

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Conference

Committee Action :
Conference Conference
Exacutive House Committee Committee Senate Comparison
Budget Version Changes Version Version to Senate
Salaries and wages 5765560 {$765,980)
. Cparating expenses 2,967,609 (2,967,609
Grants 9,189,025 (9,189,025)
Tobacco Prevention and Contrel 12922614 12,922.614 12,922,614 12,922,614
Exec Comm
Total all funds $12,922614 $12,922 614 $0 $12922,614 $12,922614 $0
Less estimated income 12,922,614 12.922.614 0 12,922,614 12,922,614 0
General fund $0 30 £0 $0 $0 %0
FTE 4.00 400 1.00 500 6.50 (1.50)

Department No. 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Detail of
Conference Committee Changes

Total
Restores Restores Single Conference
Temporary Decreases Ling Adds FTE Committea
Positions' Grant Funding®  Appropriation? Position* Changes
Sdaries and wages $366,514 ($1.132,494) {$765,980)
{perating expenses (2.967,609) (2,967,608
Grants {366,514) (8,822,511) {G,189,025)
Tobacco Pravention and Control 12,922,614 12,922 614
Exec Comm
Total all funds §366,514 ($366,514) 50 $0 $0
Less estimated income 366514 (366,514} it ] a
General fund $0 $0 50 $0 $0
FTE 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 100
' This amendment restores the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the following
temporary positions removed by the House:
*  Half-time accountant - $86,786.

«  Community intervention coordinator - $127,904.

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_cfcomrep_73_007



Com Conference Committee Report Modute ID: h_cfcomrep_73_007
April 21, 2011 2:50pm ‘
Insert LC: 11.8120.02003

= Evaluation coordinator - $151,824.

The Senate added 2.5 permanent FTE positions--a .5 FTE accountant, 1 FTE community
intervention cocrdinator, and 1 FTE grants manager. The House had provided funding for a
temporary grants manager. The 1 FTE evaluation coordinator position removed by the
House was restored as a temporary position by the Senate.

2 Funding for grants is decreased, the same as the Senate version.

® This amendment restores the comprehensive tobacco control line item provided in the
executive recommendation and removes the funding by object code line items provided by
the House, the same as the Senate version.

4 This amendment adds 1 FTE position, 1.5 FTE positions less than the Senate. The

Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee may determine the position to be
filled. The House did not add any FTE positions.

Engrossed HB 1025 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

(1) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 2 h_cfcomrep_73_007



2011 TESTIMONY

HB 1025




Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for House Appropriations

Department 305 - Tobacco Prevention and Control Committee

House Bill No. 1025

January 13, 2011

) FTE Positions General Fund Qthar Funds Total
2011-13 Executive Budget 4.00 $0 $12,922,614 $12,922.614
2009-11 Legislative Appropriations . 4.00 0 12,882,000 12,882,000
Increase (Decrease) 0.00 $0 $40,614 $40.614

Agency Funding FTE Positions
$14.00 $12.88 12.9; 4.50 4.00 4.00
$1 2'00 .| 4.00 F 2
3.50
$10.00 . /
@ 3.00 /
2 $8.00 250 7
Z $6.00 200 /
1.50
$4.00 = /
1.00
$0.00 50,00 $0.00 $0.08 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 n.oy
$0.00 r - - 0.00 ) Y 1 -
2005-07 200709  2009-11 2011-13 2005-07 2007-09 2009-11 2011-13
Executive Executive
Budget Budget

BGeneral Fund OOther Funds

No major changes for this agency.

- Executive Budget Highlights

COntihuing Appropriations

No continuing appropriations for this agency.

Significant Audit Findings
There are no significant audit findings for this agency.

Major Related Legislation
At this time, no major legislation has been introduced affecting this agency.
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8:30 a.m., Friday, January 14, 2011
North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory/Executive Committee

Good morning, Chairman Pollert and members of the Human Resources Division of
the House Appropriations Committee. | am Jeanne Prom, executive director of the
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy. The Center is the office created
with funding from the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive
Committee. It is my pleasure to be here today to testify in support of House Bill 1025,
which provides an appropriation for the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control
Executive Commitiee, the agency responsible for the comprehensive tobacco control
program in North Dakota. Statutory authority is provided in North Dakota Century
Code §23.42.01 through §23.42.08, and §54.27.25, which is the law created by
statewide Initiated Measure 3 passed by North Dakota voters in 2008. Measure 3
requires that a portion of the money North Dakota receives from the Master Settlement
Agreement with tobacco companies be used for a comprehensive tobacco prevention
program.

This law (NDCC §23.42.01 through §23.42.08, and §54.27.25) also created the
Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee, a nine-member board appointed
by the Governor. The board elects three of its members to the North Dakota Tobacco
Prevention and Control Executive Committee. The Advisory Committee is responsible
for developing a comprehensive statewide plan to prevent and reduce tobacco use.
The Executive Commitiee is charged with implementing and administering the plan,
that includes establishing and staffing the agency and expending appropriated funds.
In most cases during this testimony, | will refer to the agency as the Executive
Committee.

My comments begin with information related to the agency financial audit, continue
with an explanation of the new agency’s mission and current appropriation, and
conclude with the 2011-2013 budget request. As part of my testimony, | will provide a
brief status report on tobacco use in North Dakota, foliowed by a report on the
agency's accomplishments in its first 18 months of existence. The report of
accomplishments connects our agency's efforts with sales tax data showing a
reduction in cigarette sales, and county-level survey data showing decreases in adult
smoking. | will share both the costs of tobacco use and the cost savings that we can
expect to realize after we reduce tobacco use.

Financial audit

The agency was created by law on December 4, 2008, and received its first
appropriation beginning this biennium, on July 1, 2009. No audit has been conducted.
The agency’s first audit will occur during the next biennium,




A single mission:
reducing the health and economic burden

of tobacco use significantly over years, not decades

The budget of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Controf Executive
Committee requires an appropriation commensurate with the problem the agency is
charged with solving and is in line with the vote of the people. This investment in
serious tobacco use reduction is essential to the health and financial well-being of
North Dakota. Why? Because the burden of tobacco use in North Dakota is huge,
and we all pay the price.

Tobacco use is the leading cause of preventable disease and death in our state,
killing more than 900 people each year, and contributing to many of the state’s
leading causes of death in nearly every age group. The U.S. Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) reports that in North Dakota, smoking costs $247
million per year in healthcare expenses. Of this, $47 million are Medicaid costs. A
lifetime healthcare cost of smokers total, on average, at least $16,000 more than
nonsmokers, even though smokers do not live as long, with a somewhat smaller
different between smokers and former smokers. The CDC estimates that smoking-
caused healthcare costs and lost productivity losses in North Dakota total $10.48 per
pack sold in the state. In addition, North Dakota households pay on average of about
$564 per year in federal and state taxes to cover government expenditures caused
by tobacco use. (Attachment A)

In North Dakota, youth and adult smoking rates have remained stagnant over the
past few years. This is not surprising, because before this biennium, North Dakota
had a tobacco prevention program that was limited in scope and funding. While
limited programs achieved some success, studies find, and CDC reports, that as
states spend more on these programs:

+ cigarette sales drop twice as much as in the United States as a whole:

» larger declines in smoking rates occur, even when controlling for other factors

such as increased tobacco prices; and
+ the longer states invest in such programs, the larger the impact.

The good news is that this biennium, North Dakota became the first state in the
nation to fund its tobacco prevention program at the comprehensive level
recommended by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).
Currently North Dakota and Alaska are the only states with this funding level.
Historically, other states have invested in larger-scale programs with the focus on
strong statewide policies and ongoing program funding, and have realized significant
heaith improvements and healthcare cost savings. Three separate landmark reports
were reieased in 2007, one each by the Institute of Medicine, the President's Cancer
Panel, and the CDC. All reports conciuded that there is overwhelming evidence that
comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention programs substantially reduce tobacco
use, and all reports advised that states fund their programs at the CDC-
recommended level. '

The Executive Committee is charged with a very specific mission: to ensure that
tobacco use in North Dakota is reduced significantly over a matter of years rather
than little-by-little over many decades, using a funding source that will end in 2017.
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With this singular focus on tobacco use prevention, our state can make significant
progress.

To accomplish this important mission, the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory
Committee, in its plan, Saving Lives — Saving Money: North Dakota’s Comprehensive
State Plan to Prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use, 2009-2014 (July 2009), outlines four
goais:

» Prevent the initiation of tobacco use among youth and young adults,

¢ Eliminate exposure to secondhand smoke,

* Promote quitting tobacco use, and

» Build capacity and infrastructure to implement a comprehensive evidence-based

tobacco prevention and control program.

Even with time-limited funding (9 years of Strategic Contribution Fund payments), the
Executive Committee will have a reserve that will support a CDC Best Practice
comprehensive tobacco prevention program for a number of years — long enough to
fully implement strategies proven to work. With CDC-recommended funding
appropriated by the Legislature, with adequate implementation time, by enactment of
proven policies and systems changes, and by changing the social norms, we can stop
the tobacco use epidemic in North Dakota.

Program costs must comply with the North Dakota Century Code (§23.42.01 through
§23.42.08, and §54.27.25) that states the comprehensive plan must be funded at a
level equal to or greater than the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s
recommended funding level. The current appropriation and 2011-2013 budget
request, combined with two funding sources in the Department of Health budget for
these same time periods, meet this requirement.

2009-2011 appropriation

The appropriation for the current biennium is $12,882,000. All funds are special funds
from the Strategic Contribution Fund payments received by the State since 2009 and
deposited in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. Strategic Contribution
Funds end in six years.

This $12,882,000 is directed to:

Salaries and Wages $ 517,456
Operating $ 185,040
Grants and Professional Fees $ 12,179,504

The Executive Committee currently is authorized to hire 4.0 full-time equivalent
positions, and these positions are filied.

All program costs are necessary to establish and maintain the new state agency which
is dedicated solely to the mission of reducing the health and economic impact of the
state’'s leading cause of disease and death: tobacco use.

Salaries and wages provide salary and benefits to 4.0 full-time equivalent positions
hired by the Executive Committee, and per diem for nine board members appointed by
the Governor. The four staff positions include: executive director, administrative
assistant, health communications coordinator, and community intervention coordinator.

3



Operating expenses provide travel for employees and board members, supplies,
maintenance, postage, printing, equipment, insurance, rent, repairs, data processing
and communications, contracted services, professional development, and operating
fees and services.

Grants and professional fees comprise the majority of expenditures. The majority of
grant funding is provided to all 28 local public health units on a non-competitive formula
basis, to serve all counties and address the tobacco use problem at the local level.
Additional grants and professional fees provide; ongoing public education, evatuation,
special projects, training and technical assistance, development of online grant
applications and reporting, and other services provided by state agencies (data
processing, telecommunications, accounting, legal services).

| am going to take some time now to report on the status of the tobacco use epidemic
in North Dakota and the agency's current appropriation is being used to solve the
problem.

Need for Executive Committee funding

and indications of immediate impact from current appropriation

Since 1995, adult tobacco use in North Dakota has remained virtually unchanged.
Since 2005, youth tobacco use rates have also remained virtually unchanged.
However, in Burleigh and Cass counties, local public health units that have received
larger grants have been able to use Best Practices to educate communities and to
promote strong local smoke-free policies. In these two counties, we are seeing
tobacco use rates drop. (Comparable data is not available for other single county
health units.) Please see the following three charts.

Adultsmokmg ras'm North Dakota, 1995.2000 - wrtually ucanged
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Youth smoking rates in North Dakota, 1995-2009 — downward trend stalling

North Dakota High Schoel YRBS Data

Tobacco Use: Percentage of students whe smoked cigarettes on one or more of the past 30
days
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YBefore.and.at:the beginning.of.Executive.Committée.funding.-.. ...
Smoklng decreasing in two counties with strong policies and funding

Behavioral Risk Factor Report

Centers for Disease Control
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The Executive Committee-funded comprehensive statewide program was able to
provide nearly double the amount of funding previously received by all counties.
Additionally, the Executive Committee promotes 100% smoke-free laws. We can
expect that the impact of increased funding in all counties and continued efforts toward
communities becoming 100% smoke-free will begin a decline in tobacco use statewide,
in addition to current declines in some counties.

Inltlal |nd|cators of change — fewer clgarettes sold

In the past three fiscal years, fewer packs of cigarettes have been sold in North
Dakota. The most significant drop in cigarette sales occurred in the first year of
Executive Committee funding during Fiscal Year 2010 — 1.8 million fewer packs sold.

Tobacco sales in our state are also affected by cross-border purchases. For exampie,
if Minnesota enacted a significant increase in its tobacco tax this year, we would likely
see sales here increase. [n order to significantly reduce tobacco sales and increase
tobacco tax revenues, the North Dakota tobacco taxes must be raised significantly.



A significant decrease in the number of cigarette packs sold in North Dakota

Cigarette Tax (State General Fund) in $ millions

20

.837

18.5
18

185 / \ 1853
18 //

17.5

ke Cigarette Tax (SGFYin
Jl? 231 $ milliens
17
16.5
16
15.5 T T T T T g
FY Q5 FY 06 FY Q7 FY 08 FY 09
08/01/05 10/03/07 07/01/08 @oz/orjeg:. v
MN MN Fargo/W Fargo 5N Tob'acm'vae

implemented B implemented implemented E ram MEASURE !
tobacco tax smoke-free law smoke-free laws ’JFUNDIN IMPLEMENTED

Cigarette Tax % Change from Prior Year
0.14

0.12 Q\J.J../c%
0.1

0.08 \

0.06 \
. \

0.04

0.00 W, 2.03%

\ =g Cicarette Tax %
0 . . » ‘\\____—-ﬁ\ . ) Change from Prior
-1.04% Year

-0.02 T ITBA% \

-0.04 —Z89%

-0.06

FY 05 FY 06 FYO7 FY 08 Fy Q9 FY 10

08/01/05 10/01/07 07/01/08 07/01/09 -
!VIN MN Fargo/W Fargo ND Tobacco Prevention
implemented impiemented impiemented Program: MIEASURE 3
tobaceo tax smoke-free law  smoke-free laws  FUNDING IMPLEMENTED

Theitwo.chartsiabove: |Ilustrate how; smoke-free laws in Fargo, West:Fargo and in Minnesota
commd w:th reductlon e N D AC|garette‘tax revenue (and packs of. cigarettes: sold) in the years prior

.tax mcreése manesota.commd wﬂﬁ an lncrease in'N.D. cngarette tax revenue. To S|gn|ficantly
decrease tobacco use in: North Dakota wuthout decreasmg tobacco tax revenue, we must increase
N:D. ‘tobacco taxes ;?Salesftax collection.amounts’ by county are not available. Source N.D. Tax
‘Department, tobacco sales tax data




Beginning July 1, 2009, the Executive Committee began a new program with local
public health units implementing system-wide changes with each of their client-based
programs asking each client about their tobacco use. Tobacco users are advised to
quit and are referred to the statewide Quitline. As a resuit, both the Quitline counseling
enroilment numbers and the distribution of nicotine replacement therapy (NRT)
increased significantly statewide and in individual counties.

An increase in the use of the statewide Quitline

North Dakota Quitline

B NRT Distribution - total

requests

4000 & Counseling Enrollment
3500 ! 3374

i .

l H 3
3000 ! SN NRT Distribution %
2500 . Increase:
2000 09 vs. 10: 165%

1283 0B vs. 10: 500%

1500 1271 !
1000 Counseling Enroliment
. Increase:
>00 - 09 vs. 10:82%
0 08 vs. 10! 195%

Thl"gj"hart'lllﬁ"étrates how ef'forts fundedgby the Executlve Commltteegto mcreasexreferrals 10 thewz :
T T re ST e S N,

Qulthne fromslocall] publt health unltsmontributedato SIinflcant mcreases m;dlstrlbutlon ofﬁmcotme {

replacernent therapy»(NRaT )iand inienroiiment forncounselmg from tl‘"féﬁ"gtatemdefamtlme Executlv

Co&m:tt‘e”%ﬁgrant«funds!‘focal_xpubl c:heal}huunlts?@equ regthat‘healgjaun|ts;askzallacllents=abou Jthet'

tobacétéﬂ'fuse_-and%refe tobacco 'usersto;the;Qultlmﬂé‘%Sourc N*D"Departmentgﬂof’Health iQUitling
EERs nﬁ B SR i e

With funding from the Executive Committee, Fargo Cass Public Health began a pilot
project in October 2008 to promote fax referrals o the statewide Quitiine in four local
health systems (Sanford Medical Center North, Essentia Health, Family Healthcare
Center and NDSU Student Health Services). As a result, the agency's monthly
average of fax referrals doubled.



Increased use of the statewide Quitline from Cass County

Cass County Fax Referrals
{Mo. Avg. Calls)

& Cass County Fax Referrals
{(Mo. Avg. Calis)

Monthly Fax
Reterral %
Increase:
{12 months)

12h
iQuitlineireports

Healthcare costs impact

Earlier in my testimony, | provided some cost estimates of tobacco use. I'd like fo focus
now on cost savings. Two recent studies support previous findings related to health
cost savings resulting from comprehensive tobacco prevention and control programs.
Returns on investments have ranged from five, to ten, to fifty times as reported from
the states of Washington, Arizona, and California respectively. Why the broad range of
return? Some differences are attributed to the focus on the programs; programs that
focus on adults instead of youth, that change the social norms related to tobacco use,
address public policy, and that address tobacco industry tactics have greater returns.
Returns can also vary by factors included in analysis, such as pharmaceutical and
rehabilitation costs related to treatment of illnesses caused by tobacco.

After ten years of implementation of a comprehensive program, the state of
Washington reports that youth smoking rates decreased by more than 50% and adult
smoking rates decreased by one-third. While Washington state is not North Dakota,
Washington reports preventing 13,000 premature deaths and preventing nearly 36,000
hospitalizations, thereby saving $1.5 billion in health care costs. It is important to note
that prior to substantial investments being made in tobacco control in Washington state
there was progress being made, however, smoking rates did not decrease ngmﬂcantly
until after the substantial mvestments were made.

North Dakota’s middle school smoking rates is currently 7.3% (2009); the states of
Indiana and New York middle school smoking rates, after implementing
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comprehensive programs, are 4.1% and 3.8% respectively. Simiiarly, these states’
high school rates are lower than our current 22.4%.

The state of Massachusetts cigarette consumption was declining at more than double
the rest of the country during its program's peak funding years from 1983 - 2003. Then
in 2003, the program was cut by 90% and consumption increased in 2005 ~ 2006 while
in the rest of the country it continues to decline.

The longest running comprehensive program, in California, funded by state cigarette
taxes since 1988, enjoys aduft smoking rate of 12.9% compared to our 18.6%. In 2009,
the rates of lung cancer declined four times faster in the California than the rest of the
United States. A 2010 study, published in Cancer Epidemiology, Biomarkers, and
Prevention, associated declines in lung cancer with California’s comprehensive
tobacco control program. Sharp drops in the major diseases cause by smoking, such
as cancers, strokes, and heart disease, do not appear until several years after adult
smoking rates decline, but small declines do occur and do begin to have immediate
cost savings.

in reviewing North Dakota Medicare data, hospital costs associated with one person
experiencing an acute myocardial infarction (heart attack) and with a person seeking
treatment for COPD (chronic obstructive putmonary disease), a respiratory illness
that can be caused, by smoking, were available. The median Medicare payment to
made to Altru Hospital of Grand Forks, MedCenter One here in Bismarck, and Trinity
in Minot, ranges from $5,358 to $11,956 per person to treat. Similarly, for COPD, the
median Medicare payments the same hospitals range from $3,836 to $8,029 per
person to treat. (USDHHS, 2010, Hospital Compare).

A specific Medicaid expenditure is births, with state Medicaid programs covering weil
over half of all births in the United States. Research studies estimate that the direct
additional healthcare costs associated just with the birth complications caused by
pregnant women smoking or being exposed to secondhand smoke could be as high
as an average of $1,142 to $1,358 per birth.

Additionally, in North Dakota, 10% of all smoking-caused healthcare expenditures are
paid for by the state's Medicaid program.

Savings Per Percentage Point Declines in Smoking Rates
With each one percentage point decline in North Dakota's smoking rate, it is
estimated that the following benefits and savings may be obtained:

BENEFITS & SAVINGS FROM EACH 1% POINT DECLINE IN ND SMOKING RATES
Fewer Smokers

Fewer current adult smokers: 4,900

Fewer current pregnant smokers: 90

Fewer current high school smokers: 400

North Dakota kids alive foday who will not become addicted aduilt smokers: 1,400

Public Health Benefits

Today’s adults saved from dying prematurely from smoking: 1,300

Today’s high school smokers saved from dying prematurely from smoking: 130

North Dakota kids alive today who will not die prematurely from smoking: 450

10



First Year Over 5 Years
Fewer smoking-affected births: 90 430
Fewer smoking-caused heart attacks: 2 32
Fewer smoking-caused strokes: 17

[The number of heart attacks and strokes prevented each year by a one-time decline in adult smoking
rates of one percentage point starts out small but grows sharply until it peaks and stabilizes after about

ten years.]

Monetary Benefits (Reduced Public, Private, and Individual Smoking-Caused Costs)

First Year Over 5 Years
Savings from smoking-affected birth reductions $0.1 million $0.7 million
Savings from heart attack & stroke reductions $0.2 million $2.3 million

[Annual savings from fewer smoking-caused heart attacks and strokes grows substantially each year
as more and more are prevented by the initiai one percentage point smoking decline. Savings from
prevented smoking-caused cancer are even larger, but do not begin to accrue until several years after
the initial smoking decline ]

Reduction to future health costs from adult smoking declines: $46.6 million
Reduction to future health costs from youth smoking declines: $24.5 million

[These savings accrue over the lifetimes of the adults who quit and the youth who do not become adult smokers.
Roughly 10.6% of smoking-caused healthcare expenditures in North Dakota are paid by its Medicaid program.]

At the same time that they reduce public and private smoking-caused costs, state smeking declines also increase
public and private sector worker productivity and strengthen the state's economy.

Excerpted from: (September 22, 2008} Measure 3: Comprehensive tobacco prevention and cessation for North
Dakota: A win-win solution for North Dakota's health and economy. A special report by the Campaign for
Tebacco-Free Kids.

For North Dakota to experience the reduced heath care costs associated with
comprehensive programs, there are four key points to bear in mind:

1. When adequately funded, comprehensive state tobacco prevention programs
quickly and substantially reduce tobacco use, save lives, and cut smoking-
caused costs.

2. State tobacco prevention programs must be insulated against the inevitabie
attempts by the tobacco industry to reduce program funding and otherwise
interfere with the programs’ successful operation.

3. The programs’ funding must be sustained over time both to protect initial
fobacco use reductions and to achieve further cuts.

4. When program funding is cut, progress in reducing tobacco use erodes, and
the state suffers from higher levels of smoking and more smoking-caused
deaths, disease, and costs.”

Progress in promoting tobacco-free lifestyles

The health outcomes and accomplishments in North Dakota thus far have been
realized because the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive
Committee must, by law, implement only those methods proven most effective - and
cost-effective -- in reducing tobacco use. These methods are described in Best
Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, published by CDC in
October 2007. These CDC Best Practices are policy, environmental, and health
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system changes including tobacco-free and smoke-free policies and environments,
tobacco pricing policies, and health systems approaches that ensure all tobacco users
are connected to affordable cessation services.

Next are the accomplishments as a result of implementing the 2009-2011 priorities
taken from the new state plan, Saving Lives — Saving Money: North Dakota’s
Comprehensive State Plan to Prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use, 2009-2014.

The pricrities for this biennium reflect the foundational public policies that should be
in place at the beginning because they reach the entire population or large portions
of the population. By reaching all or most people, the policies establish tobacco-free
living as the social norm. Social norms are very important to prevent tobacco use
among our young people. Adult behaviors determine the social norm and adult
behavior must be consistent to what youth learn about tobacco use. Adults must
model no tobacco use for young people if our social norm is to be tobacco-free. Any
policy to establish tobacco-free living as the norm must be for all ages, not just youth.

Additionally, with access to programs and services in all counties has increased with
grant funding from the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive
Committee. Larger grants allowed local public health units to hire an additionai 11.29
fulltime equivalent employees to provide tobacco prevention programs and services
in all counties. Half of these positions are located in cities with populations of less
than 5,000. This ensures that all areas of the state — rural and urban -- are
benefitting from the comprehensive tobacco prevention and control program and
services. Please see the table on the following page.

State Plan: more progress needed

The State Plan also includes the following objectives which require action by the

North Dakota Legisiative Assembly, These actions are imperative if we are to reduce

tobacco use and the related healthcare costs significantly and at an accelerated rate:

o Amend the North Dakota Smoke-Free Law to implement 100 percent smoke-free
public places and places of employment and to expand enforcement of the law.
North Dakota has exemptions for bars, truck stops and other areas where
smoking is allowed.

o Increase the cigaretie excise tax to $2.00 per pack and increase the excise tax on
other tobacco products by an equal and proportional amount. ($0.44 since 1983)
A $2 tobacco tax would result in a 25.7% decrease in youth smoking, keep 7,900
kids in North Dakota from becoming addicted adult smokers, and prompt 5,300
current adult smokers to quit. This would result in $5.5 million in 5-year
healthcare costs savings from fewer smoking-affected pregnancies, births, heart
attacks and strokes. Long-term cost savings from smoking declines is in the
hundreds of millions of dollars. See Attachment B.

o Continue to prevent preemption in all state tobacco prevention and control laws.
Preemption is when higher levels of government can prohibit lower levels of
government from enacting certain laws or regulations. At this time local
governments are not preempted from enacting tobacco prevention and control
ordinances.

o Sustain North Dakota's comprehensive Tobacco Prevention and Control Program
using CDC Best Practices to significantly reduce tobacco use at an accelerated
rate, and thus significantly reduce tobacco-related healthcare costs over time.
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2011-2013 Budget — Base, Optional, Total Requests

The North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Commitiee's 2011-
2013 base, optional and total budget request is $12,992,614. See Attachment C.
This reflects an increase of $40,614 over the 2008-2011 biennial budget. $40,614 is
the amount of the compensation package increases in salary, benefits, health
insurance and retirement contribution. This is an increase of 0.3 percent from 2009-
2011. All funds are special funds from the Strategic Contribution Fund payments
beginning with the second yearly payment received by the State in 2009 and
deposited in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. Strategic Contribution
Fund payments end in 2017.

In the base, optional and total budget requests, this $12,992,614 is directed to:

Salaries and Wages $ 1,132,494
Operating $ 282,295
Grants and Professional Fees $ 11,507,825

The Executive Committee requests 4.0 full-time equivalent permanent positions and
3.5 temporary positions in its base budget request.

in its optional budget request, the Executive Commitiee requests 7.5 full-time
equivalent permanent positions, transferring the temporary positions to permanent
positions. See Attachments D and E.

The Executive Committee has no one-time spending requests.

Salaries and wages provide salary and benefits to 4.0 full-time equivalent positions,
3.5 temporary or permanent full-time equivalent positions, and per diem for nine board
members appointed by the Governor.

Permanent salaries increased based on actual expenditures as staff were hired in the
previous biennium, and by legislatively approved raises. Temporary salaries increased
to provide adequate staffing required to administer and manage the local and state aid
grants program (51 grants). Fringe benefits increased to reflect actual salaries of
permanent staff and the addition of temporary staff.

Adequate staffing is the critical issue facing the Executive Committee. At the
beginning of this biennium, administration of the local and tobacco settlement state aid
grants programs (51 grants), was transferred to the Executive Committee from the
Department of Health. Originally, the Department of Health agreed to manage these
grants with existing department staff. Thus the Executive Committee requested 4.0
positions, which did not include positions to provide administration and ongoing
technical assistance to 51 grantees.

However, as is common with the development of new large-scale programs, original
plans are adapted. In exchange for transferring the grants management to the
Executive Committee, the Department of Health has provided contracted accounting
and human resource services to the committee. This arrangement has been very
helpful to the Executive Committee, but was not meant to be perpetual nor does it
allow for adequate Executive Committee staffing to manage an additional 51 grants
and provide the ongoing technical assistance and training to these grantees. Thus, the
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Executive Committee includes an additional 3.5 temporary full-time employees in its
base budget request. These temporary employees become permanent employees in
the optional request. This transfer does not change the total budget request.

The new positions requested mclude

0.5 Accountant

The accountant will provide general accounting and human resource management
services.

1.0 Community Intervention Coordinator
This position will provide daily technical assistance for half of all grants, and will
coordinate quarterly training for grantees.

1.0 Evaluation Coordinator

This position will manage the contract for the ongoing comprehensive evaluation of the
statewide program; will provide ongoing technical assistance and training to grantees
related to evaluating their grant programs; and will provide assistance in evaluating the
health communications program.

1.0 Grants Manager

This position will manage the development and implementation of paperwork, protocol
and processes to issue and track more than 75 grants and contracts. This includes
developing requests for proposals, issuing requests for bids, reviewing proposals and
bids, and serving as procurement officer.

Operating expenses provide travel for permanent and temporary employees and
board members, supplies, maintenance, postage, printing, equipment, insurance, rent,
repairs, data processing and communications, contracted services, professional
development, and operating fees and services.

In operating expenses, the following line items increased from 2009-2011 to reflect
increased costs required to administer and manage the local and state grants program
(31 grants) which were transferred to the Executive Committee from the Department of
Health, as well as actual available budget history: travel; supplies — IT software:
suppiies — professional; office supplies; postage; printing; rentalslleases-building; IT-
data processing; [T — communications; and professional development. The following
are new line items based on budget history: building/vehicle maintenance; and repairs.
IT — contractual services increased to fund an enhanced system for grantee reporting.
Insurance decreased and office equipment and furniture supplies decreased to reflect
actual costs. IT equipment under $5,000 decreased because no one-time start-up
costs are necessary. Operating fees and services (advertising, awards, purchase of
service) decreased to reflect actual costs. Fees — professional services, and rentais
decreased and grants, benefits and claims increased to reflect actual costs.

Grants and professional fees comprise the majority of expenditures. The majority of
grant funding is provided to all 28 local public health units on a non-competitive formula
basis, to serve all counties and address the tobacco use problem at the local level.
The other grants and professional fees provide: ongoing public education,
comprehensive statewide evaluation, special projects, training and technical
assistance, implementation of online grant applications and reporting, and other
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services provided by state agencies (data processing, teilecommunications,
accounting, legal services).

Optional request -~ changes

The total budget request amount from base to optional remains the same. Within this
total amount, the Salaries — permanent line item increased and temporary salaries line
item decreased to reflect the transfer of temporary employees to permanent status for
program centinuity. Permanent staff will administer and manage the local and state aid
grant programs (51 grants), which were transferred to the Executive Committee from
the Department of Health.

Conclusion

This concludes the overview of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control
Executive Committee audit, current biennial budget, and 2011-2013 base, optional and
total budget requests. The base budget request in the Governor's budget is at the leve!
of the current biennial budget with the addition of the compensation package. The
base budget includes the current 4.0 permanent and an additional 3.5 temporary FTE
to address critical staffing issues created by the transfer of 51 grants from the
Department of Health. The optional budget request transfers the temporary positions
to permanent positions. Base, optional and total budgets are the same amount.

Chairman Pollert and members of the Committee, | thank you for the current

appropriation, and for your thoughtful consideration and support of our budget request
in House Bill 1025. | would be happy to answer any questions.
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Attachment A

o Did You Know? Studies show that.U.S. youth are nearly three times maore sensitive to tobacco advertising
than adults.

Home Seprnh Contact

Thursday . Jan 13

The Toll of Tobacce in North Dakota

Take:hctivn . State Settlemgnt Overview for North Dakotg

AU I SEES

L

View sources of information

Fudvralinitiotives
Stateilnlttitives Tobacco Use in North Dakota

Anterpational Cunter.
T —— o High school students who smoke 22.4% (8,800)

IRickiBultyDayit., ..

Male high scheol students who use o
RusershandFocts - smokeless or spit tobacco 23.2% (females use much lower)

Pruss 0fflce Kids (under 18) who become new 700
T e e daily smekers each year

Tubszco Ad.Gallcry
SRASER SR Kids exposed to secondhand smoke 42 000

at home r

iGpecinliRapoit

Packs of cigarettes bought or _—
o The Tobacco Toll smoked by kids each year 2.1 miftion

Find out what Adults in North Dakota who smoke  18.6% (93,500}
tobacco has done

to your state!

o Nationwide, youth smoking has declined dramatically since the
. Select a State... mid-1990s, but that decline has slowed considerably in recent years.
T The smoking rate among high school students - 20 percent in 2067 -
has not declined significantly since 2003, following a 40 percent decline
between 1997 and 2003, from 36.4 percent to 21.9 percent.

In addition, 13.4 percent of U.S. high school males currently use spit
tobacco. U.S. adult smoking increased slightly to 20.6 percent {about
46 million} in 2008 from 19.8 percent in 2007, the first increase in adult
smoeking rate since 1994,

Deaths in North Dakotz From Smoking

Adults whoe die each year from their

own smoking 800

Kids now under 18 and alive in
North Dakota who will ultimatety 11,000
die prematurely from smoking

Adult nensmokers who die each
year from exposure to secondhand 110
SMoke

0 Smoking kills more people than aicohol, AIDS, car crashes, illegal
drugs, murders, and suicides combined -- and thousands more die from
other tobacco-related causes -- such as fires caused by smoking
{more than 1,000 deaths/year nationwide) and smokeless tobacco use,



No good estimates are currently available, however, for the number of
North Dakota citizens who die from these other tobacco-related
causes, or for the much larger numbers who suffer from tobacco-
related health problems each year without actually dying.

Smoking-Caused Monetarv Costs in North Dakota

Annual heatth care costs in North

Dakota directly caused by smoking $247 million

- Portion covered by the state

Medicaid program %47 million

Residents' state & federal tax
burden from smoking-caused $564 per household
govemment expenditures

Smoking-caused productivity losses .
in North Dakota - $192 million

Amounts do not include health costs caused by exposure to
secondhand smoke, smoking-caused fires, spit tobacco use, or cigar
and pipe smoking. Other non-health costs from tobaceo use include
residential and commercial property Iosses from smoking-caused fires
(more than $500 million per year nationwide); extra cleaning and
maintenance costs made necessary by tobacco smoke and litter (about
$4+ billion nationwide for commercial establishments alone); and
additional productivity losses from smoking-caused work absences,
smoking breaks, and on-the-job performance declines and early
termination of employment caused by smoking-caused disability or
ilness (dollar amount listed above is just from productive work lives
shortened by smoking-caused death).

Tobacco Industry Influence in North Dakota

Annual tebacce industry marketing

expenditures nationwide ¥12.8 billion

Estimated pertion spent for North

Dakota marketing each year $32.3 million

Published research studies have found that kids are twice as sensitive
to tobacco advertising than adults and are more likely to be influenced
to smoke by cigarette marketing than by peer pressure, and that
one-third of underage experimentation with smoking is attributable to
tobacco company advertising.

More detailed fact sheets on tobacco's toll in each state are availabie

by emailing factsheets@tobaccofreekids.org

(CAMPRIGH

tobaccofreekids.org Privacy Statement (revised 3.10.06) | Copyright | Protected Trademarks

Copyright © 2011 Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids
1400 Eye Street, Suite 1200, Washinglon DC 20005 202.296.5469
All Rights Reserved
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Attachment B

Sreathe:

»
»
bs 1

Saving Lives. Saving Money with Measure 3.

BENEFITS FROM A $2.00 PER PACK CIGARETTE TAX

Current state cigarette tax: 44 cents per pack (46th among all states)
Smoking-caused costs in North Dakota: $10.48 per pack
Annual healthcare expenditures in North Dakota directly caused by tobacco use: $247 million
Smoking-caused state Medicaid program spending each year: $47.0 million

INEWA theCigarette Tax.Rate by $1.56 Per Pack: '$33.1 million
Adg mogn)&{g ] Other o‘b_éé}c;;_o_gﬂib’nggﬁgfg_s-'fo'fPat_'aHél ‘New Levels: $3.2 million

New Annual Revenue is the amount of additional new revenue over the first full year after the effective date. The state
will coliect less new revenue if it fails to apply the rate increase to all cigarettes and other tobacco products heid in
wholesaler and retailer inventories on the effective date.

Projected Public Health Benefits from the Cigarette Tax Rate Increase )

Percent decrease in youth smoking: . 25.7%

Kids in North Dakota kept from becoming addicted adult smokers: 7,900

Current adult smokers in the state who would guit: 5,300
Smoking-affected births avoided over next five years: 1,800

North Dakota residents saved from premature smoking-caused death: 3,900

S-year heaith savings from fewer smoking-affected pregnancies & births: $3.1 million

5-year health savings from fewer smoking-caused heart attacks & strokes: 52.4 million
Long-term health savings in the state from aduit & youth smoking declines: $188.6 million

e Taxincreases of less than roughly 25 cents per pack or 10% of the average state pack price do not produce significant public health
benefits or cost savings because the cigarette companies can easily offset the beneficial impact of such small increases with
temporary price cuts, coupons, and other promotional discounting. Splitting a tax rate increase into separate, smaller increases in
successive years will similarly diminish or eliminate the public health benefits and related cost savings {as well as reduce the amount
of new revenues).

+ Raising state tax rates on other tobacco products {OTPs) to parallel the increased cigarette tax rate will bring the state more
revenues, public health benefits, and cost savings (and promote tax equity). With unequal rates, the state loses revenue each time a
cigarette smoker switches to cigars, RYO, or smokeless. To paralle) the new $2.00 per pack cigarette tax, the state’s new OTP tax
rate should be at least 65% of wholesate price with minimum tax rates for each major OTP category linked to the state cigarette tax
rate on a per-package or per-dose basis.

Tobaceo’s Toll in Nerth Dakota
North Dakota residents who will die this year from smoking: 800
North Dakota residents’ state & federal tax burden from smoking-caused
government expenditures: $576/household
Amount tobacco industry spends marketing tobacce in North Dakota per day $88,500/day
& per year: $32.3 million/year
Adults who smoke: 18.2%
High school students who smoke: _ 21.1%
Kids (under 18] who try cigarettes for the first time each year: 2,500

Source: Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids www.iobaccofreekids.ora




Why raise tobacco taxes?

1

. Raising tobacco taxes is one of the most cost-effective ways to reduce smoking, especially among youth.

. Raising tobacco taxes is one of the most cost-effective ways to encourage smokers to quit.

. Raising tobacco taxes causes a predictable smoking decline that locks in large health-related cost reductions tor
state government, private sector, and households, who pay for the costs of smoking.

. Most of the pubiic health improvements resulting from the decrease in smoking caused by tobacco tax increases

directly benefit low-income populations, who are most likely to guit or cut down when taxes increase. Lower
income households suffer disproportionately from, & can ieast afford, the smoking-caused nheaith care costs.
Nationwide, 60 percent of all smokers have incomes greater than 200 percent of the poverty line; but roughly
three of four smokers who quit because of a cigarette tax increase will have incomes below 200 percent of the
poverty line.

Those wanting to quit using tobacco can access the resources of North Dakota’s new Measure 3-funded
comprehensive tobacco prevention program, which includes expanded free services located in local pubiic health
units serving every county. -

As long as North Dakota funds its comprehensive tobacco prevention program at the CDC-recommended level,
new general fund revenue generated by a tobacco tax increase could be invested in other public health services
and programs that will continue to improve the health North Dakota citizens and further reduce the costs of
preventable diseases,

Campalgn for Tobacco-Free Kids 7.30.10 / Ann Boonn & Eric Lindblom, September 28, 2010
Explanations & Notes

Projections are based on research findings that each 10% cigarette price increase reduces youth smoking by 6.5%, adult rates by 2%, and
total consumption by 4% (adjusted down to account for tax evasion effects). Revenues still increase because the higher tax rate per pack
will bring in more new revenue than is lost from the tax-related drop in total pack sales,

The projections incorporate the effect of both ongoing background smoking declines and the continued impact of the 61.66-cent federal
cigarette tax increase (effective April 1, 2009} on prices, smoking levels and pack sales.

These projections are fiscally conservative because they include a generous adjustment for lost state pack sales (and lower net new
revenues) from possible new smuggling and tax evasion after the rate increase and from fewer sales to smokers or smugglers from other
states. For ways that the state can protect and increase its tobacco tax revenues and prevent and reduce contraband trafficking and other
tobacco tax evasion, see the Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids factsheet, State Options to Prevent and Reduce Cigarette Smuggling and to
Block Cther lllegal State Tobacco Tax Evasion, htip: ‘
Kids stopped frorm smoking and dying are from all kids alive today. Long-term savings accrue over the lifetimes of persons who stop
smoking or never start because of the rate increase. All cost and savings in 2004 dollars. Projections will be updated when new refevant
data or research becomes available.

Ongoing reductions in state smoking levels will, over time, gradually erode state cigarette tax revenues (in the absence of any new rate
increases). But those declines are more predictable and lass volatile than many other state revenue sources, such as state income tax or
corporate tax revenues (which can drop sharply during recessions). In addition, the smoking declines that reduce tobacco tax revenues
will simultaneously produce much larger reductions in government and private sector smoking-caused costs. See the Campaign for
Tobacco-Free Kids factsheet, Tobacce Tax Increases ore a Reliable Source of Substantial New State Revenue,
http://iobaccofredkids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0303.pdf.

For other ways states can increase revenues (and promote public health) other than just raising its cigarette tax, see the Campaign
factsheet, The Many Ways States Con Raise Revenue While Also Reducing Tobacco Use and its Many Harms & Costs,
nttp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0357.pdi.

For more on sources and calculations, see http://www.tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0281.pdf

Additional Information on Tobacco Product Tax Incrgases
Raising State Cigarette Taxes Always Increases State Revenues and Always Reduces Smoking,
nttp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/ndf/0098.ndf.

Responses to Misleading and inaccurate Cigarette Company Argurnents Against State Tobacco Tax Increases,
http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0227.paf.

State Cigarette Excise Tax Rates & Rankings, http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0097.pdf.
Top Combined State-Local Cigarette Tox Rotes {State plus County plus City), hitp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/ndf/0267.0d1.
State Cigarette Tox Increases Benefit Lower-income Smaokers and Famifies, hittp://tobaccofreekids.orp/fresearch/factsheets/pdf/0147 .pdi.
The Best Way to Tax Smokeless Tobacco, hitp://tobaccofreskids, org/research/factsheets/pdf/0282. ndf.
The Problem with Roli-Your-Own (RYO) Tebacco, hitp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/ndf/0336.pdf.
How to Make State Cigar Tax Rates Fair and Effective, http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0335.pdf.
State Benefits from increasing Smokeless Tobacco Tax Rotes, http://tobaccofreekids.ore/research/factsheets/pdf/0180. pdf.
he Case for High-Tech Cigarette Tax Stamps, http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0310.pdf.

ate Options to Prevent and Reduce Cigorette Smuggling and to Block Other {llegal State Tobacco Tax Evasion,

nttp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0274.pdf.

The Many Ways States Con Raise Revenue While Also Reducing Tobacco Use and Its Many Harms & Costs,
http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0357. pdf
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WRITTEN TESTIMONY ON THE EVIDENCE BASE FOR COMPREHENSIVE
STATE TOBACCO CONTROL PROGRAMS

TERRY PECHACEK, PhD
ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR FOR SCIENCE
OFFICE ON SMOKING AND HEALTH
NATIONAL CENTER FOR CHRONIC DISEASE PREVENTION
AND HEALTH PROMOTION
U.S. CENTERS FOR DISEASE CONTROL AND PREVENTION

FEBRUARY 3, 2011
North Dakota House of Representatives,
Appropriations — Human Resources Division Committee



Introduction

Thank you for the opportunity to provide information on the dramatic health gains and cconomic
savings that can be achieved with adequate funding and evidence-based interventions for tobacco
control. ] am Dr. Terry Pechacek with the Office on Smoking and Health. Centers for Discuse
Control and Prevention (CDC) in Atlanta, Georgia. ] am an author of the original and updated
versions of the CDC guidance documem Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobuceo Conirol
Programs and have been involved in the writing or scientific review of all U.5. Surgeon
General™s Reports on the health consequences of tobacco use since 1979, In addition. | have
provided senior technical advice on the planning, implementation. and evaluation of
comprehensive tobacco control programs in Arizona, Arkansas, California, Florida. Georgia,
Indiana, lowa, Kentucky, Maine, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Mississippi, New Jcersey, North
Carolina, Ohio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Texas, Vermont, Virginia,
Washington, and West Virginia.

For the record, ] have submitted this written testimony at the request of Jeanne Prom, the
Executive Director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention & Control Policy, to summarize the
scientific evidence regarding best practices in comprehensive tobacco prevention and control and
the effectiveness of comprehensive state tobacco control programs. Also for the record, this
written testimony is not for or against any specific legistative proposal.

Effects of State Tobacco Control Programs

Tobacco use is the leading preventable cause of illness and death in the United States. From
2000 to 2004, an average of 900 North Dakota residents died per year from smoking-related
diseases; and North Dakota ranks 4™ highest among states in its smoking-related death rate with
225.6 of every 100,000 people over age 35 dying due to tobacco use. In addition, studies have
shown that, for every person who dies of a smoking-related disease, another 20 persons are
living with a serious chronic disease caused by smoking.

The good news is that we know what works and how to reduce tobacco use. 1f North Dakota
were to continue to fully fund tobacco control programs and implement proven tobacco control
strategies, including full implementation of smoke-free environments in all workplaces and
public places, increases in tobacco product prices, hardhitting media campaigns, ensuring
tobacco users can get help quitting, and youth empowerment initiatives that counteract tobacco
industry marketing, North Dakota could make significant progress in reducing the staggering toll
that tobacco use takes on its families and communities.

State tobacco control programs coordinate these and other proven tobacco control approaches to
eri§ufé maximum impact. States that have made large and sustained investments in tobacco
control programs have seen cigarette sales drop more than twice as much as in the United States
as a whole. Smoklng prévalence among youth and adults declines faster as spending for tobacco
contiol programs incréasés. States such as Maine, New York and Washington, have achieved 45
to 60 percent rédictions in youth smokmg through sustained implementation of coordinated
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tobacco control programs. As another example, between 1998 and 2002, a comprehensive
tobacco control program in Florida that included an aggressive youth-oriented media campaign
reduced smoking rates by 50 percent among middle school students and by 35 percent among
high school students.

State tobacco control programs that are sustained over time also generate a high return on
investment. For example, a study of California’s tobacco control program found that the state
realized a 50-to-1 return on the monies invested in the program during its first 15 years — saving
$86 billion in health care costs from 1989 to 2004, while investing $1.8 billion in the program.
These findings provide further evidence that investments in tobacco control not only prevent
disease and save lives, but also dramatically reduce health care costs.

States can achieve substantial reductions in tobacco use and tobacco-related disease and death by
sustaining support for comprehensive, evidence-based tobacco control programs over time. In
combination with other evidence-based tobacco control interventions — including enacting 100
percent smoke-free laws, increasing the price of tobacco products, implementing media
campaigns, and making cessation services available to all populations — adequately funded
comprehensive state tobacco control can bring an end to the tobacco use epidemic.

Effects of Reducing State Funding for Tobacco Control Programs

The experiences of a number of states show that reducing funding for state tobacco control
programs leads to rapid reversals of previous progress in reducing tobacco use. For example,
after funding for the Massachusetts program was cut by 95 percent in Fiscal Year 2004, cigarette
sales to minors increased, declines in youth smoking stalled, and the state’s per capita cigarette
consumption rose. Similarly, after funding for Florida’s highly successful youth-oriented “truth”
campaign was drastically reduced, youth smoking rates, which had been falling sharply,
stabilized and then began creeping up again. Finally, within six months of the elimination of the
youth-oriented Target Market media campaign in Minnesota, awareness of the campaign among
youth fell sharply and youth susceptibility to initiating smoking increased.

Conclusion

The tobacco use epidemic can be stopped. We know what works. If we were to fully implement
proven strategies, we could prevent the staggering toll that tobacco takes on our families and our
communities. With sustained implementation of state tobacco control programs and policies, the
Institute of Medicine report’s best-case scenario of reducing adult tobacco prevalence to 10
percent by 2025 would be attainable.

Tobacco use will remain the leading cause of preventable illness and death in the United States
until our efforts to address this problem are on a par with the harm it causes. We look forward to
working with you to address this urgent public health issue. Thank you.



City-County Health District

. o Public Health and Home Care
BARNES COUNTY COURTHOUSE
230 4™ Street NW Room 102
Valley City, ND 58072
, Telephone 701-845-8518 CERTIFIED HOME HEALTH AGENCY
/ FAX 701-845-8542 PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

SERVING BARNES COUNTY

February 7, 2011
Dear Chairman Pollert:

As I listened to the discussion on HB1025 and your concern for funding of chronic disease programs such as
Women’s Way and others I thought of the Best Practice approaches. The tobacco state aid funds of $940,000
per biennium provided to local public health units are intended to be used to help support the incorporation of
the Public Health Service clinical practice guidelines on cessation in all client-based programs in public health
agencies.

he Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs 2007 on page 26 cites “Using tobacco

“(cise tax dollars to fund both tobacco prevention and control and chronic disease prevention and treatment™ as
an example of activities that can be undertaken to reduce the burden of tobacco-related diseases. The Guide to

Community Preventive Services recommends increasing the unit price of tobacco products as a very effective
strategy to prevent young people from starting to use tobacco and helping adult users to quit. Increasing the
unit price of tobacco products through an increase in the tobacco excise tax could not only greatly reduce
tobacco use in our state among youth and adults, but could also raise the revenue to help fund chronic disease
prevention and treatment programs. This strategy provides an opportunity to reach a number of program goals
that crosscut many health programs.

1 know Jeanne Prom at the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy would be happy to provide more
information on these strategies.

Thank you.

Tharwaa WAL, AN

Theresa Will, RN
Executive Director
City-County Health District



- Aladdma] OO

Testimony - House Bill 1025
House Appropriations Committee - Human Resource Division
February 3, 2011

Chairman Pollert, and members of the Human Resources Division of the House
Appropriations Committee. My name is Karen Macdonald and | represent the
North Dakota Nurses Association. | am a Registered Nurse and Family Nurse
Practitioner. | am here to provide testimony and support for HB 1025.

e From my position as a nurse practitioner in cardiology, | see firsthand what
what tobacco use can do to the human body. Heart disease is the #1 killer
of all modern-day diseases and lung cancer is the leading cause of cancer
death.

e The accomplishments of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control
Program have already shown a decrease in tobacco use from just 18
months of implementation and a decline in cigarettes sold. (source: U.S.
Center for Disease Control and Prevention, Behavioral Risk Factor Report
and ND Tax Department tobacco sales tax data)

o The number of people exposed to secondhand smoke is decreasing with a
total of 5 cities in North Dakota where policy has been enacted. Three of
these were passed and enacted since Measure 3 funding for the North
Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee. (Fargo, West
Fargo, Grand Forks, Napoleon, Pembina)

e Tobacco prevention efforts have lead to an increase in attempts to quit
smoking as seen from the 2010 North Dakota Quitline Report.

Please support the funding for HB 1025 so this successful program which will
defray health care costs can continue and the rate of tobacco use in young adults
will decline. As a health care provider, | need resources for individuals to
encourage them to quit smoking. It is not simply a matter of saying — don’t do it.
We need to offer these individuals support and encouragement. 1 also know that
continued support is necessary as smokers often need to quit several times
before finally accomplishing it. Thank you for this opportunity and | encourage a
do pass on this appropriations bill.
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Testimony
House Bill 1025
House Appropriations Committec
2:30 p.m., Thursday, February 3, 2011
North Dakota Society for Respiratory Cire

Good afternoon, Chairman Pollert and members of the House Appropriations Committee,
I'am Beth flughes and 1 represent the North Dakota Society for Respiratory Care. | am a
respiratory therapist and an educator, and as such, have been practicing and/or teaching in
the respiratory therapy profession in North Dakota for 30 years. I am here to provide
testimony in support of HB 1025, appropriations for the continued funding of
comprehensive tobacco control in the state of North Dakota, through the Center for
Tobacco Prevention and Contrel Policy.
Respiratory Therapists are frontline practitioners in the long and arduous battle against
smoking-related disease and death. 1f someone in North Dakota is diagnosed with a
smoking related disease such as COPD (which 1s the 4™ leading cause of death in North
Dakota) then they are very likely to have a respiratory therapist as part of their care-
giving team. With our skills and training, we are usualty, but not always, able to bring
temporary relief to patients struggling to breathe. I know I speak for over 300 respiratory
0 therapists in the state when I tell you that spending long periods of time at the bedside of
; men and women who struggle and ultimately, die from smoking-related disease, and
doing it over, and over again (sometimes even in the same 8 hour shift) takes it toll. |
watched my first patient asphyxiate to death over the course of three weeks - the first
three weeks of my first job in respiratory therapy, and that experience has stayed with me
for 30 years, motivating me to do what I can to stop this epidemic of tobacco-related
illness.
In her September 22, 2010 presentation to the Legislative Budget scction, Jeanne Prom,
Director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, presented data that
supported the effectiveness of the current, comprehensive statewide tobacco control
program, and noted that “these numbers show that our dollars are going toward putting
the right tools and skills in the hands of the right people.” I am here to attest to that,
noting that respiratory therapy practitioners across the state have been enabled to help
more patients quit their addictions to tobacco through the use of the Ask, Advise and
Refer system, provide better education to their communities about the dangers of second-
hand smoke, and encourage youth never to start. Health care practitioners are continually
required to update their knowledge base to in order to practice evidence-based medicine.
Evidence-based medicine means that experts look at which practices (known as “best
practices”) provide the best quality in the most cost effective manner, and then provide
that information to the broader health care community for implementation. Through the
efforts of the Center for Tobaceo Prevention and Control Policy Center and its
implementation of the Center for Disease Control “Best Practices™ for Comprehensive
“ Tobacco Control Program, respiratory therapists across the state, for the [irst time, have



the vpportunity to do WELL, at what we have worked at for so long: saving lives and, as
a bonus, saving the state of North Dakota money at the same time, Thank you.

Beth Hughes Ph,D. RRT, CPFT, AE-C
Associate Professor

St Alexius Medical Center/University of Mary
Respiratory Therapy Program

Bismarck, North Dakota

Eakd - . N !
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Good afternoon, my name is Kimberlee Schneider and | am the Manager of
Advocacy and Tobacco Control with the American Lung Association in North

Dakota.

We are proud to support the work of the Center and the leadership that ND has
shown, reflected in the “A” grade on our recent State of Tobacco Control report
card — one of only two states in the nation. We have worked together with the
Center and public health professionals across North Dakota promoting cessation,
prevention and the Best Practices that this budget supports. ALAND has
received a small grant from the center to partner with these projects and enhance
their efforts, making best use of funds and efforts for both organizations.
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Testimony — House Bill 1025

House Appropriations Committee — Human Resources Division
February 3, 2011

Good afternoon Chairman Pollert, and members of the Human Resources Division
of the House Appropriations Committee. My name is Pat McGeary and lam a
member of the ND Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee. lam a
registered nurse and have worked in the field of tobacco prevention for 19 years.
| am here to provide testimony in support of HB 1025.

On November 4, 2008, the citizens in North Dakota voted to allocate the Strategic
Contribution Fund dollars to be used for a comprehensive CDC based tobacco
prevention and control plan for North Dakota. A plan was developed by the
advisory committee within 180 days. As stated in “Saving Lives, Saving Money:
North Dakota’s Comprehensive State Plan to Prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use
2009 — 2014” we pledged to the people of North Dakota that we work with them
to implement this comprehensive, evidence based tobacco prevention program
based on CDC Best Practices.

Today, | have more than 7 pages of local public health accomplishments over the
past year as a result of Measure 3 Tobacco Prevention and Control funding.
Accomplishments that have supported that pledge and are leading North Dakota
toward achievement of the 5 year plan goals of saving lives from tobacco and
saving health care costs. Today | will highlight just a few.

Action has been taken to prevent the initiation of tobacco use among youth and
young adults. One of the progress indicators measuring this action is the
percentage of schools reporting comprehensive tobacco-free policies. 37 new
tobacco-free school district campus policies in our state occurred this past year as
a result of Measure 3 funding. This brings us to 34 %, our goal is to reach 50% of
school districts by June 2013.

Thanks to Measure 3 programing resources, for the first time, all 28 public health
units have been able to begin incorporating the Public Health Service Guidelines
system known as AAR — Ask, Advise, and Refer in their specific health units and
expand the AAR into other health services and facilities in their area to insure all
people seeking help with quitting tobacco get the cessation service they need.



One of the higher rates of tobacco usage in North Dakota is our young people
aged 18 to 24 years old. One of the best practices addressing this population is
developing comprehensive tobacco free college campuses. Campus policies are
now continuing to be developed across the state due to partnership with public
health units. The most recent success is the tobacco free buildings and grounds
policy at Lake Region State College and NDSU’s policy preceding that.

As mentioned earlier in testimony, North Dakota is seeing cities adopt 100%
smoke free policies where are all workers are protected from exposure to
secondhand smoke. This type of policy has immediate gains of removing
carcinogens and cardiotoxic chemicals from the workers and public’s exposure
but also tremendous fong term benefits of increasing the number of people
attempting to quit smoking, and enhances their chances of success at quitting.
The social norm change which takes place is invaluable toward impacting a
youth’s decision not to smoke. With adeguate funding, efforts to work with local
cities on establishing these life saving citywide policies has grown - in the rural
areas and more populated as well —where since Measure 3, 3 more cities have
adopted ordinances, plus one in Bismarck where the ordinance was adopted, and
referral process postponed enactment. The many resources for policy
development and public education to achieve these goals were made available
through the adequate funding.

These are just four small summaries of many accomplishments achieved by local
public health with Measure 3 funding. This concludes my testimony. | urge your
support of HB 1025.
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Saving Lives, Saving Money with Measure 3.

Testimony
House Bill 1025
House Appropriations Committee
Human Resources Division
2:45 p.m., Thursday, February 3, 2011
North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory/Executive Committee

Local public health units report successes over the past year as a result of Measure 3 Tobacco
Prevention and Control Funding:

Bismarck Burleigh Public Health
e Growth of a volunteer community coalition actively working toward a comprehensive
smoke free ordinance which was passed by the Bismarck City Commission on August
24, 2010 presently being referred; awaiting enactment
s Three more school districts have joined the 13 area schools to pass a Comprehensive

Schoo! Tobacco Free Policy
iy » Bismarck/Burleigh residents utilizing the ND Tobacco Quitline increased by more than
35% from fiscal year 2008/09 to fiscal year 2009/10

Cavalier County Health District

e Langdon Area Schools became the first school district in Cavalier County to adopt a
Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policy protecting 359 students in their
elementary, middle and high schools

e Cavalier County Health District implemented the PHS guidelines into all client based
programs

e Ask, Advise, and Refer training was coordinated and provided for the staff of Cavalier
County Memorial Hospital and Cavalier County Memorial Hospital Clinic

Central Valley Health District
« Passage and implementation of the Napoleon 100% smoke-free ordinance, which is
the strongest in the state - smokers must be 25 ft. from entrances
¢ Increased enroliment in the ND Tobacco Quitline from 79 to 152
s Conducted a survey of all six major cities in the collaborative. The resuits showed an
average of 75% support for 100% smoke-laws, at the local or state level



City County Health Department

Thanks to Measure 3 programming resources, for the first time, CCHD has been able to
implement the Public Health Service's evidence-based healthcare providers' protocol
for preventing tobacco initiation and boosting successful cessation known as "A-A-R."
{ASK, ADVISE and REFER). CCHD has trained-for and implemented this protocol in all
14 of our client-based health programs. We know that this program is preventing
prospective tobacco users in our area from falling into the addiction.

Due to Measure 3 funding, CCHD-has greatly expanded the scope and depth of tobacco
prevention education provided both to the public and, in-house, to our public health
staff. For example, using Measure 3 resources, CCHD has increased the number of staff
members receiving science-based tobacco-prevention training from 2 to 11.

Measure 3 resources have enabled our education and programming to become much
more robust. We have almost TRIPLED the number of ND Quitiine "intake callers”
from our specific service area. We boosted that number up to a total of 55 in FY 09-
10, from the previous year's total of 19.

Custer District Health Unit

Mandan Public Schools have adopted the Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policy
All schools in Mercer and Oliver County have adopted the Comprehensive Tobacco
Free School Policy

Custer Health has implemented the Pubiic Health Service Guidelines for Cessation in the
majority of the client based programs

Due to Measure 3, the tobacco program is fully staffed to better reach the communities
in our service area ‘

Dickey County District Health Unit

We are proud of our smoke free college campus at Trinity Bible College, and are
working with our two high schools towards comprehensive tobacco free campuses (at
Ellendale and Oakes)

Due to Measure 3, we now have a fully trained staff at Dickey County Heaith District to
implement the PHS Public Health Service Guidelines -- Ask-Advise-Refer -- with all of our
clients

We are working with the WIC program to help pregnant mothers and new parents
quit tobacco use

Farpo Cass Public Health

Fargo Cass Public Health pilot partnerships began with Sanford, Essentia, Family
Healthcare Center and NDSU Student Health Services in order to provide free nicotine
replacement products to clients who enroll in the North Dakota Quitline. The
partnerships generated 615 fax referrals to the Quitline in 2010.

Fargo Cass Public Health has contracted with Sanford Health and Essentia Health to
implement the Ask-Advise-Refer System in those organizations to insure each patient
who wishes to gquit tobacco will receive the help they need.



e The NDSU Data Center completed an economic impact study that reported no
significant long-term economic effects on Fargo and West Fargo bars from passing the
smoke-free ordinances. The Economic Impact Study was based on tax dataand a
survey of bar employees.

First District Health Unit
» Hired a local rural tobacco outreach coordinator (this would not have been possible
without Measure 3 funds)
e Developed-a:new -community:coalition in Renville county
e Revamped our cessation program:to be more public health driven which allows our
cessation coordinator more time to work with provider education

Foster County Public Heaith
e Carrington School District adopted a Comprehensive Tobacco-Free Policy
e Public Health Service Guidelines are implemented in all client-based programs

Grand Forks Public Health Department

e With Measure 3 funding, a Secondhand Smoke (SHS) study was commissioned to assess
our community’s support for expanding the local smoke free ordinance. The study
showed that 82% of Grand Forks residents supported expanding the local ordinance to
prohibit smoking in all workplaces. We used the local information and resources to
inform city council members and members of the local community about the
importance of eliminating exposure to SHS. On April 5, 2010, Grand Forks City Council
passed a comprehensive smoke-free workplace ordinance, effective August 15, 2010,
which removed smoking exemptions for bars, truck stops and casino gaming sites.

Measure 3 funds supported the development and implementation of a public
education plan that facilitated a positive change and transition in the community,

e These funds also gave Grand Forks Public Health Department the ability to contract
with the University of North Dakota (UND) Health and Wellness to effectively assess
their tobacco free campus policy and compliance. They have identified gaps and
effectively empowered students, staff and faculty so that compliance is improved.

UND’s campus population was effectively mobilized around the issue of avoiding
exposure to SHS.

e The Public Health Service Guidelines Treating Tobacco Use and Dependence, Clinical
Practice Guidelines are being implemented in all client-based programs in all 28 local
health departments across the state. This assures that every tobacco user accessing
public health services in any county is ASKED about tobacco use, ADVISED to quit, and
REFERRED to the North Dakota Tobacco Quitline, the North Dakota QuitNet, or other
cessation services if they are interested in quitting. Altru Health System, the largest
private health care system in our community, has also implemented these guidelines
ieading to screening of tobacco use among hundreds of clients on a daily basis.

e Measure 3 Tobacco Prevention and Control Funds allow the Grand Forks Public Health
Department to prevent and reduce tobacco use through evidence-based interventions
such as policy and system changes; therefore helping the most people in the most
cost-effective way.
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Lake.Region District Health Unit
e Devils Lake.passed a smoke free ordinance that will go into effect July 1, 2011
e Educating and developing relationships with our city commissioners and community
coalition

Nelson-Griggs District Health
e Implemented the Ask, Advise and Refer guidelines into ali the client-based programs
e Working with local schools to implement Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policies
e Provided one on one education on the negative effects of secondhand smoke

Pembina County Health Department
e The city of Pembina has adopted a smoke free ordinance that went into effect
February 1, 2011
e St. Thomas School adopted the Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policy
. Increase in calls to the Quitline/QuitNet by 30%

Ransom County Public Health Department
e Ransom County Public Health grounds and parking lot is now smoke-free.
e Comprehensive Tobacco-Free School Policy in all Ransom County Schooils.
e Established the ASK, ADVISE and REFER system for all Ransom County Public Health
Programs

Richland County Health Department

e Work in progress with North Dakota State College of Science (NDSCS) toward a tobacco-
free campus

o The Richland County Health Department has implemented the Public Health Service
Guidelines Treating Tobacco Use and Dependence, Clinical Practice Guideline-2008
Update in our client-based programs. The implementation of these guidelines will help
to assure that every tobacco user accessing local public health is asked about tobacco
use, advised to quit, and then referred to the Quitline or QuitNet if they are interested
in quitting. These guidelines were implemented in the Richland County Health
Department in September 2010

Rolette County Public Health District

e Ojibwa Indian School and Dunseith Day Elementary School joined Rolette Public
School, Mount Pleasant Public School and Dunseith Public School in adopting a
Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policy

e Rolette city park passed a smoke-free ordinance

e Ask, Advise and Refer training completed in four facilities



Sargent County District Health Unit
« Development of a youth advocacy program managed by a youth advocacy coordinator
“ in all three schools of Sargent County. Commonly referred to as SADD {Students Against

Destructive Decisions)

¢ Formation and maintenance of the Sargent County Coalition, CARD, (Communities
Advocating Responsible Decisions). Our areas of focus are the burden of tobacco,
underage alcohol use, traffic safety, and suicide prevention.

s Smoke free grounds of the Milnor Area Community Center, including signage.

Southwestern District Health Unit

e Ability to provide medication for clients who are attempting to quit their tobacco use in
our 8 county service area in Southwestern ND.

« Ability to promote our program through media, which has more than doubled the
clientele accessing our tobacco cessation program {which works in collaboration with
the ND Tobacco Quitline).

e Ability to provide signage to local businesses and schools to educate patrons and
students on their tobacco-free policies.

¢ Without Measure 3 funding, these services were sporadic and only available on a limited

basis.

Towner County Public Health District
e Tobacco information packets distributed to the local clinics and local hospital. This
information will be provided to all clients interested in guitting tobacco.
“ e Measure 3 information and tobacco prevention education at a local health fair.
) e Implemented Ask, Advise and Refer guidelines in all the client based programs.

Traill District Health Unit

e After filling the position of a tobacco prevention coordinator in Steeie and Traill County
a year ago, a community tobacco prevention coalition was created and currently has 15
active members including law enforcement, clergy, medical professionals and school
officials.

¢ Inthe last year, 5 of 8 school grounds {spanning 3 of & school districts) in Traill and
steele counties have moved to tobacco free grounds and have adopted the
Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policy.

e AAR was implemented in all public health units. Public health nursing staff in both
counties and the student heaith nurse at MSU Ask, Advise and Refer clients about
tobacco use as required under the PHS guidelines.

Upper Missouri District Health Unit
e Implemented Ask, Advise and Refer in all UMDHU programs. UMDHU is also working with
other local healthcare providers to support implementation of a program to inquire about
patient tobacco use and refer them to the Quitline or Quitnet, knowing just a few minutes
of a physician’s or other healthcare provider’s time can greatly encourage a tobacco user
0 and provide them with needed motivation to quit. Quitline numbers have at ieast

doubled since we are able to pay for staff time to refer patients to this free service.



e The ability to work with partners to develop programs and policies. (i.e. Minne-Tohe and
.other under and uninsured individuals receive no cost nicotine replacement therapy until
.they can receive medication from the Quitline or Quitnet. Williston State College and Fort

Berthold Community College continues efforts to assist tobacco users who want to quit and
develop policies to encourage tobacco free lives. Local businesses requesting worksite
wellness tools including tobacco free policies and assistance for cessation.)

Working with local schools that want a Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policy. Both
McKenzie and Divide County schools have had a first reading. We currently have four
schools that have implemented a comprehensive policy for their students.

Walsh County Health Department

« Walsh County Health District adopted a policy to ask all local health unit clients about their

tobacco use and advise them to quit.. Qur grant also allows us to refund clients for up to
$200.00 for their cessation products. In 2010, we assisted approximately 33 people in their
quit efforts with this. program.

Continuing to work with all schools in Walsh County by providing tobacco prevention
education as well as promoting Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policies. In the year
2010, the schools of Grafton (Nov 2010), Fordville-Lankin (Mar 2010) and Valley-Edinburg
{Jun 2010), joined with Adams Public School (Jun 08) by adopting the CDC recommended
Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policies. InJanuary 2011, Minto Public Schools
officially adopted these policies and it is anticipated that Park River-Public Schoois will do
so yet this school year. It is our goal that by the end of this current school year that all
schools in Walsh County will have adopted Comprehensive Tobacco Free School Policies.

¢ The Walsh County Tobacco Prevention Program is becoming a well known resource for

physicians, dentists, pharmacists, businesses, etc in our county. Health care providers
refer patients to us for tobacco cessation support and businesses ask us for assistance in
employee wellness programs and policy development. Our Walsh County Tobacco
Coalition has grown to 26 members who further disperse information about our program
and goals.

Wells County District Health Unit

¢ Three smoke-free bars in Wells county
e All three schools have Comprehensive Smoke Free Grounds Policy
¢ Smoke-free grounds in our ball park complex and skating rink
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TESTIMONY SUPPORT OF HB1025 - Feb 3 204/

Kayla Meyer

1664 Capital Way #208
Bismarck, ND
701-367-0687

Chairman Pollert and Representatives,

My name is Kayla Meyer, I am speaking on the behalf Health Pro (Peers Reaching Out)
from the University of Mary. Health Pro are student leaders who provide health and
wellness education programs to University of Mary students on a peer-to-peer level.
We are fortunate enough to received professional training and technical support from
Measure 3 funds through Bismarck Burleigh, Tobacco Prevention and Control program

to work on strengthening our tobacco free policy to include the entire campus.

Measure 3 funding provided the opportunity this past summer, for Health Pro students
along with other North Dakota universities and colleges to attend a statewide Bacchus
Network training on tobacco-free college campus policies. By attending this training we
were able to move forward on advancing tobacco free policy at the University of Mary.
We have learned that a tobacco-free policy provides an environment that reinforces
healthy behavior. As the policy removes the immediate threat of exposure to
secondhand smoke, it also decreases the use of tobacco and the number of people who
start smoking in college. It provides a healthy learning environment.

Measure 3 funding also gave us the available resources for technical support in
development of educational materials to educate our peers and administration about

the benefits of tobacco free campus to assist with reducing tobacco use rates.

We support HB 1025 because it provides a comprehensive tobacco prevention and
control program plus we would not have been able to accomplish the work we have
done at the University of Mary without it.
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DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Tobacco State Aid
PURPOSE OF GRANT: Tobacco State Aid Grants provide funding to ali lecal public health
units on a population-based, noncompetitive formula reaching all counties so

health units can connect all tobacco users in their client-based programs to
cessation services.

_ Contract Period ' ' Contract

Beginning l Ending Subrecipient Name, Location Amount

7/1/2009 B6/30/2011  Bismarck Burle|gh Public Hea!th Bismarck
Loty ‘mée-mw san,g .,%_(g__,. 3 "y

e S s SERED @% LR
7!1/2009;;,3%6[30/2(1331 CavaIleriCounwfeaitﬁLmlstn Langdon!;; Sk

711/2009 6/30/2011 Central Valiey Health Dlstrlct Jamestown

e ST e T DN R
771120095, 2613002014 eﬁg"ﬁ:”ftwoﬁ‘ﬁf &

¢ Healtthepartm S S e : S1HATAN
7/1/2009 6/30!201; 1 Custer Dlstngg? Health Umt Mandan 76,236.00
“*7/1!2069;\!. yiDis Eilsnc - 13;007:00
7/1/2009 6/30/20‘11 Emmans County Public Health, Linton 11,726.00
W‘f A ”"“‘ R M AR ‘ﬂ;‘; 5 ”9‘3}". _ R s
%7/1/20092%&6:‘30!201 ; .. 105,763.00
71112009 6/30/2011 121,696.00

VT S "’e'iﬁ?ﬁ‘"ﬁ%&ﬁ SRR '%‘S“’ﬁ, Sty
L"?H!ZOOQ*L %ﬁ ca i&

71172009 6/30/2011 Grangﬁ?}forks Pubhc Health Department Grand F?ﬂs
S PR TS o . G
%&7.’11200 ""*26/30.’20’M%Kldde}CountyiDlstnct:HealthEUn:twéSteeIe“‘E" Bt
513012011 Lake Reg:on District Health Unlt Devns Lake

11,218.00

22,605.00
: ‘ 14,510.00
RansomgACounty;bubhc Health;Department Llsbon 13,276.00
! t, Wahpeton 20,850.00
:';;&771 ; Roll 18,806.00
7/1/2009 6/30!2 11 Sargent County Di 12,188.00
T v SRR T T . -
/30/2071 impSouthwest rniDistrictiFealth; : 100;448/00
6/30/2011 Steele County Pubhc Health Depar‘tment Flnley 10, 637 00
6/30/20: j & PublicHealth:Distric ST 10,917:00
B6/30/2011  Traill Dlstrlct Health Unit, Hillsboro 14,786.00
G ey : | 61,028.00
6/30/2011 Walsh County Health Department Grafton 16, 893 OO
% e N ok i P’M@%@ ek R TR
ls CountyJDlstrlct 12, 286 00
Total Tobacco State Aid: 940,000.00

H:\01 - ACCOUNTING\Center Contracts Spreadsheets2/3/2011



DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Tobacco Grants to Locat Public Health Units provide significant
funding to all/local public health units/cooperating health units on a population-
based, noncompetitive formula to pay staff and operating expenses required to
deliver effective and comprehensive tobacco prevention and control programs
in every county reaching all population groups.

Contract Period ' ' Contract
Beginning | Ending ' Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
7/1/2008 6/30/2010  Bismarck- Burle|gh Puiblic Hea[th Blsmargk ) .290:412-00

R R

AR
gﬁﬂﬁlzoogﬁé‘;g”aﬁommOMCavah;%%%untya%lth ‘Districtdlangdenz:

7/1/2009 6/30/2010 Centrai Valley;iealth 1?%3%2}%5 Jagg%t‘g?wn ) 256,203.00
&‘«dﬂMIZOOQ ﬁ’6l3012010a ty,,CountyLHeaIth‘Department VaII_

7/1/%"009 6!30!2010 Custer DlstrsctHgﬁa%h Unit, Mang%g‘ —
g T A L e
un%%lStnqthGﬁltﬁIUnlt Ellendal les

71172009 6/30[2010 Fargo Cass Public Health, Fargo -

R L e S
&ﬂfﬂZOOQ 'f 30!20ﬁ”)l%iﬁgstam:struchgﬁaltf?fUnn Mmot?i%«,

ngto

6.'30:‘2010 Foster County Health Department, Carrin

i IDeparment i

711{2009 6/30!2010 Lake Reglon Dastnct Health Unit Dewls Lake

R A : it
500908 ie130/201 oﬁ@rﬂelsomanggs Dtstnc%é%ltﬁ"} L

71142009 %30/%0 Pewrnﬁb’ma &%unty Qeaﬁ?ﬂeﬁaﬂ%@;&t Cavalier 28,257.00
TR e A L B S
oo 5010 RansoifnﬁiCour%gtf{fPubl|c?HeEaItthepa:‘t ent 1Lisbot _
7.'1/2009 6/30.’2010 Richland County Health Department Wahpeton §7,169.00
@ﬁh“:ﬁhm“% SASEEARE e R i S -
14120097 @efaofzowjmnolem ‘Cou ' 77,800.00

71142009 6/30/2010 Sargent County District Health Unit, Forman 44,168.00
PR iy gﬁ\g ,gr’ R s R I . - e
£ *‘*7!1!2009%@@0!201 OgaSouthwestemelstnct {Healthil

o 7/‘1/2009 6/30.’20'10 VTowner County'Public Health Dlstrlct Cando A _ 7 _37 707, 00

m.u bR i‘e“'ﬂ FE A ED

6/30/2010 "“'Tra:lIiDlstHdiﬂea1th1ﬁt%Hlllsbor )i
71172009 6/30/2010 Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston 154 080. 00

AT R R IRE -
000 08 A0/ O @LWals"ﬁ‘rc‘él%mHeatthe ArmentsGraftor -' '68:080:00
7!1!2009 6/30!2010 We1ls County District Health Unit, Fessenden 44,628.00
N sg%f-‘.g i3 SR T R gzt T ST e ke L2
,_MI112010 6/30[20 ﬂﬁy‘g ______ urleighiRubliciHEalthiBismarc - :290;412:00

71172010 6/30.’20‘]_1 Cavalier County Health District, Langdon 43,444.00
A e T e aey B Dty P . - 256:203:00
71112010 6.’30.’201{\1 Clty County Health Department Valley City 67,387.00
: 1 TRSCL et i :Unlt‘Mandan : 178,494.27
48,330.00
© 487,622:00
309,060.00
41/570:58

Ellendale
a4 S AR R

7/1/2010 6/30/2011  Grand Forks Public Health Department Grand Forks 248,048.00



DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Tobacco Grants to Local Pubiic Health Units

{- _ ' PURPOSE OF GRANT: Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units provide significant
funding to all:iocal public health units/cooperating health units on a population-
based, noncompetitive formiila to pay staff and operating expenses required to
deliver effective and comprehensive tobacco prevention and control programs
in every county reaching all population groups.

Contract Period Contract
Beginning Subrec:plent Name, Location Amount
IR Z R e L N

gmfzow#,gm16!30!20.“ ¢ :Region:DistrictiHealthUnitiD ke .126 329 90
g%’ 7!;1:;%%‘]_9”‘ 7 i’é&iﬁ%{l Nelsongg%iigggﬁHea{[% M%\‘/I;J? . . - 59 338 OO
¥E7 [4/201 0PEie.6/30/20 1 i3 PembinalC.ounty Health: Departme N ;5 07.848/60

7/1/2010 6/30/2011 Ransom County:Public Health Department Lisbon 47,094,868
| 5/?/2&%‘* : giax“%/zo{ ?"~Rlchland?C{;:Jnt;r ﬁ‘eéﬁbefaﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁm' G ‘_ S 87166
7112010 6!30/2011 Rolette County Public Health Dlstrlct Rolla 77,800.00
. 01 V%rgenﬁ%D%&Heaﬂh Lnit % y
711/2010 6/30/2011 Southwestern District Health Unit, Dickinson

o e T R %gw T e p
5%.5?&;1[@592;;‘16/30/2011:& T %““’ i ?,; haD'?‘éit‘Fmr:aﬁ*do

7112010 6/30/2011  Traill Dlstrlct;éﬂealth Unit, Hlllsboro
4] ic

m’%ﬁﬁc‘:&’mﬁ%‘ Mé:ﬁ.-
11/2010 R Ai6/30/2C 54.060:0
° 711/2010 6/30/201 1 68.080.00
“z”"‘n" -' i «’-m‘ . . R
S e 44:868.00
Total Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units: 5,952,533.96




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Preyention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Special Initiative Grants - Policy

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Special Initiative Grants - Policy provide competitive funding to local public
health units and partner organizations to build the capacity of communities to
provide public education necessary for community groups to address evidence-
based policy change effective in eliminating exposure to secondhand smoke &
reducing tobacco use among youth/young aduits.

Contract Period ' Contract
Beginning Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
3/25/2010 6/30/2011  American Nonsmokers' Rights Foundation, Berkeley CA 25,000.00
3/25/2010 6/30/2011  First District Health Unit, Minot ND 25,000.00

Subtotal 50,000.00

DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Special Initiative Grants - Statewide Organization

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Special Initiative Grants - Statewide Organization provide competitive
funding to no:ngovernmental statewide organizations to educate and engage
their member_%. & networks on evidence-based policy change effective in
significantly reducing tobacco use.

Contract Period 4 Contract
Beginning " Ending Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
10/20/2010  6/30/2011 American Lung Association, Bismarck ND 70,000.37
10/20/2010  6/30/2011 Tobacco Free North Dakota, Bismarck ND 72,398.00

Subtotal 142,398.37




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Health Communication Campaign
PURPOSE OF GRANT: Health Communication Campaign provides funding to Upper Missouri

District Health Unit acting as the fiscal agent for the Public Education Task
Force (PETF):for placement of flights of tobacco prevention paid media,
creative development of media, public relations and social media costs per the
Health Communication Plan.

Contract Period Contract

Beginning Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
112010 6/30/2010  Upper Missouri .District Health Unit, Williston ND 169,604.00
10/1/2010 6/30/2011  Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston ND 657,815.00

Subtotal 827,419.00




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Minot State University - Policy & Environmental Change Coliaborative

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Minot State University - Policy & Environmental Change Collaborative
grant provides funding to MSU to deliver ongoing technical assistance &
coordination|of training to state & local tobacco prevention programs to
implement the most effective evidence-based policies that eliminate public
exposure to secondhand smoke & significantly reduce tobacco use.

Contract Period Contract
Beginning Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
8/16/2010 6/30/2011  Minot State University, Minot ND 143,597.00

Subtotal 143,597.00

TOBACCO GRANTS RECAP

Tobacco State Aid 940,000.00
Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units 5,952,533.96
Special Initiative Grants - Policy 50,000.00
Special Initiative Grants - Statewide Organization 142,398.37
Health Communication Campaign 827,419.00
Minot State University - Policy & Environmental Change Collaborative 143,597.00

TOTAL TOBACCO GRANT FUNDING:

8,055,948.33




‘Fa/L 37,20” - He w2

CDC Recommended Annual Investment  $9.3 million

Deaths in North Dakota Caused by Smoking
Annual average smoking-attributable deaths 900
Youth ages 0-17 projected to die from smoking 11,000
Annual Costs Incurred in North Dakota from Smoking
Total medical $247 million ‘
Medicaid medical $47 million v
Lost productivity from premature death $190 million L
State Revenue from Tobacco Excise Taxes and Settlement R
FY 2006 tobacco tax revenue . $23.3 million
FY 2006 tobacco settlement payment $21.3 mullion
Total state revenue from tobacco excise taxes and settlement $44.6 million
Percent tobacco revenue to fund at CDC recommended level 21%

Per Capita
0 _ Recommendation
,‘ 1. State and Community Interventions $7.37
: Multiple societal resources working together
have the greatest long-term population impact.
II. Health Communication Interventions %$1.86
Media interventions prevent tobacco use initiation,
promote cessation, and shape social norms.
III. Cessation Interventions $3.52
Tobacco use treatment is highly cost-effective.
1V. Saurveillance and Evaluation $1.28
Publicly financed programs should be accountable
and demonstrate effectiveness.
V. Administration and Management $0.64
Complex, integrated programs require experienced staff ~
to provide fiscal management, accountability, and coordination.
Total $14.67

Note: A justification for each program element and the rationale for the budget estimates ore provided in Section A. The funding estimates presented are based on
adfustments for changes in population and inflation since the 1999 publication. The recommended levels of investment (per capita ond total) are presented
in 2007 doliars using 2006 population estimates. These should be updated annually according to the U.S. Department of Labor Consumer Price index and
U.S. Census Bureau, The actual funding required for r'mlulememing programs will vary depending on state characteristics such as tobacco use prevalence,
socio-demographic factors, and other factors. See Appendix E for data sources on deaths, costs, revene and state-specific factors.

Office on Smoking and Health - Centers for Disease Contrel and Prevention
www.cdc.gov/tobacco « tobacceinfo@cde.gov + | (800) CDC INFC or 1 (800) 232-4636
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CDC Recommended Annual Total Funding Levels for State Programs, 2007

Total Recommended Program Costs State and Community Interventions Health Communication Interventions

Recommended Lower Upper Recommended Lower Upper Recommended Lower Upper
State {millions} (millions) | {millions} {millions) {milliens) | (millions) {millions) (millions} | (mlllions)
United States 3,696.6 25240 54738 1,461.3 11841 20224 706.7 3864 11876
Alabama 56.7 40.3 89.2 23.2 18.7 31.6 7.8 6.0 17.9
Alagka 10.7 7.8 16.0 5.3 4.5 7.2 14 0.9 2.6
Anzona 68.1 51.2 110.5 28.0 247 41.7 101 8.0 24.0
Arkansas 36.4 25.5 55.9 15.3 121 203 50 3.7 1.0
Califamia 441.9 2B6.2 610.4 170.6 137.8 234.8 110.0 47.4 142.2
Colorado 54.4 39.8 848 23.2 19.1 324 8.6 6.2 18.5
Connecticut 43.8 30.2 63.3 17.8 14.9 251 9.2 4.6 13.7
Detaware 13.9 9.3 18.7 5.6 5.1 8.2 3.3 1.1 33
Distriet of Columbia 10.5 6.9 13.7 4.8 4.0 8.5 2.3 0.8 2.3
Florida 210.8 148.1 3321 78.6 66.7 114.0 36.2 235 70.6
Georgia 116.5 77.3 169.2 44.4 36.2 61.6 24.5 12.2 36.5
Hawaii 15.2 12.4 25.3 7.1 6.6 10.8 1.9 1.7 5.0
Idaho 16.8 13.7 278 7.9 7.3 12.1 2.4 1.9 57
ltinois 157.0 106.4 2324 63.3 49.2 83.7 27.4 16.7 50.0
Indiana 78.8 54.7 121.2 31.5 25.0 42.4 11.6 8.2 24.6
lowa 36.7 26.6 57.0 16.0 12,8 2156 4.8 3.9 11.6
Kansas 321 245 52.0 14,7 121 20.2 3.6 36 10.8
Kentucky 57.2 38.4 87.1 2341 17.2 29.0 7.0 5.5 16.4
Louisiana 53,5 38.2 84.1 228 18.1 30.4 6.8 586 18.7
Maine 18.5 13.0 27.5 7.8 6.7 11.0 3.2 1.7 5.2
Maryland 63.3 46.8 99.8 246 22.5 38.2 12.2 7.3 219
o Massachusetts 90.0 53.3 114.5 3.7 25.2 42.8 251 8.4 251
Michigan 121.2 855 188.8 49.8 38.2 68.7 16.8 13.1 39.4
Minnesota 58.4 43.4 92.2 24.7 20.8 352 9.1 6.7 20.2
Mississippi 39.2 26.7 59.4 15.8 12,7 21.3 6.2 3.8 11.4
Missouri 73.2 50.5 1M.4 28.9 23.2 39.3 1.6 7.6 22.8
Montana 13.9 9.6 19.9 6.3 5.3 8.7 2.5 1.2 3.7
Nebraska 21.5 16.3 340 9.3 84 14.0 3.5 23 8.9
Nevada 325 22.6 48.7 13.5 1.0 18.5 5.4 3.2 9.7
New Hampshire 19.2 12.8 26,1 7.1 8.7 111 5.1 1.7 5.1
New Jersey 119.8 721 154.3 41.5 34.2 58.0 34.0 11.3 34.0
New Mexico 23.4 17.9 38.2 10.9 80 151 26 25 7.6
New York 254.3 155.1 3304 89.9 71.3 121.9 66.1 25.1 75.3
North Carolina 1068 74.3 165.1 42.9 338 576 . 16.2 1.5 345
> North Dakota 9.3 7.2 14.5 4.7 4.2 6.8 1.2 0.8 2.5
Chio 145.0 86.7 213.6 58.7 43.9 746 23.2 14.9 448
Oklahoma 450 32.2 71.7 19.3 15.0 253 4.8 4.7 14.0
Oregon 43.0 315 67.5 . 17.8 1617 255 7.0 48 14.4
Pennsylvania . 155.5 103.8 228.0 559 46.7- 797 32.0 16.2 48.5
Rhode Island 15.2 10.8 225 6.7 5.8 9.6 2.7 1.4 4.2
South Carolina 62.2 37.7 83.1 20.5 17.7 29.8 16.9 56 16.9
South Dakota 11.3 8.5 17.0 55 48 7.7 1.5 1.0 3.0
Tennessée 71.7 51.8 115.0 28.2 237 40.2 10.6 7.9 236
Texas - 266.3° 189.4 411.2 114.1 90.2 153 .4 43,1 30.6 9.7
Utah 42.0 11.6 11.6 19.4 3.7 +3:3 9.9
Vermont ™~ S 4.2 - 4,6 4.2 6.8 2.3 30i8 24
Virgifi: e 137:0us v 334 .. .20.6 50:3 2986 %99 208
maéﬁ'ingtdﬁ e ; 148+ % <289+ ‘250 425 9.2’ ‘8.3 24.9
West-Virginia ot 2T 76 v UGBTI {4 1184 14.0 5.7 2.4 7.1
Wisconsin 64:3 475 . 1031, ¢ . 276.. 223 37.7 8.0 7.2 217
Wyoming 90" 85 127 4.4 - 3.8 6.1 15 0.7 2.0
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NDCC 54-27-25

Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund - Fund 407

21212011

Total Community Health Commons School Water Development

Date Received Trust Fund - 10% Trust Fund - 45% Trust Fund - 45%
12114199 9,036,885.38 903,698.54 4 066,643.42 4,066,643.42
1/3/00 7,871639.19 787,163.91 3,642,237 .64 3,542,237.64
4/18/00 12,875,523.14 1,287,552.32 5,793,985.41 5,793,985.41
4/19/00 169,475.62 16,947.56 76,264.03 76,264.03
5/4/00 984.72 98.48 44312 44312
9/13/00 363.38 36.34 163.52 163.52
172/01 8,011,307.29 801,130.73 3,605,088.28 3.605,088.28
117101 1,505.95 150.59 677.68 677.68
4/17/01 14,690,317.34 1,469,031.74 6,610,642.80 6.610,642.80
4127101 221,405.57 22,140.55 99,632.51 99,632.51
6/15/01 21,277.38 2,127.74 9,574.82 9,574.82
11/19/01 181,556.56 18,155.66 81,700.45 81,700.45
112102 7,115,019.43 711,501.85 3,201,758.74 3,201,758.74
1/14/02 2,071.14 207.12 932.01 932.01
4/16/02 18,872,853.92 1,887,285.40 8,492,784 .26 8,492,784.26
423102 609,210.48 60,821.04 27414472 27414472
1/2/03 5,869,683.32 586,968.34 2,641.357.49 2,641,357.49
/16/03 1,960,169.68 196,016.96 882,076.36 882,076.36
«/16103 18,051,398.80 1,805,139.88 8,123,129.46 8,123,129.46
123/03 668,581.37 66,858.13 300.861.62 300,861.62
711103 305,817.91 30,581.79 137,618.06 137,818.06
10/3/03 230,963.18 23,096.32 103,933.43 103,933.43
4{15/04 21,899,894.49 2,189,980.45 9,854 ,952.52 9,854,952.52
4/21/04 852,398.02 85,239.80 383,579.11 383,579.11
B/30/04 255,371.41 25,537.15 114,917.13 114,917.13
4/19/05 22,261,451.85 2,226,145.19 10,017,653.33 10,017,653.33
4/20/05 809,930.77 80,993.07 364,468.85 364,468.85
10/6/05 262,051.11 26,205.11 117,923.00 117,923.00
4/17/06 19,898,716.49 1,989,871.65 8,054 422 42 8,954 ,422.42
4/19/06 1,253,301.83 125,330.19 563,985.82 563,985.82
12/22/06 196,418.35 19,641.83 88,388.26 88,388.26
417107 20,664,718.59 2,066,471.85 8,299,123.37 9,299,123.37
4/18/07 1,379,744 .44 137,974.44 620,885.00 620,885.00
6/5/07 173,167.26 17,316.72 7792527 77,925.27
4/16/08 34,965,293.50 3,496,529.34 15,734,382.08 15,734,382.08
4/17/08 1,515,783.61 151,578.37 682,102.62 682,102.62
717108 91.50 9.14 41.18 41.18
2/26/09 1,878,845.20 197,884.52 890,480.34 890,480.34
4/20/09 23,035,384.29 2,303,538.43 10,365,922.93 10,365,822.93
4715110 19,759,434.19 1,975,943.41 8,891,745.39 8,891,745.39
4719110 1,057,430.92 105,743.10 475,843.90 475,843.91
278,987,538.57 27,898,753.85 125,544,392.35 125,544,392.36

Ols




NDCC 54-27-25
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund - Fund 369

Total
Date Received
4/20/2009 14,138,010.91
4/15/2010 11,817,5619.68
4/19/2010 456 873.60
Totals

26,412,404.19




Tobacco Trust Fund

NDCC 54-27-25. Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund

2/2/2011

Amount

Deposit of Tobacco Money
Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund

Transfer Out:
Community Health Trust Fund
Common Schools Trust Fund
Water Development Trust Fund

Total Tsfr Qut

Transfer In:
10%
45%
45%

Community Health Trust Fund
Common Schools Trust Fund
Water Development Trust Fund

Total TsfrIn

1,057,430.92

105,743.10
475,843.91
475,843.91

1,057,430.92

105,743.10
475,843.91
475,843.91

1,057,430.92

Revenue
BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund Project ActID Amount
30500 1000 477005 369 (12,274 393.28)
30500 1000 105251 369 12,274,393.28

Revenue G|L Entries Fund 407:
BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund  Project ActID Amount
11000 9985 477005 901 407 (1,057,430.92)
11000 9985 105251 901 407 1,067,430.92

Transfer Qut G|L. Entries for Fund 407:

Journal ID BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund Project ActID Amount
11000 9895 722316 901 90170 407 105,743.10
11000 9955 722501 901 80170 407 475,843.91
11000 9985 722267 801 90170 407 475,843.91
11000 9995 105251 901 90170 407 {1,057,430.92)

Transfer In G|LEntries:

Journal ID BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund  Project ActlID Amount
30100 4571 480407 301 316 HL12490 01 (105,743.10)
30100 4571 105251 301 316 105,743.10
22600 3300 490407 226 501 (475,843.91)
22600 3300 105251 226 501 475,843.91
77000 5000 490407 770 267 (475,843.91)
77000 5000 105251 770 267 475,843.91
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Breatheh

Saving Lives, Saving Money with Measure 3.

Testimony
House Bill 1025
House Appropriations Committee
Human Resources Division
2:45 p.m., Thursday, February 3, 2011
North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Contro! Advisory/Executive Committee

Rent Calculations

The Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State St, Suite 65 (office) and Suite 15 {conference room)

1549 total square feet of rental space

July 15, 2009 — June 30, 2010
$8.50 per sq/ft

$1,097.21 per month
§13,166.50 per year

3% Increase as of July 1, 2010

July 1, 2010 ~ June 30, 2011
$8.75 per sq/ft

$1,130.13 per month
$13,561.50 per year
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North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee 0 N &
Center for Tob P i i -
nter for To accrf revent_lon and Control Policy Eeb [7{ 2_0”
4023 State Street, Suite 65 » Bismarck, ND 58503-0638 _—
Phone 701.328.5130 « Fax 701.328.5135 « Toll Free 1.877.277.5090 ~ H B /02 S

TO: House Appropriations, Human Reésources Division
Representative Chét Polléit, Chair

FROM: ;g_a_n_r_ly?_mm, Executive Director

DATE: ebruary 14, 2011

RE: House Bill 1025 - 201152013 budget request

Included and attached to this memo are items further explaining the North Dakota Tobacco

Prevention and Control Advisory/Executive Committee and its work related to the 2011-2013
budget request as outlined in House Bill 1025.

North Dakota Tobacco Prevention.and.Control. ExecutlveIAdwsorv Committee
The Governor appomts all members at large of from names submitted by organizations listed.

1. Ms. Bette Deede, representing

North Dakota Public Health Association
2. Dr. Beth Hughes, representing

North Dakota Society for Respiratory Care
3. Dr. Kermit Lidstrom

” At Large
| 4. Dr. Steve Mattson, representing
- North Dakota Medical Association

5. Ms. Pat McGeary, representing
North Dakota Nurses’ Association
6. Ms. Kathy Mangskau,* representing
North Dakota Public Health Association
7. Mr. Nathan Marion
At Large — Youth/Young Adult
8. Ms. Javayne Oyloe,” representing
North Dakota Public Health Association
9. Ms. Theresa Will,* representing
North Dakota Public Health Association
*Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee Members

IT—Contractual services and repair — $200.000 contract

The 2011-2013 budget request includes $200,000 for Information Technology (IT) —
Contractual services and repair. This $200,000 contract with Nexus Innovations, an approved
vendor for state IT services, wili provide enhancements to the original Program Reporting
System (PRS), an automated online system used by the North Dakota Center for Tobacco
Prevention and Control Policy and the Department of Health. Work on this project will proceed
according to Information Technology Department requirements.

Breathehit

Saving Lives,; Saving Money with Measure 3.
www. breatheND.com



Background and history of PRS

The original Program Reporting System (PRS) was developed in 2005 as a pilo project
of iwo divisions in the Department of Health to determine if an automated online
approach was a more accurate and efficient way to track the disbursement and use of
grant funds. The key challenge was to create a flexible application that could be used by
divisions within the Department, each of which might have slightly different needs.

Over the past five years, PRS has proven to be very efficient and is very useful to its
original creator, the DOH, as well as ils end users, local public health units (LPHUSs),
and grantees. Because LPHUs also receive grants from the North Dakota Center for
Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, the Center uses PRS to track grant distribution
and use. Additional DOH divisions now use PRS, and more divisions want to use the
system in the future. Therefore, the Center is now working jointly with DOH and Nexus
Innovations to “industrialize” the application and build the enhancements that are
necessary to fiilly meet the needs of the Centér and DOH programs. The costs for this
upgradé are shared between the Center and DOH, to provide mutual benefit and
savings to both agencies,

The current PRS no longer meets the needs of the agencies and their grantees and the
new application will enhance the efficiency of all users.

The Center's $200,000 request for the 2011-2013 biennium will be used to provide the
following enhancements:

Data mining: The data mining feature includes extracting information collected in the
PRS from a LPHU's progress reports, budget and expenditure reports; and then
collecting.and organizing the information so it can be easily reported: This data mining
feature is the base needed to fulfill the reporting needs in the reporting feature
described below.

Reporting: The data mining information would be used to give to Center and DOH staff
and end users predetermined static (standard) reports as well as the ability to query the
information to create undetermined (nonstandard) reports.

Online applications - integration with budgets: The budget integration would include
the automated population of the PRS.budget from the online application’s budget form
to reduce the workload of LPHUs, Center and DOH staff.

Online applications.- integration with.pfogrsss reports: The progress report
integration wéuld includé thé automated popuilation of the PRS;progress report from the
oniling application’s work plan form to/feduce the workload of 1:PHUs ard Center and

DOHbSté":f '. G 'fi . i g1i-

Réatiest fof aii additional 3.6 ETE =
Rationale: During the prévious lggisiative session, the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention
and Control Executive Committee requested and received authority to hire 4.0 FTE. The
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” current 4.0 FTE include an executive director, community intervention coordinator, health
L) communications coordinator, and an administrative assistant.

The Center staff is small in relation to the agency budget of $12,882,000. By comparison
the DOH tobacco prevention program staff inciudes 7.45 FTE and a temporary position,
and has a budget of $5,822,131. The Center staff is small because the Center and the
DOH mutually determined to offset inequity of staff and resources by having the larger
DOH staff administer 51 grants funded with nearly $7 million from the Center. DOH was
to provide ongoing technical assistance and training for these grantees.

However, in June 2009, the Department of Health determined it would be best if the
Center administer the 51 grants, since the grarits were funded by the Center. The
transfer of the administration of the 51 grants from the DOH to the Center occurred
without any transfer of FTE, even after the Center assumed all technical assistance and
training for the grantees. The Center is now résponsible for administering 51 additional
grants with the same 4.0 FTE. This staffiworkload ratio is not effective or sustainable.
Daily demands of technical assistance to 51 grantees require more than 1.0 FTE, which
is all the Center is able to commit to this work. In addition, the Center anticipates
issuing up to approximately 25 grants more grants, which aiso require daily technical
assistance and regular training. Re-directing staff to 51 unanticipated additional grants
has resulted in delays in other grants and contracts, and in planned distribution of the

” current appropriation.

= Thus, the Center is requesting the following 3.5 FTE:
(The 2011-2013 Executive Budget includes the 3.5 FTE as temporary employees, but
the agency option budget requests these as permanent employees. The status of
permanent or temporary employment does not change the total budget request.)

Accountant -- 0.5 FTE -- The accountant will provide general accounting services for a
$12,922,614 budget and human resource management services for 7.5 FTE. This would
replace the fiscal agent, currently provided through a contract with the Department of
Health. The accountant will pay invoices, manage purchases, code expenditures, and
create/reconcile fiscal reports.

Community Intervention Coordinator — 1.0 FTE -- This position will provide ongoing
daily technical assistance for haif of all grants totaling more than $3 million, and will
coordinate regular training for grantees to ensure grantees implement and evaluate work
plans, meet objectives, and reduce tobacco use over time.

Evaluation Coordinator — 1.0 FTE -- This position will manage the contract for the

ongoing comprehensive evaluation of the statewide program to ensure tobacco use is

reduced; will provide ongoing technical assistance and training to grantees related to

evaluating their grant programs; and wilt provide assistance in evaluating the health
. communications program. Evaluation:projects will total $1.5 million.



Grants Manager — 1.0 FTE -- This position will manage the development and
itnplementation of paperwork, protocol and processes to issue and track more than 75
grants and contracts (more than 85 percent of the budget, or nearly $11 million). This

includes developing requests for proposals, issuing requests for bids, reviewing proposals
and bids, and serving as procurement officer.

The funding needed for these positions will be offset by a reduction in operating
expenses, and does not impact grant expenditures. The amount budgeted for grants in
2011-2013 increased by about $1.2 million over the previous biennium.

CDC Best Practices - State.& community interventions, chronic.disease programs

State & » Provide funding & technical assistance & training to community organizations
community & partners to bulld & sustain capacity to change social norms around tobacco
interventions use; includes working with local coalitions
~- general * Gollaboration with partners/programs to use evidence-based interventions to
reduce tobacco use
*» Statewide & local public education about health effects of tobacco use &
. exposure to secondhand smoke & how to dccess cessation services
* Use tobacco taxes to fund both tobacco prevention & chronic disease
prevention & treatrment '
»__Linking chronic disease programs to quitline
State & * Use tobacco taxes to fund both tobacco prevention & chronic disease
community prevention & treatment
interventions| «  Collaborate on shared goals, objectives related to reducing tobacco use
specificto 1+ Link tobaccd prevention interventions, such as smoke-free policies, with
chronic cardiovascular disease prevention & cancer prévéntion programs
disease o Increase awareness of secondhand smoke as trigger for asthma & increased
programs risk for heart attacks
» Link chronic disease management programs for diabetes & cardiovascular
disease to state guitline
« Promobte insurance coverage for a package of preventive services including

high blood pressure, high. cholesterol, & tébacco, use treatment

Alcohol, Drug, Tobacco .and.Risk-Associated.Behavior.Programs.in.North Dakota
agencies, prepared by.North Dakota Legislative.Council; January.2011

The total anioliit State.agencies plian 16 nve
in 2011:2013.” Of this amaéunt; only $6.45 mill

Vulf

stintobacco prevention is $9.5 million/year
jon/year is réquiréd to bé used for "CDC

Best Practice” strategiés proven cost-efféctive in reducing tobaces use. The U.S. Centers
for Disease Control and Prévefition (CDC) requires that North Dakota invest $9.3
million/year on Best Practices to reduce tobacco use. The following attachment shows
that althcugh sorfie health-related programs might ask about tobacco use or report
tobacto Survey data, Bnly the tobacc usé prevéiition prograims in the North Dakota
Center for Tobades Prévéntion and Control Policy.and the Department of Health invest in
programs deésignéd to réduce tobacdéo'use. Thé Department 6f Human Services is
required by federal law to conduct a compliance survey of tobacco retailers.
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North Dakota’s Tobacco Prevention Program Facts, Figures & FAQs ,_’w %

The North Dakota Legislature soon will be voting on funding the comprehensive tobacco prevention. The
North Dakota Tobacco Prevention plan is a long-term comprehensive plan to significantly reduce tobacco
use, the leading cause of preventable disease and death in North Dakota, over a matter of years rather than
slowly over many decades. If the initiated measure is overturned, there will be no guaranteed use of tobacco
settlement dollars for a comprehensive tobacco prevention program. North Dakota youth smoking rates will
continue to remain above the national average. And all North Dakota families will continue to pay the price of
tobacco-related iliness and death.

Respect the vote of the people

« In 2008 ND voters passed an initiated meastire, requiring the legislature to spend tobacco settfement
money on an effective, science based tobacco control program.
+ 80% of North Dakotans support using tobacco settlement doflars for tobacco prevention and cessation

0 programs (2010 public opinion study).
|

Tobacco is a huge problem

+ Each year in North Dakota tobacco costs 910 lives.

» Each year in North Dakota tobacco costs $247 million in increased healthcare costs.

« Each year in North Dakota tobacco costs $47 million in increased Medicaid costs.

» Tobacco costs each household in North Dakota an annual tax burden of $564.

« A pack of cigaretles is less than $5, but tobacco-related healthcare expenses factor a true cost to North
Dakotans of $10.47 per pack.

* North Dakota youth smoking rates have stalled at a rate of 22% since 2005. Without tobacco prevention
efforts, tobacco use rates will remain high.

» Today, 8,800 kids in North Dakota are daily smokers and 700 additional kids become new smokers each
year. The ripple effect of these stalistics means that 11,000 kids now under age 18 and alive in North
Dakota will ultimately die prematurely from smoking.

« Tobacco is the leading cause of preventable death and disease in the nation and in North Dakota.

Tobacco prevention and cessation is working

« Cigarette sales are down 3 million packs since 2007, and projected to decline by 7 million by 2013.
(ND Tax Department)
« ND Tobacco Quitline program use has increased. by 195% since 2008: Cost efficiency of the Quitline is
0 enhanced by demand created by tobacco prevention efforts.
In the first 18 months at this level of funding, the state has already shown major progress in implementing
policies and programs that reduce tobacco use.
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lecal public health units require that health units ask all clients about their tobacco use and refer
tobacco users to the Quitline. Source: N.D. Department of Health, Quitiine reports

1e current use of

easure 3 funds is
improving the health of
North Dakotans in every
county through tobacco
prevention and
cessation programs.

We have already seen
smoking decrease In two
counties where data is
avallable. This illustrates
how important itis to
fund all counties at a
fevel where tobacco
prevention education
and services can reach
averyone.

Burleigh and Cass
counties reported lower
tobacco use rates while
state tobacco use rates
are relatively

Behavioral Risk Factor Report
Centers for Disease Control

PERCENTAGES OF SMOKERS

FIBURLEIGH
BCASS
BIND STATEWIDE

2008 2009
07/01/08 07/01/09
Fargo/W Fargo ND Tobacco Prevention Program:
Implemented MEASURE 3 FUNDING IMPLEMENTED

smoke-free laws

nchanged. This coincides with Burleigh and Cass counties receiving the highest levels of
ngle-county funding for tobacco control in the state; and with.smoke-free faws implemented in
argo and West Fargo. Bismarck also enacted a local smoke-free law in 2005 that is stronger than

the state law. Health units in both counties have undertaken significant public education campaigns
on the health consequences of fobacco use, and have active citizen coalitions. Source: U.S.
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

How much money are we spending in tax payer dollars for tobacco prevention programs?

No tax dollars are being spent by the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
for tobacco prevention efforts. These tobacco prevention programs are funded by tobacco lawsuit settlement
dollars paid to North Dakota by major tobacco companies and the Department of Health receives grant funds
from the Centers for Disease Control.

How much is invested in tobacco prevention?

The North Dakota Legislature appropriated $9.3 million per year at the CDC recommended level of funding
to the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy and the North Dakota Department of
Health to carry out tobacco prevention efforts. The spending amounts are outlined below. These amounts
are in line with CDC recommended funding.

Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee $6,441,000/year
Department of Health Tobacco Prevention and Control $2,859,000/year
Additional federal funds received by the Dept of Health 52,066/year
Total $9,352,066/year

How much of the tobacco settlement dollars North Dakota receives go toward tobacco prevention?
The first ten years North Dakota received tobacco settlement payments, less than ten percent of the funds
were spent on tobacco programs. With the passage of the initiated measure, the percentage increased to
about 20 percent — this funding sustains a long-term comprehensive plan to significantly reduce tobacco use,
the leading cause of preventable disease and death in North Dakota over a matter of years rather than
slowly over many decades. '

What is the Master Settlement Agreement (MSA)?

Beginning in the mid-1990s, more than 46 states and some localities sued tobacco companies, alleging that
the industry violated antitrust and consumer protection laws, withheld information about the adverse health
effects of tobacco, manipulated nicotine levels to keep smokers addicted, and conspired to hold back less
risky and less addictive tobacco products from the market.

In November 1998, four of the nation's largest tobacco companies—Philip Morris Incorporated, R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Company, Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corporation, and Lorillard Tobacco Company
(referred to as the “original participating manufacturers”)—— negotiated an agreement with the attorneys
general of 46 states (including North Dakota) thereby settling a number of lawsuits. This agreement is
known as the Master Settlement Agreement. When we refer to Master Settlement Agreement dollars, these
are tobacco industry dollars, not state taxpayer dollars. They are, however, special funds appropriated by the

Legislature.

What are the Strategic Contribution Funds (SCF)?

Beginning in April 2008, cigarette companies must also pay to the states special, new Strategic Contribution
Fund payments. Under the MSA, these new,payments must be allocated among the MSA states based on
“each Settling State's contribution to the litigation or resolution of the state tobacco litigation.” The final
decisions regarding how much would be given to each state were made by a special aliocation committee of
state attorneys general soon after the MSA was executed in November 1998 (see section IX{c)(2) and
Exhibit U of the MSA, www.naag.org/backpages/naag/tobacco/msa). In effect, these are attorney fees for the
state attorneys general who worked on the MSA. North Dakota was one of those states.



How mie the funds spent?

The original Masler Selllement Agreement annual payment funds are allocated amaong the Community
Health Trust Fund, Common Schools Trust Fund, and Water Development Trust Fund, ptirsuant 1o NDGC
Sectlon 54-27-25. The split is 45% to water, 45% lo schools and 10% to health programs.

Because of the initiated measure in 2008, the Strategic Contribution Funds are spent on tobacco prevention
and control programs. Over half of the funds appropriated to the Center are distributed to local public heaith
tnits to be spant for tobaceo prevention efforts at the local communily level. Grants to local comimunities are
$6.9 million,

How is the North Dakota Center for Tobaceo Prevention and Control manayed?

The Center for Tobaccoe Prevenlion and Control Policy s a division of the North Dakota Tobaceo Prevention
and Control Executive Committee - a state agency with governmental checks and balances just like any
other slate agency. The agency is structured like the other 140-plus boards and commissions operating
under North Dakota State Law. The agency is led by a nine-member board appointed by the Governor and
consists of experts in tobacco prevention and public health — physicians, nurses, resplratory therapists and
public health,

In addition, this state agency:
» reported {o the interim Budget Section every three months on expenditures and progress, unlike most
ofther agencies;
+ allows for elected officials to serve on the board;
+ must, by law, evaluate the effectiveness and implementation of the state plan each year; and
* must, by law, once a biennium, provide for an independent audit of the state plan to ensure it is
cohsistent with CDC Best Practices and report the resuits to the Governor and State Heaith Officer.

Are the Native American reservations seeing a decrease in cigarette sales?
Sales of cigarettes both on and off reservations in North Dakota have decreased every year for the previous
five years. The chart below illustrates this decrease. (Source: N.D. Tax Department)

Clgarette sales are decreasing both on and off reservations In North Dakota; 2008-2010
{Source: N.D. Tax Department) _

Year Tribal Sticks Taxable Sticks Total Sticks % of Tribal Sales
2008 134,769,080 961,128,686 1,095,897,766 123
2007 130,637,390 954,969,346 1,085,606,736 12.0
2008 111,105,061 945,602,831 1,056,707,892 10.5
2009 106,420,337 912,323,960 1,018,744,297 - 104
2010 96,474,047 911,093,485 1,007,567,532 | 9.6

{Stick equals 1 cigarette: Tribal Sticks include cigarettes that were sold on all reservations except

Standing Rock but not taxed: Taxable Sticks include all cigarettes that were taxed and sold In North

Dakota and on the Standing Rock reservation. Total Sticks includes Tribal Sticks and all Taxable -

Sticks. Percent of Tribal Sales includes the percent of Total Sticks that were sold on all reservations

in North Dakota except Standing Rock but not taxed.} NOTE: Since 1993, Standing Rock Reservation
taxes tobacco at the same rate as North Dakota tobacco tax.
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North Dakota’s Tobacco Prevention Program Facts, Figures & FAQs

The North Dakota Legislature soon will be voting on funding the comprehensive tobacco prevention. The
North Dakota Tobacco Prevention plan is a long-term comprehensive plan to significantly reduce tobacco
use, the leading cause of preventable disease and death in North Dakota, over a matter of years rather than
slowly over many decades. If the initiated measure is overturned, there will be no guaranteed use of tobacco
settlement dollars for a comprehensive tobacco prevention program. North Dakota youth smoking rates will
continue to remain above the national average. And all North Dakota families will continue to pay the price of
tobacco-related iliness and death.

Respect the vote of the people

- In 2008 ND voters passed an initiated measture, requiring the legisiature to spend tobacco settlement
money on an effective, science based tobacco control program.

« 80% of North Dakotans support using tobacco settlement doflars for tobacco prevention and cessation
programs (2010 public opinion study).

Tobacco is a huge problem

» Each year in North Dakota tobacco costs 910 lives.

+ Each year in North Dakota tobacco costs $247 million in increased healthcare costs.

« Each year in North Dakota fobacco costs $47 million in increased Medicaid costs.

« Tobacco costs each household in North Dakota an annual tax burden of $564.

* A pack of cigarettes is less than $5, but tobacco-related healthcare expenses factor a true cost to North
Dakotans of $10.47 per pack.

« North Dakota youth smoking rates have stalled at a rate of 22% since 2005. Without tobacco prevention
efforts, tobacco use rates will remain high.

+ Today, 8,800 kids in North Dakota are daily smokers and 700 additional kids become new smokers each
year. The ripple effect of these statistics means that 11,000 kids now under age 18 and alive in North
Dakota will ultimately die prematurely from smoking.

« Tobacco is the leading cause of preventable death and disease in the nation and in North Dakota.

Tobacco prevention and cessation is working

« Cigarette sales are down 3 million packs since 2007, and projected to decline by 7 million by 2013.

(ND Tax Department)
« ND Tobacco Quitline program use has increased by 195% since 2008: Cost efficiency of the Quitline is
enhanced by demand created by tobacco prevention efforts.

In the first 18 months at this level of funding, the state has already shown major progress in implementing
policies and programs that reduce tobacco use.



This chart illustrates how
Measure 3-funded
efforts to increase
referrals to the Quitline
from loca!l public health
units contributed to
significant increases in
distribution of nicotine
replacement therapy
{NRT) and in enroilment
for counseling from the
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local public health units require that health units ask all clients about their tobacco use and refer
tobacco users to the Quitline. Source: N.D. Department of Health, Quitline reports

The current use of
asure 3 funds is
roving the health of
rth Dakotans in every
county through tobacco
prevention and
cessation programs.

We have already seen
smoking decrease in two
counties where data is
available. This illustrates
how important it is to
fund all counties at a
level where tobacco
prevention education
and services can reach
everyone.

Burleigh and Cass
counties reported lower
tobacco use rates while
state tobacco use rates
are relatively

Behavioral Risk Factor Report

Centers for Disease Control
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ND Tobacco Prevention Program:
MEASURE 3 FUNDING IMPLEMENTED

unchanged. This coincides with Burleigh and Cass counties receiving the highest levels of
single-county funding for tobacco control in the state, and with smoke-free laws implemented in
argo and West Fargo. Bismarck also enacted a local smoke-free law in 2005 that is stronger than
state law. Health units in both counties have undertaken significant public education campaigns
the health consequences of tobacco use, and have active citizen coalitions. Source: U.S.
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Behavioral Risk Factor Surveiflance System




FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS

How much money are we spending in tax payer dollars for tobacco prevention programs?

No tax dollars are being spent by the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
for tobacco prevention efforts. These tobacco prevention programs are funded by tobacco lawsuit settlement
dollars paid to North Dakota by major tobacco companies and the Department of Health receives grant funds
from the Centers for Disease Control.

How much is invested in tobacco prevention?

The North Dakota Legislature appropriated $9.3 million per year at the CDC recommended level of funding
to the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy and the North Dakota Department of
Health to carry out tobacco prevention efforts. The spending amounts are outlined beiow. These amounts
are in line with CDC recommended funding.

Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee $6,441,000/year
Department of Health Tobacco Prevention and Control $2,859,000/year
Additional federal funds received by the Dept of Health 52,066/year
Total $9,352,066/year

How much of the tobacco settliement doliars North Dakota receives go toward tobacco prevention?
The first ten years North Dakota received tobacco settiement payments, less than ten percent of the funds
were spent on tobacco programs. With the passage of the initiated measure, the percentage increased to
about 20 percent — this funding sustains a long-term comprehensive plan to significantly reduce tobacco use,
the leading cause of preventable disease and death in North Dakota over a matter of years rather than
slowly over many decades.

What is the Master Settlement Agreement (MSA)?

Beginning in the mid-1990s, more than 46 states and some localities sued tobacco companies, alleging that
the industry violated antitrust and consumer protection laws, withheid information about the adverse heaith
effects of tobacco, manipulated nicotine levels to keep smokers addicted, and conspired to hold back less
risky and less addictive tobacco products from the market.

In November 1998, four of the nation’s largest tabacco companies—Philip Morris Incorporated, R.J.
Reynolds Tobacco Company, Brown & Williamson Tobacco Corporation, and Lorillard Tobacce Company
{referred to as the "original participating manufacturers”)— negotiated an agreement with the attorneys
general of 46 states (including North Dakota) thereby settling a number of lawsuits. This agreement is
known as the Master Settlement Agreement. When we refer to Master Settlement Agreement dollars, these
are tobacco industry dollars, not state taxpayer dollars. They are, however, special funds appropriated by the
Legislature.

What are the Strategic Contribution Funds (SCF}?

Beginning in April 2008, cigarette companies must also pay to the states special, new Strategic Contribution
Fund payments. Under the MSA, these new payments must be allocated among the MSA states based on
“each Settling State’s contribution to the litigation or resolution of the state tobacco litigation.” The final
decisions regarding how much would be given to each state were made by a special allocation committee of
state attorneys general soon after the MSA was executed in November 1898 (see section IX(c)(2) and
Exhibit U of the MSA, www.naag.org/backpages/naag/tobacco/msa). In effect, these are attorney fees for the
state attorneys general who worked on the MSA. North Dakota was one of those states.



u\r are the funds spent?

original Master Settlement Agreement annual payment funds are allocated among the Community
Health Trust Fund, Common Schools Trust Fund, and Water Development Trust Fund, pursuant to NDCC
Section 54-27-25. The split is 45% to water, 45% to schools and 10% to health programs.

Because of the initiated measure in 2008, the Strategic Contribution Funds are spent on tabacco prevention
and control programs. Over half of the funds appropriated to the Center are distributed to local public health
units to be spent for tobacco prevention efforts at the local community level. Grants to local communities are
$6.9 million.

How is the North Dakota Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control managed?

The Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy is a division of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention
and Control Executive Committee - a state agency with governmental checks and balances just like any
other state agency. The agency is structured like the other 140-plus boards and commissions operating
under North Dakota State Law. The agency is led by a nine-member board appointed by the Governor and
consists of experts in tobacco prevention and public health — physicians, nurses, respiratory therapists and
public heaith. '

in addition, this state agency:
» reported to the interim Budget Section every three months on expenditures and progress, unlike mast
other agencies,
- allows for elected officials to serve on the board,
must, by law, evaluate the effectiveness and implementation of the state plan each year; and
must, by law, once a biennium, provide for an independent audit of the state plan to ensure it is
consistent with CDC Best Practices and report the results to the Governor and State Health Officer.

Are the Native American reservations seeing a decrease in cigarette sales?
Sales of cigarettes both on and off reservations in North Dakota have decreased every year for the previous
five years. The chart below illustrates this decrease, (Source: N.D. Tax Department)

Cigarette sales are decreasing both.on and off reservations in'North Dakota, 2006-2010

‘ _{(Source: N.D. Tax:Department) ‘

Year Tribal Sticks Taxable Sticks Total Sticks "% of Tribal Sales
2006 134,769,080 ‘961,128,686 1,095,897,766 12.3
2007 130,637,390 ‘954,969,346 1,085,606,736 12.0
2008 111,105,061 945,602,831 1,056,707,892 105
2009 106,420,337 912,323,960 1,018,744,297 10.4

2010 96,474,047 911,093,485 1;007,567,532 .. . .96

BT

{Stick equals 1 cigarette. Tribal Sticksinclude cigarettes that were sold-on all reservations except - - . .
Standing Rock butnot-taxed. Taxable Sticks include all cigarettes that were:taxed and sold in'North-
Dakota and on the StandingiRockireservation. Total'Sticks includes Tribal ‘Sticks and all Taxable
Sticks. Percent of Tribal'Sales includes the percentiof Total Sticks that were sold .on.all reservations
in North'Dakota.except Standing Rock'but not taxed.) NOTE: Since 1993, Standing Rock 'Reservation
taxes tobacco at the same rate as North Dakota'tobacco tax.
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Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for Senate Appropriations

March 4, 2011
Department 305 - Tobacco Prevention and Control Committee
House Bill No. 1025
FTE Positions General Fund Other Funds Total
2011-13 Executive Budget 4.00 $0 $12,022 614 $12,922614
2009-11 Legislative Appropriations 4.00 0 12,882 000 12,882 000
increase (Decrease) 0.00 $0 $40.614 $40,614
Agency Funding FTE Positions
$14.00 $12.88 $12.92 4.50 4.00 4.00
$12.00 | 400 r =
$10.00 380
A 3.00
S $8.00 - 280 | - -
= $6.00 1 200 - ‘
$4.00 i 1.50 /
1.00 -
$2.00 = 0.50 -
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.06 $0.00 $0.00 ) 0.00 D-OV
$0.00 . T T : 0.00 L T T
2005-07 2007-09 2009-11 204113 2005-07 2007-09 2009-11 201413
Executive Executive
Budget Budget

BmGeneral Fund QOther Funds

First House Action
Attached is a summary of first house changes.

Executive Budget Highlights
(With First House Changes in Bold)
No major changes for this agency.

Other Sections in Bill
Reports to Budget Section - The House added a section to provide for quarterly written reports to the Budget Section during
the 2011-12 interim.

Continuing Appropriations
No continuing appropriations for this agency.

Significant Audit Findings
There are no significant audit findings for this agency.

Major Related Legislation
House Bill No. 1004 - Removes the reguirement that B0 percent of the revenue deposited into the community health trust
fund must be used for tobacco prevention and control.

ATTACH:1



STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

House Bill No, 1025 - Funding Summary

Tobacco Prevention & Control
Exec Comm
Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Granis
Tobacco Prevention and
Control Exec Comm

Total all funds
L.ess estimated income
General Tund

FTE
Bill Total
Totat all funds

f.ess estimated income
General fund

FTE

House Bill No. 1025 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - House Action

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Crants

Tobacco Prevention and Control

Ex¢c Comm
Total all funds
Less ¢stimaled income
General fund

FTE

Executive House House

Budget Changes Version
$765,980 $765 980
2,967,609 2,967,609
5,189,025 9.189.025

12,922,614 (12,922.614)

§12922614 0 £12922614
12,922,614 4] 12,922,614
$0 $0 30
4.00 0.00 4.00
$12922 614 $0 $12.922 614
12,922.614 0 12,922 614
0 30 %0
4.00 0.00 4.00

Executive House House

Budget Changes Yersion
$765,980 $765.980
2,967,609 2,967,609
9,189 025 9,189,025

12,922,614 (12,922614)

$12922614 $0 $12.922614
12,922,614 0 12922614
£0 $0 30
4.00 0.00 4.00

Department 305 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Exec Comm - Petail of House Changes

Salaries and wages
Operating expenses
Grants

Tobacco Prevention and Control

Exee Comm
Total all funds
Less estimated income

General fund

FTE

' This amendment removes the comprehensive tobacco control line item and provides funding by object code line items.

¥
2 This amendment removes the salaries and wages and fringe benefits for the following temporary positions:

e 50 accountant - $86,786

#

¢  1.00 community intervention coordinator - $127,904

Provides Removes 2.5 Tatal
Multiple Line Temporary Increases Grant House
Appropriation’ Positions’ Funding’ Changes
1,132,494 {366,514) 765,980
2,967 609 2,967,609
8,822,541 366,514 9,189,025
(12.922,614) (12,922,614)
$0 ($366.514) $366,514 30
0 (366,514) 366,514 0
$0 £0 $0 $0
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

HB1025



*  1.00 evaluation coordinator - $151,824
7 Funding for grants is increased.

A section is added to provide for quarterly written reports to the Budget Section during the 2011-12 interim.

HB1025



North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State Street, Suite 65 « Bismarck, ND 58503-0638
Phone 701.328.5130 « Fax 701.328.5135 « Toll Free 1.877.277.5090

Testimony
In Support of
House Bill 1025
Senate Appropriations Committee
2:00 p.m., Monday, March 7, 2011

Good afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations
Committee. | am Jeanne Prom, executive director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention
and Control Policy. The Center is the office created with funding from the North Dakota
Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee. It is my pleasure to be here today
to testify in support of House Bill 1025, which provides an appropriation for the North
Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee, the agency responsible
for the comprehensive tobacco control program in North Dakota.

Statutory authority is provided in North Dakota Century Code §23.42.01 through
§23.42.08, and §54.27.25. This is the law created by statewide Initiated Measure 3
passed by North Dakota voters in 2008. The law states that:

» a portion of the money North Dakota receives from the Master Settlement Agreement
with tobacco companies is used for a comprehensive tobacco prevention program.

* only interventions proven to cost-effectively cut tobacco use are funded (Best
Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, October 2007, U.S. Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention -- CDC)

o the Governor appoints a nine-member Advisory Committee to
o develop of a comprehensive statewide plan to prevent and reduce tobacco use

over a matter of years rather than slowly over many decades.
o elect three of their members as the Executive Committee to

- ensure the plan is carried out,

- ensure the plan reduces tobacco use,

- establish and staff an agency, and

- expend funds appropriated by the Legislature.

In most cases during this testimony, | will refer to the agency as the Executive Committee.

My comments explain the:
s DNew agency's mission
e tobacco use problem in North Dakota
» agency's accomplishments in its first 20 months of existence
> Only proven-effective interventions were funded.
» Quitline use is up.
» Cigarette sales are down.
> Adult smoking has dropped in counties where data are available.
healthcare cost savings we will realize as we continue to reduce tobacco use.

2011-2013 budget request.

BreatheND

Saving Lives, Saving Money with Measure 3.
www. breatheND.com



A single mission:

reducing the health and economic burden

of tobacco use significantly over years, not decades

The budget of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
requires an appropriation commensurate with the problem the agency is charged with
solving and is in line with the vote of the people. This investment in significant tobacco
use reduction is essential to the health and financial well-being of North Dakota: the
burden of tobacco use in North Dakota is huge, and we all pay the price.

Tobacco use in North Dakota:

o s started by 700 additional kids each year.

e causes chronic diseases affecting all age groups, and chronic diseases are very
expensive to manage and require screenings, medications, care plans, surgeries,
rehabilitation, long-term care, and ongoing compromises in quality of life.

o coniributes to many of the state’s leading causes of death in nearly every age group.
is the leading cause of preventable disease and death.
kills more than 900 North Dakotans each year.

Tobacco use in North Dakota costs:

* $247 million per year in increased healthcare expenses.
e $47 million per year , in increased Medicaid expenditures.
e $16,000 per smoker in increased lifetime healthcare costs, even though

smokers do not live as long as nonsmokers or
former smokers.

e $564 per household per year in additional federal and state taxes to
cover government expenditures to treat
preventable chronic diseases caused by tobacco
use on average.

e $10.48 per pack in healthcare expenses and costs of lost productivity
caused by smoking.

(Attachment A)

In North Dakota, youth and adult smoking rates have not changed over the past few
years. This is not surprising, because before this biennium, North Dakota had a
tobacco prevention program that was limited in scope and funding. While limited

- programs achieved some success, studies find, and CDC reports, that as states spend

more on these programs:

 cigarette sales drop twice as much as in the United States as a whole;

o larger declines in smoking rates occur, even when controlling for other factors such
as increased tobacco prices; and _

» the longer states invest in such programs, the larger the impact.

This biennium, North Dakota became the first state in the nation to fund its tobacco
prevention program at the comprehensive level recommended by the U.S. Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). Currently North Dakota and Alaska are the
only states with this funding level. Historically, other states have invested in larger-
scale programs with the focus on strong statewide policies and ongoing program
funding, and have realized significant health improvements and healthcare cost savings.

2



Three separate landmark reports were released in 2007, one each by the Institute of
Medicine, the President’s Cancer Panel, and the CDC. All reports concluded that there
is overwhelming evidence that comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention programs
significantly reduce tobacco use, and all reports advised that states fund their programs
at the CDC-recommended level.

The Executive Committee is charged with a very specific mission:
to ensure that tobacco use in North Dakota is reduced significantly
over a matter of years rather than slowly over many decades
using a funding source that wilt end in 2017. With this singular focus on tobacco use
prevention, our state can make substantial progress.

To accomplish this important mission, the Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory

Committee, in its plan, Saving Lives — Saving Money: North Dakota’s Comprehensive

State Plan to Prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use, 2009-2014 (July 2009), outlines four

goals: '

e Prevent the initiation of tobacco use among youth and young adults,

¢ Eliminate exposure to secondhand smoke,

o Promote quitting tobacco use, and ‘

e Build capacity and infrastructure to implement a comprehensive evidence-based
tobacco prevention and control program.

Even with time-limited funding (9 years of Strategic Contribution Fund), the Executive
Committee will have a legacy fund in reserve to pay for the CDC Best Practice
comprehensive tobacco prevention program for a number of years — long enough to fully
implement strategies proven to work.

We know what works to stop the tobacco use epidemic in North Dakota:

o CDC-recommended funding appropriated by the Legislature,

» adequate implementation time funded after 2017 with legacy (reserved) funds,
e enactment of proven policies and health systems changes, and

» changes in social norms around tobacco use.

Program costs must comply with the North Dakota Century Code (§23.42.01 through
§23.42.08, and §54.27.25) that states the comprehensive plan must be funded at a level
equal to or greater than the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention’s
recommended funding level. T cutive: Budget for this-agency and the
Depaftment o jeth However, the Holise amended the
gk -the two-agency budgets.as passed by the

Need for Executive Committee funding

and indications of immediate impact from current appropriation

Since 1995, adult tobacco use in North Dakota has remained virtually unchanged. Since
2005, youth tobacco use rates have also remained virtually unchanged. However, in
Burleigh and Cass counties, local public health units that have received larger grants
have been able to use Best Practices to educate communities and to promote strong local
smoke-free policies. In these two counties, we are seeing tobacco use rates drop.
(Comparable data is not available for other single county health units.) Please see the
following three charts.
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Youth smoking rates in North Dakota, 1995-2009 — downward trend stalling

North Dakota High School YRBS Data

Tobacco Use: Percentage of students who smoked cigarettes on one or niore of the past 30
days

Pearcantage

North Dakota Department of Public Instruction
Dr.Wayne Saristead, State Superinténdent.
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'Smoking decreasing in two counties with strong policies and funding

Behavioral Risk Factor Report
Centers for Disease Control
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The Executive Committee-funded comprehensive statewide program was able to provide
nearly double the amount of funding previously received by all counties. Additionally, the
Executive Committee promotes 100% smoke-free policies. We can expect that the
impact of increased funding in all counties and continued efforts toward communities
becoming 100% smoke-free will begin a decline in tobacco use statewide, in addition to
current declines in some counties.
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Initial indicator of change — fewer cigarettes sold

In the past three fiscal years, fewer packs of cigarettes have been sold in North Dakota.
The most significant drop in cigarette sales occurred in the first year of Executive
Committee funding during Fiscal Year 2010 — 1.8 million fewer packs sold.
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Tobacco sales in our state are also affected by cross-border purchases. For example, if
Minnesota enacted a significant increase in its tobacco tax this year, we would likely see
sales here increase. In order to significantly reduce tobacco sales and increase tobacco
tax revenues, the North Dakota tobacco taxes must be raised significantly.



A significant decrease in the number of cigarette packs sold in North Dakota
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Sales of cigarettes both on and off reservations
in North Dakota have decreased every year for the previous 5 years.

Cigarette sales are decreasing both on and off reservations in North Dakota, 2006-2010
{Source: N.D. Tax Department}

Calendar Year  Tribal Sticks Taxable Sticks Total Sticks % of Tribal Sales
2006 134,769,080 961,128,686 1,095,897,766 12.3
2007 130,637,390 954,969,346 1,085,606,736 12.0
2008 111,105,061 945,602,831 1,056,707,892 10.5
2009 106,420,337 912,323,960 1,018,744,297 10.4
2010 96,474,047 911,093,485 1,007,567,532 9.6

(Stick equals 1 cigarette. Tribal Sticks include cigarettes that were sold on all reservations except Standing Rock but not taxed.
Taxable Sticks include all cigarettes that were taxed and sold in North Dakota and on the Standing Rock reservation. Total Sticks
includes Tribal Sticks and all Taxable Sticks. Percent of Tribal Sales includes the percent of Total Sticks that were sold on alf
reservations in North Dokota except Standing Rock but not taxed.} Since 1993, the Stonding Rock reservation has taxed tobacco
products at the same rate os the state of North Dakota. The other 3 N.D. reservations and 1 service area do not tax tobacco.

Initial indicator of change — new grants to local public health units to start referring
to quitline results in increased use of quitline

Beginning July 1, 2009, the Executive Committee began a new program with local public
health units (LPHUs). LPHUs were required to make system-wide changes with each of
their client-based programs, so each client is asked about their fobacco use. Tobacco
users-are advised to quit and are referred to the statewide quitline. As a result, quitline
counseling enroliment numbers, distribution of nicotine replacement therapy (NRT), and
fax referrals to the quitline increased significantly statewide and in individual counties.




In first year of Measure 3 funding, dramatic increase in quitline use occurs
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Increased use of the statewide Quitline from Cass County
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With funding from the Executive Committee, Fargo Cass Public Health began a pilot
project in October 2009 to promote fax referrals to the statewide Quitline in four local
health systems (Sanford Medical Center North, Essentia Health, Family Healthcare
Center and NDSU Student Health Services). As a result, the agency’s monthly average
of fax referrals doubled.

Healthcare costs savings — return on investment in tobacco prevention

Earlier in my testimony, | provided some cost estimates of tobacco use. I'd like to focus
now on cost savings. Two recent studies support previous findings related to health cost
savings resulting from comprehensive tobacco prevention and control programs. Returns
on investments have ranged from five, to ten, to fifty times as reported from the states of
Washington, Arizona, and California respectively. Why the broad range of return? Some
differences are attributed to the focus on the programs. Programs that focus on adults
instead of youth, that change the social norms related to tobacco use, address public
policy, and address tobacco industry tactics have greater returns. Returns can also vary
by factors included in analysis, such as pharmaceutical and rehabilitation costs related to
treatment of illnesses caused by tobacco.

After ten years of implementation of a comprehensive program, the state of Washington
reports that youth smoking rates decreased by more than 50% and aduit smoking rates
decreased by one-third. While Washington state is not North Dakota, Washington reports
preventing 13,000 premature deaths and preventing nearly 36,000 hospitalizations,
thereby saving $1.5 billion in healthcare costs. It is important to note that prior to
substantial investments being made in tobacco control in Washington state there was



progress being made, however, smoking rates did not decrease significantly until after the
substantial investments were made.

North Dakota’s middle school smoking rates is currently 7.3% (2009); the states of
Indiana and New York middle school smoking rates, after implementing comprehensive
programs, are 4.1% and 3.8% respectively. Similarly, these states’ high school rates are
lower than our current 22.4%.

The state of Massachusetts’ cigarette consumption was declining at more than double the
rest of the country during its program’s peak funding years from 1993 - 2003. Then in
2003, the program was cut by 90% and consumption increased in 2005 — 2006 while in
the rest of the country it continues to decline.

The longest running comprehensive program, in California, funded by state cigarette
taxes since 1988, enjoys an adult smoking rate of 12.9% compared to our 18.6%. In
2009, the rates of lung cancer declined four times faster in California than the rest of the
United States. A 2010 study, published in Cancer Epidemiology, Biomarkers, and
Prevention, associated declines in lung cancer with California’s comprehensive tobacco
control program. Sharp drops in the major diseases caused by smoking, such as cancers,
strokes, and heart disease, do not appear until several years after adult smoking rates
decline, but small declines do occur and do begin to have immediate cost savings.

In reviewing North Dakota Medicare data, hospital costs associated with one person
experiencing an acute myocardial infarction (heart attack) and with a person seeking
treatment for COPD (chronic obstructive pulmonary disease), a respiratory illness that
can be caused by smoking, were available. The median Medicare payment made to
Altru Hospital of Grand Forks, MedCenter One here in Bismarck, and Trinity in Minot,
ranges from $5,358 to $11,956 per person. Similarly, for COPD, the median Medicare
payments to the same hospitals range from $3,936 to $8,029 per person to treat.
(USDHHS, 2010, Hospital Compare).

A specific Medicaid expenditure is births, with state Medicaid programs covering well
over half of all births in the United States. Research studies estimate that the direct
additional healthcare costs associated just with the birth complications caused by
pregnant women smoking or being exposed to secondhand smoke could be as high as
an average of $1,142 to $1,358 per birth.

Savings per percentage point declines in smoking rates (example: 18.6% to 17.6%)
With each one percentage point decline in North Dakota’s smoking rate, it is estimated
that the following benefits and savings may be obtained:

BENEFITS & SAVINGS FROM EACH 1% POINT DECLINE IN ND SMOKING RATES
Fewer Smokers

Fewer current aduit smokers: 4,900

Fewer current pregnant smokers: 90

Fewer current high school smokers: 400

North Dakota kids alive today who will not become addicted adult smokers: 1,400

Public Health Benefits _

Today’s adults saved from dying prematurely from smoking: 1,300

Today’s high school smokers saved from dying prematurely from smoking: 130

North Dakota kids alive today who will not die prematurely from smoking: 450



First Year Over 5 Years
Fewer smoking-affected births: 90 430
Fewer smoking-caused heart attacks: 2 32
Fewer smoking-caused strokes: |1 17

[The number of heart attacks and strokes prevented each year by a one-time decline in adult smoking
rates of one percentage point starts out small but grows sharply until it peaks and stabilizes after about

ten years.]

Monetary Benefits (Reduced Public, Private, and Individual Smoking-Caused Costs)

First Year. Over 5 Years

Annual savings from fewer sm
more and more are prevented by the initial one percentage point smoking decline. Savings from
prevented smoking-caused cancer are even larger, but do not begin to accrue untii several years after the

initial smoking decline.]

Reduction to future health costs from adult smoking declines: $46.6 million

Reduction to future health costs from youth smoking declines: $24.5 million

[These savings accrue over the lifetimes of the adults who quit and the youth who do not become aduit smokers.
Roughly 10.6% of smoking-caused healthcare expenditures in North Dakota are paid by its Medicaid program.]

At the same time that they reduce public and private smoking-caused costs, state smoking declines also increase
public and private sector worker productivity and strengthen the state’s economy.

Excerpted from: Measure 3: Comprehensive tobacco prevention and cessation for North Dakota: A win-win solution
for North Dakota's health and economy. A special report by the Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids. (September 22,

2008)

For North Dakota to experience the reduced healthcare costs associated with
comprehensive programs, there are four key points to bear in mind:

1. When adequately funded, comprehensive state tobacco prevention programs
quickly and substantially reduce tobacco use, save lives, and cut smoking-
caused costs.

2. State tobacco prevention programs must be insulated against the inevitable
attempts by the tobacco industry to reduce program funding and otherwise
interfere with the programs’ successful operation.

3. The programs’ funding must be sustained over time both to protect initial tobacco
use reductions and to achieve further cuts.

4. When program funding is cut, progress in reducing tobacco use erodes, and the
state suffers from higher levels of smoking and more smoking-caused deaths,

disease, and costs.

Progress in promoting tobacco-free lifestyles

The health outcomes and accomplishments in North Dakota thus far have been realized
because the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee must,
by law, implement only those methods proven most effective — and cost-effective -- in
reducing tobacco use. These methods are described in Best Practices for
Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, published by CDC in October 2007. These
CDC Best Practices are policy, environmental, and health system changes including
tobacco-free and smoke-free policies and environments, tobacco pricing policies, and
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health systems approaches that ensure all tobacco users are connected to affordable
cessation services.

Next are the accomplishments as a result of implementing the 2009-2011 priorities taken
from the new state plan, Saving Lives — Saving Money: North Dakota’s Comprehensive
State Plan to Prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use, 2009-2014.

The priorities for this biennium reflect the foundational public policies that should be in
place at the beginning because they reach the entire population or large portions of the
population. By reaching all or most people, the policies establish tobacco-free living as
the social norm. Social norms are very important to prevent tobacco use among our
young people. Adult behaviors determine the social norm and adult behavior must be
consistent to what youth learn about tobacco use. Adults must model no tobacco use
for young people if our social norm is to be tobacco-free. Any policy to establish
tobacco-free living as the norm must be for all ages, not just youth.

Additionally, access to programs and services in all counties has increased with grant
funding from the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee.
Larger grants allowed local public health units to hire an additiona! 11.29 fulltime
equivalent employees to provide tobacco prevention programs and services in all
counties. Half of these positions are located in cities with populations of less than
9,000. This ensures that all areas of the state — rural and urban — are benefitting from
the comprehensive tobacco prevention and control program and services. Please see

the table on the following page.

State Plan: more progress needed

The State Plan also includes the following objectives which require action by the North

Dakota Legislative Assembly. These actions are imperative if we are to reduce tobacco

use and the related healthcare costs significantly and at an accelerated rate:

o Amend the North Dakota Smoke-Free Law to implement 100 percent smoke-free
public places and places of employment and to expand enforcement of the law.
North Dakota has exemptions for bars, truck stops and other areas where smoking
is allowed.

o Increase the cigarette excise tax to $2.00 per pack and increase the excise tax on
other tobacco products by an equal and proportional amount. ($0.44 since 1993) A
$2 tobacco tax would resuit in a 25.7% decrease in youth smoking, keep 7,900 kids
in North Dakota from becoming addicted adult smokers, and prompt 5,300 current
adult smokers to quit. This would result in $5.5 million in 5-year healthcare costs
savings from fewer smoking-affected pregnancies, births, heart attacks and strokes.
Long-term cost savings from smoking declines is in the hundreds of millions of
dollars. See Attachment B.

o Continue to prevent preemption in all state tobacco prevention and control laws.
Preemption is when higher levels of government can prohibit lower levels of
government from enacting certain laws or regulations. At this time local
governments are not preempted from enacting tobacco prevention and control
ordinances. .

Sustain North Dakota’s comprehensive Tobacco Prevention and Control Program using

CDC Best Practices to significantly reduce tobacco use at an accelerated rate, and thus

significantly reduce tobacco-related healthcare costs over time.

11
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2011-2013 Budget — base, optional, total requests

The North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee’s 2011-2013
base, optional and total budget request is $12,922,614. See Attachment C.

This reflects an increase of $40,614 over the 2009-2011 biennial budget. $40,614 is the
amount of the compensation package increases in salary, benefits, health insurance,
retirement contribution and employee assistance program increases. This is an
increase of 0.3 percent from 2009-2011.

All funds are special funds from the Strategic Contribution Fund payments beginning
with the second yearly payment received by the State in 2009 and deposited in the
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund. Strategic Contribution Fund payments
end in 2017.

In the base, optional and total budget requests, this $12,922,614 is directed to:

Salaries and Wages $1,132,494 9%
Operating (majority for IT contract, fees) 2,967,609 23%
Capital Assets -0- -

Grants ' 8,822,511 68%

Of the total budget of $12.9 million, 89% is in Operating -- contracts and
professional fees and services, and Grants.

The Executive Committee requests 4.0 full-time equivalent permanent positions and 3.5
temporary positions in its base budget request.

In its optional budget request, the Executive Committee requests 7.5 full-time equivalent
permanent positions, transferring the temporary positions to permanent positions. See
Attachments D and E.

The Executive Committee has no one-time spending requests.

Salaries and wages provide salary and benefits to 4.0 full-time equivalent positions, 3.5
temporary or permanent full-time equivalent positions, and per diem for nine board
members appointed by the Governor.

Permanent salaries increased based on actual expenditures as staff were hired in the
previous biennium, and by legislatively approved raises. Temporary salaries increased to
provide adequate staffing required to administer and manage the local and state aid
grants program (51 grants). Fringe benefits increased to reflect actual salaries of
permanent staff and the addition of temporary staff.

Adequate staffing is the critical issue facing the Executive Committee. At the beginning of
this biennium, administration of the local and tobacco settlement state aid grants
programs (51 grants totaling $6,892,534), was transferred to the Executive Committee
from the Department of Health. Originally, the Department of Health agreed to manage
these grants with existing department staff. Thus in the 2009-2011 budget, the Executive
Committee requested only 4.0 FTE, which did not include positions to provide
administration and ongoing technical assistance to 51 grantees.

13



However, as is common with the development of new large-scale programs, original plans
are adapted. tn exchange for transferring the grants management to the Executive
Committee, the Department of Health has provided contracted accounting and human
resource services to the committee. This arrangement has been very helpful to the
Executive Committee, but was not meant to be perpetual nor does it allow for adequate
Executive Committee staffing to manage an additional 51 grants and account for $6.9
million, plus provide the ongoing technical assistance and training to these grantees.
Thus, the Executive Committee includes an additional 3.5 temporary full-time employees
in its base budget request. These temporary employees become permanent employees
in the optional request. This transfer does not change the total budget request.

The new positions requested include:
0.5 Accountant
The accountant will provide general accounting and human resource management

services.

1.0 Community Intervention Coordinator
This position will provide daily technical assistance for half of all grants, and will

coordinate quarterly training for grantees.

1.0 Evaluation Coordinator

This position will manage the contract for the ongoing comprehensive evaluation of the
statewide program; will provide ongoing technical assistance and training to grantees
related to evaluating their grant programs; and will provide assistance in evaluating the
health communications program.

1.0 Grants Manager

. This position will manage the development and implementation of paperwork, protocol
and processes to issue and track more than 75 grants and contracts. This includes
developing requests for proposals, issuing requests for bids, reviewing proposals and
bids, and serving as procurement officer.

Operating expenses provide funding for daily operations, which is 10 percent of the total
Operating budget: travel for permanent and temporary employees and board members,
supplies, maintenance, postage, printing, equipment, insurance, rent, repairs, data
processing and communications, and professional development. A majority of Operating
expenses — 90 percent — are contracted services (IT contract), and professional and
operating fees and services. The professional fees provide: ongoing public education,
comprehensive statewide evaluation, specialized training and technical assistance,
implementation of online grant applications and reporting, and other services provided by
state agencies (accounting, legal services).

In operating expenses, the following line items increased from 2009-2011 to reflect
increased costs required to administer and manage the local and state grants program
(51 grants) which were transferred to the Executive Committee from the Department of
Health, as well as actual available budget history: travel; supplies — IT software; supplies
— professional; office supplies; postage; printing; rentals/leases-building; IT — data
processing; IT — communications; and professional development. The following are new
line items based on budget history: building/vehicle maintenance; and repairs. IT —
contractual services increased to fund an enhanced system for grantee reporting.
Insurance decreased and office equipment and furniture supplies decreased to reflect
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actual costs. IT equipment under $5,000 decreased because no one-time start-up costs
are necessary. Operating fees and ‘'services (advertising, awards, purchase of service)
decreased to reflect actual costs. Fees - professional services, and rentals decreased
and grants, benefits and claims increased to reflect actual costs.

Grants comprise the majority of expenditures. The majority of grant funding is provided
to all 28 local public health units on a non-competitive formula basis, to serve all counties
and address the tobacco use problem at the local level. The other grants provide:
special projects, and specialized training and technical assistance.

Optional request -- changes

The total budget request amount from base to optional remains the same. Within this
total amount, the Salaries — permanent line item increased and temporary salaries line
item decreased to reflect the transfer of temporary employees to permanent status for
program continuity. Permanent staff will administer and manage the local and state aid
grant programs ($6.9 million, 51 grants), which were transferred to the Executive
Committee from the Department of Health, plus an additional 24 grants.

Budget version comparisons

2009-2011 2011-2013 2011-2013 2011-2013 Change -
Legislative Executive Optional House  Executive
Appropriation Budget Request Amendments to House
TOTAL FTE 4.0 4.0 7.5 4.0
Temporary 0 3.5 0 1.0 (2.5)
Grants &
Contracts approx 24 approx 75 approx 75 morethan 75 more than 75
Additional + 51 grants 0 0 +more grants +more grants
Grants transferred
from DOR :
TOTAL 24 + 51 approx 75 approx 75  more than 75 more than 75
SALARIES &
WAGES $517,456  $1,132,494 $1,132,494 $765,980 ($366,514)
OPERATING
EXPENSES $4,696,815 $2,967,609 $2,967,609 $2,967,609 --
CAPITAL |
ASSETS $13,764 0 0 0 -
GRANTS $7,653,965 $8,822,511 $8,822 511 $9,189,025 $366,514
TOTAL $12,882,000 $12,922,614 $12,922,614 $12,922,614 -

The Executive Committee supports the 2011-2013 Governor's Executive Budget, with
consideration of the Optional Request.
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2011-2013 House amendments:

The House amendments to HB 1025:

o Remove the comprehensive tobacco control line item and instead fund by four object
code line items (salaries, operating, capital assets, grants).

o Deny salaries and wages and fringe benefits for 2.5 temporary positions
(.5 accountant, 1.0 community intervention coordinator, and 1.0 evaluation
coordinator), ‘

e and transfer this amount -- $366,514 - to grants.

e Require the Executive Committee to report to interim Budget Section.

House amendments -- impact on current, new agency cntlca! issues

Unresolved critical issue:

Staffing to manage 51 additional grants transferred from Department of Health in

2009 without transfer of any FTE — requiring Center staff re-alignment and re-

prioritizing other programs required by law

o House amendments to the agency budget did not resolve the agency's current critical
issue, which was adequate staffing to manage an additional 51 grants transferred to
us from the Department of Health in 2009 without transfer of any FTE.

e Instead, the House opted to place the majority of funding for additional temporary staff
to the grants line item, with the expectation that the agency award more grants.

New critical issue:
Staffing to manage additional grants resulting from House amendments

o House amendments to the agency budget did not resolve the agency's current critical
staffing issue.

e instead, the House placed more funding in the grants line item, with the expectation
that the agency award more grants.

o Adequate staffing to manage additional grants can be provided by:
» Temporary salaries being restored, or
» Operating budget being increased to allow for contracting the management of

additional grants.

New critical issue:

Ability to contract funds in operating and grants line items,

according to state procurement rules

« Ability to meet day-to-day operations costs if a major contract may be an operating
object code and not a grant object code: currently, 90 percent of operating line item is
contracts and professional services and fees. The remaining 10 percent in operating
leaves very little room for another contracts, especially if needed in place of temporary
positions.

« Ability to secure Emergency Commission approval to increase operating object code
budget if contract is not a grant object code.
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Conclusion

This concludes the overview of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control
Executive Committee 2011-2013 base, optional and total budget requests, House
amendments and their impact:

The Governor's budget is at the level of the current biennial budget with the addition of

the compensation package.

The Governor's budget includes the current 4.0 permanent and an additional 3.5

temporary FTE to address critical staffing issues created by the transfer of the

management of 51 grants without FTE from the Department of Health.

The optional budget request transfers the temporary positions to permanent positions.

The House amendments do not ailow the Executive Committee the staffing needed to

carry out the work. The agency critical issue of adequate staffing to manage

transferred and new grants remains unresolved. Staffing could be permanent or
temporary staff, or contractors.

» The House amendments did not change the agency permanent FTE.

» The House provided only 1.0 temporary position of 3.5 requested, and transferred
the majority of funding for temporary salaries to the Grants line, with the
expectation that more grants be awarded.

» The House did not allow for contracting work because budget was divided by
object code, without an increase in Operating object code. (Professional service
contracts are Operating expenses.)

The House changed the agency budget to object codes. This creates budget

challenges for the agency, as current Operating line does not allow for more

professional service contracts, which will be needed if temporary positions are not
restored. Emergency Commission action would be needed to make necessary budget
adjustments in the interim.

The Executive Committee requests the Senate Appropriations Committee restore the

Governor's Budget with consideration of the Optional Request.

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Committee, | thank you for the current
appropriation, and for your thoughtful consideration and support of our budget request in
_ original House Bill 1025. | would be happy to answer any questions.
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Attachment A

DI:d You Know? Studies show that U.S, youth are nearly three times more sensitive to tobacco advertising
than adults.

Fentures Hore Search Contact

The Toll of Tobac: Thursdey -Jan 13

The Toll of Tobacco in North Dakota

State Settlement Overview for North Dakota
View sources of information

Tobacco Use in North D'akota

‘Statallnitiotives < g

(-

Internationaticenter,
_ High school students who smoke 22.4% (8,800)

Male high school students who use

Ré smokeless or spit tobacco 23.2% (females use much lower})

Prossioffices Kids (under 18) who become new 700
T daily smokers each year
Tobdecal A Gallori; :
“Umf-i*gyj" Kids exposed to secondhand smoke 42,000
[spesIEiRgRoT at home '
Packs of cigarettes bought or .
The Tobacco Toll smoked by kids each year 2.1 million
Find out what Adults in North Dakota who smoke  18.6% (93,500)

tobacco has done
to your state!

. ‘ Nationwide, youth smoking has declined dramatically since the
: Select a State... mid-1990s, but that decline has slowed considerably in recent years.
oo The smoking rate among high school students - 20 percent in 2007 -
has not declined significantly since 2003, following a 40 percent decline
between 1997 and 2003, from 36.4 percent to 21.9 percent.

In addition, 13.4 percent of U.S. high school males currently use spit
tobacco. U.S. adult smoking increased slightly to 20.6 percent (about
46 miliion) in 2008 from 19.8 percent in 2007, the first increase in adult
smoking rate since 1994,

Deaths in North Dakota From Smoking

Adults who die each year from their 800
own smoking

Kids now under 18 and alive in
North Dakota who will ultimately 11,000
die prematurely from smoking

Adult nonsmokers who die each
year from exposure to secondhand 110
smoke

Smoking kills more people than alcohol, Al DS, car crashes, illegal
drugs, murders, and suicides combined -- and thousands more die from
other tobacco-related causes -- such as fires caused by smoking
(more than 1,000 deaths/year nationwide} and smokeless tobacco use.



No good estimates are currently available, however, for the number of
North Dakota citizens who die from these other tobacco-related
causes, or for the much larger numbers who suffer from tobacco-
related health problems each year without actually dying.

Smoking-Caused Monetary Costs in North Dakota

Annual health care costs in North e
Dakota directly caused by smoking ~ $247 million

- Portion covered by the state

Medicaid program $47 million

Residents' state & federal tax
burden from smoking-caused $564 per household
govemment expenditures

Smoking-caused productivity [osses .
in North Dakota $1952 million

Amounts do not include health costs caused by exposure to
secondhand smoke, smoking-caused fires, spit tobacco use, or cigar
and pipe smoking. Other non-health costs from tobacco use include
residential and commercial property losses from smoking-caused fires
(more than $500 million per year nationwide); extra cleaning and
maintenance costs made necessary by tobacco smoke and litter {about
$4+ billion nationwide for commercial establishments alone); and
additional productivity losses from smoking-caused work absences,
smoking breaks, and on-the-job performance declines and early
termination of employment caused by smoking-caused disability or
iliness (dollar amount listed above is just from productive work lives
shortened by smoking-caused death).

Tobacco Industry Influence in North Dakota

Annual tobacco industry marketing
expenditures nationwide $12.8 bilion

Estimated portion spent for North )
Dakota marketing each year $32.3 million

Published research studies have found that kids are twice as sensitive
to tobacco advertising than adults and are more likely to be influenced
fo smoke by cigarette marketing than by peer pressure, and that
one-third of underage experimentation with smoking is attributable to
tobacco company advertising.

More detailed fact sheets on tobacco's toll in each state are available

by emailing factsheets@tobaccofreekids.org

tobaccofreekids.org Privacy Statement (revised 3.10.06) | Copyright | Protected Trademarks
Copyright © 2011 Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids

1400 Eye Street, Suite 1200, Washington DC 20005 202.298.5489

All Rights Reserved



Atiachment B

Saving Lives, Saving Money with Meastire 3.

BENEFITS FROM A $2.00 PER PACK CIGARETTE TAX

Current state cigarette tax; 44 cents per pack (46th among all states)
Smoking-caused costs in North Dakota: $10.48 per pack
Annual healthcare expenditures in North Dakota directly caused by tobacco use: $247 million
Smoking-caused state Medicaid program spending each year: $47.0 million
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New Annual Revenue is the amount of additional new revenue over the first full year after the effective date. The state
will collect less new revenue if it fails to apply the rate increase to all cigarettes and other tobacco products held in
wholesaler and retailer inventories on the effective date.

Projected Public Health E_lefneﬁt_s from the Cigarette Tax Rate Increase

Percen't decrease in youth smoking: 25.7%
Kids in North Dakota kept from becoming addicted adult smokers: 7,900
Current adult smokers in the state who would quit: 5,300
Smoking-affected births avoided over next five yeors: 1,800
North Dakota residents saved from premature smoking-caused death: 3,900
5-year health savings from fewer smoking-affected pregnancies & births: $3.1 million
5-year heaith savings from fewer smoking-caused heart attacks & strokes: $2.4 million
Long-term health savings in the étgte from adult & youth smoking declines: $188.6 million

¢ Tax increases of less than roughly 25 cents per pack or 10% of the average state pack price do not produce significant public health
benefits or cost savings because the cigarette companies can easily offset the beneficial impact of such small increases with
temporary price cuts, coupons, and other promotional discounting. Splitting a tax rate increase into separate, smaller increases in
successive years will similarly diminish or eliminate the public health benefits and related cost savings (as well as reduce the amount
of new revenues). '

* Raising state tax rates on other tobacco products {OTPs) to parallel the increased cigarette tax rate will bring the state more
revenues, public health benefits, and cost savings (and promote tax equity). With unequal rates, the state loses revenue each time a
cigarette smoker switches to cigars, RYQ, or smokeless. To parallel the new $2.00 per pack cigarette tax, the state’s new OTP tax
rate should be at least 65% of wholesale price with minimum tax rates for each major OTP category linked to the state cigarette tax
rate on a per-package or per-dose basis,

Tobacco's Toll in North Dakota
North Dakota residents who will die this year from smoking: 800
North Dakota residents’ state & federal tax burden from smaking-caused
government expenditures: $576/household
Amount tobacco industry spends marketing tobacco in North Dakota per day $88,500/day
& per year: $32.3 million/year
Adults who smoke: 18.2%
High school students who smoke: 21.1%
Kids {under 18) who try cigarettes for the first time each year: 2,500

Source: Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids www. tohaccofreekids.org



Why raise tobacco taxes?

1. Raising tobacco taxes is one of the most cost- effectlve ways to reduce smoking, especially among youth.

2. Raising tobacco taxes is one of the most cost- effe_ctwe ways to encourage smokers to quit.

3. Raising tobacco taxes causes a predictable smoking decline that locks in large health-related cost reductions for
state government, private sector, and households, who pay for the costs of smoking.

4. Most of the public health improvements resulting from the decrease in smoking caused by tobacco tax increases
directly benefit low-income populations, who are most likely to quit or cut down when taxes increase. Lower
income households suffer disproportionately from, & can least afford, the smoking-caused health care costs.

5. Nationwide, 60 percent of all smokers have incomes greater than 200 percent of the poverty line; but roughly
three of four smokers who quit because of a cigarette tax increase will have incomes below 200 percent of the
poverty line.

6. Those wanting to quit using tobacco can access the resources of North Dakota’s new Measure 3-funded
comprehensive tobacco prevention program, which includes expanded free services located in local public health
units serving every county.

7. Aslong as North Dakota funds its comprehensive tobacco prevention program at the CDC-recommended level,
new general fund revenue generated by a tobacco tax increase could be invested in other public health services
and programs that will continue to improve the health North Dakota citizens and further reduce the costs of
preventable diseases.

Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids 7.30.10 / Ann Boonn & Eric Lindblom, September 28, 2020

Explanations & Notes

e  Projections are based on research findings that each 10% cigarette price increase reduces youth smoking by 6.5%, adult rates by 2%, and
total consumption by 4% (adjusted down to account for tax evasion effects). Revenues still increase bacause the higher tax rate per pack
will bring in more new revenue than is lost from the tax-related drop in total pack sales.

s  The projections incorporate the effect of both ongoing background smoking declines and the continued impact of the 61.66-cent federal
cigarette tax increase [effective April 1, 2009) on prices, smoking levels and pack sales.

e  These projections are fiscally conservative because they include a generous adjustment for lost state pack sales (and lower net new
revenues} from possible new smuggling and tax evasion after the rate increase and from fewer sales to smokers or smugglers from other
states. For ways that the state can protect and increase its tobacco tax revenues and prevent and reduce contraband trafficking and other
tobacco tax evasion, see the Campaign for Tobacco-Free Klds factsheet, State Options to Prevent and Reduce Cigarette Smuggling and to
Block Other lllegal State Tobacco Tax Evasion, hitp: //tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0274.pdf.

e Kids stopped from smoking and dying are from all kids alive today. long-term savings accrie over the lifetimes of persons who stop
smoking or never start because of the rate increase. All cost and savings In 2004 dollars. Projections will be updated when new relevant
data or research becomes available.

*  Ongoing reductions in state smoking levels will, over time, gradually erode state cigarette tax revenues {in the absence of any new rate
increases). Butthose declines are more predictable and less volatile than many other state revenue sources, such as state income tax or
corporate tax revenues {which can drop sharply during recessions). In addition, the smoking declines that reduce tobacco tax revenues
will simultaneously produce much larger reductions in government and private sector smoking-caused costs. See the Campaign for
Tobacco-Free Kids factsheet, Tobacco Tox Increases are a Reliable Source of Substantiol New State Revenue,
http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0303.pdf.

+  For other ways states can increase revenues {and promote public health) other than just raising its cigarette tax, see the Campalgn
factsheet, The Many Ways States Can Roise Revenue While Also Reducing Tobacco Use and its Many Harms & Costs,
hitp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0357. pdf.

o For more on sotrces and calculations, see http://www.tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0281 .pdf

Additional Information on Tobacco Product Tax Increases

Raising State Cigarette Taxes Always Increases State Revenues and Always Reduces Smoking,

http://tobaccofreekids. org/research/factsheets/pdf/0098. pdf.

Responses to Misleading and inaccurate Cigorette Company Argumenrs Against State Tobacco Tax Increoses,
http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets df 0227.pdf.

State Cigarette Excise Tax Rates & Rankings, httn://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0037.pdf.

Top Combined State-Local Cigarette Tax Rates {State plus County plus City), http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0267.pdf.
State Cigarette Tax Increases Benefit Lower-income Smokers and Families, http: //tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0147. pdf.
The Best Woy to Tax Smokeless Tobacco, http://tobaccofreekids.org/research factsheets/pdf/0282.pdf.

The Problem with Roll-Your-Own (RYO) Tobacco, http://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0336.pdf.

How to Maoke State Cigar Tax Rotes Fair and Effective, hitp ./ tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0335. odf,

State Benefits from Increasing Smokeless Tobacco Tax Rotes, http://tobaccofreekids. grg/researchffactsheets/pdf/0180.pdf.

The Case for High-Tech Cigarette Tax Stamps, ittn i/ /tobaccofreekids.arg/research/factsheets/pdf/0310.pdf.

State Options to Prevent and Reduce Cigarette Smuggling and to Block Other lilegal State Tobacco Tax Evasion,
hitp://tobaccofreekids.org/research/factsheets/pdf/0274.p4f.

The Mony Ways States Can Raise Revenue While Also Reducing Tobacco Use and Its Many Harms & Costs,
hitp://tobaccofreekids.grg/researchfactsheets/pdf/0357, pdf
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COUNTY OFFICES

Adams County
Public Heahh Nurse
609 2nd Ave N,
P.O. Box 227
Hetlingor, ND 5863§-0227
567-2720

Blllings County
Public Health Nurse
70 181 St. S.E.
P.O. Box 185
Baach, ND 58621-0185
872-453;

Bowman County
Public Health Nurse
104 181 51 N.W. #6
Bowman, NG 58623-4342
523-3144

Dunn County
Pubiic Health Nursa
215 Cantral Ave.
P.O Box 11t
Killdear, ND 58640-0111
764-5513

Goiden Valley County
Pubdic Health Nurse
70 151 8t, S.E.
RO. Bax 185
Baach, ND 58621-0185
B72-4533

Hettingar County
Publir: Health Nurse
309 Milllonaire Ava.
Motl, ND 58646-7267
824-3215

Slope County
Public Health Nurse
104 15t St N.W. #5
Bowman, ND 58623-4342
523-3144

Stark County
Publiz Health Nurse
2869 3rd Ave. W.
Dickinson, ND 58601-2600
483-0171

Emergency Preparedness &
Response
2863 3rd Ave. W.
Dickinson. ND 58601-2600
483-3765

Pathways {0 Heaithy Lives
2893 3rd Ave. Wesl
Dickinson, ND 58601-2600
483-3050

Tobacco Praventlon & Controt
2893 3rd. Ave. W.
Dickinscn, ND 58601-2600
483-3760

WwIC
2868 3rd Ave. W.
Dickinson, NO 58601-2600
483-1942

Women's Way
2893 3rd Ave, W.
Dickingon, NO 58601-2600
483-3052
1-800-44WOMEN

Hezeraened

F":m;?ﬁ}l{-ﬁz e s ey

S e

rhﬂ e

T Southwestem District J-fea[th U nit

2869 3RD AVENUE WEST
DICKINSON, NORTH DAKOTA 58601
TELEPHONE: (701) 483-01 71
TOLL FREE: 1-800-697-3145
FAX:(701) 483-4097

Testimony
Supporting
House Bill 1025
Senate Appropriations Committee
March 7, 2011

Good afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations
Committee. 1 am Sherry Adams, Executive Officer for Southwestern District
Health Unit. I’'m testifying favor of House Bill 1025 and using the tobacco
settlement for comprehensive tobacco prevention.

The people served by Southwestern District Health Unit have directly benefitted
from grant funding from the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy.

[ just want to mention three projects:

¢ We worked with Dickinson Parks and Recreation to help make parks smoke-
free, including paying for signs.

s We worked with the city of Medora and its mayor about making this tourist
destination completely smoke-free. Medora isn’t ready to take this step today,
but we will continue to provide information.

e We are working with Dickinson State University student senate as they
collaborate with both the faculty and staff senates in a combined effort to
create a smoke-free campus.

Last week I testified on House Bill 1004, the health department budget, which
goes hand-in-hand with this bill. Our health unit needs funding of all kinds of
health programs. However, [ do not support funding chronic disease or other
health programs by using dollars meant for tobacco prevention. We support all
the language of the 2008 initiated measure using tobacco settlement for
comprehensive tobacco prevention. I hope you will restore the original Measure
3 language that was amended out in HB1004.

Thank you and I would be happy to answer any questions.
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North Dakota House Bill 1025 Testimony
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March 7,2011 2pm

Good afternoon committee members. My name is Dawn Aberle and I am pleased to speak on my
own behalf about how Measure 3 dollars are effectively and efficiently being used. As a
respiratory therapist for over 10 years and more recently as a certified tobacco treatment
specialist, I have seen the devastation that tobacco causes and I've seen real progress in the
assessment and treatment of tobacco users, in large part to funding by Measure 3.

As a healthcare professional working in the field of tobacco treatment, I support HB 1025 and
oppose the amendment made to HB 1004 which removes the requirement for 80% of the
Community Health Trust Fund to be spent on tobacco programs. 1 support continuing CDC
recommended funding for statewide tobacco prevention and control,

In 2010, my healthcare organization saw over 4,500 patients for tobacco dependence. Through -
a partnership with Fargo Cass Public Health (which is made possible by Measure 3), our tobacco
education department is able to give individuals a 2 week supply of nicotine replacement
products if they choose to sign up for the North Dakota Quitline. This is a vital service that
partners with patients when the motivation is the highest and gives them the two things

. evidence shows they need the most to be successful- cessation medications and

counseling. Beyond that, the Quitline provides vital follow-up and quality counseling to our
largely rural population. In 2010, our tobacco education team created 488 fax referrals to the
ND Quit Line and distributed 798 boxes of nicotine replacement therapy.

Measure 3 funding has also placed importance in evidence based health systems change
initatives such as Ask, Advise, Refer. My position, a 0.5 FTE, which is grant funded by Measure
3 for 1 year, was charged with improving clinic policy and practice in regards to systematic
identification of tobaeco users, advisement to quit and providing resources and referrals to
effectively assist tobacco users in quitting. Since allotment of the grant in July, our
interdisciplinary work group has been expeditiously working on changes to our electronic health
record, implementation of a policy that addresses tobacco use and treatment, and making
educational resources available online-and in each individual clinic. What I am personally most
excited about, is how nicely this project ties into my organization's quality work plan which
focuses on comprehensive care for diabetes. Of the 5 components of comprehensive diabetes
care, blood pressure <140/90, HgbA1C<8, LDL< 100, daily aspirin, and tobacco free status-
successfully quitting tobacco has the potential to affect all measurements except taking a daily
aspirin.

Dr. Carl Sirio from the American Medical Association provided a statement this January that

reads, “We encourage state governments to implement more tobacco prevention and smoking

cessation programs that will help Americans quit using tobacco and protect others from

exposure to second-hand smoke. By funding tobacco prevention and cessatlon programs, states
“can help lower health care costs and, more importantly, save lives.” AS a healthcare

professional, I am committed to achieving these goals and I invite you to partner with me as
well. " | '

" “Thank you for your time.’
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee,

My name is Jane Croeker and | would like to highlight some successes of the Comprehensive Tobacco
Prevention and Control Program in North Dakota. The University of North Dakota greatly values the
strong partnerships we have with Grand Forks Health Department and state entities to address tobacco
prevention and control issues impacting students, faculty, staff, and other members of the community.
With support provided by the institution and public health funding through the Center for Tobacco
Prevention and Control, we have worked to expand quit tobacco options, develop strong policies, and
reach out to special populations who are at high risk of tobacco use through evidence based programs.

Over the past several years the institution has dramatically reduced exposure to second hand
smoke through various policy changes on campus including a smoke-free residence hall policy,

a smoke free apartment community policy and a tobacco-free campus policy. With support
from the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy over the past two years, UND’s
efforts to educate the campus community and encourage policy compliance have expanded. As
invested community members themselves, UND faculty, staff, and students have worked
alongside their community partners to enhance awareness of the dangers of second hand
smoke and the importance of strong policies on campus and in the community.

UND has also assisted in educating the community about the heaith risks of second hand smoke
in work sites and public places. A 2005 statewide law and two community ordinances that
further reduce exposure to these toxins have been put into place to protect the health of the
public. The Grand Forks city ordinance that went into effect in August of 2010 eliminates
second hand smoke exposure in bars, truck stops, and other previously exempt public places in
Grand Forks.

UND Student Health Services routinely asks all patients about tobacco use and offers cessation
support and medication to students who are interested in quitting. Faculty and staff have
comprehensive cessation benefits available through their insurance plan and the opportunity to
attend Freedom from Smoking classes offered through GF Public Health and Work Well, along
with access to North Dakota Quitline and Quitnet. Thanks to Center funding, UND has also



been able to provide tailored programs to special populations such as American Indians, blue
collar workers, and other groups who are at high risk of tobacco use.

Tobacco use rates among UND students have dropped significantly between 2000 and 2010,
according to the American College Health Association National College Health Assessment
conducted by UND Student Health Services. The percentage of students who reported smoking
cigarettes in the last 30 days dropped from 32.7% in 2000 to 13.4% in 2010, which is lower than
the 16% reported use among the national reference group. Smokeless tobacco use rates
dropped from 11.3% in 2000 to 4.6% in 2010. Tobacco use rates among UND faculty and staff
are far lower than the adult usage rate in Grand Forks County and North Dakota as a whole,
according to a 2010 employee health survey.

Comprehensive and sustained tobacco prevention and contro! programs have had a powerful
impact on the health of the UND community. We appreciate the invaluable support we have
received from the Grand Forks Pubic Health Department and the Center for Tobacco Prevention
Control Policy to address tobacco use, which is the leading cause of preventable death, on our
campus and in our community and we hope this positive relationship will continue for years to
come.

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Committee, thank you for your time.
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Senate Appropriations Committee - Human Resource Division
Testimony - House Bill 1025

Chairman Holmberg, and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee,
my name is Karen Macdonald, and | represent the North Dakota Nurses
Association. | am a Registered Nurse and a Family Nurse Practitioner. | am here
to support fully funding HB 1025 and restoring the 80% requirement on the
Community Health Trust Fund.

» | have worked as a nurse practitioner in cardiology and have seen
firsthand what tobacco use can do to the human body. Heart disease is
the #1 killer of all modern diseases and lung cancer is the leading cause
of cancer deaths. There are very few individuals with these diseases who

0 have not been exposed to either first hand or second hand smoke

+ The accomplishments of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and
Control Program have already shows a decrease in tobacco use after just
18 months of implementation along with a decline in cigarettes sold
(source: U.S. Centers for Disease Confrol and Prevention, Behavioral Risk
Factor Report; ND Tax Department fobacco sales tax data).

* The number of persons exposed to secondhand smoke is decreasing. A
total of five cities In ND have enacted policies regarding exposure to
secondhand smoke in public venues (Fargo, West Fargo, Grand Forks,
Napoleon, Pembinag).

o Tobacco prevention efforts have lead to an increase in attempts to quit
smoking as seen from the 2010 North Dakota Quitline Report.

Please fully fund this lifesaving program. Respect the will of the people by
faithfully enabling all of the provisions of Measure 3. Thank you for the
opportunity to provide this testimony and | encourage a do pass on this bill.

The Mission of the North Dakota Nurses Association is to promote the professional development
of nurses and enhance heaith care for ail
through practice, education, research and development of public policy.



Testimony in support of House Bill 1025
Senate Appropriations Committee
March 7, 2011
Ellen Bjelland, Barnes County ACHIEVE Partnership

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Committee, thank you for allowing me to testify today in
support of House Bill 1025. My name is Ellen Bjelland, and I am here representing the 14 organizations
that make up the Barnes County ACHIEVE Partnership.

We are asking you to help protect the citizens of our county and state by renewing full funding for North
Dakota’s comprehensive tobacco prevention program at the CDC recommended level, and in full
accordance with the people’s will as expressed in their approval of Initiated Measure #3 two years ago.

We have directly experienced the health-promoting benefits that local “Measure 3 programs™ are already
bringing to communities across the state — and will bring with even-greater effectiveness as the intended
synergies among program components exert their collective power over time.

First, Barnes County’s Measure 3-funded tobacco prevention program gave important credence to our
application and helped us to secure a $75,000 ACHIEVE grant from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, for the purposes of reducing the risk of chronic disease in our area.

Second, the tobacco prevention program is enabling the ACHIEVE Partnership to more efficiently
achieve its own disease-preventing objectives. Our ACHIEVE goal is to reduce the incidence of
preventable disease and death by changing policies, systems, and our environment o be healthier—in
the areas of nutrition, physical activity and tobacco use. We need the support and expertise of a strong
Breathe ND Center to guide our own efforts to decrease all the harms from tobacco addiction

In return, it’s obvious that our ACHIEVE Partnership is helping to create one of the powerful tobacco-
prevention synergies that the CDC envisioned when it laid out the roadmap that North Dakota’s new
comprehensive program is following.

We believe this is a perfect example of how North Dakota’s Measure 3-enabled, comprehensive tobacco
prevention program is effectively leveraging its resources by building on key community partnerships
across the state.

Thank you.

Ellen Bjelland
On behalf of the Barnes County ACHIEVE Partnership
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Kayla Meyer
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Bismarck, ND
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Chairman Holmberg, and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, my name
is Kayla Meyer. I am speaking on behalf of Health Pro (Peers Reaching Out) from the
University of Mary. I am here to provide support for HB 1025 and restoring full funding
as required by Measure 3.

Health Pro are student leaders who provide health and wellness education programs to
University of Mary students on a peer-to-peer level. We are fortunate enough to have
received professional training and technical support from Measure 3 funds through

Bismarck Burleigh, Tobacco Prevention and Control program to work on strengthening

our tobacco free policy to include the entire campus.

Measure 3 funding provided the opportunity this past summer, for Health Pro students
along with other North Dakota universities and colleges to attend a statewide Bacchus
Network training on tobacco-free college campus policies. By attending this training we
were able to move forward on advancing tobacco free policy at the University of Mary.
We have learned that a tobacco-free policy provides an environment that reinforces
healthy behavior. As the policy removes the immediate threat of exposure to
secondhand smoke, it also decreases the use of tobacco and the number of people who

start smoking in college.

Measure 3 funding also gave us the available resources for technical support in
development of educational materials to educate our peers and administration about
the benefits of tobacco free campus to assist with reducing tobacco use rates.

Please support HB 1025 along with the other components needed to fully fund North
Dakota’s comprehensive tobacco prevention and control program. Without it we would
not have been able to make a healthier learning at the University of Mary.



Testimony on House Bill 1025
Senate Appropriations Committee -- Monday, March 7, 2011
“ Brenda Warren, Vice-President of Legislation, Tobacco Free North Dakota

Good Morning Chairman Holmberg and committee members. My name is Brenda Warren and | am
vice-president of legislation for Tobacco Free North Dakota, a statewide coalition of voluntary
individuals. organizations and agencies working to promote a healthy society that chooses not {0 use
tobacco; and a state free from death, disease, disability and excess taxes caused by tobacco use.

Tobacco Free North Dakota is a grassroots people’s coalition, and | am here today to testify in
support of HB 1025 from a citizen’s viewpoint.

The people know that even if none of our own family members use tobacco, ALL North Dakotans pay
the huge price of tobacco addiction in our state. For 100% of your constituents, the economic burden
from tobacco addiction includes significant additional taxes and higher costs for healthcare. Just for
starters, every tax-paying family in the state forfeits $564 to pay for tobacco-related costs every single
year!

The people know that for around a decade, North Dakota has received about $25 million every year
as our share of the Tobacco Settlement, which we were told was negotiated for the purpose of
aggressively reducing FUTURE human and economic harms from tobacco addiction.

The people know that OTHER states that have faithfully funded evidence-based, comprehensive
ograms have already greatly reduced their own tobacco burdens. For instance, we know that
cause California DID diligently invest in state-of-the-art tobacco prevention, California’'s smoking
rate is now one-half that of the rest of the country. More importantly, they have hit the ultimate pay-
back: Their program has now has resulted in lung cancer rates in California that are nearly 25
percent lower than other states.

The people want to see that same dramatic reduction in lung cancer in North Dakota, too!

Sadly, the people also know that, for more than a decade, North Dakota has failed to invest enough
Tobacco Settlement dollars to get that done. That is why, when still-more Tobacco Settlement dollars
became available, the citizens in 2008 initiated and ultimately voted-in Measure # 3 by a comfortable
margin. Since then, citizen enthusiasm for sustaining this program has only increased. An August
2010 survey of North Dakota adults showed more than 80 percent of North Dakotans support using
tobacco settlement money for precisely this purpose.

You have received ample documentation that, even though it is still in its infancy, the state program
made possible by Measure 3 is aiready working.

Please reassure 162,793 North Dakotans that their votes really do matter.

Thank you.



Comments to Senate Appropriations Committee
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, My
name is Holly Ebel and | am here in support of House Bill 1025. | started smoking
when | was 12 years old. | came from a family where everyone but my mother
smoked so it was easy to find cigarettes. With an addictive personality | was
hooked very quickly. | had made several attempts to quit on my own since my
early 20’s with no success. | was unable to quit throughout my pregnancy with
my son in 1997. | never knew there was support out there to help me quit. In
September of 2009, | was at a doctor’s appointment and noticed a sign regarding
a stop smoking class. | wasn’t thinking much of quitting at the time, but figured
maybe this is what | needed. | just went for it! | signed up for the Freedom from
Tobacco class at our local public health unit. They educated me in cessation
medications, withdrawal, triggers, the North Dakota Quitnet and health effects
among other issues that | would not have know how to deal with alone. |
struggled with extreme depression throughout the first several months after
quitting. Because of my bipolar disease, my challenges were even greater,
causing even more anxiety and difficulty. After 7 months | slipped. The first 10
days of my relapse consisted of me smoking some cigarettes and throwing some
away. With the help of my support systems | was able to get back on track. My
supbort included the N.D Quitnet, the weekly Tackle Tobacco support group and a
cessation counselor. | have been smoke-free for 9 months! | never dreamed !
could be smoke -free. | don’t know if | could have accomplished it without all of
the education and support | have received. | am just happy to be an Ex-smoker!

Thank you
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Lyle Best, MD-Family Practice, Rolette

Good afternoon, Chairman Holmberg and members of the committee. My name is Lyle
Best and | am a board certified family practice physician from Rolette, ND. | was a staff
physician at the Indian Health Service hospital in Belcourt for over 20 years and have practiced
part time at the Johnson Clinic in Dunseith since 1998. Thank you for hearing my testimony.

, As you can imagine, in the 37 years since | graduated from medical school, | have seen
more than my share of heart aches caused by tobacco abuse. In the past year alone, two of
my patients and-their children have lost their young wives and mothers (women in their 40's) to -
lung cancer. There have been those with cancers of the esophagus and bladder, many more
with heart attacks, strokes and loss of circulation to the legs with resultant gangrene and
amputations. There have been countless children with recurrent respiratory infections and
asthma aggravated by exposure to tobacco smoke, not to mention deaths due to smoking-
caused house fires.

But things are looking up: Measure 3 has dedicated a portlon of our tobacco settlement
income to robust, comprehensive tobacco prevention. The result is probably the single most
powerful opportunity for preventing disease that North Dakota has ever seen — namely, the
Center for Tobacco Prevention’ and Control Policy's new “Saving Lives—Saving Money”
program.

Also on the brlght side, | have seen changing social norms begin to make smoking
unacceptable. And deliberately changing norms is what North Dakota's comprehensive
program is all about. The improved availability of Quitline services has been a wonderfu!
addition to my standard message about the health risks of smoking. There is not nearly
enough time in the day for my staff or | to spend the necessary amount of “quality time" with
individuals trying to quit; and the Quitline has been invaluable. My patients have told me how
much they appreciate the help they get from Quitline. We know it has been effective in

" reducing the sales of cigarettes in North Dakota.

Many people seem to view smoking as a simple choice, suggesting that all smokers
have to do is hike up their suspenders and quit. When | was in medical school, | worked for a
summer in a methadone maintenance program for heroin addicts. Over and over again, |
heard that it was easier to quit heroin (even without methadone) than smoking. We know now
that the tobacco companies have deliberately adjusted the composition of their products to
enhance their addictive effects; and that was one of the most compelling factors leading to the
tobacco settlement. _

| strongly urge this committee to approve House Bill 1025 and also restore the 80%
requirement from the Communlty Health Trust Fund so that this life-saving initiative will be fully
empowered. The voters spoke directly in their clear approval of Initiated Measure 3 two years
ago. North Dakota’s health professionals have spoken in favor of these tobacco prevention
measures for years.

It is hard to imagine what kind of human beings would be willing to aid and abet the sale
of such destructive products. | wonder what those who profit from selling tobacco say to their:

- children and grandchildren. Are they so callous as to warn their own loved ones, but turn a

blind eye to the profits they make at the expense of so many others?

/0



“ The purpose of the entire tobacco settlement was to make some restitution for the
devastating effects of decades of tobacco abuse. The passage of Measure 3, which taps only

the “Strategic Contribution” portion of our payments, properly brought our attention back to its
intended purpose. To not faithfully direct this small portion of these funds to proven tobacco

prevention methods would be like a young person drinking and partying away an inheritance
left for their education.
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Introduction

~ Thank you for the opportunity to provide information on the dramatic health gains and economic

savings that can be achieved with adequate funding and evidence-based interventions for tobacco

control. Tam Dr. Terry Pechacek with the Office on Smoking and Health, Centers for Disease

Control and Prevention (CDC) in Atlanta, Georgia. 1am an author of the original and updated
versions of the CDC guidance document Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control
Programs and have been involved in the writing or scientific review of all U.S. Surgeon
General’s Reports on the health consequences of tobacco use since 1979. In addition, [ have
provided senior technical advice on the planning, implementation, and evaluation of
comprehensive tobacco control programs in Arizona, Arkansas, California, Florida, Georgia,
Indiana, Iowa, Kentucky, Maine, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Mississippi, New Jersey, North
Carolina, Chio, Oklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvanla Tennessee, Texas, Vermont, Virginia,
Washington, and West Virginia.

For the record, I have submitted this written testimony at the request of Jeanne Prom, the
Executive Director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention & Control Policy, to summarize the
scientific evidence regarding best practices in comprehensive tobacco prevention and control and
the eftectiveness of comprehensive state tobacco control programs. Also for the record, this
written testimony is not for or against any specific legislative proposal.

Effects of State Tobacco Control Programs

Tobacco use is the leading preventable cause of illness and death in the United States. From
2000 to 2004, an average of 900 North Dakota residents died per year from smoking-related

“diseases; and North Dakota ranks 4" highest among states in its smoking-related death rate with

225.6 of every 100,000 people over age 35 dying due to tobacco use. In addition, studies have
shown that, for every person who dies of a smoking-related disease, another 20 persons are

living with a serious chronic disease caused by smoking.

The good news is that we know what works and how to reduce tobacco use. If North Dakota
were to continue to fully fund tobacco control programs and implement proven tobacco control
strategies, mcludmg full implementation of smoke-free environments in all workplaces and
public places, increases in tobacco product pnces hard-hitting media campaigns, ensuring
tobacco users can get help quitting, and youth empowerment initiatives that counteract tobacco
industry marketing, North Dakota could make significant progress in reducing the staggerm;, toll
that tobacco use takes on its families and communities.

State tobacco control programs coordinate these and other proven tobacco control approaches to
ensure maximum impact. States that have made large and sustained investments in tobacco.
control programs have seen cigarette sales drop more than twice as much as in the United States
as a whole. Smoking prevalence among youth and adults declines faster as spending for tobacco
control programs increases. States such as Maine, New York and Washington, have achieved 45
to 60 percent reductions in youth smoking through sustained implementation of coordinated

2



tobacco control programs. As another example, between 1998 and 2002, a comprehensive
tobacco control program in Florida that included an aggressive youth-oriented media campaign

reduced smoking rates by 50 percent among middle school‘ students and by 35 percent among
high school students. ‘

State tobacco control programs that are sustained over time also generate a high return on

- investment. Research shows that the more states spend on sustained comprehensive tobacco
control programs, the greater the reductions in smoking—and the longer states invest in such
programs, the greater and faster the impact. For example, a study of California’s tobacco control
program found that the state realized a 50-to-1 return on the monies invested in the program
during its first 15 years — saving $86 billion in health care costs from 1989 to 2004, while
investing $1.8 billion in the program. These findings provide further evidence that investments

in tobacco control not only prevent disease and save lives, but also dramatically reduce health
care costs,

States can achieve substantial reductions in tobacco use and tobacco-related disease and death by
sustaining support for comprehensive, evidence-based tobacco control programs over time. In
combination with other evidence-based tobacco control interventions — including enacting 100
percent smoke-free laws, increasing the price of tobacco products, implementing media
campaigns, and making cessation services available to all populations — adequately funded
comprehensive state tobacco control can bring an end to the tobacco use epidemic.

Effects of Reducing State Funding for Tobacco Control Programs

The experiences of a number of states show that reducing funding for state tobacco control
programs leads to rapid reversals of previous progress in reducing tobacco use. - For example,
after funding for the Massachusetts program was cut by 95 percent in Fiscal Year 2004, cigarette
. sales to minors increased, declines in youth smoking stalled, and the state’s per capita cigarette
consumption rose. Similarly, after funding for Florida’s highly successful youth-oriented “truth”
campaign was drastically reduced, youth smoking rates, which had been falling sharply,
stabilized and then began creeping up again. Finally, within six months of the elimination of the
youth-oriented Target Market media campaign in Minnesota, awareness of the campaign among
youth fell sharply and youth susceptibility to initiating smoking increased.

Conclusion

The tobacco use epidemic can be stopped. We know what works. If we were to fully implement
proven strategies, we could prevent the staggering toll that tobacco takes on our families and our
communities. With sustained implementation of state tobacco contro} programs and policies, the
Institute of Medicine report’s best-case scenario of reducing adult tobacco prevalence to 10
percent by 2025 would be attainable.

Tobacco use will remain the leading cause of preventable illness and death in the United States
until our efforts to address this problem are on a par with the harm it causes. We look forward to

3



' “ working with you to address this urgent pubiic health issue. Thank you.
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, I
am Stacey Holm a Health Educator at North Dakota State University. I am
testifying regarding House Bill 1025, which provides funding for the North
Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee and its Center for
Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy. Our organization receives support and
funding through a grant from Fargo Cass Public Health.

Through NDSU’s partnership with Fargo Cass Public Health (made possible by
Measure 3) we are able to offer our students comprehensive cessation services.
NDSU can provide up to 3 months worth of nicotine replacement products and
counseling free for all students, prior to Measure 3 there was a charge for
products. This funding has been particularly helpful since NDSU went smoke
free in March 2010 and our need for cessation services has increased
substantially.

For those students interested in using the telephone-based Quitline service we
can now give these students a 2-week supply of nicotine replacement products
provided they also sign up with the North Dakota Quitline. This ensures students
who want to quit almost immediately can do so because the Quitline can take
awhile to get products out via mail.

NDSU is dedicated to promoting and developing healthy lifestyle opportunities
for the members of the NDSU community and therefore supports CDC
recommended funding for the statewide tobacco prevention and control program.
In keeping with the wish of North Dakota voters, NDSU supports HB 1025.

Thank you for your time.

o

Stacey Holm,CHES

Health Educator

North Dakota State University
stacey.holm@ndsu.edu

Sincerely,

Cumpns Recrealion and Intramural Sporis + Child Care Service
Fitness Programs *  Wellness Education

NDSU is an EO/AA institution.
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NORTH DAKOTA FARMERS UNION STATEMENT
HB 1025

North Dakota Farmers Union respectfully asks that North Dakota’s Comprehensive Tobacco
Prevention Program funding be restored as outlined in the Governor’s Budget Recommendations.

Specifically, we request the portion that voters allocated in 2008 to tobacco prevention and cessation
to begin the state’s Comprehensive Tobacco Prevention Program be restored. The 2008 initiated
measure was supported by the NDFU Board of Governors, and ultimately by 54% of the voters at the
polls. After two short years, statistics demonstrate that the prevention and cessation programs funded
by the tobacco settlement money have been successful.

North Dakota Farmers Union policy has consistently asked for a portion of the tobacco settlement
dollars for tobacco prevention and control.
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Curbing smoking means changing norms
While education is important to curb smoking, health officials say the best approach is through societal changes, and
that takes banning lighting up nearly everywhere

By: Tu-Uyen Tran, Grand Forks.Herald

“The best bang for your buck is not going'into:schools. We've done it for years and we've seen the
tobacco initiation rate stalled,” said Theresa Knox, her voice taking on the tone of someone telling you a
trade secret. “The best bang for your buck is these system-wide changes — but it takes time.”

Grand Forks Public Health's tobacco prevention coordinator was explaining why her department wasn't
putting as much emphasis on going out and talking to people about the dangers of tobacco as it seems to
do in encouraging various powers that be to impose indoor and even outdoor smoking bans.

Her point was that public health has reached a point of diminishing returns when it comes to educating
children about tobacco. That is, less education might mean more kids smoking, but more education won't
necessarily mean more kids not smoking. Now, public health wants schools to ban émoking everywhere

* on campus, including outside in the parking lot, so kids don't see any parent or teacher smoking and think
“that smoking is in any way a normal, everyday activity, even if only a few do it. '

The difference between the two is that the former is persuasive and the latter leverages the coercive
power of local government and employers. And it may explain a little why tobacco control policy, while it
may be winning the war of public opinion; sééms to'get a lot of grief in the process.

It took the Grand Forks City Council almost five years and two separate pieces of legislation to ban
smoking in all public places, mostly because of loud opposition from bar owners, many of whose
customers lit up, and from some members of the public. Some council members thought city government
was overreaching in trying to protect consenting adults from doing what is still a legal act. Nobody's
making anyone go into a smoky bar, they said.

More recently, the state House decided to cut some tobacco control funding in favor of battling chronic
diseases. This follows an attempt to eviscerate the’state's Voter-approved tobacco program, saying the
money would be better spent expanding UND's School of Medicine and Health Sciences. How to best
spend the money made up a lot of the discussion, said Rep. Curt Kreun, R-Grand Forks, who's also one
of the council members that supported the smoking ban, but he said there were a number of lawmakers
who felt that tobacco control efforts may have gone too far.

“We all know smoking is bad, but how far'do you go?” he said, describing the sentiment.
If the goal is'to change:society and ‘affectindividual-behavior; you can go pretty far:

Changing norms



North Dakota spends about $9.3 million a year on its tobacco control program, the money coming from a
portion-of the settlement the Big Tobacco companies made with the attorneys general of several states.

This state is one of just two that actually spend as much on tobacco control as the Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention recommends, mostly because Measure 3, which voters approved in 2008,
required it.

It's an aggressive program that aims to do just about everything but ban smoking itself.

Reading through the CDC's 'best practices” recommendations is like going through a laundry list. Ban
smoking in public places. Check. Target kids with anti-tobacco ads. Check. Help smokers quit. Check. But
take the:best.practices in their totality, and i's clear,that;theyform:a multi-prong,: mutti-layer.offensive
against an‘idea: Theiidea that tobacco use;is jist a‘normal; everyday thing:

In the social sciences, this is called a “norm,” meaning it's a behavior that a large majority of society
considers normal and acceptable.

“Of course, it changes social norms; it's the most important reason for it,” said psychologist Terry
Pechacek of the best practices. An associate director in the CDC's smoking and health office, he wrote
those recommendations after studying the effectiveness of various anti-tobacco policies in states such as
California and Massachusetts that were early adopters of those policies. He stressed that these are
proven;policies.

The total cost nationwide of changing norms, if each state followed the best practices, is $3.7 billion a
year, though that's an amount that would drop as tobacco use drops. “The tobacco industry spends
billions.of dollars annually to:make: tobacco;usé appear.to be attractive:as'well as an accepted and
established part of American.culture;?. the best practices;say: It takes billions-more to counter:that
message.

Aggressive tactics

Norms have already changed drastically. Decades ago, no one would've raised an eyebrow if a smoker lit
up in the supermarket or even in a hospital waiting room. Today, it's almost unthinkable.

In many places though, smoking outside a building on the sidewalk or in a bar is still seen as normal. The
best practices aim to change that.

To get smokers to quit, they recommend states offer phone counseling — it's called the "Quitline” in North
Dakota — and free nicotine patches. They;enlist doctors.and nurses, some of the most persuasive people
in our fives when it comes to our health, to remind tobacco users they need to quit. They call for
advertising targeted at different kinds of smokers and would-be smokers — teens, considered the most
vuinerable to advertising, are a parttcular focus



But best practices also recommend more:than:pérsuasion: They call for-raising:the tobaccotax to around
$2 a pack — North Dakota charges 44 cents — and banning smoking inpublic'places. While smoking
ban proponents often talk about protecting nonsmokers from secondhand smoke, the goal of a ban is
also to help quitters avoid temptation.

To get legislation of that kind passed, best practices recommend enlisting the aid of local public health
departments and anti-tobacco volunteer groups. It was one such group, the Grand Forks Tobacco Free
Coalition, which got the city’s smoking ban passed. Statewide, similar advocacy efforts got more than
three dozen school districts and two universities to ban smoking on campus and two other cities to ban
smoking in all public places.

As anindicator. of how important.local 'adV&béq5@ﬁébé,f.?hémof the:$9.3 million spent on tobacco control

in North Dakota goes to such efforts. A quarter goes to h‘elping smokers quit, 13 percent goes to

advert:smg, 5 percent goes to'administration‘'and 8 percent goes to gathering data to ensure the
campaign is workmg

H éppears to be.

InNorth:Dakota, since Measure'3.was.implemented:in‘July: 2009, the number of cigarettes packs sold

has dropped from:47:million to 45.2:millionin fiscal.year 2010, according to the state's Center for Tobacco
Prevention and Control Policy. The number of éalls to the Quitline seeking nicotine patches has increased
from 1,271 to 3,374,

The best practices might be just the start. Anti-tobacco advocates at the national Institute’ of Medicine
suggest the tobacco industry be required to.reduce the amount of nicotine in cigarettes, meaning the
cigarettes would be less addictive and less pleasurable over time. They suggest state and local
governments reduce the number of stores allowed to'sell cigarettes and persuade developers to prohibit
tobacco use as a condition of a lease of an apartment or sale of a condo.

That's social engineering on a pretty grand scale, all in the name of prevention.
Price of prevention

Jeanne Prom, executive director of the state's tobacco controt center, doesn't see anything wrong with
that. Her office estimates that North Dakota pays $247 million a year in medical costs and lost productivity
because of smoking, or $567 for every North Dakotan.

Most people can agree that preventing a problem is better than having to fix it and she sees tobacco
control as no different. In Bismarck, when the city commission banned smoking in bars, bar owners
treated it like some sort of infringement of rights, she said. But when the commission restricted texting
while driving, she said, there was no such backlash.

Prom suspects the hand of Big Tobacco, which she said has perpetuated the myth that connects smoking
with freedom and rights. To her, the aim of public health isn't to curtail choices, but to make certain



choices more Iikéiy. “Primarily:public health is'about.making an environment where people can beihealthy
and the default is a healthy choice.” -

That feeling that people are being forced into something by public health policy isn’t necessarily limited to
tobacco.

Knox said there were similar reactions when water treatment plants around the nation began adding
fluoride to water, or when, in Grand Forks, the city decided to fine stores for sefting tobacco to minors, or
when public health push to require parents to put young children in child:car.seats.

“What people focus on at a cusp of a change like that is regulation. ‘Don'’t tell me what to do,™ she said.
She:used:a canoe analogy:If you were in'a'canoe withia:hole in;it and she ‘said:she can patchit; would
you say “Leave me élone?”

In the end, after public health policies come into effect, they often become the norm. After all, few if any
person complains about fluoridated water.

it appears anti-tobacco policies are also well on their way to becoming a norm. When Grand Forks bar
owners attempted to gather signature to put the smoking ban on the ballot — it'’d been decided by the
council without a public vote — they couldn’t get enough of their customers to sign. In Bismarck, after
much discussion, the:state House didn't évén votéito end the tobacco:control-program;. that section of the
med schoot bill was eliminated in committee.

Reach Tran at (701) 780-1248; (B00) 477-6572, ext. 248; or send e-mail {0 &mn@gﬂwemld. com.

httn://www..qrzindforksherald.cbm/event./articIe/id/ 195773/
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Here with you

North Dakota House Bill 1025 Testimony
Senate Appropriations Committee
(March 2, 2011, 2:00pm)

Good afternoon members of the Senate Appropriations Committee.

Chairman Hoimberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, | am Cheri
Thomson a Tobacco Treatment Specialist with Essentia Health. As a representative of
Essentia Health, we support House Bill 1025.

Essentia Health, with locations throughout North Dakota, is a healthcare system
dedicated to providing the highest level of care for the patients we serve. Qur Mission
states that "We are calied to make a healthy difference in peaple’s lives.”

One of the ways we have worked to make a healthy difference in people’s lives is by
creating a partnership with our focal public health unit, Fargo Cass Public Health. When
Measure 3 tobacco funds became available, Fargo Cass Public Health presented us
with a unique opportunity to work with them in implementing a system-wide change to
better provide tobacco cessation services for our patients wanting to quit. We saw the
potential for success with this type of collaboration and we recognized that it would
allow us to better serve our patients by connecting them directly to tobacco cessation
resources such as the Quitline and Quitnet.

Because we have seen success in this partnership and because we strive to serve our
patients in the best possible manner, Essentia Health supports House Bill 1025.

Thank you for your time.

3000 32™ Avenue South
Fargo, ND 58103
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Central Valley Health District

Stutsman County Logan County
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. 701-252-8130 Napoleon, ND 5856
m?hpﬁﬂceﬂm 701-252-8137 fax 701-754-2756

March 4, 201 |

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committce,

I am Nancy Thoen, Director of Tobacco Prevention and Control at Central Valley Health
District in Jamestown. Central Valley Health District is also part of the South Central
Tobacco Collaborative for which 1 also serve as Director. The SCTC includes Emmons,
Kidder, LaMoure, Logan, McIntosh and Stutsman Counties.

Fam testifying in favor of House Bill 1025, which provides funding for the North Dakota
Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee and its Center for Tobucco
Prevention and Control Policy. We receive support and funding through the Center.

The Center’s funding and support have allowed us to provide prevention, policy, and
cessation services 1o the communities within the collaborative. Many of these
communities had not been able Lo provide these services in the past due to lack of funding
and staff. We have seen large increases in demand and access to the North Dakota
Tobacco Quitline tn all counties in our service area, as well as an increase in the number
of schools who have adopted comprehensive tobacco policics.

We werc able to provide the citizens of Napoleon with education and guidance in their
successtul effort 10 become the first small, rural community to become 100% smoke-free.
We are now assisting two ncighboring communitics with the same effort and anticipating
similar outcomes.

Thank you for the opportunity to provide testimony for House Bill 1025 and to share the
impact that funding and support from The Center has helped us accomplish in our area.

Sincerely,

Nancy Thoen
Director of Tobacco Prevention of Control
Central Valley Health District and The South Central Tobacco Collaborative

centralvalleyhealth.org
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Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, |
am Kimberlee Schneider, Program Manager, for the American Lung Association
in North Dakota. The American Lung Association is the oldest voluntary health
organization in the country. Our mission is the “prevention and control of lung
disease” and we know the important of tobacco control and prevention in

succeeding in our mission.

We have partnered and supported the passage of initiated Measure 3 that
makes North Dakota a leader in the country funding prevention and cessation
programs to the level recommended by the Centers for Disease Control and one
of only two states that our annual State of Tobacco Control Report Card gives an

“A" in this category.

During the committee process, the House amended the original bill denying
requested staff support and transferring that funding into the grants line item.
The American Lung Association in North Dakota supports the request that the
' Governor's budget be restored to the Center for Tobacco Prevention and
Control, providing the staffing necessary to assure the most effective delivery,
Improving Life, assessment, tracking and evaluation this funding provides. We have been both

One Breath at a Time _
impressed and astonished by the work of the Center in such a short timeframe

to prevent lung disease and
promote lung health.

The mission of the
‘*mﬁfica“ Lung Association and with limited staffing. We urge the Committee to adopt the Governor’s
5

budget.




Testimony in support of House Bill 1025

To: Senate Appropriations Committee
From: Sharon Laxdal, RN, Walsh County Tobacco Prevention Coordinator
Date: March 7, 2011

I'have been a nurse for over 27 years, and have seen firsthand the tragedies caused by tobacco, both as a

nurse and as a family member.When we have the resdurces and opportunity to help prevent tragedy,
however, there can be joy, too.

Last year I shared educational materials about the ND Tobacco Quitline with a student from Park River.

Later, he proudly told me that his grandmother had quit smoking after he’d passed the information on to
her. You should have seen his smile!

With the stronger programming made possible by Measure 3, we can be much more effective at
preventmg the tragedies. Our local program doesn’t help only the Walsh County people who happen to
smoke. It helps everybody, even those who have never used tobacco at all. The new funding has
increased our local tobacco prevention program’s ability to improve public health in at least four ways:

1) Measure 3 funding has enabled more people to help change our community norms so that all the
people (including children!) are not bombarded with glorified images of tobacco use; do not
witness others using tobacco; and are not encouraged to use it themselves.

2) Measure 3 funding has made it possible for the local public health staff to educate students and
administrators about the importance of comprehensive tobacco-free school policies. As a result,
all five of Walsh County’s schools have now adopted the recommended comprehensive
tobacco-free school policy!

3) Measure 3 funding has provided needed time for the local public health staff to visit schools in
order to provide other tobacco prevention education and resources, as well, By working with the
schools the staff has been able to develop a positive and trusting working relationship. The
schools recognize the local tobacco prevention staff and call on them as the need arises.

4) Measure 3 funding has brought cutting-edge CDC Best Practices to our local community! This
means all of us are directly benefiting from work that is based on current research, including the
latest evidence indicating that strong tobacco-free policies help deter young people from ever

starting to use tobacco — and they protect workers, patrons and all citizens from the dangers of
secondhand smoke.

With the guidance of CDC Best Practices based on many years of experience and research, we are
making good progress, one school, one student and one grandmother at a time! Please continue to

support fl.lll funding for North Dakota’s comprchenswe CDC-recommended tobacco prevention
program.

Respectfully submitted,
Sharon Laxdal



_ Testimony: House Bill 1025
North Dakota Senate Appropriations Committee
March 7, 2011 - 2:00 PM

James B. Buhr, MD, Family Medicine, Valley City

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, I am Dr. James
Buhr, from Valley City, and I would like to offer testimony in support of House Bill 1025.

As a family physician with responsibility for sharing coverage of an Emergency Department, |
have an up-close-and-personal acquaintance with the grisly physical and emotional costs, as well
as the escalating financial costs, that we all bear as a result of North Dakota’s tobacco-addiction
epidemic. It seems that the tobacco companies have always had unlimited resources for their all-
too-successful campaign to literally "push" a lethal addicting drug,

That’s why I am grateful that North Dakota has finally launched the only counteroffensive that
can win against the Big Tobacco behemoth: a comprehensive, scrupulously Best Practices
statewide tobacco prevention program that is fully funded at the level prescribed specifically for
North Dakota by the U.S. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention.

Mandated by the people’s vote for Measure 3 in the 2008 General Election, the new Center for
Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy has already outstripped some of the timelines for the first
two years of “Saving Lives -- Saving Money, North Dakota’s Comprehensive State Plan to
Prevent and Reduce Tobacco Use 2009-2014!" As promised, this CDC-based program is
already proving itself successful. For example, smokers’ use of our Quitline has increased and
total cigarette sales have declined.

Those successes will reduce the physical, emotional and financial costs North Dakotans suffer as
a result of tobacco addiction — but only IF we fully fund and implement the comprehensive
program over time, just as the people wisely directed by approving Measure 3 and its legacy trust
fund for sustaining the potent tobacco-use-reduction strategies for many years to come.

North Dakota has led the nation by voting-in and establishing a Best Practices program robust
enough to defeat the drug-pushing activities of Big Tobacco in our state! Now let’s maintain our
leadership position by faithfully keeping all the provisions of Measure 3 intact. At this time, that
necessitates restoring the requirement that 80% of the community health trust fund must be used
for tobacco prevention and control. Keeping Measure 3 intact also includes continuing to direct all
of the state’s “strategic contribution” payments to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund.

1 urge you to approve a version of HB 1025 that does fully sustain and fund all of the provisions
of North Dakota’s historic Measure # 3.

Thank you,

James B. Buhr, MD
Family Medicine
Valley City
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North Dakota House Bill 1025 Testimony
Senate Appropriations Committee
March 7,2011  2pm

Chairman Holmberg and members of the Senate Appropriations Committee, I

am Anne Ottney a Pharmacist and Tobacco Treatment Specialist at Family
Healthcare Center in Fargo. 1am testifying in favor of House Bill 1025, which
provides funding for the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive
Committee and its Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy. Our
organization receives support and funding through a grant from Fargo Cass
Public Health.

Through Family Healthcare Center’s partnership with Fargo Cass Public Health
(made possible by Measure 3) we are able to offer our patients comprehensive
cessation services. For those patients interested in quitting we can now give those
patients a 2-week supply of nicotine replacement products provided they also
sign up with the North Dakota Quitline. This ensures our patients who want to
quit can walk out our doors with the necessary products to help them do so. The
° Quitline then follows up and provides additional assistance for our patients.

As a provider of family-oriented health care, FHC believes it can best maintain
excellence in service through patient-focus where we continually strive to
understand and exceed the patient expectations. Because quitting tobacco will
lead our patients to a healthier life we support CDC recommended funding for
the statewide tobacco prevention and control program. In keeping with the wish
of North Dakota voters, FHC supports HB 1025.

Thank you for your time.

Family HealthCare Center ¢ 306 4™ Street North, Fargo, North Dakota 58102 ¢ Phone: {701) 271-3344 / Fax: (701) 271-3343

Accredited by The Jomt Commission
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8:30 a.m., Monday, March 7, 2011
North Dakota Society for Respiratory Care

['am Karla Smith and I represent the North Dakota Society for Respiratory Care. T am a
respiratory therapist and have been practicing in the respiratory therapy profession in
North Dakota for 22 years. I am here to provide testimony in support of HB 1025,
appropriations for the continued funding of comprehensive tobacco control in the state of
North Dakota, through the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy.
Respiratory Therapists are frontline practitioners in the long and arduous battle against
smoking-related discase and death. If someone in North Dakota is diagnosed with a
smoking related discase such as COPD (which is the 4" leading cause of death in North
Dakota) then they are very likely to have a respiratory therapist as part of their care-
giving team. With our skills and training, we are usually, but not always, able to bring
temporary relief to patients struggling to breathe. I know I speak for over 300 respiratory
therapists in the state when 1 tell you that spending long periods of time at the bedside of
men and women who struggle and ultimately, die from smoking-related disease, and
doing it over, and over again (sometimes even in the same 8 hour shift) takes its toll.

In her September 22, 2010 presentation to the Legislative Budget section, Jeanne Prom,
Director of the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy, presented data that
supported the effectiveness of the current, comprehensive statewide tobacco control
program, and noted that “these numbers show that our dollars are going toward putting
the right tools and skills in the hands of the right people.” | am here to attest to that,
noting that respiratory therapy practitioners across the state have been enabled to help
more patients quit their addictions to tobacco through the use of the Ask, Advise and
Refer system, provide better education to their communities about the dangers of second-
hand smoke, and encourage youth never to start. Health care practitioners are continually
required to update their knowledge base to in order to practice evidence-based medicine.
Evidence-based medicine means that experts look at which practices (known as “best
practices”) provide the best quality in the most cost effective manner, and then provide
that information to the broader health care community for implementation. Through the
efforts of the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy Center and its
implementation of the Center for Disease Control “Best Practices” for Comprehensive
Tobacco Control Program, respiratory therapists across the state, for the first time, have
the opportunity to do WELL, at what we have worked at for so long: saving lives and, as
a bonus, saving the state of North Dakota money at the same time. Thank you.

Karla Smith, RRT, RPSGT
St. Alexius Medical Center
Sleep Center Coordinator
Bismarck, North Dakota
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Additional comments from

Jeanne Prom, Executive Director

Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
March 21, 2011

Senate Appropriations Subcommittee:

Senators Kilzer - Chair, Fischer, and Robinson.

The Executive Committee requests the Senate:

Restore the Governor's Budget with the Optional Request.

Governor's Budget and Optional Request include additional 3.5 FTE.

» 3.5 permanent employees in Optional Request provide the most cost effective way

»

>

to manage triple the number of grants the Center was directed to manage without
transfer of staff.

We are a grants-making agency. Our state level staff is small. But the staff must
be an appropriate size to assure accountability of the use of funds in the field.
Permanent staff provide for cost-effective program continuity and accountability.

Governor's Budget includes the line item budget.

>
>

»

We are an agency with a budget of under $13 million.

We provide 89 percent of our budget to organizations in the field in either grants or
professional service contracts.

We are a new agency with 20 months of budget history, so all our efforts are not
yet maintenance efforts that are established as either a grant or a professional
service contract.

We follow state procurement rules that determine if an award is to be coded as a
grant or a professional service contract. Professional service contracts are not
coded as Grants, but are coded as Operating object code expenses.

A $1 million contract which was expected to be a grant, but ends up being coded
as a professional service contract, would be difficult to absorb in the current
Operating object code budget.

Even with agencies with maintenance of effort and years of budget history, it can
be difficult to predict with certainty whether a contract is a grant or a professional
service. However, in agency budgets in the hundreds of millions of dollars, it is
easier to absorb an additional $1 million expense in an object code than it is in an
agency with a $13 million budget.

To adjust amounts in object codes in the interim would require Emergency
Commission action, and the commission meets infrequently.

18



DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units
PURPOSE OF GRANT: Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units provide significant

funding to all local public health units/cooperating health units on a population.
based, noncompetitive formula to pay staff and operating expenses required to
deliver effective and comprehensive tobacco prevention and control programs
in every county reaching all population groups.

Contract Period Contract
Beginning l Ending _|Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
7112009 6/30/2010  Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health, Bismarck 280,412.00
7/1/2008 6/30/2010  Cavalier County Health District, Langdon 43,444.00
7/1/2009 6/30/2010 Centrat Valley Health District, Jamestown 256,203.00
71112009 6/30/2010  City County Health Department, Valley City 67,387.00
7112008 6/30/2010  Custer District Health Unit, Mandan 177,878.00
71112009 6/30/2010  Dickey County District Health Unit, Ellendale 48,330.00
L 7712009 6/30/2010 Fargo Cass Public Health, Fargo 489,701.00
711/2009 6/30/2010  First District Health Unit, Minot 309,060.00
711/2009 6/30/2010 Foster County Health Department, Carrington 24,962.00
71142009 8/30/2010 Grand Forks Public Health Department, Grand Forks 248,048.00
71112009 6/30/2010 Lake Region District Heaith Unit, Devils Lake 126,295.00
71172009 6/30/2010 Nelson Griggs District Mealth, McVille 59,338.00
7M1/2009 6/30/2010 Pembina County Health Department, Cavalier 28,257.00
7/1/2009 6/30/2010 Ransom County Public Heaith Department, Lisbon 49.013.00
71172009 6/30/2010  Richland County Health Depariment, Wahpeton 87.169.00
7M1/2009 6/30/2010 Rolette County Public Health District, Rolia 77,800.00
712008 6/30/2010  Sargent County District Health Unit, Forman 44,168.00
(7112009 6/30/2010  Southwestern District Health Unit, Dickinson 163,310.00
71112009 6/30/2010  Towner County Public Health District, Cando 37,707.00
7/1/2009 6/30/2010  Traill District Health Unit, Hillsboro 66,198.00
711/2009 6/30/2010  Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston 154,060.00
7172009 8/30/2010 Walsh County Health Department, Grafton 68,080.00
77172009 6/30/2010 Wells County District Health Unit, Fessenden 44,628.00
712010 6/30/2011 Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health, Bismarck 250,412.00
7/1/2010 6/30/2011 Cavalier County Health District, Langdon 43,444 00
7/1/2010 - 8/30/2011 _Central Valley Health Disffict. Jamestown 256,203.00
71112010 6/30/2011  City County Health Department, Valley City 67,387.00
7/3/2010 - 6/30/2011 Custer District Health Unit, Mandan 178,494.27
7712010 6/30/2011  Dickey County District Health Unit, Ellendale 48,330.00
7/1/2010 6/30/2011 Fargo Cass Public Health, Fargo 487,622.00
71112010 6/30/2011  First District Health Unit, Minot 309,060.00
7/1/2010 6/30/2011  Foster County Health Deﬁartrnent, Carrington 41,570.58
71172010 6/30/2011  Grand Forks Fublic Health Department, Grand Forks 24804800




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
0 PROJECT NAME: Tobacco Grants to Local Pubfic Health Units

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units provide significant
funding to all locat public health units/cooperating health units on a population-
based, noncompetitive formula to pay staff and operating expenses required to
deliver effective and comprehensive tobacco prevention and control programs
in every county reaching all population groups.

Contract Period Contract

Beginning Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
7112010 6/30/2011 Lake Region District Healtﬁ Unit, Devils Lake 126,328.90
7/1/2010 6/30/2011  Nelson Griggs District Health, McVille 59,338.00
71112010 6/30/2011 Pembina County Health Department, Cavalier 27,846.60
711/2010 6/30/12011 Ransom County Public Health Department, Lishon 47,094.86
711/2010 6/30/2011 Richland County Health Department, Wahpeton 87,166.00
7/1/2010 6/30/2011 Rolette County Public Health District, Rolla 77,800.00
71112010 6/30/2011  Sargent County District Health Unit, Forman 44,168.00
7112010 6/30/2011  Southwestern District Health Unit, Dickinson 163,310.00
7/1/2010 6/30/2011 Towner County Public Health District, Cando ‘ 37,707.00
7/1/2010 6/30/2011  Traill District Health Unit, Hillsboro 82,841.75
71112010 6/30/2011 Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston 154,060.00
o 71172010 6/30/2011  Walsh County Health Department, Grafton 68,080.00
7112010 6/30/2011  Wells County District Health Unit, Fessenden 44,669.00
Total Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units: 5,952,533.96




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Contro! Executive Committee
0 PROJECT NAME: Tobacco State Aid '

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Tobacco State Aid Grants provide funding to all local public health
units on a population-based, noncompetitive formula reaching all counties so
health units can connect all tobacco users in their client-based programs to
cessation services.

Contract Period Contract
Beginning Ending _|Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
711720098 6/30/2011 Bismarck Burleigh Public Health, Bismarck 63,595.00
7/1/2009 6/30/2011  Cavalier County Health District, Langdon 12,045.00
7M1/2009 6/30/2011 Central Valley Health District, Jamestown 34,184.00
7/1/2009 6/30/2011  City County Health Department, Valiey City 16,757.00
71112009 6/30/2011  Custer District Health Unit, Mandan 76,236.00
71112009 6/30/2011  Dickey County District Health Unit, Ellendale 13,007.00
711/2009 6/30/2011 Emmons County Public Health, Linton 11,726.00
7112009 6/30/2011 Fargo Cass Public Health, léargo 105,763.00
712009 6/30/2011  First District Health Unit, Minot 121,696.00
71172009 6/30/2011 Foster County Health Department, Carrington 11,774.00
” 7/1/2009 6/30/2011  Grand Forks Public Heaith Department, Grand Forks 55,258.00
7/1/2009 8/30/2011  Kidder County District Health Unit, Steele 10,977.00
7/1/2009 6/30/2011 Lake Region District Health Unit, Devils Lake 54,589.00
7112009 6/30/2011  LaMoure County Public Health Unit, LaMoure 12,145.00
71172009 6/30/2011  Mclintosh District Health Unit, Ashley 11,218.00
71112009 8/30/2011  Nelson Griggs District Health, McVille 22.605.00
77112009 6/30/2011 Pembina County Health Department, Cavalier 14,510.00
71112008 6/30/2011  Ransom County Public Health Department, Lisbon 13,276.00
71112009 6/30/2011  Richland County Health Department, Wahpeton 20,650.00
7/1/2008 ° 6/30/2011 Rolette County Public Health District, Rolla 18,806.00
7112009 6/30/2011  Sargent County District Health Unit, Forman 12,188.00
7112008 6/30/2011  Southwestern District Health Unit, Dickinson 100,448.00
71172009 6/30/2011  Steele County Public Health Department, Finley 10,637.00
7i1/2009 6/30/2011 Towner County Public Health District, Cando 10,917.00
71172009 6/30/2011  Traill District Health Unit, Hillsboro 14,786.00
711/2009 6/30/2011 Upper Missouri District Hea_lfh Unit, Williston 61,028.00
7M1/2009 6/30/2011  Walsh County Health Department, Grafton 16,883.00
7172009 . 6/30/2011 Wells County District Health'Unit, Fessenden 12,286.00

” Total Tebacco State Aid: 940,000.00

C:\Documents and Settings\jprom\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\ZUG2PDCO\Center Grants Spreadsheets.xlsx3/13/2011



DEPT NAME:
PROJECT NAME:
PURPOSE OF GRANT:

Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
Special Initiative Grants - Policy

Special Initiative Grants - Policy provide competitive funding to local public
health units and partner organizations to buiid the capacity of communities to
provide public education necessary for community groups to address evidence-
based policy change effective in eliminating exposure to secondhand smoke &
reducing tobacco use among youth/young adults.

Contract Period Contract
Beginning Ending ]Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
3/25/2010 6/30/2011  American Nonsmokers' Rights Foundation, Berkeley CA 25,000.00
3/25/2010 6/30/2011  First District Health Unit, Minot ND 25,000.00

Subtotal 50,000.00

DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
PROJECT NAME: Special Initiative Grants - Statewide Organization
PURPOSE OF GRANT: Special Initiative Grants - Statewide Organization provide competitive
funding to nongovernmental statewide organizations to educate and engage
their members & networks on evidence-based policy change effective in
significantly reducing tobacco use.

Contract Period Contract
Beginning Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
10/20/2010  6/30/2011  American Lung Association, Bismarck ND 70,000.37
10/20/2010  6/30/2011 Tobacco Free North Dakota, Bismarck ND 72,398.00

Subtotal 142,398.37




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee
o PROJECT NAME: Health Communication Campaign

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Health Communication Campaign provides funding to Upper Missouri
District Health Unit acting as the fiscal agent for the Public Education Task
Force (PETF) for placement of flights of tobacco prevention paid media,
creative development of media, public relations and social media costs per the
Health Communication Plan.

Contract Period Contract

Beginning Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
1/1/2010 6/30/201¢  Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston ND 168,604.00
10/1/2010 6/30/2011  Upper Missouri District Health Unit, Williston ND 657,815.00
Subtotal 827,419.00




DEPT NAME: Tobacco Prevention & Control Executive Committee

PROJECT NAME: Minot State University - Policy & Environmental Change Collaborative

PURPOSE OF GRANT: Minot State University - Policy & Environmental Change Collaborative
grant provides funding to MSU to deliver ongoing technical assistance &
coordination of training to state & local tobacco prevention programs to
implement the most effective evidence-based policies that eliminate public
exposure to secondhand smoke & significantly reduce tobacco use.

Contract Period Contract
Beginnlﬂg_; Ending |Subrecipient Name, Location Amount
8/16/2010 6/30/2011  Minot State University, Minot ND 143,587.00

Subtotal 143,597.00

TOBACCO GRANTS RECAP

Tobacco State Aid 940,000.00
Tobacco Grants to Local Public Health Units 5,852,533.96
Special Initiative Grants - Policy 50,000.00
Special Initiative Grants - Statewide QOrganization 142,398.37
Health Communication Campaign 827.418.00
Minot State University - Policy & Environmental Change Collaborative 143,597.00

TOTAL TOBACCO GRANT FUNDING:

8,055,948.33
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Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy

State Aid Grants Actual Personnel and Fringe - Current Biennium

Local Public Health Unit Personnel Fringe Benefits Personnel and Fringe
Bismarck Burleigh Public Health S 47,688.001 S - S 47,688.00
Cavalier County Health District ) 8,005.42 | § 3,20844 | S 11,213.86
Central Valley Health District S 16,662.00 | $ 8,976.00 | S 25,638.00
City County Health Department S 13,405.43 | § 3,053.88 | 5 16,459.31
Custer District Health Unit S 35,737.50 | S 21,442.50 | $ 57,180.00
Dickey County District Health Unit S 6,968.70 | § 1,809.90 | § 8,778.60
Emmons County Public Health $ 8,760.33 | S 1,571.50{ 5 10,331.83
Fargo Cass Public Heaith S 66,21861 (S 13,095.39 | $ 79,314.00
First District Health Unit S 64,740.70 | § 26,42030 | S . 91,161.00
Foster County Health Department S 907.34 | $ 20691 |S 1,114.25
Grand Forks Public Health Department S 17,264.60 | § 6,995.45 | 5 24,260.05
Kidder County District Health Unit S 12,034.01 18 936.77 | § 12,970.78
Lake Region District Health Unit S 21,82995 1§ 17,270.80 | & 39,100.75
LaMoure County Health Department S 2,335.00 | $ 215.00 | & 2,554.00
Mcintosh District Health Unit $ 5,454.31 | $ 1,042.51 | § 6,496.82
Nelson-Griggs District Health S 12,028.62 | & 4,431.88 | § 16,460.50
Pembina County Health Department S 3,500.00 | § - S 3,500.00
Ransom County Public Health Department S 1,159.00 | § 198.00{ 5 1,357.00
Richland County Health Department S 15,486.00 | § - s 15,486.00
Rolette County Public Health District $ 9,734.34 | § 4,37166 | S 14,106.00
Sargent County District Health Unit S 10,774.74 | 84554 | S 11,620.28
Southwestern District Health Unit S 23,341.45 [ § 11,563.38 1 5 34,5904.83
Steele County Public Health Department S 6,084.00 (S 1,387.00 % % 7,471.00
Towner County Public Health District S 6,156.18 | $ 46193 |5 6,618.11
Traill District Health Unit S - S - S -
Upper Missouri District Health Unit S 32,027.90 | S 13,746.10 | & 45,774.00
Walsh County Health Department $ 12,672.00 | & - S 12,672.00
Wells County District Health Unit S 2,342.37 | § 468.49 | $ 2,810.86
Total S 463,322.50 [ $ 143,719.33 ( $ 607,041.83

NOTES:

The figures above represent actual expenditures for salary and fringe reported and spent since

July 1, 2009.

3/11/2011
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t\. North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
1 0 Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy

4023 State Street, Suite 65 « Bismarck, ND 58503-0638
Phone 701.328.5130 « Fax 701.328.5135 » Toll Free 1.877.277.5080

MEMO
TO: Chair Kilzer and members of the Senate Appropriations
Subcommittee
FROM: Jeanne Prom, Executive Director
DATE: March 23, 2011
RE: House Bill 1025 ~ information requested

As requested, | have provided the information below and attached on the

following subjects:

e Measure 3 statute with accompanying fact sheet

¢ Additional details on all tobacco settlement funds (two documents) and the
deposits and expenditures in the Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund

e A detailed agency budget (two documents)

e Details on all agency positions, including minimum job qualifications, job
descriptions, and current salaries

¢ Information on how sales of tobacco are decreasing both on and off

0 reservations in North Dakota (memo)

¢ The following explanation of the involvement by the N.D. Department of
Health in grants or contracts issued by the Center for Tobacco Prevention and
Control Policy:
The Center assumed the full administration of the Center-funded local grants
program in FY 2010, and will also provide level funding and technical
assistance for local public health units no longer receiving local grants from the
Department of Health beginning in April 2011. The Center is the lead agency
on policy (including policies to promote cessation and quitline use), statewide
evaluation, health communications and community interventions. The
Department of Health is the lead agency on cessation and surveillance.

e Grants and contracts, with details on FTEs, salary and benefit expenditures
(provided March 21, 2011).

Please contact me if you need require additional information. Thank you.

¢ BreatheND

Saving Lives, Saving Money with Measure 3.
www.breatheND.com



MEASURE 3
Effective December 4, 2008

3
CHAPTER 23-42 . :
TOBACCO'PREVENTION AND CONTROL PROGRAM
23-42-01. Definitions. As used in this chapter:
" 1. "Advisory committee” is the nine-member tobacco prevention and control advisory
committee responsible to develop the comprehensive plan.
2."Comprehensive plan” means a comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention and control
program that is consistent with-the'centers for disease control best practices for
comprehensive tobacco prevention and controliprograms and does not duplicate the work of
the community health grant program created in chapter 23-38.
+3::"Executive committee":means the three-member committee selected by the advisory
‘committee and charged with implementation and administration of the comprehensive plan.
4: "Tobacco prevention and control fund" consists of all ptincipal and interest of the tobacco
prevention and contro! trust fund established by section 54-27-25.

23-42-02. Tobacco prevention and control advisory committee - Membership - Terms - Duties -
Removal.
1. The advisory board consists of nine North Dakota residents appointed by the governor for three-
year terms as follows:
a. A practicing respiratory therapist familiar with tobacco-related diseases;
. b. Four nonstate employees who have demonstrated expertise in tobacco prevention and
control; .o
o ¢. A practicing medical doctor familiar with tobacco-related diseases;
d. A practicing nurse familiar with tobacco:related diseases;
e. A youth between the ages-of-fourteen and twenty-one; and
f. A'member of the public with a previously demonstrated interest in fostering tobacco
prevention and control. S L :
2. The governor shall select the youth and public member independently; the respiratory therapist
from a list of three nominations provided by the North Dakota society for respiratory care; the four
tobacco control experts from a list of two nominations per member provided by the North Dakota
public health association's tobacco control section; the medical doctor from a list of three
nominations provided by the North Dakota medical association; and the nurse from a list of three
nominations provided by the North Dakota nurses association. The governor must make the
appointments within.three weeks of receiving the respective list of nominees. If the governor fails to
make an appointment within three.weeks; the:association that provided the list of nominees shail
select the committee member. In the initial appointments for the advisory committee, the governor
shall stagger the terms of the members so that the terms of three members expire each fiscal vear and
that three members are appointed each year.by. June thirtieth, Accordingly, the governor's initial
appointments, in some.instances, must be for terms-less than three years. The governor shall fill
vacancies for the unexpired term-as provided in this section.
3. No individual-may serve more than two consecutive three-year terms. However, terms of less than
three years are not considered in determining an individual's eligibility for reappointment.
4. A quorum of the advisory committee is required to conduct business, but the advisory committee
may conduct a meeting with less than a quorum present. A quorum is a majority of the members of
' the committee. Any action taken requires a vote of the majority of the members present at the
meeting.



5. The advisory board shall:

a. Select the executive committee;

b. Fix the compensation of the advisory committee and the executive committee.

However, compensation may not exceed compensation allowed to the legislature. Advisory

and executive committee members are entitled to reimbursement for. mileage and expenses as

provided for state officers in addition to any compensation provided;

¢. Develop the initial comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention and control program that

includes support for cessation interventions, community and youth interventions, and health

communication; and S

d. Evaluate the effectiveness of the plan and its implementation and, before April first of each

year, propose any necessary changes to the plan to the executive committee.
6. The governor may remove any member of the advisory committee for malfeasance in office, but
the advisory committee is not subject to section 54-07-01.2.
7. No nomination.to, or member of, the advisory committee shall have any past or current affiliation
with the tobacco industry or any industry,;contractor, agent, or organization that engages in the
manufacturing, marketing; distributing; sale, or promotion of tobacco or tobacco-related products.
23-42-03. Executive committee. The executive committee of the advisory committee consists of
three individuals selected by-the advisory,committee from its membership. The term of each member
is for three years. The initial terms of the members must be staggered so that one member sefves a
three-year;term, one member serves a tworyear term, and one member serves a one-year term. The
determination of initial terms shall be by lot. No individual may serve more than two consecutive
three-year terms. However, terms of less than three years are
not considered in determining an individual's eligibility for reappointment. The advisory committee
shail fill vacancies for the unexpired term. An individual selected to serve on the executive
committee is no longer eligible to serve if that individual is not a member of the advisory committee.
The executive committee is responsible for the implementation and administration of the
comprehensive plan, including the appropriateness of expenditures to
implement the comprehensive plan. The executive committee may seek the counsel and advice of the
advisory committee in implementing the plan, but the executive committee is the final
decision maker. -

. - . PO C

23-42-04. Powers of the executive committee, To implement the purpose of this chapter and, in
addition to any other authority- granted.elsewhere in this chapter, to support its efforts and implement
the comprehensive plan, the executive committee may employ staff and fix their compensation,
accept grants, property, and gifts, enter contracts, make loans, provide grants, borrow money, lease
property, provide direction to the state investment board for investment of the tobacco prevention and
control.fund, and take any.action that-any private individual, corporation, or limited liability
company lawfully may do except as restricted by the provisions of this chapter.

D os 1 :
23-42-05. Development of the comprehensive'plan. The advisory committee shall develop the
initial comprehensive plan within one‘hundred eighty days of the initial: meeting of the advisory
committee. The comprehensive plan must be funded at a level equal to.or greater than
the centers for. disease control recommended funding level. Funding for the comprehensive plan
must supplement and may not-supplant -_af;y‘funding that in the absence:of this chapter would be
or has been.provided for the commuinity health trust:fund or other health initiatives.




23-42-06. Conflict of interest. No member of the advisory committee or of the executive committee

who has a direct and substantial personal or pecuniary interest in a matter before them may vote or
take any action on that matter,

23-42-07. Audit. At least once a biennium, the executive committee shall provide for an independent
review of the comprehensive plan to assure that the comprehensive plan is consistent with the centers
for disease control best practices. The executive committee shall report the results of that review to
the governor and to the state health officer on or before Septernber first in each odd-numbered year.

54-27-25. Tobacco settlement trust fund - Interest on fund - Uses.
1. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco settlement trust fund. The fund consists of the
tobacco settlement dollars obtained by the state under subsection IX(c)(1) of the master settlement
agreement and consent agreement adopted by the east central judicial district court in its judgment
entered December 28, 1998 [Civil No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v.
Philip Morris, Inc. Except as provided in subsection 2, moneys received by the state under subsection
IX(c)(1) must be deposited in the fund. Interest earned on the fund must be credited to the fund and
deposited in the fund. The principal and interest of the fund must be allocated as follows:
a. Transfers to a community health trust fund to be administered by the state department of
health. The state department of health may use funds as appropriated for community-based
public health programs and other public health programs, including programs with emphasis
on preventing or reducing tobacco usage in this state. Transfers under this subsection must
equal ten percent of total annual transfers from the tobacco settiement trust fund of which a
minimum of eighty precent must be used for tobacco prevention and control.
b. Transfers to the common schools trust fund to become a part of the principal of that fund.
Transfers under this subsection must equal forty-five percent of total annual transfers from
the tobacco settlement trust fund.
¢. Transfers to the water development trust fund to be used to address the long-term water
development and management needs of the state. Transfers under this subsection must equal
forty-five percent of the total annual transfers from the tobacco settlement trust fund.
2. There is created in the state treasury a tobacco prevention and control trust fund. The fund consists
of the tobacco settlement dollars obtained by the state under section IX(c)}(2) of the agreement
adopted by the east central judicial district court in its judgment entered December 28, 1998 [Civil
No. 98-3778] in State of North Dakota, ex rel. Heidi Heitkamp v. Philip Morris, Inc. Interest earned
on the fund must be credited to the fund and deposited in the fund. Moneys received into the fund are
to be administered by the executive committee for the purpose of creating and implementing the
comprehensive plan. If in any biennium, the tobacco prevention and control trust fund does not have
adequate dollars to fund a comprehensive plan, the treasurer shall transfer money from the water
development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and control trust fund in an amount equal to the
amount determined necessary by the executive committee to fund a comprehensive plan.
3. Transfers to the funds under this section must be made within thirty days of receipt
by the state.



Measure 3

» (Creates a tobacco prevention andacont_rol Arust fund from the payments from the Master
Tobacco Settlement Agreement St egic Contnbutton Fund.

* Creates a nine member tobacco prevention and control advisory committee responsible for the
development of a plan for a comprehensive statewide tobacco prevention and control program
consistent with the Centers for Disease’ Contro! Best Practices for Tobacco Prevention and
Control that does not duplicate the work of the' Community Health Grant Program.

* Creates a three member executive committee selected by the advisory committee to implement
and administer the comprehensive plan.

* Requires that-80.percent ofthe.Community Health Trust Fund be used for tobacco prevention
and control, :

+ Requires that if adequate funds are not, available.to fund a comprehensive plan, money shall be
transferred:from the Water, Development Trust Fund:in-the, amount needed to fund the .
_comprehensrve plan :

e Requnres that each. bienmum the executive committee w:[l provrde for an mdependent rewew
of the plan to assure it is consistent with CDC Best Practices. Results will be reported to the
Governor and State Health Officer before September 1 in each odd numbered year.

Nine Member Advisory CommitteeApplointed.eby-‘the.Gpvgrngr

¢ 1 practicing respiratory therapist familiar with tobacco-related diseases

* 4 non-staie employees with expertise in tobacco prevention and control

¢ 1 practicing medical doctor familiar with tobacco-related diseases

e 1 practicing nurse familiar with tobacco-rélated diseases

s 1youth between the ages of 14 and 21

¢ 1 public member with demonstrated interest in tobacco prevention and control

Terms - Three years (initially staggered so that theiterms of three members explre each year) Three new
members are appointed each yearby June 30.

Term limits - Two consecutive three year terms.
All appointees must be North Dakota residents.
Governor can remove a member for malfeasance in office,

No member can have a current or past affiliation with the tobacco industry or any industry, contractor,
agent or organization that engages in manufacturing, marketing, distributing, sale or promotion of
tobacco or tobacco-related products.

No member of the advisory committee who has a direct or pecuniary interest in a matter before the
committee can vote or take action on that matter.

Duties of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee

» Select the three member executive cgmmittee.

s Fix the compensation of the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory Committee
and the executive.committee. Compensation may not exceed compensation allowed to the



;Evaluate the effect:veness of thetplan and:ii .

legislature. Members are entitled to reimbursement for mileage and expenses as provided for
state officers in addition o, any;comlgep_satlon‘-%%\ggeq'
Develop the initial comprehenswe stat‘éw;dexto iacco prevention and control: program that

includes support for cessation interventions, commumty and youth interventions, and health

commumcatnon

mgntation.ancl_{_u;p;‘iq_r to April.1 of each year,
e.executive:committee.

propose any necessary changes to'the: plan to_k _
May conduct a meeting with'less than a quorum;present but- must.have a-quorum to conduct
business. A quorum is the majority of the committee members. An action requires the vote of
the majority of the members present atthe meeting where there:is a:quorum of the: commrttee
present, ,
Must.develop the initial: comprehenswe plan.wnthm--‘lso daysofthe initial: meeting of the
advisory committee {First’ meetngan 84179 days onday, lily 6, 2009);
The comprehenswe plan must be funded at.a level equal to or greater than the Centers for
<Disease Controlirecommendedifundin ‘
'-Fundmga ort ‘ 1ppli ot*supp At.any: fundmg that in the
-absence of this Act would be or has been prov:ded for the commumty health trust fund or
other health :nrt:atwes » :

5Ekécufiveico'mmitte9' L

Consists of 3 individuals sélectédiby:the adhvisory.committee.

Terms — Three years {terms staggerediinitially so:that one expires each year).

Term limits — Two consecutive three year terms. ,
Vacancies on the executive-committee for:unexpired terms are filled by the advisory committee
from its membership.

Responsible for the implementation. and'admlmstratlon .of the comprehensive plan, including
appropriateness of expenditures to. nmpleme‘ tlthe comprehensrve plan.

May seek the counsel and advice of the advisory-committee in. implementing the. plan

Serve as the final decision maker.

Provide for an independent review/audit of the comprehensive plan at least once a biennium to
assure-the planis consistent w?th the Centers for Disease Control-Best-Practices. Results
reported o the Governor and the State Health Officer on or before September 1 in each odd
numbered year. i.e, 2011, 2013, etc.

Executive Committee Powers

*

Implement “Measure 3” and implement:the comprehensive plan.

May employ staff and fix their compensation

Acceptigrants, property, and gifts

Enter contracts

Make loans

Provide grants

Borrow money

Lease property

Provide direction to the state investment board for investment of the tobacco prevention and
control fund.

Take any action that any private individual; corporatlon or limited liahility company lawfully
may do except as restricted by-the. prov:smns of’ Measure 3.



NDCC 54-27-25

Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund - Fund 407

G

2/2/2011

Total Community Heaith Commons School Water Development

Date Received Trust Fund - 10% Trust Fund - 45% Trust Fund - 45%
12/14/99 9,036,985.38 903,698.54 4,066,643.42 4,066,643.42
113700 7,871,839.19 787,163.91 3,542,237.64 3,542,237.64
4/18/00 12,875,523.14 1,287,552.32 5,793,985.41 5,793,985.41
4/19/00 169,475.62 16,947.56 76,264.03 76,264.03
5/4/00 98472 98.48 443.12 44312
9/13/00 363.38 36.34 163.52 163.52
1/2/01 8,011,307.29 801,130.73 3,605,088.28 3,605,088.28
117101 1,505.95 150.58 677.68 677.68
4/17/01 14,690,317.34 1,469,031.74 6,610,642.80 6,610,642.80
4127101 221,405.57 22,140.55 99,632.51 99,632.51
6/15/01 21,277.38 2,127.74 9,574 82 9,574.82
11/19/01 181,556.56 18,155.66 81,700.45 81,700.45
1/2/02 7.115,019.43 711,501.95 3,201,758.74 3,201,758.74
1114/02 2,071.14 20712 932.01 932.01
4/16/02 18,872,853.92 1,887,285.40 8,492 784.26 8.492,784.26
4/23/02 609,210.48 60,921.04 27414472 27414472
172103 5,869,683.32 586,968.34 2,641,357 .49 2,641,357 49
116103 1,960,169.68. 196,016.96 882,076.36 882,076.38
0411 6/03 18,051,398.80 1,805,139.88 8,123,129.46 8,123,129.46
4/23/03 668,5681.37 66,858.13 300,861.62 300,861.62
711103 305,817.91 30,581.79 137.618.06 137,618.06
10/3/03 230,963.18 23,096.32 103,933.43 103,933.43
4/15/04 21,899,894 .49 2,189,089.45 9,854,952.52 9,854,952 52
4/21104 852,398.02 85,239.80 383,579.11 383,572.11
8/30/04 255,371.41 25,537.15 114,817.13 114,917.13
4/19/05 22,261,451.85 2,226,145.19 10,017,653.33 10,017,653.33
4/20/05 809,930.77 80,983.07 364,468.85 364,468.85
10/6/05 262,051.11 26,205.11 117,923.00 117,923.00
4/17/06 19,898,716.49 1,889,871.65 8,954 422 42 8,954,422 .42
4/19/06 1,253,301.83 126,330.19 563,985.82 563,085.82
12/22/06 196,418.35 19,641.83 88,388.26 88,388.26
4117107 20,664,718.59 2,066,471.85 9,299,123.37 9,299,123.37
4/18/07 1,379,744 44 137,974.44 620,885.00 620,885.G0
6/5/07 173,167.26 17,316.72 77,8925.27 77,925.27
4/16/08 34,865,293.50 3,496,529.34 15,734,382.08 15,734,382.08
4/17/08 1,615,783.61 151,578.37 682,102.62 682,102.62
7/7/08 91.50 9.14 4118 41.18
2/26/09 1,978,845.20 197,884.52 890,480.34 890,480.34
4/20/09 23,035,384.29 2,303,538.43 10,365,922.93 10,365,922.93
4/15/10 19,759,434.19 1,975,843.41 8,891,745.39 §,891,745.39
4/19/10 1,067,430.92 105,743.10 475,843.90 475,843.91
278,987,538.57 27,898,753.85 125,544,392.35 125,544,392.36

Qtals




NDCC 54-27-25
Tobacco Prevention and Control Trust Fund - Fund 369

Total
Date Received
4/20/2009 14,138,010.91
4/15/2010 11,817.518.68
4/19/2010 456,873.60
Totals

26,412,404.19




Tobacco Trust Fund 2/2/2011

NDCC 54-27-25. Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund

Amount
Deposit of Tobacco Money
Tobacco Settlement Trust Fund 1,057,430.92
Transfer Qut;
Community Health Trust Fund 105,743.10
Common Schools Trust Fund 475,843.91
Water Development Trust Fund 475,843.91
Total Tsfr Out 1,057,430.92
Transfer in:
10% Community Heaith Trust Fund 105,743.10
45% Common Schools Trust Fund 475,843.91
45% Water Development Trust Fund 475,843.91
Total Tsfr In 1,057,430.92

e heopleSoft Accounting ENtries s

BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund Project ActlID Amount
30500 1000 477005 369 (12,274,393.28)
30500 1000 105251 369 12,274,393.28

Revenue G|L Entries Fund 407:

8U Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund Project ActID Amount
11000 9995 477005 901 407 (1,057,430.92)
11000 9995 105251 901 407 1,057,430.92

Transfer Out G|L Entries for Fund 407:

Journal ID BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund Project ActID Amount
- 11000 9995 722316 901 90170 407 105,743.10
11000 9985 722501 901 90170 407 475,843.91
11000 9985 722267 901 90170 407 475,843.91
11000 9985 105251 901 90170 407 {1,057,430.92)

Transfer In G|LEntries:

Journal ID BU Dept. Account Oper Unit Class Fund Project ActiD Amount
30100 4571 490407 301 316 HL12490 01 (105,743.10)
30100 4571 105251 301 316 105,743.10
22600 3300 490407 226 501 (475,843.91)
22600 3300 105251 226 501 475.843.91
77000 5000 490407 770 267 {475,843.91)

77000 5000 105251 770 267 475,843.91
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Prepared by the North Dakota Legislative Council
staff for the Budget Section
October 2010

TOBACCO PREVENTION.AND CONTROL TRUST FUND -
PROJEC'FED REVENUES

This memorandum provides information on the
tobacco prevention and .control trust -fund, including
estimated revenue from tobacco settlement strategic
contribution payments toibe received by the state
under the'Master Settlement Agreement.

BACKGROQUND

The tobacco prevention and control trust fund was
created as a result of voter approval of |mtrated
measure No. 3 in the November 2008 general
election. The measure added seven new sections to
the North Dakota Century Code and amended Section
54-27-25 to establish the Tobacco Prevention and
Control Advrsory Committee and an executive
committee, develop and fund 'a comprehensive
statemde ‘tobacco preventron and control plan and
create a tobacco _prevention and control trust-fund to
receive tobacco sett[ement dollars to be admmistered
by t the executlve committee. The measure prowdes
for  the adwsory committee, appomted by ‘the

Governor, to develop the mltlal comprehenswe plan
and select an executive eommmee responsible for the
admlnlstratlon of the

|mplementatlon and
compreh \
effective’ 30""days after the election’ (lecember 4,
2008)

Tobacco settlement payments received by the
state under the Master Settlement Agreement are
derived from two subsections of the agreement.
Subsection IX(c){1) of the agreement provides
payments on April 15, 2000, and on Apri! 15 of each
year thereafter in perpetuity, while subsection IX{c)(2)
of the agreement provides for additional strategic
contribution payments that begin on April 15, 2008,
and continue each April 15 thereafter through 2017.
Section 54-27-25, created by 19989 House Bill
No. 1475, did not distinguish between payments
received under the separate subsections of the
agreement and provided for the deposit of all tobacco
settlement money received by the state into the
tobacco settlement trust fund. Money in the fund,
including interest, is transferred within 30 days of
deposit in the fund as follows;

» Ten percent to the community health trust fund.

» Forty-five percent to the common schools trust

fund.

+ Forty-five percent to the water development

trust fund.

The measure provided for a portion of tobacco
settlement dollars received by the state to be
deposited in the newly created tobacce prevention
and control trust fund rather than the entire amount in
the tobacco settlement trust fund. Tobacco settiement
money received under subsection IX(c)('I) of the
agreement continues to be deposited in the ‘tobacco
settlement trust fund and allocated 10 percent to the
community health trust fund (w1th 80 percent used for
tobacco prevention and control), 45 percent to the
common schools trust fund, and 45 percent to the
water development trust fund Tobacco settlement
money received under subsection IX(c)(2) of the
agreement is deposited into the tobacco prevention
and control trust fund. interest earned on the balance
in this fund' is deposited in the fund. The fund is
administered by the -executive commitiee created by
the measure for the purpose of creating and
implementing the comprehensive plan.

The measure aiso provides that if in any biennium
the tobacco prevention and centrot trust fund does not
have adequate funding for the comprehensive plan,
money may be ftransferred from the water
development trust fund to the tobacco prevention and
control trust fund in an amount determined necessary
by the executive-committeeito-adeguately provide for
the comprehensive plan. The, 2009 Legislative
Assembly -in Section 38 of House Bill No. 1015
provided that any money deposited in the water
development trust fund under Section 54-27-25 may
only be spent pursuant to legislative appropriation.

REVENUES

The tobacco settiement payment received by the
state in April 2008 was the first payment that included
funds relating to subsection 1X(c){2) of the agreement.
This payment was received prior to the approval of the
measure and was deposited in the tobacco settlement
trust fund and disbursed as provided for in Section
54-27-25 prior to amendment by the measure. In
2009 tobacco settlement payments began to be
deposited in the tobacco settiement trust fund and the
tobacco prevention and control trust fund pursuant to
Section 54-27-25 as amended by the measure.

The following chart provides the allocation of the
estimated collections of the tobacco settlement
payments for the period 2008 through 2025:
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Estimated Allocation of Actuzl and
-Payments:Under - Estimated.Payments Under
Master Settlément - Master Settlement Agreement
Actual and . Agreement Subsection IX{c)(1)
Estimated Subsection IX(c)(2)
Total Tobacco | Deposited in the Common Water Community

Settlement Tobacco Schools Development Health

Proceeds Prevention and Trust Fund Trust Fund Trust Fund

{Amounts ‘Control Trust.Fund (Amounts (Amounts {Amounts

Shown in ‘(Amounts Shown Shown'in Shown in Shown in

Millions) in Miliions) Millions) Millions) Millions)
Actual payment April 2008 $36.4 N/A $16.4 $16.4 $36
Actual paynient April, 2009 382 $14.1 11.3 11.3 2.5
Estlmated 2009-11 bsennlum 68.8 261 18:2 19.2 4.3
Est:mated 2011 13 biennium 73.7 276 208 208 4.5
Estimated 2013 -15° biennium 73.7 278 20:8 20:8 45
Esttmatad"2015 17 bignnium 73.7 276 20:8 208 4.5
Estimatea2017-19 biennium 52.5 N/A 23.6 238 53
Estimatéd: 2019-21 biennjum 52.5 N/A 23.6 236 5.3
Estlmated 2021- 23 Bighinium. 52.5 N/A 23.6 238 53
Estimated 202325 biennium. 52.5 N/A, 23:8. 23.6). 53
Totat §575.5 $123.0, $203.7, _-$203.7 $45.1

Interest -earned on .the balance in' the tobacco
prevéntion.-and. control-trust fund is, deposned in the
fund. Investment income deposited -in :the:tobacco
prevention and control trust fund. :during the 2007-09
bienriium totaled $8,290, and investment income to.be
deposited -in«the -tobacco prevention and control trust
fund during the 2009-11 biennium is estimated to total
$345:000:

EXPENDITURES
Actual expenditures of the Tobacco Prevention
and Control Executive Committee for the 2007-09

biénnium totaled’ $38 815 Sectlon 35 of 2009 House
Bil No. 1015 approprlated $‘12 882,000 from the
_tobacco prevention and ‘control trust fund to the
Tobacco Prevention and Control Execiitive Committee
for the purpose of providing a level of funding that will
meet the annual level recommended by the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention for North Dakota
as published in its ‘Best Practices for Comprehensive
Tobacco Confrof for the 2009-11 biennium. The
Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
is requesting the same level of funding--$12,882 000~
for the 2011-13 biennium.
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TOBACCO PREVENTION CONTROL CO&IMITTEE

oTOTAL FTE
SALARIES AND WAGES

SALAR!ES PERMANENT

TEMPGRARY SALAR!ES

FRINGE BENEFITS
TOTAL

GENERAL FUND

Y

FEDERAL FUNDS
SPECIAL FUNDS

OPERAT]NG EXPENSES

s uyeinalich

ES - IT SOFTWARE
WATERIAL -PROFESSIONAL

FEDERAL FUNDS
SPECIAL FUNDS

EQUIPMENT >$5,000

Equ:pment Over $5, 000

IT Equipment/Software Over $5,000
TOTAL

GENERAL FUND
FEDERAL FUNDS
SPECIAL FUNDS

GRANTS

GENERAL FUND
FEDERAL FUNDS
SPECIAL FUNDS

RAND TOTAL
GENERAL FUND
FEDERAL FUNDS
SPECIAL FUNDS*
*Source of Special Funds:

Expended Current Executive | Executive | Percent %
to date Budget Budget +or- Increase +
1726/2011..|  2009:2011 2011-2013 | Difference | Decrease -
4.00 ' "4.00, 4.00 - 0%
178,319 350000 | 413722 63,722 18%
(49)| 265000 401,484 376484 T i508%,
59,257 142:456; 317,288 174,832 | 123%
237,526 " 517;4561  1,132,494°| 615.038 “119%
SRS S S 1 S )
: _— 0 ]
237,526 517,456 1,132494 | 615038 | 1ig%
12,427 _41500| 53000 | 11,500 28%
2308 | 2125 6000|3875 182%
.. 3192 I8 53547 T 3TER T 531y
| . 857  é57| T 100 843 128%
11,794 .. 58001 27345] ""17,745 | 185%
72 % I I - IO} KR
1,491 _...10,000 212,000 02,0001 20%
67795 14,600 10,220 | (4,380) -30%
28,300 25,000 24,800 _RoY A%
. 46 2,000 400 (1,600)  _ -80%!
430 430 0 ZED)
21,107 28,800 _.. 99,874 27074 | T94%
4,113 4,113 2,000 887 ] . 22%
7,539 5,602 10,863 5261[<. 94%
13,136 6,000 359181 29919 [ “Zgoy|
| 8388 8,000| 7 200,060 185.000 2400%
1,522 19,000 20000 | 10,000 100%
12,735 15000} 87000 (B300) = 35%
[ 41483 4,507,932 2,485,314 | (2.022,618) 45%
__178,388'|" 4,696,815  2,967,609] (1:729,206)! “37%
| SR 5 UL N B N
o 8y oy o]l
178,888 4,696,815 2,967,609 | (1,729,206) -37%
..8225) 8225} 0. 225
5539 5,539 0 (5,539)
13,764 13,764 0 (13,764) 0%
0 N . "
AN DN Y - A
13,764 13,764 0 (13,764)
4,889944 7,653,965 8,822,511 | 1,168,546 15%
SR~ N S RO ' O
j 0 ol o
4,889,944 7,653,965 8,822,511 1,168,546 15%
5,320,122 12,882,000 | 12,922,614 40,614 0%

Tobacco Master Setffement Agreement-Strategic Contribution Fund Payments
Fund 369 - Tobacco Prevention & Control Trust Fund
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Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Executive Director

Classification: Not Classified

Status: Full-time, Regular

Monthly Salary: $5460

Minimum Qualifications:

Bachelor's degree in community health, nutrition, nursing education, biological science, social or
behavioral science, communications, business administration or public administration and seven years
of related professional level work experience; or a Master’s degree in public health, public
administration, or management and five years of related professional level work experience.

Effective verbal and written communication skills are essential.

Preference will be given to qualified applicants with experience in:

1.

N v AW

Planning, managing and evaluating health-related programs
Supervising employees

Grant and budget management

Providing testimony and public speaking

Tobacco preventicn and control

Master’s degree

Microsoft Office software

Essential duties and responsibilities (other duties may be assigned):
Office Administration:

Review the tobacco prevention state plan to ensure the annual work plans are consistent with
the state plan. Work with other agencies and organizations t0 meet the measurable outcomes
of state plan. Review the state plan quarterly at meetings with staff.

Lead Center staff meetings as scheduled. Keep staff apprised of activities.

Meet with the Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive and Adviscry Committees as needed,
including scheduled meetings. Keep them apprised of all pertinent information.

Collaborate with the Division of Tobacco Prevention and Control at the Department of Health to
insure the Tobacco Control Trust Fund does not suppiant or duplicate programs or services
provided.

Meet with Division of Tobacco Prevention and Control staff at the Department of Health as
needed including scheduled meetings. Keep them apprised of pertinent information to assure
coordination of activities.

Establish and revise policies and procedures for the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control
Policy to assure compliance with all state and federal rules, regulations, and guidelines.
Represent the Center in advocating for tobacco prevention and control at local, state and
national meetings and with public and private agencies, organizations and programs.

Oversee grants management including writing grant{s}, assessing office needs, determining
feasibility of seeking additional funding, developing RFPs for grantees, reviewing and approving
submitted grants, attending related meetings, etc.

Prepare legislative testimony, legislation and administrative rules as needed.

Review and comment on proposed federal or state laws, regulations, standards and guidelines
being promulgated by legislators or regulatory agencies.



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Executive Director
Page 20of3

Coordinate and submit the Center reports such as the monthly staff progress reports, biennial
reports, State of the State reports, biennial budgets and all reports as requested.

Develop and maintain working relationships with programs, agencies, organizations and
academic institutions.

Respond to surveys, information requests from the public, and any complaints regarding the
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy.

Provide monthly progress reports to the Executive Committee and quarterly reports to the
Advisory Committee,

Human Resource Management:

Assess staffing needs.

Recruit, interview, hire and orient program and administrative staff as needed.

Develop, communicate and monitor work assignments and progress.

Review progress reports and provide guidance and feedback to staff.

Meet with staff individually as necessary 1o review progress reports and other concerns.
Facilitate and support professional development and training for staff.

Conduct or facilitate annual performance evaluations and development review for all staff.
Review/evaluate staff for salary adjustments, merit raises and reclassifications.
Facilitate updating/development of performance standards, P1Qs and job descriptions.
Approve staff out-of-state travel, tuition assistance, and annual/sick ieave requests.
Present staff service awards annually as requested.

Pian and conduct regular staff meetings.

Provide for back-up in the absence of the executive director or other staff.

Fiscal Management:

Prepare/coordinate the annual program and biennial budgets and justification for the Center for
Tobacco Prevention and Contral Policy.

Plan/coordinate/prepare all required budget narratives, forms and reports.

Develop and maintain a sound fiscal management system.

Solicit, review, award and monitor program contracts and grants, coordinating implementation
across program areas and assessing performance.

Review and sign expenditure reports from grantees and forward to accounting/fiscal agent for
payment.

Review monthly expenditure reports received from accounting/fiscal agent and forward to
program staff,

Review and approve incoming purchase and printing orders.

Sign off on expenditure reports and travel forms.

Program Development and Evaluation:

Assess statewide needs related to programs currently and potentially within the Center.
Explore new grant opportunities pertinent 1o tobacco control.

Prepare or coordinate grants to support programs within the Center in the state plan.
Facilitate the development of policies and procedures for best practices for the Center.
Plan, develop, implement, direct, monitor and evaluate center programs and grants.
Conduct meetings with staff and stakeholders to assess program outcomes.

Conduct evaluations of grantees.

Provide technical assistance to grantees and stakeholders as requested.

Gather, interpret and report data related to the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control
Policy.



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Executive Director
Page3of3

Comprehensive Tobacco Prevention and Control Program Management:

Provide leadership and direction in comprehensive tobacco prevention and control activities.
Oversee the development and implementation of the state plan, annual action plan, evaluation
plan and communications plan.

Establish program goals, objectives, policies and procedures.

Qversee development and implementation of the annual health cemmunications plan and the
annual evaluation plan.

Develop a policy plan and mobilize support for statewide comprehensive tobacco prevention
and control strategies.

Develop and implement state policy on tobacco control including drafting legislation and
providing testimony.

Facilitate the implementation of the tobacce control state plan.

Advocate for tobacco control programs and resources both internally and externally.

Develop administrative and operational relationships with other federal, state and local
agencies. '

Build and maintain collaborative partnerships with public and private agencies and
organizations.

Oversee evaluation activities including the gathering, analyzing and reporting of data related to
all aspects of tobacco control.

Maintain a working knowledge of state and local laws related to tobacco control.

Prepare progress, quarterly, annual and other administrative reports and correspondence.



Administrative Assistant

Ciassification: Administrative Assistant |
Status: Full-time, Regular

Grade: 7

Salary Range: $2020 - $3367

Monthly Salary: $2434

0 Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy

Minimum Qualifications:

Requires an associate degree with major coursework in office support or business or office education
and two years of experience performing a variety of complex office support, clerical, or secretarial work
which included opportunities for functioning as a project coordinator, team leader, or lead worker.
Additional work experience as just described may substitute for the education requirement on a year-
for-year basis. Must have good interpersonal and written communication skills.

Preference will be given to qualified applicants with experience in:
* General office and administrative operations
= Microsoft Office Software
e Composing general office correspondence
e Planning, coordinating and arranging meetings
e State policies and procedures
e Database management

” Essential Duties and Responsibilities (other duties may be assigned):
Accounting:
e Prepare and track purchase requisitions
Process and track travel reimbursement requests
Track reimbursement requests and progress reports from grantees
Maintain division travel expense log
Serve as P-card officer for the agency
Maintain and track P-card purchases
Pick up checks and payment advices and mail/deliver
Administrative Support to the Agency:
e Answer telephone and assist or forward calls
e Serve as front office receptionist for the agency
Open, sort, prioritize, and distribute mail
Receive and assist walk-in clients
Develop, organize and maintain filing system
Arrange conference calls; time options and contact numbers
Prepare and handle travel arrangements
Schedule and organize meeting details; assist with registration
Record, transcribe, and distribute minutes of meetings
Place phone calls to inquire about resources to be ordered
Prepare and submit monthly progress report
Maintain staff professional development log
Assist with bill tracking during Legislative Session
Order and maintain office supplies and materials

* o & & »

s & & & = 5 @



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Administrative Assistant
Page2of2

Assist supervisors in scheduling and maintaining appointment calendars
Communicate with ITD and Desktop Support to handie computer trouble-shooting
Handle phone requests/changes for the agency

Assist Executive Director with orientation for new employees

Attend Central Services meetings and trainings

Conduct staff in-services on policies/procedures of office forms

Maintain office equipment inventory system for the agency

Organize and maintain journal subscriptions

Serve as forms coordinator for inventory and design of forms

Submit monthly time sheets and leave request forms for staff to fiscal agent
Complete annual equipment audit inventory for the Center

Coordinate the maintenance of office equipment

Participate in the development of office procedures

Maintain office procedure manuals

Establish and maintain agency records management system according to state laws and ruies
Assist in gathering budget data for preparation of biennial budgets

Word Processing:

Compose, edit, transcribe and type correspondence and prepare for mailing

Draft reports, forms, financial agreements and other print communications

Type grant applications, progress reports and annual and biennial reports

Maintain current mailing lists and email groups

Maintain computer program for inventory of staff resource materials

Perform desktop publishing; design and assist with newsletters, reports and other publications



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Community Intervention Coordinator

Classification; Human Service Program Administrator |
Status; Full-time, Regular

Grade: 11

Salary Range: $3134-55223

Monthly Salary: $3790

Minimum Qualifications:

Bachelor's degree in community health, communications, social or behavioral science, business four
years of related professional work experience; or a Master's degree in public health, public
administration, education, or nursing and three years of related professional work experience. A
bachelor’'s degree in another field and sever years of professional work experience in community
engagement, monitoring grants, coordinating technical assistance and training or planning,
implementing and evaluating health-related programs may substitute for the required educational

degree.

Good interpersonal skills and effective verbal and written communication skills are essential.

Preference will be given to qualified applicants with experience in:

1.

Noubken

Planning, implementing and evaluating health-related programs
Community engagement/coalition building

Group presentations

Coordinating/providing training and technical assistance

Grants/project management

Preparation of reports, training manuals, technical assistance documents
Microsoft Office

Essential duties and responsibilities (other duties may be assigned):
Provide training and technical assistance coordination for local tobaccoe grantees:

Assist local tobacco programs in building and maintaining local tobacco programs and coalitions
Asses training needs of local grantees

Plan and facilitate quarterly local tobacco sites meetings

Plan and facilitate state trainings for tobacco control grantees and partners

Assist local public health units with grant writing

Provide technical assistance to local public health unit staff in developing and implementing
work plans to meet state and local objectives

Review, critique, develop and distribute state of the art resource materials for tobacco
prevention

Interpret and disseminate scientific information and resources for local tobacco programs
Conduct on-site technical assistance visits and prepare summary reports of findings and
technical assistance provided

Build and maintain public/private partnerships:

Partner with representatives from other agencies and organizations to promote Best Practice
tobacco control interventions

Serve as Center liaison with identified partners, agencies, organizations and committees as
needed



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Community Intervention Coordinator
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Participate inflead tobacco control meetings, workgroups and partnerships

Grant Management:

Participate in/lead the grant guidance development and training

Conduct technical reviews of local grantee applications

Monitor local grantee progress and expenditures

Participate in local grantee site reviews to assess progress and compliance with grant
requirements

Assist in summarizing progress data from local grantees



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Health Communications Coordinator
Classification: Public Information Specialist Il
Status: Full-time, Regular

Grade: 11

Salary Range: $2984 - $4973

Monthly Salary: $4782

Minimum Qualifications:

Bachelor's degree in communications, journalism, English, advertising, marketing, public relations and at
least five years of related professional work experience; or a Master's degree in communications,
journalism, English, advertising, marketing, public relations and three years of related professional work
experience. A bachelor's degree in another field and sever years of professional work experience in
communications, advertising, marketing, media advocacy, or a related field may substitute for the
required educational degree.

Effective verbal and written communication skills are essential.

Preference will be given to qualified applicants with experience in:

1.

Ll

Developing, managing, and evaluating media plans/campaigns of significant reach and duration
Audience and market research

Marketing strategies and surveillance

Contract management

Tobacco prevention and control media advocacy

External and internal communicaticns

Microsoft Office software

New communication technologies such as viral marketing, social networks, personal web pages,
and blogs

Essential duties and responsibilities (other duties may be assigned):
Health Commupnications Interventions:

Lead the development, implementation and evaluation of the statewide long-and short-range
tobacco control health communication plans

Develop and implement a plan for assessment of pro-tobacco influences at the state and local
level

Coordinate/conduct audience and market research

Educate the public and policy makers on pro-tobacco influences in the state

Collaborate with stakeholders and partners on health communications interventions
Coordinate the activities of the health communications advisory committee

Develop and evaluate requests for proposals for health communications services and products
including research and polling, paid media {broadcast, print, direct mail and other media},
surveillance and evaluation

Negotiate and manage health communications contracts

Assist in preparing and managing the health communications component budget

Develop the agency objectives and work plans related to health communications

Participate in local, state and national communications networks and trainings



Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
Health Communications Coordinator
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Maintain current knowledge of state and local tobacco control issues and activities by
monitaring press clips, message research and other relevant materiais

Research applicability of new technologies such as viral marketing, social networks, personal
web pages and blogs

Assist in updating, disseminating and promoting the state tobacco prevention and control plan

External Communications:

Research, develop and disseminate communications and promotional products such as news
releases, statements, op-eds, letters to the editor, editorial board memos, newsletters, fact
sheets, brochures, policy documents, reports, website information, multi-media productions
and other communications channels

Develop relationships with news media; conduct media outreach and field media calls related to
state and local tobacco control initiatives

Serve as media spokesperson for the Center

Develop logo and brand identity

Oversee development and maintenance of agency website

Translate survey and research findings into reports and documents for use by stakeholders
Prepare and edit annual report on status of implementation of the state plan

Partner with grantees and partners to provide internal and external communications, public
relations and media advisory

Maintain inventory of health communications materials for tobacco control programs and
projects

Internal Communications:

Coordinate and develop internal communications processes and products

Develop policies and standards for agency communications

Prepare memos, reports and other relevant documents to facilitate interagency communication
Provide research and technical assistance to staff charged with preparing documents

Assist in preparing legislative testimony regarding the agency activities

Communications Training and Technical Assistance:

Provide technical assistance and training on health communications to communities, coalitions
and other partners and stakeholders

Develop standards, policies and procedures for development and implementation of local paid
media

Develop media relations and spcokesperson training materials

Assist grantees and stakeholders in developing, placing and evaluating local paid media
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Saving Lives, Saving Money with Measure 3.

Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee
Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State Street, Suite 65 » Bismarck, ND 58503-0638

701.328.5130 » FAX: 701.328.5135 » 1.877.277.5090

MEMO
TO: Chair Kelsch and members of the House Education Committee
FROM: Jeanne Prom, Executive Director
DATE: February 7, 2011
RE: House Bill 1353 — information on comprehensive tobacco prevention

During testimony provided on House Bill 1353, the state’s new comprehensive tobacco prevention
program was discussed. This memo provides additional details.

Amount of tax dollars used to fund the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy —

no tax dollars, just settlement funds

Only special funds, not taxes, are used to fund the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control
Policy. These special funds are from the settlement of a multi-state lawsuit against major tobacco
companies. The tobacco settlement money comes from tobacco companies, not state or federal
taxes. See the Center budget at the end of this memo.

Sales of tobacco on reservations --
Sales of cigarettes both on and off reservations in North Dakota have decreased every year for the
previous 5 years. (Source: N.D. Tax Department)

Cigarette sales are decreasing both on and off reservations in North Dakota, 2006-2010
{Source: N.D. Tax Department)

Year Tribal Sticks Taxable Sticks Total Sticks % of Tribal Sales
2006 134,769,080 961,128,686 1,055,897,766 12.3
2007 130,637,390 954,969,346 1,085,606,73¢6 12.0
2008 111,105,061 945,602,831 1,056,707,892 105
2009 106,420,337 912,323,960 1,018,744,297 10.4
2010 96,474,047 911,093,485 1,007,567,532 9.6

(Stick equals 1 cigarette. Tribal Sticks include cigorettes that were sold on all reservations except Standing Rock but not
taxed. Taxable Sticks include all cigarettes that were taxed and sold in North Dokota ond on the Standing Rock
reservation. Total Sticks includes as Tribal Sticks and all Taxable Sticks. Percent of Tribal Sales includes the percent of
Total Sticks that were sold on all reservations in North Dakota except Standing Rock but not taxed.)

Since 1993, the Standing Rock reservation has taxed tobacco products at the same rate as the
state of North Dakota. The other 3 reservations and 1 service area in North Dakota do not tax

tobacco.




Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State Street, Suite 65 » Bismarck, ND 58503-0638
Phone 701.328.5130 « Fax 701.328.5135 » Toll Free 1.877.277.5090

North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive Committee /\/

TO: Senate Appropriations Subcommittee
Senator Ralph Kiizer, Chair

FROM: Jeanne Prom, Executive Director

DATE: March 30, 2011

RE: House Bill 1025 — 2011-2013 budget request

Included and attached to this memo are items further explaining the North Dakota
Tobacco Prevention and Control Advisory/Executive Committee and its work related to
the 2011-2013 budget request as outlined in House Bill 1025.

North Dakota Tobacco Prevention and Control Executive/Advisory Committee
The Governor appoints all nine members at large or from names submitted by the
following organizations: North Dakota Public Health Association, North Dakota Medical
Assaociation, North Dakota Nurses Association, and North Dakota Society for
Respiratory Care. The Advisory Committee votes for three members as the Executive

Committee.

The Advisory Committee and Executive Committee members are paid $135 for
1] participation in each official committee meeting. Reimbursement of allowable expenses
) at state rates is also provided. Thus far this biennium, we have expended $41,554 and
$3,411 in fringe benefits. See attachments for more information and meeting calendars.

“ Advisory and Executive Committee payments and meetings

The Advisory Committee meets every other month. However, the committee meets
twice during May to review grants, and up to twice monthly during the Legislative
Session to provide input to the agency budget bill.

The Executive Committee began the biennium meeting every week through January
2010, and also met weekly during the Legislative Session. Otherwise, the Executive
Committee meets every other week. Weekly meetings were necessary before some
staff were hired; and during the Legislative Session, to provide input on the agency
budget bill.

Professional services — contractual
Please see attachment,

BreathelMD
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Request for an additional 3.5 FTE
Rationale: During the previous legislative session, the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention

and Cornitrol Executive Committee requested and received authority to hire 4.0 FTE. The
~ current 4.0 FTE include an executive director, community intervention coordinator, health
communications coordinator, and an administrative assistant.

The Center staff is small in relation to the agency budget of $12,882,000. By comparison,
the DOH tobacco prevention program staff includes 7.45 FTE and a temporary position,
and has a budget of $5,822,131. The Center staff is small because the Center and the
DOH mutually determined to offset inequity of staff and resources by having the larger
DOH staff administer 51 grants funded with nearly $7 million from the Center. DOH was
to provide ongoing technical assistance and training for these grantees.

However, the Department of Health has not administered these 51 grants during this
biennium. In June 2009, the Department of Health determined it would be best if the
Center administer the 51 grants, since the grants were funded by the Center. The
transfer of the administration of the 51 grants from the DOH to the Center occurred
without any transfer of FTE, even after the Center assumed all technical assistance and
training for the grantees. The Center is now responsible for administering 51 additional
grants with the same 4.0 FTE. This staff/workload ratio is not effective or sustainable.
Daily demands of technical assistance to 51 grantees require more than 1.0 FTE, which
is all the Center is able to commit to this work. In addition, the Center anticipates
issuing up to approximately 25 grants more grants, which also require daily technical
assistance and regular training. Re-directing staff to 51 unanticipated additional grants
has resulted in delays in other grants and contracts, and in planned distribution of the

current appropriation.

BreatheM
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Request for an additional 3.5 FTE

Rationale: During the previous legislative session, the North Dakota Tobacco Prevention
and Control Executive Committee requested and received authority to hire 4.0 FTE. The
current 4.0 FTE include an executive director, community intervention coordinator, health
communications coordinator, and an administrative assistant.

The Center staff is small in relation to the agency budget of $12,882,000. By comparison,
the DOH tobacco prevention program staff includes 7.45 FTE and a temporary position,
and has a budget of $5,822,131. The Center staff is small because the Center and the
DOH mutually determined to offset inequity of staff and resources by having the larger
DOH staff administer 51 grants funded with nearly $7 million from the Center. DOH was
to provide ongoing technical assistance and training for these grantees.

However, the Department of Health has not administered these 51 grants during this
biennium. In June 2009, the Department of Health determined it would be best if the
Center administer the 51 grants, since the grants were funded by the Center. The
transfer of the administration of the 51 grants from the DOH to the Center occurred
without any transfer of FTE, even after the Center assumed all technical assistance and
training for the grantees. The Center is now responsible for administering 51 additional
grants with the same 4.0 FTE. This staff/workload ratio is not effective or sustainable.
Daily demands of technical assistance to 51 grantees require more than 1.0 FTE, which
is all the Center is able to commit to this work. In addition, the Center anticipates
issuing up to approximately 25 grants more grants, which also require daily technical
assistance and regular training. Re-directing staff to 51 unanticipated additionai grants
has resulted in delays in other grants and contracts, and in planned distribution of the
current appropriation.

N
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Thus, the Center is requesting the following 3.5 FTE:

(The 2011-2013 Executive Budget includes the 3.5 FTE as temporary employees, but
the agency option budget requests these as permanent employees. The status of
permanent or temporary employment does not change the total budget request.)

Accountant -- 0.5 FTE -- The accountant will provide general accounting services for a
$12,922 614 budget and human resource management services for 7.5 FTE. This would
replace the fiscal agent, currently provided through a contract with the Department of
Health. The accountant will pay invoices, manage purchases, code expenditures, and
create/reconcile fiscal reports.

Community Intervention Coordinator — 1.0 FTE -- This position will provide ongoing
daily technical assistance for half of all grants totaling more than $3 million, and will
coordinate regular training for grantees to ensure grantees implement and evaluate work
plans, meet objectives, and reduce tobacco use over time.

Evaluation Coordinator — 1.0 FTE -- This position will manage the contract for the
ongoing comprehensive evaluation of the statewide program to ensure tobacco use is
reduced; will provide ongoing technical assistance and training to grantees related to
evaluating their grant programs; and will provide assistance in evaluating the health
communications program. Evaluation projects will total $1.5 million.

Grants Manager — 1.0 FTE -- This position will manage the development and
implementation of paperwork, protocol and processes to issue and track more than 75
grants and contracts (more than 85 percent of the budget, or nearly $11 million). This
includes developing requests for proposals, issuing requests for bids, reviewing proposals
and bids, and serving as procurement officer.

The funding needed for these positions will be offset by a reduction in operating
expenses, and does not impact grant expenditures. The amount budgeted for grants in
2011-2013 increased by about $1.2 million over the previous biennium.

BreatheND M
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0 TOBACCO PREVENTION & CONTROL COMMITTEE

2009-11 Biennium to Date

Salary, Wages & Benefits

Expended
To Date
Description 3129111
Based of FTE
SALARIES - PERMANENT . 175,385
TEMPORARY SALARIES/ OVERTIME o 2268
FRINGEBENEFITS T .. 68,764
Based on Committee Members
SALARIES - PERMANENT 7 _ e L _ 41,554
_TEMPORARY SALARIES o o o
FRINGE BENEFITS e 3411
Total Salary, Wages & Benefits $ 291,383



0 TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
2011 MEETING SCHEDULE AND REMUNERATION STATEMENT

Meetings will be held at 2:00 p.m. on the following dates in 2011:

MEETING DATE PAYMENTS
January 13 — CANCELLED $

January 27 $1080.00
February 10 $ 945.00
February 24 $ 945.00
March 10 $ 945.00
March 24 $ 810.00 YTD TOTAL: $4725.00
April 7

Aprii 21

May 5 (Grant Review)

May 19 (Grant Review)

July 14

September 8

November 10

Meetings will take place at the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy in the
conference room located at 4023 State St, Suite 15, Bismarck ND, 58503.

Anyone needing additional information or requiring special accommodation for these meetings should contact Cami
Bauman at the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy via email at crbauman@nd.gov or by dialing 701-
328-5130 or 877-277-5090.




TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
0 2011 MEETING SCHEDULE & REMUNERATION STATEMENT

Meetings will be held at 1:00 on the following dates in 2011:

MEETING DATE PAYMENTS
January: 7 $ 405.00
14 $ 405.00
21 $ 405.00
28 $ 405.00
February: 4 $ 405.00
11 $ 405.00
18 $ 405.00
24 (Thursday) S 000
March: 4 $270.00
11 S 405.00
18 S 405.00
24 (Thursday) S 405.00
YTD TOTAL: $4320.00
0 April: 1
8
15
22 (Good Friday)
29

Meetings will be held at 10:00 a.m. on the following dates in 2011:

MEETING DATE PAYMENTS
May: 13
27
June: 10
24
July: 8
22

August: 5
19

Anyone needing additional information or regquiring special accommodation for meetings should contact Cami Bauman at
the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy at crbauman@nd.gov, 701-328-5130 or 877-277-5090.



0 TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
2011 MEETING SCHEDULE

Meetings will be held at 10:00 a.m. on the following dates in 2011:

MEETING DATE PAYMENTS
September: 2

16

30
October: 14

28

November: 11 (Veteran’s Day)
25 (Day after Thanksgiving)

o December: 9

23

Anyone needing additional information or requiring special accommodation for meetings should contact Cami Bauman at
the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy at crhbauman@nd.gov, 701-328-5130 or 877-277-5090.



TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
2010 MEETING SCHEDULE & REMUNERATION STATEMENT

Meetings will be held at 10:00 a.m. on the following dates in 201.0:

MEETING DATE PAYMENTS
January: 8 S 405.00
15 S 405.00
22 S 405.00
28 $ 405.00
February: 5 $ 405.00
19 $ 405.00
March: 5 S 405.00
15 S 405.00
April: 5 $ 405.00
16 S 405.00
30 S 405.00
May: 17 $ 270.00
28 S 405.00
June: 14 S 405.00
30 $ 405.00
July: 14 $405.00
23 $270.00
August: 3 $270.00
20 $270.00
September: 3 $270.00
17 $ 405.00
October: 1 S 405.00
18 S 405.00
29 S 405.00
November: 12 $ 405.00

26 - CANCELLED

December: 10 S 405.00
17 S 405.00 ‘

TOTAL 2010 PAYMENTS: $10,260.00

Anyone needing additional information or requiring special accommodation for meetings should contact Cami Bauman at
the Center for Tobacce Prevention and Control Policy at crbauman@nd.gov, 701-328-5130 or 877-277-5090C.



0 TOBACCO PREVENTION AND CONTROL EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
ADVISORY COMMITTEE
2010 MEETING SCHEDULE

Meetings will be held at 2:00 p.m. on the following dates in 2010:

MEETING DATE PAYMENTS
January 14 $ 1080.00
March 11 $1215.00
May 12 (Grant Review) $1215.00
May 13 $ 1080.00
May 19 (Special Meeting) $ 810.00
May 20 (Grant Review) $ 1080.00
July 8 $ 1215.00
September 9 $ 945.00
November 18 $ 945.00
TOTAL 2010 PAYMENTS: $ 9585.00

Meetings will take place at the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy in the
conference room located at 4023 State St, Suite 15, Bismarck ND, 58503.

Bauman at the Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy via email at crbauman@nd.gov or by dialing 701-
328-5130 or 877-277-5090.

“ Anyone needing additional information or requiring special accommedation for these meetings should contact Cami
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ﬂ | Center for Tobacco Prevention and Control Policy
4023 State Street, Suite 65 « Bismarck, ND 58503-0638
Phone 701.328.5130 » Fax 701.328.5135 - Toll Free 1.877.277.5090

. - *HE 1035
TO: Conference Committee on House Bill 1004 <
Representative Larry Bellew, Chair H'H‘OLCJIWJU't“
FROM: Jeanne Prom, Executive Director O N 6‘
DATE: April 14, 2011
RE: Additional information on House Bill 1004

This memo includes the information that | emailed to each of you yesterday, plus an
attachment.

During the conference committee meeting April 13, the committee discussed CDC Best
Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs, October 2007, specifically
page 26, which details CDC Best Practices for Tobacco Control Programs as they
would be integrated in Chronic Disease Programs (attached).

Basically, integration of tobacco control into chronic disease programs is:
1. Determining tobacco use status of each person seen in the chronic disease
program, then:
For non-tobacco users, former users: reinforce the health benefits of

o being/staying tobacco-free, especially as it relates to their chronic
disease/condition.

For tobacco users: encourage quitting, explaining the health benefits of quitting
especially as they relate to their chronic disease/condition, and refer to or provide
information for the Quitline/Net.

2. Using tobacco tax increase to fund chronic disease prevention and treatment
programs.

3. Promote tobacco-free policies and environments to better manage and even
prevent chronic diseases.

4. Promote insurance coverage for a package of preventive services including high
blood pressure, high cholesterol and tobacco use treatment.

| provided more detail in my testimony to the Senate Appropriations Committee. | had
CDC review and approve the table below before | put it in my testimony:

CDC Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs prevent and
reduce tobacco use. Lower tobacco use = less chronic disease.
» Comprehensive tobacco prevention programs funded and sustained at the CDC-
recommended level reduce tobacco use and chronic disease.
» Conversely, underfunding tobacco prevention and cessation results in more
tobacco use and more chronic disease.

o » Reducing tobacco use will reduce heart disease, stroke and cancer.

Sgving Lives &
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» Tobacco use is a major contributor to the chronic diseases that afflict the most
North Dakotans: heart disease, stroke and cancer.
o Tobacco prevention is a cost-saving investment, because it pays off by preventing
heart attacks, strokes, and cancers.
> Eliminating funding for tobacco prevention and cessation and instead funding
treatment of chronic disease, is doubly costly: the result is less prevention
leading to more and more treatment.

The following chart outlines what the CDC defines as Best Practices for Tobacco
Control Programs, taken from Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control
Programs, October 2007, page 26:

CDC Best Practices — State & community interventions, chronic disease

_programs

State &
community
interventions
-- general

Provide funding & technical assistance & training to community
organizations & partners to build & sustain capacity to change social norms
around tobacco use; includes working with local coalitions

Collaborate with partners/programs to use evidence-based interventions to
reduce tobacco use

Provide statewide & local public education about health effects of tobacco
use & exposure to secondhand smoke & how to access cessation services
Use tobacco taxes to fund both tobacco prevention & chronic disease
prevention & treatment

Link chronic disease programs to quitline

State &
community
interventions
specific to
chronic
disease
programs

Use tobacco taxes to fund both tobacco prevention & chronic disease
prevention & treatment

Collaborate on shared goals, objectives related to reducing tobacco use:
prevent use, refer to cessation services, educate on tobacco-free policies
Link tobacco prevention interventions, such as smoke-free policies, with
cardiovascular disease prevention & cancer prevention programs

Increase awareness of secondhand smoke as trigger for asthma &
increased risk for heart attacks

Link chronic disease management programs for diabetes & cardiovascular
disease to state quitline

Promote insurance coverage for a package of preventive services including
high blood pressure, high cholesterol, & tobacco use treatment

Please let me know if you desire additional clarification. Thank you.

Breathe
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26

E State andCommumty Interventlons |

Chronic Disease Programs

State-based tobacco prevention and control programs
can collaborate with other programs to address
diseases for which tobacco is a major cause, including
multiple cancers, heart disease and stroke, and chronic
lung and respiratory discases. Addressing tobacco
control strategies in the broader context of tobacco-
related diseases is beneficial for three reasons. First,

it is critical that interventions are implemented to
alleviate the existing burden of disease from tobacco.
Second, the incorporation of tobacco prevention

and cessation messages into broader public health
activities ensures wider dissemination of tobacco
control strategies. Finally, tobacco use in conjunction
with other diseases and risk factors, such as sedentary
lifestyle, poor diet, and diabetes, poses a greater
combined risk for many chronic diseases than the
sum of each individual degree of risk. Collaboration
in these areas has potential to synergistically i increase
reach and desired outcomes in states.

_ IT; p 'e%of ‘actwﬂ?‘ff‘:s tov;reduce the‘bl%dcrﬁo ij
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CDC s Division for Heart Disease and Stroke
Prevention has developed A Public Health Action
Plan to Prevent Heart Disease and Stroke and
supporting guidance materials to provide public health
professionals and decision makers with targeted

Best Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs

recommendations and specific action steps to reverse
the trend in heart disease and stroke through effective
prevention.* Guidance materials include Transiating
the Public Health Action Plan into Action and
Moving into Action: Promoting Heart-Healthy and
Stroke-Free Communities ¢

CDC’s Division of Cancer Prevention and

Control’s National Comprehensive Cancer Control
Program funds 50 states, the District of Columbia,
seven territories, and seven tribes or tribal-

serving organizations to develop and implement
comprehensive cancer control plans. The Division
has developed Guidance for Comprehensive Cancer
Control Planning, which includes a guideline

and a toolkit for implementing and evaluating a
comprehensive cancer control plan.’’ In addition, the
Cancer Control P.L.AN.E.T. website provides links
to comprehensive cancer control resources, including
tobacco control activities,*

CDC’s Division of Diabetes Translation has made
smoking prevention and cessation for people with
diabetes a major program goal. At the time Best
Practices—2007 went to press, the Division of Diabetes
Translation, in collaboration with CDIC’s Office on
Smoking and Health, was in the process of identifying
best practices pertinent to people with diabetes as

well as measures to monitor and evaluate smoking
prevalence and cessation among people with diabetes.

Colorado provides an example of implementing

a more integrated chronic disease prevention and
tobacco control program. The objectives from the
state’s tobacco prevention and control strategic plan
have been incorporated into Colorade’s Cancer Plan
and Cardiovascular Plan. Cancer, cardiovascular
disease, asthma, and diabetes interventions reflect
the relationship between sinoking and each discase
by including promotion of the state’s quitline;
asthma messages also were integrated into a recent
Secondhand Smoke and Children campaign that
encouraged calls to the state’s quitline. In 2004, a
Colorado voter referendum secured all new tobacco
excise tax revenues for health initiatives, including
chronic disease programs that address cancer, heart
disease, and lung diseases; tobacco prevention

and control; and expansion of Medicaid and the
Children’s Health Insurance Program, community
health centers, and the Old Age Pension Fund.®
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